
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 18 October 2011 
6.00 pm 

Pittville Room 
Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA 

 
Membership 

Councillors: Steve Jordan, John Rawson, Klara Sudbury, Andrew McKinlay, 
John Webster, Roger Whyborn and Colin Hay 

 
Agenda  

    
  SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
    
1.   APOLOGIES  
    
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    
3.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

None - minutes of Cabinet of 13 October 2011 will be 
approved at the next meeting.  

 

    
4.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 

The deadline for public questions has been extended in view of 
the public interest in a number of items on the agenda. Any public 
questions must now be received by post or email by 10 am on 
Thursday 13 October. Questions should be sent to Democratic 
Services at the Municipal Offices or emailed to 
rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk. You must be a registered 
elector in the borough and need to supply your name and address 
but your address will not be made public. 
Please phone 01242 774937 if you need more information. 
 
 

 

    
  SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council 

on this occasion 
 

    
  SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by Scrutiny 

Committees on this occasion 
 

 

    



    

 
2 
 

  SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other 

Committees on this occasion 
 

 

    
  SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

AND/OR OFFICERS 
 

    
5.   IMPERIAL AND MONTPELLIER GARDENS STRATEGY 

Report of the Cabinet Member Sustainability 
(Pages 
1 - 14) 

    
6.   NORTH PLACE AND PORTLAND STREET 

DEVELOPMENT 
Report of the Cabinet Member Built Environment 

(Pages 
15 - 38) 

    
7.   HOUSING REVIEW 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Pages 
39 - 78) 

    
8.   DRAFT HRA BUSINESS PLAN 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Pages 

79 - 
106) 

    
9.   ADVICE AND INCLUSION CONTRACT 

Report of the Cabinet Member Finance and Community 
Development  

(Pages 
107 - 
128) 

    
10.   QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 

Report of the Cabinet Member Finance and Community 
Development 

(Pages 
129 - 
142) 

    
11.   BUDGET STRATEGY AND PROCESS 

Report of the Cabinet Member Finance and Community 
Development 

(Pages 
143 - 
158) 

    
12.   PROMOTING CHELTENHAM FUND 

Report of the Leader (appendix 2 to follow awaiting 
outcome of panel meeting on 7 October 2011) 

(Pages 
159 - 
168) 

    
13.   ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 

Report of the Cabinet Member Built Environment (appendix 
3 to follow) 

(Pages 
169 - 
180) 

    
14.   CHELTENHAM PARTNERSHIP STRUCTURES AND 

ARRANGEMENTS 
Report of the Leader 

(Pages 
181 - 
200) 

    
15.   AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Pages 
201 - 
220) 

    
16.   REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION-EXECUTIVE 

FUNCTIONS 
Report of the Cabinet Member Corporate Services 
(please refer to report for Council 10 October Agenda item 
10)  

(Pages 
221 - 
226) 

    



    

 
3 
 

17.   COMMISSIONING FRAMEWORK FOR BUILT 
ENVIRONMENT-UPDATE REPORT 
Report of Cabinet Member Built Environment 

(Pages 
227 - 
258) 

    
  SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION   
  • Leader and Cabinet Members  
    

18.   BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS  
    
  SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS AND 

OFFICERS  
 

  Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting  
    
  SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER 

DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A 
DECISION  

 

  See Agenda item 20 which will be taken under exempt 
business 

 
    
  SECTION 9 : LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - 

EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 

    
19.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXEMPT BUSINESS 

The Cabinet is recommended to approve the following 
resolution:- 
 

“That in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 
Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the 
meeting for the remaining agenda items as it is likely that, 
in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, if members of the public are 
present there will be disclosed to them exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3, Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local 
Government Act 1972, namely: 
 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular  
person (including the authority holding that information) 
 

 

    
20.   A FINANCIAL MATTER 

Report of the Cabinet Member Sport and Culture 
(Pages 
259 - 
290) 

    
 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



   
 Page 1  
  
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18th October 2011 

Imperial and Montpellier Gardens - Phase 1 Proposed 
Enhancements 

Accountable member Cabinet Member Sustainability, Councillor Roger Whyborn 
Accountable officer Assistant Director of Operations, Rob Bell 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Environment 

Ward(s) affected Lansdown 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary Following the council’s cabinet meeting of the 26th July 2011 

firm quotations and costings have been obtained for the 
proposed phase 1 works to Imperial Gardens and these are 
outlined in appendix B.  

Recommendations 1) That authority be delegated to the Director Operations 
in consultation with the Cabinet Member, Sustainability 
and the Council leader, to  undertake the first phase of 
the proposed works in Imperial Gardens as outlined in 
Appendix 2 and in accordance with the consultation 
plans entitled “Imperial Gardens Design” and dated 
May 2011, and subject to minor alteration where it is 
deemed necessary. 

2) That tentage designs for Montpellier gardens be 
restricted to 4700M2, and 2750m2 in Imperial Gardens 
(excluding walkways and gazebos) in 2012 and 
onwards. All to be contained in the areas outlined in red 
on appendix C and D. 

3) That both Imperial Gardens and Montpellier Gardens be 
subject to a maximum usage cap of 75 special event 
days each (including setting up and taking down). 

 

Agenda Item 5
Page 1



   
 Page 2  
  
 

Financial implications The 2011/12 budget as approved by Council on 11th February 
2011 included a one-off revenue budget of £140,000 for 
Investment in Imperial and Montpellier Gardens to provide 
improved facilities for hirers, including Cheltenham 
Festivals. An additional one-off budget of £5,000 is allocated 
for works to the side of the Town Hall. 
The final scheme, to be agreed by Cabinet in October 2011 
must be delivered within the approved one off revenue 
budget, and the ongoing maintenance of the gardens to be 
financed from existing annual revenue budgets. 
Contact officer: Andrew Powers 
andrew.powers@cheltenham.gov.uk 01242 264121 

Legal implications The award of the contracts must be in accordance with the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 
The Council has powers under Section 145 Local 
Government Act 1972 to use and/or enclose areas of parks or 
gardens for the provision of entertainment.  
Contact officer: Donna Ruck, Solicitor, One Legal  
donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk 01684 272696 

Development Control 
Implications.  

Elements of these proposals will require planning permission 
and listed building consent; an application has currently 
been made. 
The planning application will seek to resolve the uncertain 
planning situation regarding temporary use of the parks for 
tented accommodation with a view to resolving this situation 
from 2012 onwards. Planning has indicated that there will be 
no issue with the provision of the tents in Montpellier 
Gardens this year in view of the forthcoming planning 
applications.  
Contact officer:    Robert Lindsey 
robert.lindsey@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 26416 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None. 
Contact officer:Julie McCarthy 
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks  The risk assessment is included as appendix 1 

Page 2



   
 Page 3  
  
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 Four outcomes from the Council’s Corporate Strategy that 
are of relevance: 

• Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained environment 
• Cheltenham’s natural & built environment is enhanced and 

protected  
• Create a financially sustainable structure for delivering arts 

and culture activities.  
• Arts and culture are used as a means to strengthen 

communities, strengthen the economy and enhance and 
protect our environment  

 
Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The proposed planting arrangement in Imperial Gardens will 
largely stay the same in terms of seasonal bedding 
requirements with the use of perennials where possible. 
Skillicorne Gardens will contain mainly perennial plants that 
are less resource hungry in terms of compost and water. 
The re-instatement method advocated will minimise water 
usage by employing drill seeding techniques in Spring and 
turfing in Autumn. 

 
1. Background  
1.1 On the 26th July 2011, the Council’s Cabinet resolved the following; 
• Authority be delegated to the Director Operations in consultation with the Cabinet 

Member, Sustainability and the Council Leader, to go forward with a tendering 
process to undertake the first phase of the proposed works in Imperial Gardens. 

• Tentage designs for Montpellier Gardens be restricted to approximately 4700M2, 
(excluding walkways and gazebos) and authority be delegated to the Director 
Operations in consultation with the Cabinet Member, Sustainability to agree the exact 
figure. 

• At the same time, authority be delegated to the Director (Operations) in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member, Sustainability and the Council Leader to go forward with a 
tendering process for infrastructure in Montpellier Gardens. 

• Authority be delegated to the Director Operations in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member, Sustainability and the Council Leader, to submit the relevant sections of the 
scheme for planning approval and listed building consent.  

• The final decision to go ahead with works in Imperial Gardens and Montpellier 
Gardens are to be referred back to Cabinet for decision on the 18th October 2011 in 
time for completion of works over the winter 2011/2. 

 
2. Progress Report 
 

2.1 Phase 1 of the work has now been worked up in more detail and competitive 
quotations received. Other items that are being undertaken “in house”, such as 
planting have also been costed.  Details of these costs are provided in Appendix B to 
this report.  

Page 3



   
 Page 4  
  
 

2.2 The provision of upgraded electricity and water supply in both Gardens is still under 
discussion between the Council and  festival event organisers  in order to best meet 
their requirements. The cost of this element has therefore been capped. 

2.3 Listed building and planning consent has been applied for in relation to elements of 
the landscape design in Imperial Gardens that require this. 

3. Next Steps 
3.1 If approved by Cabinet, orders and contracts for the works will be put in place, and 

detailed discussions held with contractors about the precise timing of works taking 
into account lead in periods for ordering of materials and allocation of resources. All 
contractors have indicated that they can undertake the work within the required 
timescale.  
Once the precise details are known on timings then this will form the basis of a press 
release. It is anticipated that the first piece of work to occur will be the redesign of 
the seasonal flower bed areas, as this will need to take place as soon as possible 
after the Literature Festival this October in order for the Spring plants to be planted. 
Temporary notices will be put up on site explaining the works as they take place. 
Beyond phase 1 works the Friends of Imperial Square and Gardens have started 
planning and fund raising to replace the historic railings surrounding Imperial 
Gardens. 

Report author Contact officer: 
Adam Reynolds – Green Space Development Manager 
adam.reynolds@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 774669 

Appendices Appendix A – Risk Assessment 
Appendix B – Cost Plan 
Appendix C – Imperial Gardens 
Appendix D – Montpellier Gardens 

Page 4



   
 Page 5  
  
 

Background 
information 

Environment  Scrutiny Committee, 2nd March 2011 -Imperial and 
Montpellier Gardens Strategy 
Cabinet, 15th March 2011- Imperial and Montpellier Gardens Strategy 
Council, 27th June 2011 - Imperial Gardens Outline Design and 
Consultation 
E&BI Scrutiny Committee, 18th July 2011 - Imperial and Montpellier 
Gardens Strategy 
Cabinet – 26th July 2011, Imperial Gardens Outline Design and 
Consultation 
Environment  Scrutiny Committee, 14th September 2011 -Imperial 
and Montpellier Gardens Strategy 

 

Page 5



Page 6
This page is intentionally left blank



Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
A 

 
Th
e r
isk

 
Or
igi
na
l ri
sk
 

sc
or
e 

(im
pa
ct 
x 

lik
eli
ho
od
) 

Ma
na
gin

g r
isk

 

Ri
sk
 

ref
. 

Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip
tio
n 

Ri
sk
 

Ow
ne
r 

Da
te 
rai
se
d 

 
Up
da
ted

 
I 

L 
Sc
or
e 

Co
ntr
ol 

Ac
tio
n 

De
ad
lin
e 

Re
sp
on
sib

le 
off
ice

r 
Tr
an
sfe

rre
d 

to 
ris
k 

reg
ist
er 

 
Do

es
 no

t o
ffe

r th
e s

pa
ce
 re

qu
ire

d 
by
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Fe

sti
va
ls 
an

d t
he

y 
de

cid
e t

o r
elo

ca
te 

els
e w

he
re.

 
 

23
/02

/20
11

 
 

06
/07

/20
11

 
4 

3 
12

 
Ye

s 
Ide

nti
fy 
su
ita
ble

 sp
ac
e 

els
e w

he
re.

 
 En

ter
 in
to 

ag
ree

me
nt 

wit
h 

Ch
elt
en

ha
m 

Fe
sti
va
ls 
for

 
co
nti
nu

ed
 co

mm
itm

en
t to

 
us
e o

f b
oth

 ga
rde

ns
 

fol
low

ing
 C
ou

nc
il 

inv
es
tm

en
t. 

 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Fe
sti
va
ls 

 Le
ga

l 

 

 
He

rita
ge

 Lo
tte

ry 
Fu

nd
 de

cla
re 

tha
t 

the
 co

un
cil 

is 
no

t a
llo
win

g 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 le
ve
l o
f p

ub
lic 

ac
ce
ss
 

to 
Mo

ntp
ell
ier

 G
ard

en
s a

nd
 ob

jec
t 

to 
pro

po
sa
ls 

 
23

/02
/20

11
 

06
/07

/20
11

 
1 

3 
3 

No
 

Le
ga

l v
iew

 is
 th

at 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 le
ve
l o
f a

cc
es
s 

wil
l b
e m

ain
tai
ne

d a
nd

 to
 

lia
ise

 w
ith
 he

rita
ge

 lo
tte

ry 
fun

d. 
He

rita
ge

 Lo
tte

ry 
Fu

nd
 

ha
ve
 ac

ce
pte

d p
rop

os
als

 
all
ow

 su
ita
ble

 pu
bli
c 

ac
ce
ss
, b

ut 
wa

nt 
to 

be
 

sa
tis
fie
d t

ha
t p

ark
 is
 

ad
eq

ua
tel
y p

rot
ec
ted

 an
d 

re-
ins

tat
ed

. 

Ap
ril 
20

11
 

NW
 Le

ga
l 

 

 
Pa

rk 
us
ers

 at
 bo

th 
ga

rde
ns
 m

ay
 

be
 di
ss
ati
sfi
ed

 w
ith
 th

e e
xte

nt 
of 

ea
ch
 si
te 

fro
m 

wh
ich

 th
ey
 

ex
clu

de
d d

uri
ng

 fe
sti
va
l ti
me

s 

 
23

/02
/20

11
 

 
 

4 
4 

16
 

Ye
s 

Do
 no

t o
ffe

r a
ny
 fu

rth
er 

sp
ac
e i
n e

ith
er 

ga
rde

ns
. 

Re
du

ce
 se

t u
p a

nd
 ta

ke
 

do
wn

 du
rat

ion
 

 
RB

 / A
R 

 

 
Inc

rea
se
d u

se
 of

 th
e g

ard
en

s f
or 

fes
tiv
al 
ac
tiv
itie

s c
ou

ld 
ac
ce
ler

ate
 

we
ar 

an
d t

ea
r o

n t
he

 fa
bri
c o

f th
e 

ga
rde

ns
. i.
e. 

us
e o

f h
ea

vy
 

ve
hic

les
 an

d m
ac
hin

ery
 on

 
su
rfa

ce
s n

ot 
de
sig

ne
d t

o 
ac
co
mm

od
ate

 su
ch
 us

e. 

 
23

/02
/20

11
 

06
/07

/20
11

 
4 

4 
16

 
Ye

s 
Fe

sti
va
ls 
inv

es
t in

 re
gu

lar
 

ae
rat

ion
 of

 gr
ou

nd
. R

e-
ins

tat
em

en
t c
lau

se
s i
n 

lan
d u

se
 ag

ree
me

nt 
en

for
ce
d. 

Ch
elt
en

ha
m 

Fe
sti
va
ls 
bu

ild
 th

es
e i
tem

s 
int
o t

he
ir c

os
t p

lan
. 

Ma
ke
 al
ter

ati
on
s t
o h

ard
 

 
RB

 / A
R/
 

Fe
sti
va
ls 

 

Page 7



su
rfa

ce
s t
o b

ett
er 

ac
co
mm

od
ate

 fe
sti
va
l 

ve
hic

les
 bu

ilt 
int
o 

pro
po

sa
ls 

 
To

o m
an

y m
arq

ue
es
 m

ea
n t

ha
t 

Fe
sti
va
l in

 a 
Ga

rde
n” 

is 
un

ac
hie

va
ble

. 
 

23
/02

/20
11

 
05

/10
/20

11
 

4 
4 

16
 

Ye
s 

Pr
oc
ee

d a
ny
wa

y a
nd

 
ac
ce
pt 

ris
k. 
Ma

na
ge

 
pu

bli
cit
y. 
 

 Re
vie

w 
aft

er 
ye
ar 

on
e a

nd
 

rec
om

me
nd

 do
wn

 si
ze
. 

 
RB

 / A
R 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

Page 8



Page 9By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 10
This page is intentionally left blank



CHELTENHAM

To
wn Hall

The Q
ueen's H

otel

The Quadrangle

W
olseley Terrace

The Broad Walk

PH

House

Im
peria

l

57.7m

61.0m

61.2m61.4m

63.2m

Im
peria

l G
ardens

Pond

S
ur

ge
ry

IM
P

E
R

IA
L 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

T
R

A
FA

LG
A

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Te
rr

ac
e

116

11
0

114 1 7

3

1 to 6

60

21
14

71

1 to
 12

33

44
36

52

26

24

13

30

23
10

2
10

0
10

4
10

6

384247 46 37

27

6

2

10
8

34

4

Shelte
r

Statue

Sub

Paris
 H

ouse

ED & Ward Bdy

TCBs

Monument

Im
peria

l C
ourt

Im
peria

l G
ate

Fn

Hotel

SD

PCs

IMPERIAL LANE

Alm
a

C
R

1
T

R
A

FA
LG

A
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

14

IM
P

E
R

IA
L 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

1

S
ur

ge
ry

IMPERIAL SQUARE

36

Cheltenham Borough Council
Imperial Gardens

option 2

1:1,250 Date: 10/2/11Scale@A4,

OS Crown Copyright©. 
All rights reserved 
Cheltenham B.C. 
100024384 2006

This document is for reference purposes only
 and is not to be construed as a legal document
 or survey instrument. Any reliance on the 
information contained herein is at the user's own risk.

Festival areas

Appendix CPage 11



Page 12
This page is intentionally left blank



MONTPELLIER

The Q
ueen's H

otel

Pavilio
n

Montpellie
r G

ardens

Tennis Courts

65.9m

64.1m

68.0m

68.1m

68.2m

68.4m

63.2m

Gardens

MONTPELLIER TERRACE

MONTPELLIER SPA ROAD

BACK MONTPELLIER TERRACE

M
O

N
T

P
E

LLIE
R

 W
A

LK

11

Bandsta
nd

Trough

M
ontpellier A

venue

4

3

1
8

1 to 4

5

60

2

15

39

44
36

52

26

12

Lodge

14

6

37

7

57

25

41

49

9

Shelte
r

Statue

Playground

ED & Ward Bdy

Post

C
W

The

T
he C

oach

PC

1

6

1

36

Shelte
r

3

4

1

6

2

3

1

7

Playground

Cheltenham Borough Council
Montpellier Gardens
option 1 & option 2

1:1,250 Date: 10/2/11Scale@A4,

OS Crown Copyright©. 
All rights reserved 
Cheltenham B.C. 
100024384 2006

This document is for reference purposes only
 and is not to be construed as a legal document
 or survey instrument. Any reliance on the 
information contained herein is at the user's own risk.

Festival areas

Appendix DPage 13



Page 14
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 1 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
 

Council – 10 October, 2011 
Cabinet – 18 October, 2011 

 
North Place & Portland Street - progress update 

 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Built Environment 

 
Note:  this report will only go to Council & Cabinet if the bid passes the assessment process and the evaluation 

panel wants to recommend proceeding with the appointment of a preferred bidder 
 

Accountable member Councillor John Rawson, Cabinet Member Built Environment 
Accountable officer Grahame Lewis, Executive Director 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Environment  

Ward(s) affected St. Paul’s & Pittville directly 
All Saints, Lansdown & College indirectly 

Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary The Cheltenham Development Task Force was established on 4th January, 

2010, with the purpose of driving forward the ambitions previously set out 
under the Civic Pride banner. It became clear that due to changing 
circumstances the previously adopted brief for this key site was not likely to 
be deliverable, so following public consultation, the Council approved the 
revised development brief for this site in December 2010. As a result, the 
site was marketed in line with the EU Competitive Dialogue procedure set 
out in the Public Contracts Regulations from 24th January 2011. A tight 
timetable was proposed in order to maximise developer interest. This 
resulted in a positive market response and by 26th July, 2011, it was 
possible to identify two short listed bidders, who were invited to work up full 
schemes based upon their initial proposals (which were judged both on their 
design interpretation and financial package). 
 
Unfortunately, one of the two shortlisted consortia withdrew in early August. 
However, given the merits of the remaining scheme, it was decided to 
proceed with the competitive dialogue process, albeit with minor 
amendments reflecting the change in circumstances. 
 
Dialogue meetings have continued with a specific focus upon design and 
financial factors. Design considerations have been informed by input from 
the urban design and planning teams, together with responses from the 
public, whilst the financial focus has been on capital values and assessed 
scheme deliverability. 
 
Cabinet will now consider whether to convey preferred bidder status on 
Augur Buchler and their associated scheme, at its meeting on 18th October, 
2011. In view of the significance of the proposed development, Cabinet is 

Agenda Item 6
Page 15



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 2 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

keen to engage with the wider Council and to secure input from fellow 
Councillors, to help inform its own deliberations and subsequent decision.  
 
Additionally, the proposal will be considered by the Cheltenham 
Development Task force on 14th October, 2011, and that too will result in a 
recommendation to help inform the Cabinet decision. 

 
Given the visual nature of the development proposal, a short presentation 
will be provided. Additionally, given the financial and commercial sensitivity 
of this matter, members are advised that it will be necessary to consider any 
financial aspects of the scheme in closed session, if they want to debate or 
consider these matters in more detail. 
Officers consider that the key factors are design issues and financial 
outputs. 
Note: The following additional documents will be made available to Cabinet 
prior to its meeting on 18th October:  1) the Council recommendation 2) a 
report and recommendation from the Cheltenham Development Task Force; 
and 3) an exempt Appendix attaching Augur Buchler's final proposal. 

 
Recommendations 

 
 
1. That Council recommends to Cabinet that it should appoint 
Augur Buchler Partners Limited as the preferred bidder to 
undertake the redevelopment of the North Place and Portland 
Street sites.   

 
2. That Cabinet: 

 
a. considers the recommendation of Council on 10 October 2011 
and taking into account the advice of the Cheltenham 
Development Task Force, agrees to appoint Augur Buchler 
Partners Limited as the preferred bidder to undertake the 
redevelopment of  the North Place and Portland Street sites (the 
Sites); 

 
b. delegates authority to the Head of Property Services in 
consultation with the Borough Solicitor to: 
i) conclude the documentation necessary to appoint Augur 
Buchler Partners Limited as the preferred bidder; 
ii) conclude the documentation required to dispose of the Sites 
as necessary (noting that the Sites may be disposed of in parts 
by way of leasehold and freehold disposals and to more than 
one party); 
 
ii) enter into an agreement with Gloucestershire County Council 
for the purchase of land at Warwick Place.   

 
  
 

Page 16



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 3 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

Financial implications The final financial details are commercially sensitive and will therefore be exempt 
information, made available to Council and Cabinet as a confidential exempt 
Appendix. 
Contact officer:  Paul Jones 
E-mail:                paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk  
Tel no:                01242 775154 

Legal implications The Council has undertaken the competitive dialogue procedure as set out 
in the Public Contract Regulations 2006, to choose a developer to 
redevelop the North Place and Portland Street sites. This involved a 
staged process of assessment as follows: 
• Pre-qualification selection process; 
• Invitation to shortlisted candidates to participate in a dialogue 

process during which aspects of the project were discussed and 
solutions developed; 

• Two bidders were chosen from the shortlisted candidates and 
invited to continue dialogue;  

• Dialogue closed and final tenders invited for selection of a 
preferred bidder. 

 
If Augur Buchler is chosen as the preferred bidder the Council will need to 
enter into a preferred bidder letter, inviting the preferred bidder to enter 
into a contract with the Authority to deliver the Project.. Following 
appointment of a preferred bidder there is a further opportunity to 'clarify 
aspects of the tender or confirm commitments' provided that there are no 
substantial changes to the tender. 
 
The Council can dispose of the Sites using its powers under Section 123 
Local Government Act 1972 and unless it can rely on a general or specific 
consent issued by the Secretary of State, it must achieve best 
consideration for the disposals. The Council can purchase the land at 
Warwick Place by using its powers under Section 120 Local Government 
Act 1972. 
 
Contact officer:  Donna Ruck, Solicitor 
 
E-mail:                 donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
Tel no:                 01684 272696 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None arising from this report 
Contact officer:   Julie McCarthy 
E-mail:                julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no:                01242 264355 

Page 17



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 4 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

Key risks 1. The state of the global economy and the current fragility of markets 
in relation to support for new investment are an on-going concern. 

 
2. If the scheme is not considered deliverable, the Council’s 

investment plans for infrastructure improvements in other areas of 
the town centre will be put at risk due to the lack of available capital 
funding. 

3. The Council’s reputation could be significantly damaged and the 
authority may be at risk of legal challenge if it was to withdraw from 
the tender process without good reason. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

This high profile development has the potential to improve an existing  
distinct scar on the urban landscape, to deliver much needed housing 
(including 40% affordable provision), employment opportunities, modern 
parking facilities, a bus node and public square; all in a sustainable 
manner. 

Additionally, sale of the site will yield a capital receipt that can be targeted 
at future town centre improvement schemes. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The design brief for the site envisaged a scheme that would deliver an 
exemplar in terms of sustainability. The proposals at this stage indicate 
that this ambition will be realised, with a host of environmental 
improvements proposed. These include green walls and roofs which will 
limit run-off and flood issues as well as absorb pollutants; improvements to 
the local bio-diversity through trees and other planting; bus connectivity; 
minimum code 4 housing with the potential to reach code 5 and minimum 
BREEAM rating of very good on the commercial elements. 

1. Background 
1.1 Council established The Cheltenham Development Task Force, under the independent 

chairmanship of Graham Garbutt on 4th January, 2010, to drive forward the ambitions previously 
set out under the Civic Pride banner. 

 
1.2 Initial analysis by the Task Force (subsequently substantiated by independent property advice), 

established that the previously adopted development brief for the North Place and Portland Street 
sites was unlikely to be delivered in its adopted format. For this reason, an amended brief was 
developed and publicly consulted upon. This brief essentially retained all of the principal elements 
of the previous scheme, including commitments to sustainability, the delivery of a public square, a 
minimum of 100 housing units (of which 40% to be affordable), a minimum 300 public car parking 
spaces and a bus node, but a reduced level of specificity concerning what other uses would be 
allowed to underpin the financial provision of such requirements. The brief allowed for a wide 
spectrum of uses, including residential, commercial and/or leisure. 

 
1.3 As a result of the requirement for physical outputs, such as the car park, the procurement moved 

from a simple land disposal to one whereby a comprehensive development solution was required. 
As a result of this, the proposal redevelopment of the Sites needed to be advertised in the Official 
Journal of the European Union regulations as a “concession for works”. The key challenge to the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2006 requirement is that many potential developers find the process 
extremely slow and frustrating, so it was felt prudent to follow an aggressive timetable, to 
demonstrate to the market that CBC and its partners were serious about delivering this scheme 
and releasing capital for other public realm improvement initiatives. 

 

Page 18



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 5 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

1.4 The formal marketing of the site began on 24th January, 2011 and a process has been followed 
that sequentially reduced bidders in a structured manner. Thus, from 115 initial expressions of 
interest, 9 formal bids were received; on the basis of an objective scoring matrix five were invited 
to participate in a competitive dialogue process (ITPD). One of these withdrew at this stage, 
leaving four bidders to submit ‘Outline Solutions’ by 1st July, 2011. Throughout the process, all bid 
proposals were considered against an evaluation matrix endorsed by Cabinet at its meeting on 
8th February, 2011, which essentially allocated scores on a 50:50 basis for design and financial 
return criteria. 

 
1.5 From the 4 bids received, two schemes scored much higher than the others and were invited to 

continue dialogue on 26th July, 2011, with the purpose of ultimately partaking in an invitation to 
submit a final tender (ISFT). The two schemes were from Salmon Harvester and Augur Buchler. 

 
1.6 Unfortunately, on 9th August, 2011, the bid from Salmon Harvester was formally withdrawn for 

commercial reasons. This changed the dynamics of the process as it was anticipated to have two 
bidders up to the final stage, with one ultimately chosen as the preferred partner. Meetings were 
held between Augur Buchler and CBC, where both parties agreed to continue the process based 
upon some key assumptions, including a commitment by the bidding team not to exploit their 
position or CBC would feel obliged to withdraw from the process. Both Councillor Steve Jordan 
and Andrew North were present at these meetings. 

 
1.7 In light of this commitment and the mobilisation of an even larger design and consultant team by 

Augur Buchler, the dialogue process has continued. Although Augur Buchler is the only bidder 
remaining in the process, it can only be granted preferred bidder status by a Cabinet decision. 

 
1.8 The original timetable has now been accelerated to reflect this solus position. Cabinet will be 

asked to consider granting ‘preferred bidder’ status to Augur Buchler on 18th October, having first 
heard the views of Council on 10th October and the recommendation of the Cheltenham Task 
Force on 14th October. If preferred bidder status is supported and there is no overview and 
scrutiny call-in, so that an Award Decision Notice with a 10 day “standstill” period can be issued, it 
would be technically possible to secure the Development Agreement between CBC and Augur 
Buchler on or around 15th November, 2011, with final completion of the transaction subject to 
securing planning permission for the preferred scheme. 

 
2. Key considerations 
2.1  Minimum Requirements 
 
2.1.1 The proposed scheme will deliver the mandatory bid requirements set out in the various bidding 

documents which mirror the design brief approved by Council. This includes:- 
� A minimum 100 housing units – the scheme proposes 130 units, of which 40% will be 

affordable; 
� A public square – in this case opposite the church and aptly alluded to as ‘Trinity Square;; 
� A bus node – utilising the stopped-up highway land at Warwick Place, in the ownership of 

GCC; 
� A minimum 300 car park spaces – the scheme proposes two car parks albeit within the 

same structure – a 300 space car park dedicated for public use and another, of similar 
footprint, for the use of the foodstore. The hotel will use the public space car park as its 
demand for space complements general day time use (Note: this is the same model 
deployed by the nearby NCP / Holiday Inn Express). Parking provision for the housing is 
separate to these allowances and will comprise at least one space per dwelling. 

� A substantial capital receipt for the Council; 
� An on-going revenue stream from the car park provision, equating to the current net 

current revenue generated by CBC for the Portland Street car park. 
 

Page 19



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 6 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

Note: These proposals may be subject to modification as a result of the formal planning process, 
which will ultimately determine the acceptability or otherwise of the finer details of the overall 
scheme. 

 
2.1.2 In addition to the above, the level of sustainability proposed is higher than prescribed and will be 

an exemplar, with BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment 
Method) Excellent targets for the commercial elements and Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 
targets for the housing, (level 5 if residential elements can be linked to the store’s combined heat 
& power provision). 

 
 
2.2 Public Engagement 
2.2.1 The scheme has been subject to significant scrutiny by the urban design and planning teams and 

critically, by the public. The scheme was unveiled to the public on 20th August, 2011, via the front 
page of the Echo and CBC website. This was supported by static and manned displays plus an 
evening meeting targeted at local residents and a further meeting with the Civic Society. 

2.2.2 Details of the consultation and its outcomes are set out in section 3 below. 
 
2.3 Legal Structure 
2.3.1 A development agreement will be entered into, which will set out the developer’s obligations for 

building out the sites and setting out when land will be disposed of by the Council and to whom. 
At the time of writing the report the disposal of the Sites is being negotiated, but the likely method 
of disposal is as follows:- 

 
� CBC releases the freehold of the sites for housing and commercial development; 
 
� CBC retains the freehold and grants a long lease (250 years) over the area containing the car 

park reserved for public use; 
 

� CBC to receive an annual payment for the leased area; this effectively becomes ground rent, 
but is set at a rate that equates to the net revenue from 300 spaces currently on the site. 
There would be a break clause in the lease in line with the commercial lets, but if enacted it 
requires the asset (the car park) to be handed over to CBC to run. Alternatively, the lease 
could be extended, or both parties could at some point in the future determine to redevelop 
the site again. 

 
� At exchange of contracts, CBC will receive 5% of the capital receipt and the remainder (95%) 

upon confirmation of planning permission. On this basis, CBC will release freehold title to the 
land before commencement of works, as it will have received all monies arising from the 
scheme. 

 
� The developer is required to use all reasonable and commercially sensible endeavours to 

obtain a satisfactory planning permission within a fixed period from exchange of contracts (to 
be agreed). Additionally, the developer is required to commence and complete works within a 
fixed period from exchange of contracts (again, to be agreed). Failure to do so will require the 
developer to pay a daily sum (equivalent to the car park revenue) for each extra day. 

 
� If the car park is not managed within the agreed terms i.e. public access for a minimum 300 

spaces and quarterly rent payments to the Council, CBC has the ability to seek forfeit of the 
lease. 

 
� There will be a pro-rata payment to GCC for their interest in Warwick Place (which enables 

the bus node facility), based upon the net capital receipt received for the whole site. 

Page 20



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 7 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

 
2.4 Financial Considerations 
 
2.4.1 Should members wish to discuss the indicative financial receipt and mechanics of the car park 

income, this will need to be done in closed session due to the commercial sensitivity involved. 
 
3. Consultation 
3.1 Augur Buchler’s initial proposal for North Place / Portland Street was made available for public 

comment between 22nd August and 10th September. The objective of the consultation was 
twofold - to gauge public reaction to the proposal and to feed comment back to Augur Buchler 
and the Council’s design and planning teams, so that if appropriate, the scheme could be 
amended.  

 
3.2 Consultation arrangements were as follows:- 
 
� 20th August – front page and positive leader comment in the Echo 
 
� 22nd August – 10th September 
o Static, unmanned displays throughout the period at  
� Municipal Offices (main and Built Environment receptions) 
� Hester’s Way Resource Centre 
� Springbank Resource Centre 
� Oakley Resource Centre 
� The new Lower High Street Community Resource Centre 
� Charlton Kings Library 
� Hill View Community Centre/Hatherley Library 

o Council website, with on-line comment form  
 

� 3rd September – 10th September (excluding Sunday 4th) 
o Manned exhibition in High Street (outside Marks & Spencer) – 1 Council officer and 2 Augur 

Buchler representatives available from 9am to 5pm each day. Written comment forms 
available. 

� 6th September  
o Face to face discussions with officers and Augur Buchler representatives at the Municipal 

Offices – 500 invites sent out to properties neighbouring the site.. Written comment forms 
available. 
o Presentation to Civic Society by Jeremy Williamson and Auger Buchler respresentatives 

 
Press releases resulted in articles in the Echo and exchanges in the letters column. 
Initially, a record of attendance numbers was kept at the High Street exhibition, but numbers on 
the first day overwhelmed the staff’s ability to keep tally, and a counting system was abandoned. 
About 50 neighbours attended the event on 6th September. 
 
Other meetings took place to help inform the design debate including with active local residents 
and also the Cheltenham Civic Society. 
 
100 comments were received in writing; 68 on-line. These 168 break down as follows 
 
Outright Support  44  26% 
Qualified Support 43 26% 
         Total Support 87 52% 
 
Outright Objection 50 30% 
Qualified Objection  26 15% 

Page 21



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 8 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

       Total Objection   76 45% 
 
Other comments    5   3% 
 
An analysis of the comments shows the following trends. 
 

� Outright support comments were stridently in favour of the scheme as displayed – particularly 
supportive of:- 
o Contemporary architectural style and overall design quality 
o High sustainability credentials.  
o Scheme layout.  
o Traffic management objectives 
o Landscape and open space provision. 
 

Typically, comments include “get on with it” and “about time”. 

� Qualified supporters are generally supportive of the proposals, but have some concerns. The 
most frequent concerns are: 
o Query the need for a supermarket and suggest the Council looks for an alternative use 

(generally not specified, though there are references to leisure uses – e.g. skating rink - 
and youth related uses). 

o A need to be less restrictive in traffic management arrangements on St Margaret’s Road 
junctions to allow all-way turning movements and relieve rat-running to the site through 
Monson Avenue and Clarence Square 

o Introduce 2-way movement on Portland Street. 
o Introduce Regency style architecture. 
o More greening 
 

� Qualified objectors are against the scheme as drawn and are generally looking for a rethink. 
Often these are people directly affected (neighbours or near neighbours). Typical concerns: 
o Introduce Regency style architecture. 
o No need for supermarket 
o Noise, amenity and visual amenity issues (particularly impact of the car park and service 

access on housing in Northfield Terrace/Passage and impacts on Dowty House) 
o Building height 
o Impact on car parking in neighbouring streets (a number seeking a residents parking 

scheme) 
 

� Outright objectors have nothing positive to say about the project. Concerns include: 
o Supermarket is unnecessary – not needed, will impact on town centre viability, etc 
o Dislike architectural style 
o Need to retain all car parking on the site 
o Hotel is unnecessary – will impact on local hotel trade 
o Parking provision totally inadequate 
o Traffic impact untenable 
o Amenity, noise and crime issues 
o Social housing unnecessary  
o Parking impact on neighbouring streets (a number seeking a residents parking scheme). 
o Underground parking 
 

The comments have been forwarded to Augur Buchler and have been discussed with the 
Council’s planning and design team. This level of support is unusual, in that consultation events 
often elicit predominantly negative responses, with those supporting remaining silent – officers 
consider this level of support an endorsement of the scheme and the process followed thus far. A 

Page 22



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 9 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

number of the issues raised can be addressed through amendments to the proposal; others 
require action by outside agencies – notably the County Council on wider traffic and parking 
management issues.  
 
Turning to the remaining issues of concern: 

� Amenity impacts on neighbours are being closely examined for possible design solutions – 
particularly the impacts resulting from service and car park access, height and overlooking.  

� The supermarket is not of a size that necessitates any special retail assessment in this edge of 
town centre location, which is within the core commercial area.  

� Both supermarket and hotel elements will be assessed in terms of their impact as part of the 
planning process. Notwithstanding this, both of these elements have been considered through 
previous bidding rounds, including through the economic integration assessment, which has 
provided sufficient assurances about the potential impact of the proposals for this stage of the 
OJEU process. 

� The County highways team has been supportive of this scheme in principle, as it makes no 
amendments to the existing highway network. However, it is likely that existing junction priorities 
will have to be amended once the full traffic modelling impacts are understood. This analysis will 
be a fundamental requirement of the formal planning submission. 

� Initial discussions with County highways suggest that lifting the junction restrictions maybe an 
acceptable solution, subject to modelling and detailed consideration.  

� It is a requirement of the development brief approved by Council that architectural style should be 
of its time and not a Regency copy or pastiche. This is also the view of the Council’s officers and 
the developer team. 

� Underground parking has been an issue in the press, but only an occasional issue in the 
comments received. The adopted development brief offers a range of options for parking -on-
street, in public spaces, undercroft, underground or multi-storey. The proposal offers on-street, 
multi-storey and on-plot parking, which is compliant with the requirements of the brief. The 
solution proposed reflects a commercial decision by Augur Buchler, having regard to the overall 
requirements of the brief and the site specific circumstances.  

 
 

4. Next steps 
4.1 If the Cabinet decides to grant preferred status to Augur Buchler on the 18th October, 2011, 

sufficient time will be allowed for any potential Overview & Scrutiny call-in. If no such call-in 
arises, an Award Notice will be issued. This requires a “standstill” of 10 days to give the 
opportunity for judicial challenge of the award process. If no such challenge is received, CBC can 
proceed to exchange of contracts, on the basis of the legal structure outlined in 2.3 above and will 
secure a 5% deposit at point of exchange. 

 
4.2 Following exchange, Augur Buchler is keen to submit a planning application as soon as 

practicable. This could be submitted as early as late January/early February 2012. 
 
4.3 The scale of the scheme necessitates a 13 week planning decision time frame including statutory 

consultation, but the public engagement exercise has already identified the key issues that need 
to be addressed by the applicants. On this basis, it should be possible for the detailed scheme to 
be considered as early as the May 2012 planning committee. 

 

Page 23



 

   

$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 10 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

Report author David Roberts, Head of Property Services 
Cheltenham 264151 (Ext 4151)  
david.roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
 

Page 24



 

   
$wqpz5nh3.doc Page 11 of 11 Last updated 03 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk ref. Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CR57 If the North Place & Portland 
Street process is 
compromised by 
misunderstanding of the 
proposal or legal framework 
(OJEU) within which proposal 
has been developed then 
Councillors will not lend their 
support to the scheme. 

AN 23/05/11 4 3 12 Reduce Full debate at council and 
recommendation from 
Cheltenham Development 
task Force to inform 
Cabinet decision 

18/10/11 GL Yes 

 If the global economic 
situation deteriorates further 
then it is possible that bidding 
partners will either withdraw 
from the scheme or fail to 
commit. 

AN 01/09/11 4 5 20 Accept Given only one bidder 
remaining steps have 
been taken to accelerate 
the process in order to 
reduce the period of risk 
exposure. 

 GL  

 If the scheme does not 
proceed to conclusion then 
funds will not be available to 
re-invest in other town centre 
improvement schemes 

AN 01/09/11 4 3 12 Contingency Council would need to 
decide whether other 
disposals could help 
provide funding 

 GL  

            
            

 

P
age 25



Page 26
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

 
 

North Place & Portland Street 
 

1.0       Background 
 
1.1 The Cheltenham Development Task Force met on Friday 14th October, 2011 to 

consider any bids submitted at the latter stage of the OJEU (Office of the Journal 
of the European Union) exercise for this site. 

 
1.2 There was only one bid to be considered, as the other successful bidder 

identified through the evaluation process in late July 2011 withdrew voluntarily on 
9th August, 2011. This left Augur Buchler as the sole remaining bidder. 

 
1.3 This bid was the subject of a public engagement exercise from 22nd August to 

10th September, 2011. 
 

1.4 A final bid was submitted on 6th October 2011. 
 

2.0       Update 
 
2.1  Prior to the Task Force consideration of this item the Chair had invited Adam 

Lillywhite to address the Task force on behalf of Cheltenham Hoteliers, who 
expressed concern over the inclusion of a hotel within the Augur Buchler scheme. 
At the end of the statement, the Chair noted the difference between the role of 
the Borough Council as a land owner and its role as a planning authority and 
recommended that Mr Lillywhite ensure that he is acquainted with the planning 
process, as this would be the time to flag any objections should Cabinet choose 
to select Augur Buchler as their preferred bidder. It was also probable that the 
hotel operator could bring forward an alternative town centre site proposal if this 
scheme did not progress. 

 
2.2  In the confidential part of the meeting the Task Force considered the following 

key items:- 
 
• A previously circulated paper detailing the background to the scheme and 

actions taken, including the public engagement exercise; 
• A presentation highlighting key issues, critically the outstanding items to be 

resolved through the planning process, the financial return and risks that 
remain until the scheme is delivered; 

• Financial analysis; 
• Evaluation score; 
• A “red book” valuation and commentary from GVA as independent property 

advisers, confirming that the offer represents best consideration. 
 

GVA and One Legal were present to respond to queries concerning due process. 
 
2.3  These items were debated, along with other key aspects, such as the ability to 

vary the scheme. It was clear from One Legal and GVA that varying the scheme 
by either requiring a material change from the brief, or changing key components, 
would require the Council to start the process again, as it was effectively 

Page 27



Appendix 2 

changing the rules after the procurement process had started. It was noted that 
Augur Buchler had not considered the site appropriate for underground car 
parking. 

 
2.4  The risks that remain until planning is achieved and conditionality falls away were 

noted as follows: 
 

� The volatility of the financial markets; 
� Challenge to the procurement process; 
� Ensuring that the price offered and quality of design are maintained up to the 

point of delivery; 
� Judicial review of the cabinet decision; 
� Planning consent risk; 
� Secretary of State call-in given CBC ownership of the site. 

 
2.5  The Chair reminded those present of the advisory nature of the Task Force and the 

need for the Council as landowner to satisfy itself on all financial, legal, due diligence 
and other relevant matters, based on the very substantial professional work 
undertaken by staff and consultants, all of whom had confirmed their support for the 
recommendation. 

 
3.0  Recommendations 
 
3.1  Having considered all of the material presented, the Task Force recommended 

unanimously that Cabinet should appoint Augur Buchler as preferred bidder for the 
North Place & Portland Street sites. 

 
 
 
 
Cheltenham Development Task Force membership attendees – 14th October, 2011: 
 
 

Present:      Graham Garbutt (Independent Chair)  
                       Chas Fellows             
                       Michael Ratcliffe  
                       Stephen Clarke  
                       John Rawson  
                       Andrew North  
                       Dorian Wragg  
                       Bernice Thompson  
                       David Oldham 
                      Robert Duncan  
                       Simon Excell (on behalf of Nigel Riglar)  
                       Andrew Willets  

Other:           Steve Jordan – CBC Leader of Council  
                       Amanda Lawson-Smith – GCC Principal Transport Planning Officer  
                       Paul Jones – Head of Financial Services  
                       David Roberts – Head of Property Services (for item 67/11) 
                       James Petherick – GVA (for item 66/11)  
                       Mark Brunsdon - GVA  (for item 66/11)       
                       Wilf Tomaney – CBC Urban Design Manager  

Page 28



Appendix 2 

                       Jeremy Williamson (Managing Director)  
                       Adam Lillywhite – (for a 10 minute presentation at start of meeting)   

Apologies: Members – Diane Savory, Andrew Vines, Tony Bray, Cllr Tim Cooper, 
Cllr Antonia Noble & attendees Mark Sheldon (sub Paul Jones)  

 
 

 

Page 29



Page 30
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 32
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4.1 
Council 

 
Monday, 10th October, 2011 

 
Minutes 

 
 
NORTH PLACE AND PORTLAND STREET - PROGRESS UPDATE 
The Mayor invited Jeremy Williamson, the Managing Director of the Cheltenham 
Development Task Force to make his presentation.    
 
Jeremy Williamson advised that the presentation was in two halves, the first half would 
be open to the public but the second half would need to be taken in exempt session 
given the financial and commercially sensitive content.  The public would be permitted to 
return to the chamber for the debate.   
 
He apologised on behalf of Graham Garbutt, the Independent Chair of the Advisory 
Board, who had hoped to attend but was unable to for medical reasons.   
 
He introduced the presentation (see attached) and highlighted that the number of 
residential properties referred to in the presentation, 122, differed from the 130 
referenced within the report that was circulated in advance of the meeting.  This was a 
consequence of the decision to create more houses and less apartments.   
 
The following responses were given by Jeremy Williamson to questions from members; 
 
• Construction time would be 18 months.  
• Diverts to alternative parking would be in place but there were no funds for an 

electronic signage system.   
• Cosmetic improvements could be made to the Grosvenor Terrace car park, 

though this would require funding. 
• The revised development brief for this site was approved by Council in December 

2010.  The brief allowed for uses including residential, commercial and/or leisure 
and therefore did not exclude a hotel or food store.  

• It would be for the Planning Committee to undertake an Impact Assessment in 
determining whether there was a need for a hotel and ultimately the planning 
application.  

• The level of response to the consultation (168 of a possible 120,000 residents) 
was an unfortunate reality of any such consultation.  Key issues had been 
identified as a result of the exercise which would be addressed by the applicant.  
There would be further consultation at the appropriate time.   

• An option for underground/croft parking was included in the development brief 
but not stipulated.  The proposed scheme did include residential under-croft 
parking.  

• An exact figure for those against the proposal for a food store would be made 
available to Councillor Godwin outside of the meeting.  

 
The Mayor moved a resolution and it was; 

Page 33



 

RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining agenda items as it is 
likely that, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of 
the proceedings, if members of the public are present there will be disclosed to 
them exempt information as defined in paragraph 3, Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local 
Government Act 1972, namely: 
 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Members of the public were ushered from the public gallery.   
 
Jeremy Williamson talked through the slides of the presentation which contained 
financial and commercially sensitive information and answered questions relating to this 
information.   
 
Once discussion had concluded, members of the public were welcomed back to the 
Chamber.   
 
The Mayor addressed the public and explained that she had been contacted by 
members of the public who were under the impression that this item would go before 
Council in November.   
 
Whilst she understood their concern about the change of date, this item was simply 
giving Council an opportunity to make its views known to the Cabinet in advance of them 
making a decision on Tuesday 18 October.  She reassured members of the public that 
they were able to put questions to the Cabinet.  Members called for the deadline to be 
extended from 10am on Tuesday 11 October to 10am on Thursday 13 October.  This 
was agreed and would be publicised on the website.   
 
Those speaking in defence of the scheme had been impressed with the process thus far 
and urged those with concerns to consider the bigger picture and accept that there 
would be elements of any scheme that some people would not fully support.  
 
Councillor Wheeldon spoke as the Ward Councillor for the St. Pauls area and as a 
resident of Cheltenham, living within 300 metres of the site.  The majority of residents 
within his Ward had welcomed the inclusion of a food store and personally, he was 
delighted that the new homes would be constructed to code 4 sustainability, resulting in 
utility bills 30-40% lower than average. He put forward Crabtree Place as a short term 
parking solution and queried whether parking at the Prince of Wales Stadium could be 
considered as a long term solution.   
 
The Leader apologised to the public for any confusion regarding the date on which this 
item would come before Council.  The decision was for Cabinet but given the magnitude 
of the decision it was important that Council were in agreement.  Ultimately the Council 
could only proceed with something that a developer was willing to deliver and Council 
had agreed the scheme brief in December.  This was not to say that the Planning 
Committee did not have a role to play.   
 

Page 34



The Cabinet Member Built Environment thanked his Council colleagues for what had 
been a generally positive discussion and welcomed the acknowledgement of some 
members that there were many varying aspirations for the site, which included concert 
halls, ice rinks, etc.  He accepted that there were concerns, including those legitimate 
concerns of residents in close proximity to the site about short and long term parking 
solutions.   
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously  
 
RESOLVED that Council recommend to Cabinet that it should appoint Augur 
Buchler Partners Limited as the preferred bidder to undertake the redevelopment 
of North Place and Portland Street sites. 
 

Page 35



Page 36
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 38
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$pmey3c0a.doc Page 1 of 5 Last updated 10 October 2011 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 October 2011 

Housing Review Working Group 
 

Accountable member Councillor Klara Sudbury, Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
Accountable officer Jane Griffiths, Director of Commissioning 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Social and Community 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary A housing review was initiated in response to legislative changes both to 

housing policy and welfare reforms.  A cross party member working group 
was established including members from the social and community 
overview and scrutiny committee.  The working group are concerned about 
some of the changes which are being proposed and this report sets out the 
key issues, opportunities and challenges which they wish to bring to the 
attention of the Cabinet. 

Recommendations 1. The Cabinet endorse the recommendations of the review group 
as set out in appendix 2 and builds them into workplans. 
 

2. The Cabinet endorse the principle of the development of a 
housing and homelessness strategy which incorporates the 
review groups findings for consideration by Cabinet in March 
2012. 
 

3. The Cabinet endorses the outcomes framework as set out at 
appendix 4 as a basis for consultation with stakeholders and to 
be used to inform the development of the housing and 
homelessness strategy. 
 

4. The Housing Review Member Working Group continues to meet 
to support the development of the strategy and to provide a 
sounding board on the development of the HRA business plan 
preparation ready for Council in February 2012. 

 
  
 

Agenda Item 7
Page 39



 

   

$pmey3c0a.doc Page 2 of 5 Last updated 10 October 2011 
 

Financial implications No financial implications arising from this report. However as housing 
strategies and policies are developed, future reports could identify financial 
implications for the council. 
Contact officer: Andrew Sherbourne, 
andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264337 

Legal implications There are no direct legal implications arising out of the report. Legal advice 
and assistance will be sought on the implications of any future proposals, 
strategies or work plans. 
Contact officer: sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272693 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No HR implications arising from this report. However as housing strategies 
and policies are developed, future reports could identify HR implications 
for the council. 
Contact officer:  Julie McCarthy, Julie.McCarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264355 

Key risks These are set out in appendix 3 and identify the risks associated with the 
new legislation and changes and the mitigating action that can be taken. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The challenges set out in the issues paper will impact on the delivery of 
the outcomes the council’s wishes to achieve as set out in the corporate 
plan and therefore it is important that the council is responds proactively to 
the changes   

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 

1. Background 
1.1 A housing review was initiated in response to legislative changes both to housing policy and 

welfare reforms.  A member working group has been established including members from Social 
and Community Overview and Scrutiny committee.   Members of the working group are:  

� Councillor Klara Sudbury (Chair) 
� Councillor Barbara Driver (also a CBH board member) 
� Councillor Chris Coleman 
� Councillor Wendy Flynn 
� Councillor Rowena Hay 
� Councillor Duncan Smith 
� Councillor Jon Walklett (also a CBH board member) 
� Karl Hemming – overview and scrutiny co-optee 
1.2 This report sets out some of the key issues, opportunities and challenges which have been 

Page 40



 

   

$pmey3c0a.doc Page 3 of 5 Last updated 10 October 2011 
 

highlighted to the review group of the reforms. 
 
 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 Shelter is a basic human need, but the homes we live in also serve as a basis for broader positive 

outcomes for individuals and families. Accessing suitable housing is the first stage in enabling 
people to live their lives in a fulfilled and positive way. It is therefore vitally important for people to 
have access to appropriate housing; for example, good quality, well designed, affordable and 
safe.  

2.2 Accessing appropriate housing is just the first stage. The physical environment in which people 
live has a significant impact on both an individual’s well being and that of the community at large. 
Everyone benefits when we have strong, balanced communities that are free from hazards, 
pollution and conflict. 

2.3 Local and National policies are vital to enable new housing development which is affordable and 
sustainable. Policies should encourage the ongoing provision of adequate housing and 
sustainable communities, providing the basis for people to undertake their daily lives, achieve 
positive outcomes and contribute and participate positively at a wider community level.  
Communities can then in turn increase their self-reliance, resilience and collective productivity 
and decrease reliance on mainstream statutory services. 

2.4 There has recently been considerable change in relation to the planning, regulation and financial 
frameworks for the delivery of housing and affordable housing. The changes have been duly 
documented and are being analysed in terms of how they are to be implemented and delivered.  
However to understand the issues surrounding housing the working group also looked at the 
wider reforms and changes to funding regimes to try to assess the implications at a local level.  

2.5 The recent changes present both opportunities and challenges which are often interdependent 
and can create a ‘domino’ affect with regard to interaction with each other and the subsequent 
collective impact on our ability to achieve outcomes to meet the needs and aspirations of our 
customers.  

2.6 Set out in the attached document (appendix 3) are the issues and opportunities which arise from 
these reforms. Additionally there is a risk assessment with actions to mitigate against these risks. 
The review group were concerned about the scale of changes and particularly the impact on 
some of the most vulnerable in the community.  

2.7 Listed at appendix 2 is a set of recommendations from the working group which they feel should 
be built into the council’s workplans. These recommendations summarise the discussions within 
the group and also some of the specific actions as set out in the issues paper in appendix 3. 

2.8 The review group also provided a useful sounding board for the development of the HRA 
business plan and for the advice contract, both of which are on the agenda this evening for 
discussion.  In hindsight it would have been appropriate for the Cabinet member finance and 
community development to be a standing member of the working group (rather than just invited 
for specific agenda items) because of the interdependencies between his portfolio and the 
housing portfolio.  It is suggested that in taking the review work forward that the Cabinet member 
becomes a full member of the group. 

3. Developing a housing and homelessness strategy 
3.1 The scale of change means that it is appropriate to develop a long term strategy to meet these 

challenges and it is proposed that a housing and homelessness strategy is developed.  Attached 

Page 41



 

   

$pmey3c0a.doc Page 4 of 5 Last updated 10 October 2011 
 

at appendix 5 is proposed contents page.  The intention would be to develop the strategy over the 
coming months and align this to the HRA business plan.  Attached at appendix 4 are an initial set 
of draft outcomes based on needs and the challenges ahead which the working group have 
developed. These have yet to be tested with stakeholders. 

3.2 The working group have developed a good knowledge base about the impacts of the proposed 
changes. It is therefore recommended that the working group continues to meet to provide 
member input into the strategy until it is approved next March. 

 

Report author Contact officer: jane.griffiths, director of commissioning, 
jane.griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264126 
Martin Stacey, housing and communities manager, 
martin.stacey@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 775213 
Bob Dagger, Assistant Chief Executive, 
bob.dagger@cheltborohomes.org  01242 26 4225 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Recommendations of the working group 
3. Issues paper 
4. Outcomes framework 
5. Outline content page for housing and homelessness strategy. 

Background information 1. None 
 

Page 42



 

   
$pmey3c0a.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 10 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

isk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-4 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If the council 
does not plan to 
address the 
legislative 
changes arising 
from housing 
and welfare 
reform there is 
a risk that 
residents and 
tenants could 
be adversely 
affected. 

Jane Griffiths 
Director of 
commissioning 

30 
September  

3 3 9 Reduce The working group 
have identified a 
number of 
recommendations and 
suggested course of 
action. 
Housing and 
homelessness 
strategy to be 
prepared. 
Specific actions to be 
built into the corporate 
strategy and or 
workplans 

31 
March 
2012 

Martin Stacey 
Housing and 
communities 
manager 
Paul Aldridge 
Benefits 
manager 

Divisional 
risk 
register 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-4 (4 being the greatest impact) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6 (6 being most likely) 

Impact Description Impact 
score 

 Probability Likelihood Description 
Likelihood 
Score 

Negligible  1 0% - 5% Almost 
impossible  1 

Marginal 2 5% - 15% Very low 2 

Major 3 15% - 30% Low 3 

Critical 4 30% - 60% Significant 4 

  60% - 90% High 5 

  > 90% Very high 6 
 

 

P
age 43



Page 44
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

Key recommendations arising from the Housing Review Working Group 
 

1. Cheltenham Borough Council  responds to the changes being brought about 
as a result of the new Local Housing Allowance Regulations and the 
introduction of the Welfare Reform Bill by: 

 
• Reviewing the Housing Options Service to ensure it best meets the 

needs of low-income households both currently in, and trying to 
access, the private rented sector 

• Aligning the Housing Options Service  to meet the needs of Private 
Landlords, through the provision of appropriate landlord services 

• Tackling issues which may arise through reduced standards in private 
sector  rented accommodation through the Private Sector Housing 
Team  

• Ensuring there is effective and timely advice and support given to 
those directly affected by the Local Housing Allowance changes 

• Re-commissioning the Advice Contract to reflect emerging priorities 
• Reviewing Gloucestershire Homeseeker’s Allocations Policy to ensure 

it takes consideration of the welfare reform bill, specifically in relation 
to under-occupancy.  

 
2. Develop a Tenancy Strategy to take account of the introduction of flexible 

tenancies by Registered Providers, in relation to: 
 

• The kinds of tenancies they grant, and 
• Where flexible tenancies are granted, the length of the terms, and 
• The circumstances in which RPs should renew a flexible tenancy 

 
The Housing Review Working Group agreed that long-term flexible tenancies 
should be supported. Any Strategy will ensure regard is had to homelessness 
prevention and to supporting the Allocations Policy.  

 
3. Ensure the proposed Housing & Homelessness Strategy 2012-17 is 

compatible with CBC’s updated HRA Business Plan, ensuring that key 
priorities are aligned. Initial priorities currently being explored seek to 

 
• Support the provision of new affordable housing  
• Tackle fuel poverty 
• Introduce a programme of external works improvement 
• Build the capacity of communities, including non-cbc tenants, with a 

particular focus on improving the life changes of young people. 
• Manage the potential impact on tenants of any changes brought about 

by the implementation of the Welfare Reform Bill 
• Ensure the future provision of sheltered housing continues to meet 

rising expectations 
 

4. Promote a consistent approach across the county to implementing the agreed 
Supporting People Strategy. This will be done through representation at the 
County SP Core Strategy Group and at the County SP Partnership Board, as 
well as through representation at Cheltenham’s Housing & Support Forum.  

 
5. To seek to ensure the support needs of our tenants in CBC Sheltered 

Housing continue to be safeguarded, following the implementation of the 
Supporting People Strategy. 

Page 45



Appendix 2 

 
6. Review, via the Gloucestershire Homeseeker Partnership, whether the 

Allocations Policy should be changed in light of new freedoms and flexibilities 
that could allow Local Authorities to re-house transfer tenants outside the 
allocations scheme, as well as allowing Local Authorities to close housing 
waiting lists to households not perceived to be in housing need. 

 
7. To explore ways in which CBC is able to influence Registered Providers’ 

decisions, when they are setting Affordable Rents and considering the scale 
of rent conversions, so as to minimise the risk of rents being set at locally 
unaffordable levels.   

 
8. Improve the resilience of low income households affected by Affordable Rents 

through an increased focus on financial inclusion and capability provision in 
order to help sustain their tenancies. 

Page 46



Appendix 3 

Page 1 of 28 

Housing Review Working Group 
Issues Paper 

 
Localism Bill 
 
Context 
For the government, the Localism Bill goes beyond just reforming the way councils 
work. It lays out its philosophy about the relationship between the state and the 
citizen.  
The intention of the Bill is to see a radical shift in the balance of power and to 
decentralise power to the lowest possible level, including individuals, 
neighbourhoods, professionals and communities as well as local councils and other 
local institutions. 
The Bill contains provisions which are geared to come into force from April 2012 and 
therefore the ultimate aim for the Bill is to receive Royal Assent in the autumn 2011. 
 
Summary of most relevant housing related details include: 
 
Planning System 
 
Abolition of Regional Strategies  
The Localism Bill will abolish top-down regional targets in favour of democratic local 
decision-making. Local Authorities will still be a required to produce plan for their 
administrative area. Beneath this, there may be a series of Neighbourhood Plans 
which would need to be in general conformity with the Authority’s plan and local area 
vision.  The changes will be underpinned by a national planning policy framework. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy  
The Bill will require local authorities to allocate a proportion of Community 
Infrastructure Levy revenues back to the neighbourhood from which it was raised. 
This will allow those most directly affected by development to benefit from it.  
 
Local Plan Reform 
Intention to give local authorities and communities greater choice and control by 
removing the ability of the Planning Inspectorate to re-write local plans - and by 
removing procedures on timetabling and monitoring.  The changes will be 
underpinned by a national planning policy framework. 
 
Neighbourhood Planning 
The Bill will radically reform the planning system to give local people new rights to 
shape the development of the communities in which they live. 
 
Social Housing Reform 
 
Social Housing Allocations reform  
The Bill will allow councils the freedom to determine who should qualify to go on their 
housing waiting list. The rules on eligibility will continue to be set centrally but they  
intend to make it easier for existing social tenants to move, by giving Local Housing 
Authorities the option of removing transferring tenants who are not in housing need 
from the scope of the allocation rules – they will no longer have to compete with 
those on the waiting list in housing need.   The bill includes a measure for creating a 
National Homeswap scheme to assist in this movement between social tenants. 
 

Page 47



Appendix 3 

Page 2 of 28 

Reform of Homelessness legislation 
The Bill will give local authorities the flexibility to bring the homelessness duty to an 
end with an offer of suitable accommodation in the private rented sector without 
requiring the household’s agreement. The private sector tenancy would need to be 
for a minimum fixed term of 12 months. The duty would recur if, within 2 years, the 
applicant becomes homeless again through no fault of his or her own (and continues 
to be eligible for assistance).    
 
Reform of Council Housing Finance – see detail page 11 
This reform will replace the current annual centralised system for subsidising council 
housing and replace it with a locally run system. Under the new system, councils will 
keep their rental income and use it locally to maintain their homes. To achieve this, 
the Bill will enable a one-off payment between Government and the council to pay off 
loans. This will put councils in a position where they can support their stock and 
housing debt from their own income in future. 
 
Reform of Social Housing Regulation   
Under the plans social housing tenants will receive tools to hold landlords to account 
and there will be a greater role for locally elected representatives in resolving 
problems in their area. 
 
Social Housing Tenure reform  
Currently, social landlords are normally only able to grant lifetime tenancies. The 
provisions in the Bill will enable local authority landlords to grant tenancies for a fixed 
length (the minimum length being five years, or two years where a Registered 
Provider can show exceptional circumstances). Landlords will retain the power to 
grant lifetimes tenancies.   
 
The localism bill places a duty on LAs to produce a Tenancy Strategy for RPs to 
have regard to when formulating their own policies on: 
• The kinds of tenancies they grant, and 
• If they grant flexible tenancies, the lengths of the terms, and 
• The circumstances in which RPs should renew a fixed term tenancy 

 
In producing this Strategy, the LA must have regard to the Homelessness Strategy 
and to its Allocations Policy.   
 
Facilitating moves out of the social rented sector  
The Government is keen to see that support is given to help realise social tenants’ 
ownership aspirations, which in turn can help to enable better housing outcomes for 
those in need through more effective use of social rented stock. The Bill will ensure 
that housing association tenants who are also members (e.g. share holders) of their 
landlord organisation are allowed to take up incentive schemes which facilitate 
moves out of the social rented sector into owner occupation. 
 
 
Opportunities Challenges 
CIL 
To allocate resources to meet the localised need 
of the area to support the additional development 
 
 
 
 
Local Plan Reform 

CIL 
Need for co-ordinated planning at county and 
district level to identify infrastructure 
requirements at a localised area in relation to 
broader infrastructure requirements and 
deliverability to ensure sustainable development. 
 
Local Plan Reform 

Page 48



Appendix 3 

Page 3 of 28 

Increased community involvement and ownership 
of local development plans and therefore positive 
interaction and engagement with communities of 
new developments 
 
 
 
Allocations and transfers 
The enablement of social tenant transfers outside 
of the waiting list could facilitate an increase in 
the speed in which existing tenants could have  
their changing housing and wider social needs 
met  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Determining who goes onto the housing list 
 
Removing from the housing list those households 
with no or little housing need could reduce the 
administrative burden on housing options team. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Homelessness 
To be able to discharge duty into private rented 
sector may alleviate pressure on social housing 

Infrastructure and capacity to support 
community engagement, involvement and 
integration.  Communities not supporting 
development at all and therefore limiting the 
opportunities for growth and economic viability. 
 
 
Allocations and transfers 
The challenge is to ensure we support stronger 
communities whilst having a balanced approach 
to prioritising housing needs of both existing and 
non social tenants for the purposes of allocating 
and making best use of stock.   
 
Reducing the availability of housing stock for 
non-tenants in high housing need or who are 
homeless, is likely to place increased pressure 
on the homelessness service, increasing the use 
of inappropriate temporary accommodation 
(such as Bed & Breakfast), particularly for  
homeless families seeking 3 bedroom or larger 
accommodation. 
 
Where tenants believe they will have an 
opportunity to move to alternative or ‘better’ 
housing, they may be less willing to invest – or 
feel a part of – their existing neighbourhood, 
potentially putting at risk the stability of these 
local communities. 
 
There will continue to remain a limited 
availability of housing stock, with a risk that 
tenants will be left with a false hope that they will 
be able to move. In reality, tenants will still need 
to be prioritised in some way to ensure fairness.  
 
Determining who goes onto the housing list 
 
Refusing to allow some households onto the 
housing list is likely to lead to appeals and 
challenges against such decisions, increasing 
the administrative burden on the Housing 
Options Team. 
 
If households perceive that their only 
mechanism to apply for social housing is by 
worsening their housing circumstances, this may 
create a perverse incentive for them to do this. 
 
Many households who are ‘adequately housed’ 
apply for social housing because they are 
struggling financially and occupy relatively 
insecure housing. If housing lists were closed to 
these households the local authority would lose 
sight of housing need based on these reasons. 
 
 
Homelessness 
The availability of private rented sector for 
homeless households to access and sustain is 

Page 49



Appendix 3 

Page 4 of 28 

and reduce use of temporary accommodation 
 
 
 
Flexible Tenancies 
 
The rationale behind flexible tenancies is to give 
LAs and RPs more options around how to 
respond to local housing needs, with a view to 
making best use of local social housing.   
 
In particular, it provides LAs and RPs with an 
opportunity to reconsider a tenant’s position 
where that tenant’s financial situation has 
improved significantly. In these circumstances, 
the RP might, with the tenant’s agreement, 
convert the property to shared ownership.  
 
In addition, when a household is under-occupying 
accommodation at the end of the fixed term, a 
landlord could potentially choose not to renew the 
tenancy because of this under-occupation. This 
might be seen as a mechanism for overcoming 
the potential affordability issues resulting from the 
changes to how bedroom entitlement is to be 
calculated in the social housing sector, under the 
HB regulations see page 7  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

likely to be reduced in light of changes and 
impacts detailed in Welfare Reform section page 
8 
 
Flexible tenancies 
 
Lifetime tenancies remain an option. If fixed term 
tenancies are introduced, then the shorter the 
fixed term the greater the likelihood of the 
following: 
 
There will be a disincentive for households to 
improve their financial circumstances, if they 
believe they will lose their tenancy as a result.  
This is likely to also have a wider community 
impact.  
 
Increased instability/loss of security of tenure, 
combined with Registered Providers evicting 
tenants from fixed term tenancies, will increase 
the turn around of households in 
neighbourhoods, which in turn will threaten the 
stability of those communities. 
 
Fixed term tenancies, combined with affordable 
rents (see page 6), if not carefully considered 
could lead to increased difficulties in letting 
certain tenancies; resulting in long-term voids 
and potentially increased anti-social behaviour 
within communities.  
 
Evicting tenants at the end of their fixed term 
tenancies is likely to lead to increased 
homelessness – whereby the responsibility of 
the landlord is simply to inform the tenant on 
where they are able to seek advice and 
assistance. (i.e. directing tenants at risk to the 
Housing Options Service). This is likely to 
increase demand on the housing list, as 
households seek to bid for alternative properties 
-  as well as resulting in the LA ultimately picking 
up many of these households again as 
homeless. This will put further pressures on the 
use of temporary accommodation, which in turn 
will lead to increased financial costs to the Local 
Authority.  
 
Managing fixed term tenancies is likely to be 
bureaucratic, with landlords having to monitor 
and assess changes in circumstances, and 
tenants being able to request reviews on 
decisions to end tenancies. Plus, there will be 
additional court costs associated with enforcing 
evictions.  
 
Ending fixed term tenancies will be 
challengeable under the Human Rights 
legislation, unless the landlord can demonstrate 
it has acted proportionately 
 

Page 50



Appendix 3 

Page 5 of 28 

Changes from rented tenure to shared 
ownership tenure could potentially result in 
staircasing to 100% ownership and the loss of 
an affordable housing unit.  
 
The introduction of flexible tenancies may 
restrict the ability of tenants with ‘lifetime’ 
tenancies to mutually exchange with those 
having ‘flexible’ tenancies, thereby limiting their 
ability to move. 
  
General 
There is a challenge in ensuring that 
communities are kept informed of changes and 
reforms and the impact they might have.  
 

Interdependencies/Impacts Position to date 
 
Built Environment Commissioning Project 
Joint Core strategy 
Homelessness Strategy 
Advice Services 
Supporting People Strategy 
Gloucestershire Homeseeker Policy (Choice 
Based Lettings system) 
Registered Providers Allocation policies & 
tenancy agreements 
Homes and Communities Agency grant funding 
framework 
Housing revenue account 

 
The county Health & Well being joint 
commissioning card includes actions to ensure 
co-ordination at county and district level 
regarding identifying infrastructure needs. 
 
Joint working with districts and registered 
providers tentatively begun regarding scoping 
tenancy strategies. 
 
A review of Gloucestershire Homeseeker under 
current criteria for allocations completed. 
 
A private rented sector landlords forum has 
been established in Cheltenham.  
 
Working collaboratively with TBC/City on joint 
core strategy and infrastructure planning 
 
The Localism Bill is not yet finalised and some 
parts are still in development therefore it is 
difficult to set policy or strategy where there is 
such a void.   

Page 51



Appendix 3 

Page 6 of 28 

 
Risk Description 
 
Localism Bill 

Original risk 
score 

(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk Deadline Lead Officer 
 

Partners 

I L Score Control Action 
Allocations and Transfers 
 
If existing tenants are to be given 
priority outside of the allocations 
system our ability to make best 
use of stock to meet housing 
need and support stronger 
communities may be 
detrimentally affected. 

3 4 12 Reduce 
 

The Gloucestershire 
Homeseeker Choice 
Based Lettings 
system has been 
evaluated and a 
policy review 
undertaken (via 
GHP).  Further 
review to be 
undertaken with 
particular regard to 
the localism bill and 
benefit changes. 

June 2012 tbc Martin Stacy Gloucestershire 
Homeseeker 
Partnership 
(GHP) 
 
 

Flexible tenancies 
 
Fixed term tenancies may create 
a range of issues such as 
disincentivising households to 
improve their financial situation, 
generating more demand for 
social housing from those coming 
to the end of their fixed term 
tenancies, increasing 
homelessness, and producing 
bureaucratic and costly 
challenges for Registered 
Providers in enforcing the 
termination of these tenancies. 

3 3 9 Reduce The LAs Tenancy 
Strategy should 
address the 
challenges and risk 
identified, with a 
general focus on 
supporting lifetime 
tenancies and/or 
long-term fixed 
tenancies on larger 
properties, and 
potentially avoiding 
the recommendation 
of short term 
tenancies 

April 2012 Martin Stacy Registered 
Providers 
 
Gloucestershire 
Homes and 
Communities 
Group 

P
age 52



Appendix 3 

Page 7 of 28 

As the localism bill is still in 
development, there is a risk to 
the local authority in setting its 
strategic direction or policy whilst 
there is an opportunity for 
emerging legislation to change it. 

3 3 9 Reduce Monitor the progress 
of the Localism Bill,  
 
Prepare a strategic 
direction based on 
what is known and 
proposed in 
legislation but ensure 
there is flexibility 
within working 
practices to allow for 
legislative changes.  
 
 

April 2012 Martin Stacy Gloucestershire 
Planning 
Officers Group & 
JCS Group 
 
Gloucestershire 
Homes and 
Communities 
Group 
 
 

P
age 53



Appendix 3 

Page 8 of 28 

Affordable Homes Programme 2011-2015   
 
The Homes and Communities Agency’s (HCA) Affordable Homes Programme supports that 
Registered Providers of social housing (RPs) will be able to set an ‘affordable rent’ on almost 
all new build and will be able to convert a percentage of their existing stock from social rent to 
affordable rent. The affordable rent can be set at up to 80% of the market rent and RPs will be 
able to determine themselves the proportion of their existing stock that is to be converted to 
affordable rent tenure.  
 
Affordable rent tenure can provide an alternative funding stream for RPs that can be used to 
support the development of more new affordable homes in the future. Local Authorities will 
still be required to allocate these properties under the Allocations Policy.    
 
The Localism Bill supports that LAs will have a choice to continue with lifetime tenancies or to 
introduce flexible tenancies (minimum term of 2 years) on new tenancies from April 2012. It 
also places a duty on LAs to produce a Tenancy Strategy to which RPs will need to give due 
regard when formulating their own tenancy policies. 
 
Opportunities Challenges 
 
Affordable Rent 
 
Development 
Opportunities to generate income to 
support future affordable housing 
development where government grant 
funding is no longer available.  
 
The resources generated by 
increasing rents to affordable rent 
levels are intended to be reinvested to 
finance the development of further 
units of social housing. 
 
Additional development will help to 
increase the opportunity to raise 
income for the Local Authority and 
community from New Homes Bonus 
scheme. 
 
The Affordable Rent model is the 
HCA’s preferred rent tenure where 
HCA grant funding is required to 
deliver a scheme. LA support for this 
tenure will assist in maximising the 
opportunity and levels of grant funding 
for the LA area.   
 
 
Affordability 
Introduction of affordable rents will 
provide tenure choice for customers 
and access to another type of 
affordable housing tenure that could 
help to meet a range of needs and 
support mixed income households.  
 
 
 

 
Affordable Rent 
 
 
The resources generated at a district level are not 
ringfenced for reinvesting in the same district area 
and can be used to finance developments 
elsewhere. 
 
A registered provider’s ability to reinvest in the same 
local area from where revenue is raised could be 
restricted due to: 
- the RPs own strategy and business case 
- the amount of increased rents – determined by 
volume of stock in any area 
- the ability to ‘financially stack’ any development 
which is determined on availability/cost of land, 
subsidy arrangements etc 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Affordability 
 
‘Affordable rents’ may not be affordable to all 
households in housing need (particularly those 
requiring larger family homes and single room 
dwellings)  and may result in households becoming 
increasingly dependent upon housing and other 
benefits. The Welfare Benefit Cap/benefit reforms 
will impact upon the affordability of rents in general.    
 

Page 54



Appendix 3 

Page 9 of 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

With affordable rent levels being higher than social 
rent, this may create a disincentive for households 
to seek employment however the Coalition 
Government is seeking to provide employment 
incentives and this may help to mitigate this issue. 
There may also be an increase in the number of 
households requiring debt advice in the longer term. 
 
 Conversions from social rent to affordable rent in 
existing affordable housing stock may exacerbate 
levels of social deprivation in areas that are already 
experiencing it.  
 
Homelessness presentations may increase with the 
impact of higher affordable rents. This in turn may 
increase the burden on existing Housing Options 
staff.  
 
 
Increased void times and impact on revenue 
streams 
 
A high conversion rate from social rent to affordable 
rent and the provision of shorter-term tenancies, 
may lead to increased void times due to applicants 
being reluctant to move into such properties and pay 
more than social rent levels for similar property  
tenure types in the same area.  
 
The turnover of social housing stock may slow down 
or tenant’s movements to certain areas may be 
restricted with the higher rent levels. This may 
adversely impact on the ability to move tenants in 
order to complete a regeneration scheme. 
 
With increased rents to ‘affordable rent level’ there 
may be an increased need for debt and financial 
advice especially where tenants have acquired 
loans and debts based on their current income and 
social rent outgoings. 
 
The above issues are likely to be exacerbated if 
combined with flexible, particularly short-term, 
tenancies. 
 
 

Interdependencies Position to date 
Welfare Reform Bill  
Homelessness Strategy 
Allocations Policy 
Supporting People Strategy 
Investment in Financial Inclusion & 
Financial Capability Services 

The first round of the new HCA funding has been 
announced and we are working with RPs on the 
implications of this. 
The tenancy strategy will need to reflect the 
proposed changes to tenancy arrangements..  

 

Page 55



Appendix 3 

Page 10 of 28 

Risk Description Original risk 
score 

(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk Deadline Lead Officer 
 

Partners 

I L Score Control Action 
Affordable rents 
 
If affordable rents on new build 
and % conversion rates from 
social rents to affordable rents 
are calculated without sufficient 
regard to local market forces, 
there is a heightened risk of 
households experiencing 
affordability issues, falling into 
arrears and becoming homeless. 
RPs may experience an increase 
in void times, with a resulting loss 
in revenue, plus an increased risk 
of crime/anti-social behaviour in 
these areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduce 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Support a targeted early 
intervention and prevention 
approach to tackling 
housing related support 
needs via the Supporting 
People Strategy. 
 
 
 
Increase the focus on 
financial inclusion and 
capability work, seeking 
collaborative working 
opportunities wherever 
possible 
 
 
Influence Registered 
Providers’ rent setting on 
new build (particularly for 
larger properties) 
 
 
Influence decision-making 
amongst the HCA and RPs 
to moderate % conversion 
rates on existing housing 
stock - particularly in areas 
of high densities of social 

April 2011 and 
ongoing? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2012 (and 
ongoing) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Now and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
Now and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 

Martin Stacy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Martin Stacy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tracey 
Crews 
 
 
 
 
Tracey 
Crews 
 
 
 
 

SP Core 
Strategy 
Group 
 
County 
Homelessne
ss 
Implementati
on Group 
 
Financial 
Inclusion & 
Capability 
Forum 
 
Benefit Take-
up Forum 
 
RPs/HCA 
 
 
 
 
 
Gloucestersh
ire Homes & 
Communities 
Group 
 
 

P
age 56



Appendix 3 

Page 11 of 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New Build 
RPs are not obliged to generate 
new build in this district using any 
increase in revenue they receive 
from affordable rents. Market 
forces may put pressure on them 
to finance new build outside the 
district.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
12 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce 
 
 

housing and on certain 
dwelling types where 
demand is already low.   
 
Ensure Tenancy Strategy 
takes account of the 
challenges presented 
above when considering its 
position on fixed term 
tenancies 
 
 
Influence RPs to ensure 
new build is proportionate 
to increased revenue 
coming from the district as 
a result of affordable rents 
 
Enable new development in 
the LA area to support 
identified affordable 
housing needs so that PR’s 
have sufficient opportunity 
locally to use the revenue 
funding they generate from 
local affordable rents   

 
 
 
 
April 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2011 and 
ongoing 

 
 
 
 
Martin Stacy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tracey 
Crews 

 
 
 
 
County 
Tenancy 
Strategy 
Working 
Group  
 
 
 
Gloucestersh
ire Homes 
and 
Communities 
Group 
 
 

P
age 57



Appendix 3 

Page 12 of 28 

 
 
Welfare Reforms 
 

The welfare reform bill will legislate for the biggest change to the welfare system for 
over 60 years. The purpose of the bill is to make the benefits and tax credits systems 
fairer and simpler by: 
• creating the right incentives to get more people into work by ensuring work 

always pays  
• protecting the most vulnerable in our society  
• delivering fairness to those claiming benefit and to the taxpayer.  

 
In addition, the government are making significant changes to the Local Housing 
Allowance scheme, which began to take effect from 1st April 2011, with a view to 
reducing the overall cost of welfare benefits leading up to the introduction of 
Universal Credit in October 2013.  
 
Another significant impact in relation to the private rented sector specifically is the 
ending of Private Sector Renewal funding from central government. Last year 
nationally PSR was £317m and this year it is zero. Traditionally this money was used 
for regeneration programmes, improvement grants, home improvement loans and 
energy efficiency grants.  
 
 
Opportunities Challenges 
 
The main elements of the Bill are: 
• the introduction of Universal Credit to 
provide a single streamlined benefit that will 
ensure work always pays  
• a stronger approach to reducing fraud and 
error with tougher penalties for the most 
serious offences  
• a new claimant commitment showing clearly 
what is expected of claimants while giving 
protection to those with the greatest needs  
• reforms to Disability Living Allowance, 
through the introduction of the Personal 
Independence Payment to meet the needs 
of disabled people today  
• creating a fairer approach to Housing 
Benefit to bring stability to the market and 
improve incentives to work  
• driving out abuse of the Social Fund system 
by giving greater power to local authorities  
• reforming Employment and Support 
Allowance to make the benefit fairer and to 
ensure that help goes to those with the 
greatest need  
• changes to support a new system of child 
support which puts the interest of the child 
first.  

 

 
Impact in the private rented sector 
 
The scale of the impacts of the benefit 
changes in relation to private rented 
accommodation and social housing in 
Cheltenham are detailed in the 
supplementary document: 
Scale of benefit change impact 
2011.06.28.doc 
 
Summary of significant challenges are: 
Single room rent levels extended to single 
under 35  year olds means that many more 
people will be living together in houses of 
multiple occupation – which in turn raises 
issues of stability of those individual 
properties and the knock on effect this can 
have on the wider community in terms of 
transitionary residents and anti social 
behaviour issues. 
 
The Local Housing Allowance is to be 
calculated based on the 30th percentile of 
market rents – a reduction from 50th 
percentile, as was calculated previously. 
This change has been effective from April 
2011 for new tenants, and raises 
challenges regarding the affordability of the 

Page 58



Appendix 3 

Page 13 of 28 

 private rented sector and the council’s 
ability to access it for the purposes of 
discharging our homelessness duties as 
the intention of the changes in the localism 
bill see page 2  
 
These LHA changes will have an greater 
impact on those households requiring 
larger accommodation further increasing 
pressure on larger social rented 
accommodation 
 
 
Impact in the social housing sector 
 
The rules relating to how HB is calculated 
for tenants of working age who are under-
occupying social housing is changing. 
From 2013 social housing tenants of 
working age will only be entitled to HB for 
the bedrooms they are entitled to under the 
HB regulations.  This means that those 
tenants whose households do not meet the 
HB criteria for bedroom entitlement will be 
deemed to be under-occupying their 
accommodation.  This will raise challenges 
for rent payments and/or debt for tenants 
and increase movement and pressures 
within social housing.  The scale of the 
issue is currently unknown as data is not 
held on the benefits system regarding size 
of social housing property. 
 
Cross tenure impact 
 
The way in which non-dependent 
deductions are calculated is changing, 
meaning that non-dependents lodging from 
a tenant who is claiming LHA will have to 
pay more to that tenant in order to meet 
their reduction in LHA entitlement  
 
 

Interdependencies Position to date 
Supporting People 
 
The increased financial pressure, particularly 
on more vulnerable households, will put an 
increased pressure on Supporting People 
services. The SP Strategy will need to be 
continually influenced at district level to ensure 
a targeted early intervention and prevention 
approach is taken to tackling housing related 
support needs.  
 
Ending the homelessness duty by placing 
households into the private rented sector 
 
The localism bill proposes to introduce the 
ability for housing options to discharge its 

 
Housing Options are currently reshaping 
their service to more closely meet the 
needs of private landlords, with a view to 
maintaining their success in preventing 
homelessness by continuing to house 
some homeless households in the private 
rented sector.  
 
Housing Options are already targeting 
those most likely to be affected by the LHA 
changes to support them in moving into 
more affordable alternative 
accommodation.  
 
Changes to the Allocations Policy have 

Page 59



Appendix 3 

Page 14 of 28 

housing duty to households accepted as 
homeless by offering them a 12 month tenancy 
in the private rented sector. 
 
This move will support key efforts covered 
below to continue to utilize the private rented 
sector as a means for tackling housing demand 
 
 
Affordable Rents and the Benefit Cap 
 
To consider what impact, if any, Affordable 
Rents could have, if implemented at the 
maximum levels on larger properties, on for 
those families who could potentially be affected 
by the proposed Benefit Cap.  
 
 
HRA changes 
 
Consider the potential for new HRA flexibilities 
to support and potentially commission the 
increased need for financial inclusion and 
financial capability, and also potentially support 
a strengthening of tenants incentive schemes 
to enable households affected by the 
underoccupation issues to move more easily.  
 
Allocations Scheme 
 
The localism bill will give LAs an opportunity to 
close waiting lists for those with no perceived 
housing need. If implemented, those who are 
struggling financially, but are otherwise 
adequately housed, could be excluded from the 
housing lists.  
 
Private Sector Renewal Funding 
The private sector house condition survey 
currently being undertaken will identify the 
extent of unsafe private sector housing in the 
borough. Detail obtained may provide the basis 
for future bidding exercises, if alternative 
replacement funds are identified. 

been agreed via the county-wide group, 
ensuring that sufficient priority will be given 
to those who need to move because of 
their under-occupation in social housing, 
and those changes will be implemented as 
soon as possible. 
 
Further changes to the Allocations Policy 
on bedroom entitlement cannot be made 
until there is further clarity from central 
government on what the bedroom 
entitlement criteria will be for claiming HB 
for those households in social housing.   
 
Housing Options and CBH are working with 
Gloucestershire Credit Union with a view to 
potentially supporting collection points 
within Cheltenham, and to promote the use 
of them thereafter.  
 
The advice contract expires end March 
2012. 
                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The cutting of this financial aid will impact 

Page 60



Appendix 3 

Page 15 of 28 

on the most vulnerable in society, 
especially those vulnerable owners who 
are living in unsafe conditions. This will 
increase pressure on access to other forms 
of housing tenure, as vulnerable owner 
occupiers are increasingly unable to stay in 
their unsafe housing accommodation. 
The challenge in Cheltenham will be to 
identify other sources of funding and to  
prioritise remaining funds to help safeguard 
the most vulnerable households including 
the old and frail 

 

Page 61



Appendix 3 

Page 16 of 28 

 

Page 62



Appendix 3 

Page 17 of 28 

Risk Description 
 
 
 
Welfare Reform 

Original risk 
score 

(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk Deadline Lead Officer 
 

Partners 

I L Score Control Action 
Local Housing Allowance 
changes: If existing tenants that 
are to be affected by the changes 
are not aware of the impact on 
them and their requirements than 
we will see an increase in people 
struggling to afford their 
properties and conversely an 
increase in debt issues and 
homelessness cases 

3 4 12 Reduce Develop and deliver an action 
plan between benefit 
departments, advice agencies 
and all related housing and 
appropriate support agencies 
to ensure people are made 
aware of impact and are 
supported appropriately. 
 
 
 
 

April 2012 Martin Stacy/ 
Paul Aldridge 

Housing Benefit 
dept 
 
Registered 
providers 
 
Benefit Take-Up 
Forum 
 
Housing & 
Support Forum 
 
 
Financial 
Inclusion & 
Capability 
Forum 
 
Gloucestershire 
Homeseeker 
Partnership  
 
Registered 
Providers 
 
Housing & 
Support Forum 
 
 
 

Affordability of the Private Rented 
Sector: Changes to the LHA and 
other welfare reforms will lead to 
private rented accommodation 
becoming less affordable and 
less accessible. This will create 
more demand for social housing 
and will lead to increased 
homelessness and use of 
temporary accommodation, 
leading to increased financial 
costs to the Local Authority. 
 
The implementation of the 
Universal Credit will heighten the 
risk of vulnerable households 
mismanaging their financial 
affairs, as lump sum payments 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4 

12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12 

Reduce 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce 

Develop new Homelessness 
Strategy and review the role of 
the Housing Options Service. 
Increase the focus on financial 
inclusion and capability, 
particularly through 
collaborative working 
opportunities.  
 
Review priorities for the 
forthcoming Advice Contract 
 
 
As above 
 

April 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2012 
 
 
 
April 2013 

Martin Stacy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Martin Stacy 
 
 
 
Martin Stacy 

P
age 63



Appendix 3 

Page 18 of 28 

will be made directly to them. It is 
expected that all will have access 
to basic bank accounts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gloucestershire 
Homeseeker 
Partnership 

 
 
Changes to HB calculations on 
bedroom entitlement in the social 
housing sector will lead to 
accommodation being less 
affordable for those under-
occupying social housing 
 
 
 
 

 
3 

 
 
4 

 
 
12 

 
 
Reduce 
 

 
 
Ensure Allocations Policy 
minimises the impact of the HB 
changes relating to under-
occupation.  
 

 
 
June 2012 

 
 
Martin Stacy 

P
age 64



Appendix 3 

Page 19 of 28 

There is likely to be an increase 
in houses of multiple occupation 
as under 35s become affected by 
the single room rent, which 
heightens the risk of lower 
accommodation standards within 
the district 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Low income households who do 
manage to access private rented 
accommodation are more likely 
to be forced into poorer standard 
accommodation, which will be 
compounded further by the loss 
of Private Sector Renewal 
Funding 
 

3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 
 
 

12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduce 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce 
 
 

Support the development of 
tenants incentive schemes to 
facilitate moves for those 
unable to afford to remain in 
underoccupied social housing, 
by aligning bedroom eligibility 
criteria to HB and maximising 
priority given to those needing 
to downsize 
 
 
 
 
 
Increased private sector 
housing enforcement action to 
meet statutory duties in 
respect of HMOs and health 
hazards. Increase in HMO 
licences issued/administered. 
 
Incentivise the take up of the 
Accreditation Scheme in the 
private rented sector, to 
improve standards.  
 
Seek alternative funding to 
help meet statutory duties in 
respect of dealing with 
category 1 hazards (HHSRS). 

 
April 2013 
(and 
ongoing) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2013 
(and 
ongoing) 
 
 
 
 
Now (and 
ongoing) 
 
 
 
Now (and 
ongoing) 

 
Martin Stacy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark Nelson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark Nelson 
 
 
 
 
Mark Nelson 

 
Gloucestershire 
Homeseeker 
Partnership 
 
Registered 
Providers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Private Sector 
Housing Group 
 
 
Private 
Landlords 
Forum 

P
age 65



Appendix 3 

Page 20 of 28 

Self Financing Housing Revenue Account 
 
Context 
 
Background 
 
The existing system for council housing finance has been criticised by local 
authorities, tenants and housing professionals for some years. It is based on an 
impenetrable and volatile subsidy system that is underfunded and redistributive and 
does not give a stable basis for long term business planning.  
 
The Government acknowledged these issues and commissioned a comprehensive 
review which culminated in a consultation process with all stakeholders in 2009. The 
Labour Government then published a “prospectus for the future of council housing” in 
March 2010 as a second stage consultation document which proposed the 
dismantling of the subsidy system through a self financing debt settlement.  This was 
accompanied by a financial model to be used for the calculation of debt settlements, 
the assumptions used in the model and indicative figures for each authority. The 
deadline for consultation responses was 6th July 2010. 
 
Following the change in Government in May 2010, the new Housing Minister allowed 
the consultation process to continue and indicated the Coalition would support the 
completion of HRA reform. In February 2011 DCLG published their proposals for the 
implementation of self financing with revised assumptions. This is not a consultation 
document as the Localism Bill currently passing through Parliament provides for the 
change to be compulsory for all local authorities in April 2012. 
 
CIPFA has also published a consultation document which seeks to resolve 
accounting issues arising from the introduction of self financing. 
 
Recap on March 2010 proposals 
 
Scrap the current subsidy system through a one off debt settlement for each authority 
with future borrowing controlled by a debt cap. Rent increases continue to be 
controlled by the Government.  
 
In the actual HRA the current annual subsidy payment would be replaced by interest 
charges on additional debt. The balance of those 2 figures determines the initial net 
impact on the authority. The key variables looking forward are assumptions about 
future rent levels, interest rates and need to spend. 
 
The settlement figure for each council to be calculated as the net present value of 30 
year notional cash flows using the following modelling assumptions:- 
• Rent income to increase in accordance with rent restructuring policy 

(completion in 2015/16) followed by annual increases thereafter at RPI + 
0.5% 

• Management, maintenance and major repairs expenditure based on existing 
subsidy allocations but uplifted to provide additional funding. No provision 
was made for the funding of disabled adaptations. 

• A base discount rate of 6.5% but also options to model 6% and 7%. The 
higher rate was said to provide “additional headroom to finance new build” 

• No allowance for future stock losses. 
 

Page 66



Appendix 3 

Page 21 of 28 

Using the 6.5% discount rate the debt settlement for Cheltenham was £29.1m, taking 
total notional debt to £54.6m which would also be the debt cap for the authority. 
Actual HRA debt at April 2012 would be £47.9m giving initial borrowing headroom of 
£6.7m. 
 
This debt settlement was input into our financial forecasts for Cheltenham and 
headline figures were presented to a joint CBC/CBH workshop on 29th June 2010. 
When compared to a continuance of the current subsidy system our projections 
indicated the settlement was affordable and provided additional resources from year 
1 with the financial position improving year on year. Our need to spend on the 
existing stock, then estimated at a current cost of £30,500 per unit over 30 years, 
could be financed and still leave significant resources to finance proactive asset 
management or new build and/or repay debt. 
 
February 2011 proposals 
 
The principles of the March 2010 proposals have been confirmed but the following 
changes have been made to the modelling assumptions used for the debt settlement 
calculation:- 
 
• The debt settlement is to be based on the 6.5% discount rate – the previous 

option to use 7% which would give Councils more borrowing headroom for 
new build has been dropped. 

• The notional expenditure included in the model reflects updated subsidy 
allowances and now includes funding for disabled adaptations.  

• The model also makes allowance for stock losses from Right to Buy (but only 
using DCLG forecasts of numbers) and will also exclude demolitions planned 
for the first 3 years after implementation (we have already responded to 
DCLG within their deadline of 31st March). 

 
The principle of an HRA borrowing limit is confirmed, set at the level of the self 
financing valuation. 
 
DCLG reserves the power to re-open the settlement in the future but says it will only 
be used if there is a major change in policy which would have a substantial, material 
impact on the value of the business. 
 
No further guidance on HRA ring fence will be published – continue to operate under 
existing guidelines using principle of “who benefits pays”. 
 
Impact on Cheltenham 
 
In the notional model Cheltenham’s allowances for management, maintenance and 
major repairs have been uplifted by 16.73% from the current subsidy levels (the 
national average is 14.24%). 

 
The revised debt settlement figure is now £28.4m increasing total notional debt to 
£53.9m. This represents a debt per dwelling of £11,712 (national average £18,679). 
Actual HRA debt at April 2012 will be £47.2m giving initial headroom for further 
borrowing of £6.7m. 
 
The changes to the model have produced significant variations in the debt 
settlements for individual authorities, some having increased by more than 30%. 
However for Cheltenham the net change is a reduction of only £0.7m.  

Page 67



Appendix 3 

Page 22 of 28 

 
There are accounting issues to resolve, particularly the allocation of currently pooled 
debt to the HRA, depreciation and impairment. 
 
In summary the deal continues to look good for Cheltenham, slightly improved on the 
previous proposals issued last year. We have benefited substantially from the 
subsidy settlement for 2011/12.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Opportunities Challenges 
In addition the plan should determine a 
strategy for the use of surplus resources with 
options for new build, improvement of current 
stock and debt repayment. 
 
 

We now have confirmation HRA reform will 
be in place by April 2012 and it is unlikely 
there will be any further significant changes 
to the methodology. It is therefore essential 
that we have a robust implementation plan 
which recognises the need for the 
involvement of all stakeholders. 
 
A new HRA business plan is being 
progressed and will be informed by 30 year 
financial forecasts. As indicated above the 
key variables, which will be the subject of 
sensitivity analysis, are:- 
• Future rent increases (controlled by 

Government policy) 
• Interest Rates 
• Need to spend on management, 

maintenance and major repair 
 

 
 

Interdependencies Position to date 
There are significant treasury management 
implications arising from these proposals and 
it is essential that early advice on funding 
decisions is obtained.  
There are accounting issues to resolve, 
particularly the allocation of currently pooled 
debt to the HRA, depreciation and 
impairment. 
 
 

A joint CBC/CBH Workshop was held on 15 
June to discuss more detailed elements of 
the situation. 
 
Emphasis was made that key policy 
decisions will have to be made to ensure 
implementation from April 2012. 
 
Consultation of tenants is planned between 
September and December 2011 before 
which key principles will need to have been 
agreed by Cabinet/Council. 

Page 68



Appendix 3 

Page 23 of 28 

Risk Description Original risk 
score 

(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk Deadline Lead Officer 
 

Partners 

I L Score Control Action 
DCLG reserves the power to re-
open the settlement in the future 
but says it will only be used if 
there is a major change in policy 
which would have a substantial, 
material impact on the value of 
the business. 
 
There are significant treasury 
management implications arising 
from these proposals and it is 
essential that early advice on 
funding decisions is obtained.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Any investment 
decision should 
take into 
account the 
council's current 
view on interest 
rates.  
ArlingClose Ltd, 
the council's 
treasury 
advisors, have 
been appointed 
to advise on the 
impact that the 
HRA subsidy 
reform will have 
in respect of 
Cheltenham.  
The council has 
signed up to 
their Debt 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Paul Jones 

 

P
age 69



Appendix 3 

Page 24 of 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rental income is still subject to 
Government policy. The 
surpluses shown are primarily 
driven by rent increase 
assumptions in line with current 
policy. 
 
 
 

Allocation After 
Transfer 
(DAAT) service 
to ensure any 
borrowing limits 
are correctly 
allocated to the 
HRA. 

P
age 70



Appendix 3 

Page 25 of 28 

Supporting People 
 
Context 
 
Supporting People pays for much of the housing support that is provided to 
vulnerable people to help them live as independently as possible. The County 
Council is the Administering Authority for the programme and leads the Supporting 
People Partnership Board and Core Strategy Group.     
 
The national Supporting People programme began on 1 April 2003, bringing together 
seven housing-related funding streams from across central government. It is now a 
wholly decentralised programme, administered through 152 top-tier authorities who 
have complete discretion over where to direct their funds to best meet local needs. 
From 2011/12, all Supporting People funds have been rolled into Formula Grant and 
allocated via the Local Government Finance Report. Services are largely delivered 
by the voluntary and community sector, and housing associations. 
 
The government has advised that authorities should consider the most appropriate 
local arrangements, provided that they are consistent with the core requirements and 
objectives of the Supporting People programme. In all cases this means the 
Supporting People programme needs to harness a range of skills, knowledge and 
resources from across the Administering Authority and its partners. 
 
Gloucestershire arrangements 
 
The Core Strategy Group is the key policy development group within the Supporting 
People decision-making structure. It is also responsible for developing new policies 
and practices for the operation of the programme in Gloucestershire. 
 
The Core Strategy Group Membership includes: 
• Representatives from the six district housing authorities;  
• Gloucestershire County Council; 
• Gloucestershire Partnership NHS Trust; 
• The Primary Care Trust; 
• Gloucestershire Probation; 
• Two representatives from provider organisations 

Partnership Board - this is the decision making group for the Supporting People 
Programme and membership comprises:- 
• Gloucestershire County Council  
• Forest of Dean District Council  
• Cheltenham Borough Council  
• Tewkesbury Borough Council  
• Stroud District Council  
• Cotswold District Council  

Page 71



Appendix 3 

Page 26 of 28 

• Gloucester City Council  
• Gloucestershire Probation Trust  
• 2Gether NHS Foundation Trust  
• Gloucestershire PCT 

 
Housing support includes helping vulnerable people to learn the basic skills to remain 
in their own homes, while achieving their aspirations such as becoming a more active 
member of their local community. It also helps them:- 
 
• Gain access to education, training or employment; 
• Contact other services such as social care, health, doctors and colleges; 
• Make sure their home is safe and secure. 

 
Failure to sustain accommodation has considerable social costs, not only in terms of 
the individual affected, such as interruption from education, employment, health 
services, community activities, loss of informal and formal support networks, to being 
unsafe; but also wider community costs whereby a volume of transient residents can 
destabilise an otherwise strong and cohesive community.  Accommodation failure 
also carries significant costs to the public purse, with a potential requirement for 
interventions from housing authorities in terms of housing options and estate 
management; safeguarding and critical health services. 
 
 
The Supporting People programme has always been Central Government funded 
and although the national level of funding has largely been protected, its 
redistribution now as part of formula grant means that central funding for the 
programme is substantially reducing. The Budget Forecast agreed by the county 
council confirmed that a total of £7 million savings would need to be made from the 
recurring base budget over the 4 financial years from 2011-2 to 2014-5.   
 
Whilst a significant reduction, this is actually a higher level of investment in the 
programme than the County Council is actually receiving from central government, 
reflecting the positive impact of much of the expenditure on the budget for adult 
social care, which is an agreed County Council priority. 
 
A county wide strategy has been consulted upon and endorsed by the County 
Council1  
 

Opportunities Challenges 
 
The Supporting People Partnership Board has 
committed to taking a strategic response to these 
changes, which involves work needed to reshape 
services to be more effective and efficient, by 
investing in early intervention and prevention.   
Make best use of resources by enabling access to 
timely and targeted brief interventions to prevent 
problems from becoming housing or care crises 
which will make better use of intensive 
accommodation based services. 
 

 
Helping partners to achieve a strategic shift to Early 
Intervention and Prevention in line with the 
Personalisation agenda requires a “corporate” 
response from all the partners to implementing a 
prevention strategy for vulnerable people, via 
increased early intervention and developing social 
capital to build greater community resilience.  Need 
to inform and influence integrated strategic 
planning. 
 
To bring some long term stability to the core 

                                            
1 http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=4299 

Page 72



Appendix 3 

Page 27 of 28 

The strategy seeks to address the misalignment of 
services informed by needs analysis – to reduce over 
supply and meet gaps in provision. 
 
Development of integrated pathways to help deliver 
the priority prevention outcomes of the Health and 
Care services, as well as Housing and Communities 
agendas                  
 
To develop personalised flexible services to enable 
individuals to achieve positive outcomes personally 
and at a neighbourhood level. 
 

services whilst managing the radical transformation 
of some sectors 
 
To have a stable supply of quality services whilst 
also managing change and budgetary turbulence 
 
To safeguard vulnerable people during transition 
 
To ensure accurate and consistent communications 
with service users 
 

Interdependencies/Impacts Position to date 
 
Budgetary pressures, strategic plans and 
commissioning frameworks of other statutory 
partners  
 
The ability of individuals to sustain their 
accommodation has implications for services 
provided by the council and CBH; most notably 
Housing Options services, Private sector housing, 
Disabled adaptations and estate management.   
 

 
A joint workshop with SP Partnership Board, Core 
strategy group and providers was held in May 2011 
to discuss issues regarding implementing the 
strategy to inform project planning 

Page 73



Appendix 3 

Page 28 of 28 

Risk Description 
 
Supporting People 

Original risk 
score 

(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk Deadline Lead Officer 
 

Partners 

I L Score Control Action 
If we fail to agree a county wide 
approach to implementing the 
Supporting People strategy then 
it would result in an inability to 
effectively manage the budget 
which would result in reduction of 
services and/or failure to provide 
appropriate and integrated 
housing related support services. 
This in turn would impact 
disproportionately on the most 
vulnerable members of our 
community and may increase 
demand on homelessness 
budget. 

4  
 

4 16 reduce Influence 
implementation 
of strategy via 
consultation and 
partnership 
planning 
processes to 
secure robust 
programme of  
delivery that 
meets local and 
county wide 
needs 

To be 
determined by 
SP Partnership 
Board 

Mike 
Redman/ 
Martin Stacy 

SP 
Partnership 
Board 
 
SP Core 
Strategy 
Group 
 
SP Provider 
Fora 
 
Cheltenham 
Housing and 
Support 
Forum 

 

P
age 74



Towards an outcome framework for Cheltenham’s Housing & Homelessness Strategy 

 

Under-pinning 
principles 

Ensure vulnerable 
people engage and 
remain on the 
pathway to 
independent living 

Work with private 
landlords to increase 
the availability of 
private rented 
accommodation to 
low income 
households 

Enable privately 
owned empty homes 
to be brought back 
into use for residents 
in housing need 

Engage with private 
landlords to improve 
the quality of private 
rented housing 

Continue to improve 
the quality and 
carbon efficiency of 
housing stock 

Make best use of 
social housing stock 
via the Allocations 
Scheme, whilst 
maintaining 
balanced 
communities 

Maximise the 
provision of new 
affordable housing 

Tackle financial 
exclusion and 
improve financial 
capability 

Direct Outcomes 
for community 
wellbeing 

Family relationships 
and social networks 
are developed 
and/or maintained, 
thereby increasing 
social capital within 
communities 

Communities are 
less transient with 
residents ‘buying in’ 
to their 
neighbourhoods   

Incidents of re-
offending, anti-social 
behaviour and drugs 
& substance misuse 
are reduced as a 
result of the 
provision of suitable 
accommodation and 
appropriate support 

Opportunities for 
improving the 
educational 
attainment for young 
people are increased 
as a result of more 
stable communities 
being established 

With increased 
financial capability, 
communities will 
have more income in 
which to support 
themselves and the 
local economy 

Direct Outcomes 
for Residents 

People are able to 
live in their homes 
independently for 
longer 

People have access 
to a wide range of 
housing options 

People are able to 
stay or move to 
communities where 
they can benefit from 
family and support 
networks 

People benefit 
physically and 
mentally from better 
quality housing 

People are able to 
access better quality 
accommodation 

People can manage 
their financial affairs, 
thereby avoiding 
falling into debt 

More people pay 
less for housing-
related fuel costs 

People are able to 
lead more healthy-
eating lifestyles 
through improved 
financial capability  

Strategic Objectives and outcomes – 
contribution to be assessed using community 
objectives assessment toolkit 

Enhancing and 
protecting our 
environment 

Enhancing the 
provision of culture 

Strengthening our 
economy 

Strengthening our 
communities 

Providing value for 
money services 

Cheltenham has a 
clean & well 
maintained 
environment 

Natural and built 
environment is 
enhanced and 
protected 

CO2 emissions are 
reduced & we adapt 
to impacts of climate 
change 

Cheltenham 
recovers quickly 
from the recession 

We attract more 
visitors and investors 
to Cheltenham 

Communities feel 
safe and are safe 

People have access 
to decent and 
affordable housing 

People are able to 
lead healthy 
lifestyles 

Residents enjoy a 
strong sense of 
community 

Tackle housing 
related fuel-poverty 

Young people have 
more stable lives, 
creating 
opportunities for 
continued education, 
training and 
employment 

Ensure a range of 
homelessness 
prevention initiatives 
are available to 
residents at risk of 
losing their homes 

Page 75



Page 76
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5 

Housing & Homelessness Strategy 2012-2017 
 

Contents 
 
Part 1. Setting the Scene 
 
 
Chapter 1. Putting Housing into context 
 

• Links to corporate priorities 
 

• Links to wider agendas: 
o Health & Wellbeing 
o Stronger Communities 
o Safer Communities 
o Improving outcomes for Young People 
o Tackling Climate Change 

 
• Key Outcomes 

 
• Framework for how Housing influences and is influenced by 

these agendas: 
o Existing partnerships 
o Scope for improvement  

 
Chapter 2. National Priorities; Local Impact 
 

• Key Changes:  
o Localism Bill 
o Affordable Homes Framework 
o Welfare Reform Bill and other welfare changes 
o Supporting People  
o HRA reform 

 
• Challenges and Opportunities 

 
 
Chapter 3. Needs Analysis & Consultation 
 

• SHMA 
• HNA 
• Homelessness and support needs 
• etc 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



Appendix 5 

Part 2. Meeting Our Outcomes 
 
 
Chapter 4. Making Best Use of Existing Housing 
 

• Improving and maintaining Existing Homes 
• Improving Housing to Meet Climate Change and Sustainability 
• Tackling Fuel Poverty 
• Bringing Empty Homes Back into Use 

 
Chapter 5. Helping People Find and Access Suitable Affordable Homes 

• Gloucestershire Homeseeker 
• Accessing Private Rented Accommodation 
• Accessing other accommodation (e.g. shared ownership) 

 
Chapter 6. Creating More Affordable Homes 
 

• Cost and availability of land 
• Funding 
• Links to JCS 

 
Chapter 7. Preventing Homelessness and Supporting Vulnerable People 
 

• Key priorities for preventing homelessness 
• Helping vulnerable people 

 
Chapter 8. Our Tenancy Strategy 
 

• Links to homelessness prevention, allocations policy 
• If/when flexible tenancies should be considered 
• Length of flexible tenancies 
• Circumstances around when flexible tenancies should end 

 
Chapter 9. Revitalising Neighbourhoods 
 

• Deprivation 
• Tackling Crime & Anti-social Behaviour 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Outcomes Framework 
Appendix 2 – Action Plan 
Etc. 

Page 78



 

   

$z4boamoc.doc Page 1 of 7 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 October 2011 

Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 
 

Accountable member Councillor John Webster, Cabinet member finance and community 
development 

Accountable officers Mark Sheldon, Director of resources 
Jane Griffiths, Director of commissioning 

Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Social and community 

Ward(s) affected All  
Key Decision No  
Executive summary This is an outline Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan, written 

in partnership with Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH).  
 
This document sets out plans for the management and maintenance of 
CBC-owned housing stock for the 30 year period from 2012 to 2042. It has 
been developed at a time of significant changes in national policy that 
impact on social housing. These include reform of the council housing 
finance system, welfare reform (which is subject to a separate report this 
evening) and the necessary development of alternative models for the 
delivery of new stock following a reduction in direct government grant. More 
detail on these changes and their impact are detailed in the plan and they 
provide both challenges and opportunities.  
 
The move from the HRA subsidy system to a self financing regime is to be 
welcomed as it will provide both an increase in resources and greater local 
control of those resources. Final details of the self financing arrangements 
will not be received until later this year but current financial projections 
suggest that, after funding existing service levels and the costs of keeping 
homes to the decent homes standard, there could be additional resources 
of approximately £15m. This could be used to repay debt or invest in the 
existing stock to provide better quality homes, establish a programme of 
new build or improve services to tenants.  
 
The emerging strategy is to use these additional resources in three ways: 
� New Build – CBC will ask managing agent, CBH to identify delivery 

models for the provision of new housing at St Paul’s Phase 2, 
Cakebridge Place and various garage sites. Our aim is to establish a 
continuous programme of new build, recognising that the scale of that 
programme may be restrained by availability of land and affordability. 

� Existing Stock - priorities will include measures to address fuel poverty, 
the improvement of external areas through a continuation of the 
neighbourhood works programme, a review of sheltered housing  

� Services to tenants – CBH will be requested to invest in further 
community development to address issues of anti-social behaviour, 
financial exclusion and unemployment 

Agenda Item 8
Page 79



 

   

$z4boamoc.doc Page 2 of 7 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

 
The development of the draft strategy has been informed by a member 
seminar and by the cross party member housing review group.  This draft 
strategy will be informed by the opinions of tenants and leaseholders and 
other stakeholder partners and a consultation exercise will be undertaken in 
October and November this year. Feedback will then be used in the 
preparation of the final business plan to be published in February 2012. 
 

Recommendations The Cabinet are asked to endorse the draft strategy and use it as a 
basis for consultation with a range of stakeholders. 
Following consultation the strategy will be brought back to Cabinet 
before final approval by Council in February 2012. 

 
Financial implications As detailed throughout this report and within the HRA Business Plan. 

DCLG will issue draft self-financing determinations in November 2011 
which will vary from the figures issued in February 2011 to reflect updated 
stock numbers, RPI and GDP deflator figures. The indebtedness 
determination will set out the ‘borrowing cap’ and the Council will need to 
ensure this settlement figure is paid over to DCLG on 28th March 2012. 
In order to facilitate this transaction, Council will need to determine and 
approve its borrowing strategy which will include updating its prudential 
indicators to ensure there is enough headroom within its authorised 
borrowing limit. 
The recent announcements from HM Treasury have indicated that 
favourable rates from the PWLB will be available (i.e. 13 bases points over 
gilt rates) for this one-off transaction and in order to benefit from these 
rates the Council will need to request these rates by 26th March 2012 at 
the latest.  
As part of the Council’s treasury management strategy, Arlingclose, the 
Council’s treasury advisors, have been enlisted to ensure that its 
borrowing strategy will provide value for money.  
Contact officer: Paul Jones, paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk,      
01242 775154 

Legal implications There are no legal implications as a direct result of this report. 
Contact officer: Donna Ruck, Solicitor     
donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272696 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No HR implications arising as a direct result of the content of this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy,  
julie.mccarthy @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks The key risks are set out in appendix 1 and a more detailed analysis 
is set out in the business plan itself 

Page 80



 

   

$z4boamoc.doc Page 3 of 7 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The HRA business plan has been developed in the context of the of the 
council’s corporate strategy.  It is proposed that during the consultation 
phase and before a final version of the business plan is brought back for 
approval an equality impact assessment will be undertaken. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 

1. Background 
2.1 The existing system for council housing finance has been criticised by local authorities, tenants 

and housing professionals for some years. It is based on an impenetrable and volatile subsidy 
system that is underfunded and redistributive and does not give a stable basis for long term 
business planning.  

2.2 The reform of council housing finance has involved all three major political parties. In 2009 the 
previous Labour government commissioned a comprehensive review which culminated in a 
consultation process with all stakeholders. Following on from this the government then published 
a ‘prospectus for the future of council housing’ in March 2010 as a second stage consultation 
document. This document proposed the dismantling of the subsidy system through a ‘self 
financing debt settlement’. This was accompanied by a financial model to be used for the 
calculation of debt settlements; the assumptions used in the model; and indicative figures for each 
authority.  

2.3 Following the change in government in May 2010 the coalition indicated that it would support the 
completion of HRA reform and carry forward the reforms to a conclusion. In February 2011 the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published ‘Implementing self-
financing for council housing’. This document set out the methodology, financial parameters and 
timetable for the reforms and contained key financial information so that councils could see how 
they would be affected. This enabled local authorities to begin planning for the start of self-
financing. This policy document was accompanied by ‘a local authority financial model’ with 
indicative figures, a user guide and a report on the model inputs. This was not a consultation 
document as the Localism Bill, which was passing through Parliament, provided for the change to 
be compulsory for all local authorities in April 2012.  

2.4 Published on the 28th July 2011 the document ‘Self-financing: Planning the transition’ set out in 
detail the steps central government and councils will take between now and April 2012 to make 
these reforms a reality. It also sets out the accounting and regulatory framework that will support 
self-financing. CIPFA has also published a consultation document which seeks to resolve 
accounting issues arising from the introduction of self financing. 

2.5 The reforms are planned to:  

� scrap the current subsidy system through a one off debt settlement for each authority with 
future borrowing controlled by a debt cap. Rent increases continue to be controlled by the 
government 

� give councils the resources, incentives and flexibility they need to more effectively manage 
their housing stock for the long-term and to drive up quality and efficiency  

� provide tenants with the information they need to hold their landlord to account, by 
replacing the current opaque system with one which has a clear relationship between the 
rent a landlord collects and the services they provide 

� replace the current annual subsidy payment with interest charges on additional debt. The 
balance of these two figures determines the initial net impact on the authority. The key 

Page 81



 

   

$z4boamoc.doc Page 4 of 7 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

variables looking forward are assumptions about future rent levels, interest rates and need 
to spend 

 
2.6 The settlement figure for each council is to be calculated as the net present value of 30 year 

notional cash flows using the following modelling assumptions:- 
� rent income to increase in accordance with rent restructuring policy (completion in 2015/16) 

followed by annual increases thereafter at RPI + 0.5% 
� management, maintenance and major repairs expenditure based on updated subsidy 

allowances and now includes funding for disabled adaptations  
� the debt settlement is to be based on the 6.5% discount rate – the previous option to use 

7% which would give Councils more borrowing headroom for new build has been dropped 
� the model also makes allowance for stock losses from Right to Buy (but only using DCLG 

forecasts of numbers) and will also exclude demolitions planned for the first 3 years after 
implementation (we have already responded to DCLG within their deadline of 31st March) 

 

2.7 The DCLG reserves the power to re-open the settlement in the future but this is likely only to be 
used if there is a major change in policy which would have a substantial, material impact on the 
value of the business. No further guidance on HRA ring fence will be published – continue to 
operate under existing guidelines using principle of ‘who benefits pays’.  

 
2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The council needs to set out a business plan for the housing revenue account and needs to 

consider the options.  The attached paper sets out the national and local context, establishes 
strategic links and describes how the housing revenue account is used to deliver housing services 
and manage and maintain council-owned homes.  Included is a range of options for consideration 
arising from the move from the HRA subsidy system to a self financing regime. It will provide both 
an increase in resources and greater local control of those resources and current financial 
projections suggest that, after funding existing service levels and the costs of keeping homes to 
the decent homes standard, there could be additional resources of approximately £15m. This 
could be used to repay debt or invest in the existing stock to provide better quality homes, 
establish a programme of new build or improve services to tenants.  

2.2 From the work undertaken with members and CBH board it would appear that there is a blended 
approach which includes new build, work to existing stock, environmental and sustainability 
improvements and earmarking of resource for developing the services delivered by CBH to help 
meet current and emerging local needs.  

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 The council could choose to prioritise one aspect over another but the consultation to date has 

shown an appetite for a blended approach.  The proposed consultation as set out in chapter 6 of 
the HRA Business Plan should test with a range of stakeholders what their views are about 
prioritisation within the proposed options. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 CBH will undertake a range of consultation activities over the coming months and these will be 

collated and brought back to the member review working group and to CBH board, who will 
consider the findings and agree what strategy needs to develop to meet these aspirations.  The 

Page 82



 

   

$z4boamoc.doc Page 5 of 7 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

HRA business plan will be presented to council in February along with the budget. 
4.2 The Cabinet this evening have received a report from the housing review cross party member 

working group who are keen to continue to be engaged in the development of the plan and to 
ensure alignment to the council’s corporate strategy and emerging outcomes frameworks. 

5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 The HRA will be monitored through the service level agreement for CBH and through the normal 

budget monitoring procedures.  Given the changes it will be important to monitor the financial 
aspects closely over the first few years to ensure that assumptions made are realised and if not 
that corrective action is taken as required. 

Report author Contact officers 
Mark Sheldon Director of Resources , 
Mark.Sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264123 
Jane Griffiths, Director of Commissioning 
Jane.Griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 264124 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Draft Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2012 to 2042 

Background information  
 

Page 83



 

   
$z4boamoc.doc Page 6 of 7 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-4 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 DCLG reserves the power 
to re-open the settlement in 
the future but says it will 
only be used if there is a 
major change in policy 
which would have a 
substantial, material impact 
on the value of the 
business. 
 
There are significant 
treasury management 
implications arising from 
these proposals and it is 
essential that early advice 
on funding decisions is 
obtained.  
Rental income is still 
subject to Government 
policy. The surpluses 
shown are primarily driven 
by rent increase 
assumptions in line with 
current policy. 

 
 

Mark 
Sheldon 

20/09/11 3 3 9 Reduce Any investment 
decision should take 
into account the 
council's current view 
on interest rates.  
ArlingClose Ltd, the 
council's treasury 
advisors, have been 
appointed to advise 
on the impact that the 
HRA subsidy reform 
will have in respect of 
Cheltenham.  The 
council has signed up 
to their Debt 
Allocation After 
Transfer (DAAT) 
service to ensure any 
borrowing limits are 
correctly allocated to 
the HRA. 

   

 The  welfare reforms and 
benefit changes do not 
align to the proposed 
changes to social and 
affordable rents and there 
is a risk as to what impact 

Mark 
Sheldon 

20/09/11 3 3 9 Reduce Set realistic target 
levels re bad debts 
Continue to monitor 
the HRA closely in 
first years of self 

   

P
age 84



 

   
$z4boamoc.doc Page 7 of 7 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

this may have on the HRA  financing. 
Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-4 (4 being the greatest impact) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6 (6 being most likely) 

Impact Description Impact 
score 

 Probability Likelihood Description 
Likelihood 
Score 

Negligible  1 0% - 5% Almost 
impossible  1 

Marginal 2 5% - 15% Very low 2 

Major 3 15% - 30% Low 3 

Critical 4 30% - 60% Significant 4 

  60% - 90% High 5 

  > 90% Very high 6 
 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 

P
age 85



Page 86
This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council  
DRAFT Summary HRA Business 
Plan 2012 to 2042  
draft version: October 2011  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 1 of 20 

CONTENTS 
 
 
1  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND INTRODUCTION  ............................................... 2 
1.1  introduction .................................................................................................... 2 
1.2  Executive Summary ..................................................................................... 2 

2  FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS  ................................................................................ 5 
2.1  The move to self f inancing ......................................................................... 5 
2.2  The key variables and our assumptions ................................................. 5 
2.3  Our project ions ............................................................................................. 6 
2.4  Debt profi le .................................................................................................... 9 
2.5  Sensit ivi ty Analysis ...................................................................................... 9 

3  DEBT MANAGEMENT  ......................................................................................... 10 
4  ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: summary  .............................................. 11 
4.1  Need to Spend ............................................................................................ 11 
4.2  HRA Business Plan headroom ................................................................ 11 
4.3  New build homes ........................................................................................ 12 
4.4  Further investment in existing housing stock ...................................... 12 

5  RISK MANAGEMENT ......................................................................................... 13 
6  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  .......................................................................... 15 
6.1  tenants and the development of this business plan .......................... 15 

7  MONITORING AND REVIEW  ............................................................................ 17 
8  CONCLUSIONS  ................................................................................................... 18 
APPENDIX 1 CBC HRA PROJECTIONS 2012/13 TO 2041/42  ........................ 19 
 
 
 

Page 88



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 2 of 20 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND INTRODUCTION  
 
 
1.1 introduction 
 
Welcome to Cheltenham Borough Council’s Housing Business Plan for 2012 to 2042. This plan 
sets out our plans for council housing over the next 30 years to the long term future for the 
housing service and stock. This document explains how we listen to our customers in 
establishing our plans for improving housing services and getting investment into tenants’ 
homes. 
 
In 2001, the Government introduced the requirement for all council homes to be brought up to 
the Decent Homes Standard by 2010. Following a detailed consideration of the options 
available to us, the Council decided to establish an Arms Length Management Organisation, 
Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH). In 2003, CBH was successful in achieving a “good” rating 
for its services from the Audit Commission and additional investment resources of over £26m 
became available from the Government to help meet the Standard. (In 2004 this was increased 
to £31m). 
 
CBH have now completed the “Creating Better Homes” investment programme which 
concluded in December 2008 with all homes achieving the Decent Homes Standard 2 years 
ahead of schedule and on budget.  
 
CBH were re-inspected by the Audit Commission during 2007: the Audit Commission awarded 
them the highest possible rating, three stars for excellent services and excellent prospects for 
improvement. CBH remains a top performing ALMO. Over time CBH have demonstrated 
consistent improvement and have made a difference to the lives of thousands of people living in 
council homes and the communities that they work within.  
 
CBH is a key vehicle in the delivery of services. The delegation of functions is laid out in 
Schedule Two in the current Management Agreement, which runs until 2020. CBH have 
developed a CBH Business Plan to 2020 which provides a framework for consistent delivery on 
agreed objectives and an appreciation of resources to meet them. This sets out their strategic 
goals and operational priorities in detail for five years and then more generally to 2020. They 
have consulted widely with tenants in formulating this plan which ensures that current and 
developing customer need is married to local strategic priorities: helping to deliver the ambitions 
in the Community Strategy; the aims in the CBC Corporate Plan and the developing Housing 
and Homelessness Strategy. 
 
 
1.2 Executive Summary 
 
This plan is published at a time of unprecedented ongoing change for social housing. The 
Council and CBH need to take stock of past progress and begin to set out plans to meet the 
challenges of the future. These include; fundamental reform of the council housing finance 
system, wide-reaching welfare reform and the development of alternative models for the 
delivery of new stock, following a reduction in direct government grant. 
  
One of the major changes, and the one with the most direct impact on this business plan, is the 
move from the HRA subsidy system to a self financing regime. This is to be welcomed as it will 
provide both an increase in resources and greater local control of those resources. We will not 
receive final details of the self financing arrangements until later this year but our current 
financial projections suggest that, after funding existing service levels and the costs of keeping 
our homes to the decent homes standard, there could be additional resources of approximately 
£15m. This could be used to repay debt; or invest in the existing stock to provide better quality 

Page 89



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 3 of 20 

homes; or establish a programme of new build; or improve our services to tenants or a blend of 
all these approaches could be taken. 
  
There is a large excess of housing need over supply. There is ongoing and buoyant demand for 
council housing through the Housing Needs Register. Our experience of tenancy turnaround 
and lettings activity suggests continued high demand for all but a very limited number of 
properties and property types. There are, nonetheless, some areas of council housing at risk of 
changing patterns of demand and need and which require investment to provide a long term, 
sustainable future for the stock. 
 
The services deliver by CBH are high performing and customer satisfaction is also high. CBH 
are committed to maintaining this level of performance into the future and ensure that 
customers are fully involved in the delivery of these. Since 2003 our ALMO has drastically 
improved performance in all aspects of housing related services. Key indicators for rent 
collection, repairs and re-letting homes consistently occupy the upper tiers of national 
comparison tables.  
 
The main focus of their work will continue to be the delivery of our core landlord services, 
ensuring they are performing to excellent standards and are able to respond to meet changing 
customer expectations and need. Maintaining excellent performance, high customer satisfaction 
and efficient services will be supported by effective monitoring, benchmarking, customer 
involvement and scrutiny. coupled with the involvement of customers to ensure relevant focus 
and service user-scrutiny will ensure this continues. 
  

We are developing an updated Community Modelling capability, which analyses a suite of 
indicators by location to support new investment programmes to help deliver regeneration. We 
will continue to refine the modelling as part of the development of our investment plans. In the 
meantime we will play a key partnership role in helping to deliver and facilitate existing schemes 
in St Paul’s, as well as complete local appraisals for stock reinvestment and redevelopment for 
the sheltered stock and other specific property types.  
 
Looking forward to 2020 we expect no dramatic change in council-owned stock and no change 
in demand, which will remain high. Our homes currently meet the government’s ‘decency 
standard’: we are committed to maintaining this level of decency into the future. Future 
investment will be proactive, identifying and replacing components and maintaining building 
elements before they fail. These will be identified by the use of developing stock condition 
software and physical surveys. CBH will investigate retrofitting homes to improve their 
environmental footprints, taking into account new technologies to reduce energy use. 
 
CBH will continue to build new, affordable homes as funding allows; these new build properties 
will take account of the ongoing discussions relating to minimum build standards. They will also 
continue their ‘Neighbourhood Works’ programme, which improves external communal 
environments for CBC tenants, helping to combat anti-social behaviour and promote community 
cohesion.   
 
CBH is striving for service excellence. The future of social housing regulation is changing: it will 
be essential that development of self assessment continues and that customers are involved in 
the review and monitoring of services. The ‘co-regulation’ approach prescribed by Government 
as a more efficient and effective form of regulation has already been embraced by CBH. The 
integration of a ‘customer excellence group’ into the governance structure will continue: 
ensuring a high degree of customer scrutiny; making sure that services meet customers’ need; 
that decisions are made with customers’ input; and activities are accountable to customers. Our 
plans incorporate the need to make savings in expenditure in day-to-day services every year. 
 
We understand the importance of healthy communities and we are committed to continue to 
improve these, and the lives of the people living within them, by working together with residents 
and partners. CBH are a key partner in this regard, delivering services and supporting 

Page 90



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 4 of 20 

communities to develop cohesiveness and sustainability. CBH carry out many community 
development activities in some of the most deprived areas in the borough. They will continue to 
support several of the key aims as set out in the developing Housing and Homelessness 
Strategy and Corporate Plan by:  
� improving opportunities to engage with education, training and employment  
� reducing the impact of Welfare Reform 
� promoting safer estates 
� reducing fuel poverty 
� reducing financial exclusion 
� promoting healthy living 
� carrying out projects supporting older people, often with health and mobility problems 
� carrying out projects supporting young people, often with support needs 
  
The Council and CBH have a strong track record of tenant involvement through a wide variety 
of mechanisms including meetings, conferences, focus groups and through newsletters and 
surveys. We are committed to continue to explore new, innovative and more effective ways of 
engaging with more of our customers. This contact enables us to understand views and gauge 
satisfaction; improve services; reflect customer needs and aspirations; and increases 
accountability to the people and communities we serve.  
 
Tenants have played a key role in the successful development of our housing services; it is vital 
that this continues and that tenants play an increasing role in shaping both services and the 
ALMO business to 2020 and beyond. CBH will continue to offer and actively promote a range of 
engagement, involvement and development activities that will appeal to the widest possible 
audience. They will adopt a flexible approach to Community Involvement, responding to local 
circumstances and needs.  
  
Our updated financial planning demonstrates that, with appropriate action to manage and 
reduce costs and through effective procurement of large scale expenditure programmes, the 
council, with CBH as its key delivery partner, is able to sustain the housing stock for the 30 year 
term of this plan, whilst placing both the council and CBH in the best possible position to take 
advantage of any future opportunities that arise from the move to self-financing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 5 of 20 

2 FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 
 
 

2.1 The move to self financing 
 
The Government has now confirmed its intent to abolish the existing HRA subsidy system and 
move to a self financing regime for local authority housing from April 2012. Our projections 
reflect the anticipated impact of this very significant change.  
 
For those authorities such as Cheltenham who currently pay into the subsidy system (£3.2m in 
2011/12), the change will be accompanied by the take on of additional debt. The payment of an 
annual subsidy to Government will therefore, in part, be replaced by the cost of additional 
interest charges. It is currently estimated that those debt costs will be significantly less than the 
subsidy thus increasing available resources. Furthermore existing operating surpluses are 
expected to rise as the yield from future rent increases exceed cost inflation. 
 
The actual level of additional debt to be taken by Cheltenham will not be known until draft 
determinations are issued by DCLG in November. The most recent estimates, published in 
February 2011, showed a figure of £28.4m. This is derived from a net present value calculation 
of 30 year notional cashflows of Cheltenham’s rent income and expenditure. The assumptions 
used in the model are to be updated by DCLG prior to settlement and the figure is expected to 
increase to reflect higher than anticipated rent levels. Our projections assume a further £10m to 
be paid increasing the settlement to £38.4m. This may be a cautious estimate but that 
acknowledges the potential volatility in the model. 
 
2.2 The key variables and our assumptions 
 
2.2.1 Base Inflation 
 
Using the retail price index as a measure for inflation our projections assume:- 
September 2011 5.2% 
September 2012 3.5% 
Thereafter at the government target of 2.5% 
 
2.2.2 Rents 
 
Government policy is that the rent for each property should continue to move incrementally to 
the figure derived from a national formula. This rent restructuring should be completed by 
2015/16. Thereafter the formula rent will increase by inflation (as measured by the retail price 
index) plus 0.5%. 
 
We have therefore assumed rent increases as follows:-  
April 2012   6% 
April 2013   4.3% 
April 2014   3.3% 
April 2015   3.3% 
April 2016 onwards at 3% 
 
2.2.3 Management & Maintenance costs 
 
We require our managing agent (CBH) to continue to seek value for money in the delivery of 
their services. Our projections for the cost of existing service levels in the early years of the plan 
target real terms savings in the range of 1% to 2.5%. For 2016/17 onwards cost increases are 
currently shown at base inflation but these will be subject to further review. 
 
 

Page 92



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 6 of 20 

2.2.4 Interest Rates 
 
The additional debt to be taken on for self financing increases the impact of interest rate 
variations. As detailed in section 3 of our plan the initial cost will reflect both the rate paid on 
existing HRA debt and that on new borrowing to finance the settlement. We have estimated the 
overall average rate at 4.5%. 
 
2.2.5 Bad Debt Provision 
 
This has been increased over the early years of the plan (to 2% of rent income) to reflect the 
impact of the introduction of direct benefit payments to tenants. 
 
2.5.6 Reserves 
 
The projections assume a minimum contingency of £1.5m. 
 
 
2.3 Our projections 
 
This plan covers the 30 year period to 2041/42 and the full term projections are attached at 
Appendix 1. These give assurances to the sustainability of our plan and suggest very significant 
additional resources will be available in the long term.  
 
However it is more appropriate to concentrate on the short to medium term and the following 
table shows our summarised financial projections for the next 10 years.  
These are presented on the assumption that all surplus resources, after meeting current service 
level costs and essential investment needs, are used to repay debt.  
 
Over the 10 year period those surpluses are estimated at £15.4m. If these funds were used to 
finance further investment instead of debt repayment the available resource would be £12.2m 
over the same period (this reduction recognises additional interest payable).  
 
The level of annual surplus is restrained in years 5 to 9 by an increase in programmed 
investment during that period. From year 10 onwards the additional sums available for either 
increased investment and/or debt repayment show rapid growth. 
 
 
 

Page 93



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 7 of 20 

 
Table 1 CHELTENHAM BC - HRA PROJECTIONS 2012/13 to 2021/22 
 
Key assumption - All surplus resources, after meeting essential investment needs, used to repay debt  
Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total 
 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  
Revenue Account £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
            

Rents 17,651 18,743 18,975 19,580 20,145 20,727 21,325 22,363 22,574 23,226  
Interest receivable 47 39 39 40 38 38 37 37 37 37  
Other income 1,154 1,183 1,213 1,243 1,274 1,306 1,339 1,372 1,406 1,442  
            

Gross income 18,852 19,965 20,227 20,863 21,457 22,071 22,701 23,772 24,017 24,705  
            

Management 6,197 6,303 6,410 6,500 6,532 6,695 6,863 7,034 7,210 7,390  
Maintenance 4,012 4,072 4,133 4,237 4,343 4,451 4,563 4,677 4,794 4,914  
Bad debt provision 225 275 368 379 392 403 415 426 439 451  
Other 156 121 102 83 88 98 100 102 104 107  
Depreciation 4,820 4,941 5,064 5,191 5,320 5,453 5,590 5,729 5,872 6,020  
Interest payable 2,545 2,478 2,399 2,320 2,265 2,232 2,192 2,133 2,064 1,959  
Capital contribution 0 0 0 382 1,884 1,933 1,984 2,036 2,090 598  
            

Gross costs 17,955 18,190 18,476 19,092 20,824 21,265 21,707 22,137 22,573 21,439  
            
Surplus 897 1,775 1,751 1,771 633 806 994 1,635 1,444 3,266 14,972 
HRA reserve b/fwd 1,897 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500  
 2,794 3,275 3,251 3,271 2,133 2,306 2,494 3,135 2,944 4,766  
Debt repayment -1,294 -1,775 -1,751 -1,771 -633 -806 -994 -1,635 -1,444 -3,266 -15,369 
HRA reserve c/fwd 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500  
            

Capital programme            
            

Expenditure 4,551 4,521 4,661 7,065 7,304 7,486 7,674 7,865 8,062 6,718 65,907 
Financed by:-            
Capital Receipts 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100  
Major Repairs 
Reserve 4,451 4,421 4,561 6,583 5,320 5,453 5,590 5,729 5,872 6,020  
Revenue Account 0 0 0 382 1,884 1,933 1,984 2,036 2,090 598  

P
age 94



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

Page 8 of 20 

Key assumption - All surplus resources, after meeting essential investment needs, used to repay debt  
Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total 
 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  
            

Major Repairs 
Reserve            
            

Balance b/fwd 0 369 889 1,392 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Depreciation 4,820 4,941 5,064 5,191 5,320 5,453 5,590 5,729 5,872 6,020  
Capital Programme -4,451 -4,421 -4,561 -6,583 -5,320 -5,453 -5,590 -5,729 -5,872 -6,020  
Balance c/fwd 369 889 1,392 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
            

Debt forecast            
            

Opening debt 57,172 55,878 54,103 52,352 50,581 49,948 49,142 48,148 46,513 45,069  
Repayment  -1,294 -1,775 -1,751 -1,771 -633 -806 -994 -1,635 -1,444 -3,266  
Closing debt 55,878 54,103 52,352 50,581 49,948 49,142 48,148 46,513 45,069 41,803  
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 95



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 9 

 
2.4 Debt profile  
 
The current HRA debt is £18.7m and our estimates suggest this will be increased by a further 
£38.4m through the self financing settlement, giving a revised total of £57.2m. The Government 
is setting a future borrowing limit for each authority at the sum of the current notional subsidy 
debt and the settlement – for Cheltenham this is estimated as £63.9m. This means that there 
will be borrowing headroom of £6.7m at April 2012 which the Council could use if the HRA can 
meet the additional financing cost. 
 
Table 2 below shows the potential for repayment in the 30 year projections if the strategy were 
to use all surplus resources to repay debt. The initial debt of £57.2m could be fully repaid by 
year 20. 
 
Table 2 HRA Debt profile – self financing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2.5 Sensitivity Analysis 
 
Our draft projections are based on information available at September 2011 and are still subject 
to significant change which may follow from a revision of the debt settlement and variations to 
interest rates and the retail price index. 
 
The following chart quantifies the impact of changes in the key variables on the first 10 years of 
our plan:- 
 
Variable Change Impact on 10 yr surplus 
  £’m 
Debt Settlement £5m 2.83 
Interest Rates 1% throughout period 8.57 
Rent  1% throughout period  2.64 
 
We have used cautious assumptions of these variables in the projections to minimise the risk of 
adverse variances. 
 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29

YEARS

DE
BT

 £
'0

00

Page 96



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 10 

3 DEBT MANAGEMENT 
 
 
The move to a self financing HRA places a greater emphasis of the management of housing 
debt, ensuring that the costs of the HRA are clearly identified and do not impact on the General 
Fund. 
 
Currently the Council maintains a single pool of debt for both HRA and General Fund purposes 
from which an apportionment of interest costs is charged to the HRA. It is now proposed that 
existing Council debt at 31st March 2012 will be split into two separate pools, one for the 
General Fund and one for the HRA. DCLG and CIPFA have made recommendations on how 
this is achieved but there will be some local discretion on the methodology to be used. The 
overriding principle is that there should be no detriment to General Fund. The Council’s treasury 
management advisors (Arlingclose) have been asked to report on the options for doing this and 
their report will be considered by the Treasury Management Panel.  
 
The costs of any new debt then taken for HRA purposes, particularly borrowing to fund the self 
financing debt settlement, will also be directly attributable to the HRA. 
 
In future the management of the HRA debt pool will be an integral part of the business planning 
process. A range of options will be available in deciding the future balance between investment 
and debt repayment. Arlingclose will be asked to advise on the appropriate borrowing strategy 
for the debt settlement after the draft determinations are released in November and the 
Council’s investment priorities have been established, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 11 

4 ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: summary 
 
 
This strategy considers the current investment needs of the CBH-managed housing stock, with 
reference to recent investment (last 5 years), proposed mid-term investment (next 5 years) and 
the overall 30 year Investment Plan which supports the CBH Business Plan. It also reviews a 
related range of strategic, property data and sustainability issues in order to present an overall 
account of the aspirations of CBH in respect of the quantity, quality and robustness of housing 
stock under ownership and management.  
 
CBH has carried out stock condition surveys across 25% of homes in the last 12 months and 
has introduced new Asset Management software – PIMMS 4 Communities.  These actions 
support both the collection of accurate property attribute data and the analysis thereof that 
informs robust property investment planning.  This in turn contributes to the comprehensiveness 
and accuracy of both HRA and Business Planning. Below is a summary of the key points from 
the Asset Management Plan.  
 
4.1 Need to Spend 
 
Following the formation of CBH an investment plan was devised which had at its core the 
delivery of Decent Homes by March 2010.  This target was met in December 2008 and since 
that time CBH has had a general investment programme based upon stock condition data and 
stock investment software which jointly inform the need to spend. In broad terms this can be 
summarised under the following headings: 
� A Neighbourhood Works programme delivering environmental improvements to blocks. 
� Works to void properties, including a small number of major voids. 
� Investment in non-traditional housing to maintain its integrity. 
� Works to improve the insulation standards in properties. 
� The provision of level access showers and other aids & adaptations. 
� Works to building fabric- maintenance of walls and roofs. 
� Structural works as and when needs arise. 
� Replacement of boilers and heating systems. 
� The replacement of windows and doors. 
� The testing and removal of asbestos where required. 
� Upgrading and replacement of lifts to sheltered housing schemes. 
� The replacement of door entry systems. 
� Fire protection works as required. 
� Maintenance of digital aerial systems to communal blocks. 
� Electrical testing, upgrades and rewires. 
� The completion of decent homes works to any omitted properties. 
� The provision of transformational improvements to properties within St Paul’s regeneration 

scheme. 
 
Through a software programme (PIMMS 4 Communities) CBH is able to forecast the total need 
to spend over a 30-Year period.  This is detailed in full in the Asset Management Plan and is 
supplemented by additional expenditure for items included above but outside of the capacity of 
the PIMMS calculation.  
 
Over the next 30 years the need to spend totals £162m which is covered by funding available to 
CBH under the HRA Business Plan.  
 
 
4.2 HRA Business Plan headroom  
 
From April 2012 there will be significant changes to the HRA and new challenges for CBC and 
CBH.  It is currently estimated that the HRA reform will generate capital for additional 

Page 98



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 12 

investment over the next ten years. CBC and CBH have been jointly reviewing in a broad sense 
the options for utilising this available finance over coming years. 
 
It has been generally agreed that there are three key themes for this investment, being: 
� The maintenance of a programme for new build homes to address housing need in the 

Borough. 
� The provision of additional funding to invest in existing housing stock. 
� The enhancement of Neighbourhood Services through new initiatives.. 
 
 
4.3 New build homes 
 
CBH has successfully delivered the first new homes development of 16 units at Brighton Road 
and is on site with a further 48 new homes within the St Paul’s regeneration project.  Despite 
the setback of not securing Social Housing Grant from the Homes and Communities Agency 
(HCA) in the recent funding round, CBC and CBH remain committed to delivering the balance of 
the regeneration scheme at St Paul’s (Phase 2) and concluding the replacement of defective 
Tarran bungalows by redeveloping Cakebridge Place.   
 
In addition there are currently four garage sites with planning consent for redevelopment under 
the garage site rationalisation programme. 
 
CBH has now been mandated to review options for these sites and to consider alternative 
funding arrangements to capital grant from the HCA. CBH will report back to CBC in January 
2012 with proposals for further consideration. 
 
CBH also has a mandate to liaise with developers looking at other CBC land assets, with a view 
to fulfilling the role of social housing provider or manager. Option reviews will again be carried 
out for discussion with CBC as above.  
 
 
4.4 Further investment in existing housing stock 
 
A key aspect of the consideration being given to programme options is the increasing 
prevalence of fuel poverty, as energy prices continue to rise with significant increases forecast 
for the future. CBH is currently reviewing the optimum methodology for addressing fuel poverty, 
including the opportunities provided through the adoption of renewable  technologies. 
 
CBH recognises that some of the current sheltered housing stock is suffering from low demand 
arising from its bedsit nature. Conversion to  flats is an expensive option and would result in an 
overall loss of units. CBH will however need to address the occurrence of bedsits within  three 
of the sheltered schemes within the near future.  
 
Whilst the worst of the non-traditional stock is being addressed through the redevelopment of 
the Tarran bungalow sites at Brighton Road and Cakebridge Place, there remain a core of 
‘Cornish’ non-traditional properties that will require significant investment within the life of the 
current investment plan. This is most likely to take the form of a standard works programme for 
Precast Reinforced Concrete (PRC) homes.  
 
Whilst the Neighbourhood Works programme has addressed (and will continue to address) the 
external environment of blocks of properties, there are estate-based homes that also merit 
environmental improvements. The Transformational Improvements at St Paul’s will provide a 
demonstration of the benefits to be gained from such investment and will help inform investment 
decisions for other areas.  
 

Page 99



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 13 

5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Below are general descriptions of key housing risks, as identified by the Housing Working 
Group. Many of these risks are shared with our ALMO. Details against these can be found in 
Section 6 of the associated information pack. 
 
 
Localism Bill  
� Allocations and Transfers 
If existing tenants are to be given priority outside of the allocations system our ability to make 
best use of stock to meet housing need and support stronger communities may be detrimentally 
affected 
� Flexible tenancies 
Fixed term tenancies may create a range of issues such as disincentivising households to 
improve their financial situation, generating more demand for social housing from those coming 
to the end of their fixed term tenancies, increasing homelessness, and producing bureaucratic 
and costly challenges for Registered Providers (RP’s) in enforcing the termination of these 
tenancies 
 
As the localism bill is still in development, there is a risk to the local authority in setting its 
strategic direction or policy whilst there is an opportunity for emerging legislation to change it. 
 
Affordable Homes Programme 
� Affordable rents 
If affordable rents on new build and % conversion rates from social rents to affordable rents are 
calculated without sufficient regard to local market forces, there is a heightened risk of 
households experiencing affordability issues, falling into arrears and becoming homeless. RPs 
may experience an increase in void times, with a resulting loss in revenue, plus an increased 
risk of crime/anti-social behaviour in these areas.  
� New Build 
RPs are not obliged to generate new build in this district using any increase in revenue they 
receive from affordable rents. Market forces may put pressure on them to finance new build 
outside the district.   
 
Welfare Reform 
� Local Housing Allowance changes 
If existing tenants that are to be affected by the changes are not aware of the impact on them 
and their requirements than we will see an increase in people struggling to afford their 
properties and conversely an increase in debt issues and homelessness cases 
� Affordability of the Private Rented Sector 
Changes to the LHA and other welfare reforms will lead to private rented accommodation 
becoming less affordable and less accessible. This will create more demand for social housing 
and will lead to increased homelessness and use of temporary accommodation, leading to 
increased financial costs to the Local Authority 
� The implementation of the Universal Credit 
This will heighten the risk of vulnerable households mismanaging their financial affairs, as lump 
sum payments will be made directly to them. It is expected that all will have access to basic 
bank accounts. 
� Changes to HB calculations  
Changes on bedroom entitlement in the social housing sector will lead to accommodation being 
less affordable for those under-occupying social housing 
� Houses in multiple occupancy 
There is likely to be an increase in houses of multiple occupation as under 35s become affected 
by the single room rent, which heightens the risk of lower accommodation standards within the 
district 
 

Page 100



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 14 

Low income households who do manage to access private rented accommodation are more 
likely to be forced into poorer standard accommodation, which will be compounded further by 
the loss of Private Sector Renewal Funding 
 
Self-financing 
� DCLG reserves the power to re-open the settlement in the future but says it will only be used 

if there is a major change in policy which would have a substantial, material impact on the 
value of the business. 

� There are significant treasury management implications arising from these proposals and it 
is essential that early advice on funding decisions is obtained.  

� Rental income is still subject to Government policy. The surpluses shown are primarily 
driven by rent increase assumptions in line with current policy. 

 
Supporting People 
The failure to agree a county wide approach to implementing the strategy would result in an 
inability to manage the budget pressures and result in reduction of services and/or failure to 
provide appropriate and integrated housing related support services which would then impact 
disproportionately on the most vulnerable members of our community and may increase 
demand on homelessness budget. 
 
 

Page 101



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 15 

6 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
 
We wish our plan to be informed by the opinions of our tenants and other stakeholder partners. 
A wide ranging consultation exercise will be undertaken in the development of this Business 
Plan over a period of two months in late 2011. Feedback from this will then be used in the 
preparation of our final HRA Business Plan to be published in February 2012. 
 
Involving people in the decisions we make which affect them is important to us. Council tenants 
have played a key role in the set up and the continuing successful development of CBH, helping 
the ALMO to achieve recognition as a ‘3 star excellent’ organisation.  
 
 
6.1 tenants and the development of this business plan 
 
During October and November 2011, CBH will use a wide range of tenant consultation methods 
in order to raise awareness of the new self financing model and to obtain local views regarding 
new services and support provisions. This will support the development of the HRA Business 
Plan.   
 
CBHNews, a quarterly newsletter sent to all tenants has already raised awareness about the 
development of the HRA Business Plan, the changes to the subsidy system and what this may 
mean for tenants. It also introduced the idea of tenant participation in designing the response to 
these changes.  
 
Further awareness raising will take place through flyers, our website and meetings promoting 
the proposed events and ensuring everyone understands where, when and why CBH are 
consulting on the HRA Business Plan. In addition we will feedback to tenants relevant 
information after the events. 
 
Aims 
� To capture feedback and engage with a wide audience including ‘need to reach’ groups (for 

example, younger people)  
� To capture honest, unbiased opinion directly from CBC tenants in a relaxed, comfortable 

environment  
� To be able to go to the tenants rather than the tenants coming to CBH.  
 
6.1.1 Consultation methods and locations 
During this process CBH will provide a range of opportunities to engage with tenants, enabling 
tenants to have a say on future services and investment. The consultation will provide a 
consistent approach and will strive to engage the highest numbers of participants possible.  
 
To make best use of the consultation this exercise will be looked upon as an opportunity to 
gather information beyond that required for the HRA Consultation.  This will also be an 
opportunity to: 
� Collect up to date personal information on our customers to support the next stage of work 

to ensure CBH achieve our target of 90% customer data  
� Raise awareness of Community Services activities and events  
 
In order to engage with high numbers and ‘need to reach’ groups CBH will to need to make use 
of means other than the regular Community Involvement events during October and December. 
Proposed activities include:  
� CBH Surveys (Repair & Community Involvement*)  
� Neighbourhood Meetings 
� Community Development events* 
� Community Representatives to survey their local areas* 

Page 102



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 16 

� Working groups 
� Focus groups* 
� Learning curve workshops 
� Receptions areas*  
� Community House & Hub  
� Website* 
� Telephone surveys*  
� Public events*  
� Community Centres*  
� Customer Excellence Group (CEG) 
 
*extra consultation methods 
 
6.1.2 Timescales 
To be carried out during the months of October and November to ensure there is an overlap 
with the school half term holidays and CBH and CBC Committee dates.  
 
The end date for all consultation, allowing time for consolidation of results will be December 
2011.  
 
6.1.4 Staffing 
To ensure the successful delivery of the HRA consultation events it is anticipated that the CBH 
Community Involvement Team will lead with the support of the Tenant Participation Advisory 
Service (TPAS). Each event or session will be fully supported by members of CBH staff from a 
cross section of CBH teams. The number of staff required will vary depending on individual 
events and  locations.   
 
6.1.5 The Results 
The responses from all surveys and events undertaken will be collated, analysed and feedback 
into the development of the HRA Business Plan.  
 

Page 103



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 17 

7 MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
 
The HRA Business Plan will be monitored quarterly, looking at variations against budgets and 
reviewed annually, generating a report for the council. It is anticipated that it will require 
substantial review after three years followed by further reviews every five years.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

2 3 

4 

CBH annual 
review 

CBH quarter 1 
monitoring 

CBH quarter 2 
monitoring  

CBH quarter 3 
monitoring 

CBC annual 
report 

 
HRA 

monitoring 

Page 104



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

   

 18 

8 CONCLUSIONS 
 
 
Our emerging strategy is to use additional resources in three ways: 
 
� New Build - we will ask our managing agent, Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH) to identify 

delivery models for the provision of new housing at St Paul’s Phase 2, Cakebridge Place 
and various garage sites. Our aim is to establish a continuous programme of new build, 
recognising that the scale of that programme may be restrained by availability of land and 
affordability. 

� Existing Stock - our priorities will include: measures to address fuel poverty, the 
improvement of external areas through a continuation of the neighbourhood works 
programme, a review of sheltered housing. 

� Services to tenants - CBH will be requested to invest in further community services to 
address issues of anti-social behaviour, financial exclusion, vulnerability and unemployment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



DRAFT HRA Business Plan Summary 2012 to 2042 

    19 

APPENDIX 1 CBC HRA PROJECTIONS 2012/13 TO 2041/42 
 
 
 

Key assumption - All surplus resources, after meeting essential investment 
needs, used to repay debt 

                    

                               
Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

 2012/13                             2041/42 
Revenue Account £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
                               
Rents 17,651 18,743 18,975 19,580 20,145 20,727 21,325 22,363 22,574 23,226 23,897 24,586 25,782 26,026 26,777 27,550 28,345 29,163 30,582 30,870 31,761 32,677 33,620 35,255 35,588 36,615 37,671 38,757 39,875 41,025 
Interest receivable 47 39 39 40 38 38 37 37 37 37 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 153 322 502 693 896 1,126 1,383 1,654 1,941 2,244 2,563 
Other income 1,154 1,183 1,213 1,243 1,274 1,306 1,339 1,372 1,406 1,442 1,478 1,514 1,552 1,591 1,630 1,672 1,713 1,756 1,800 1,845 1,891 1,939 1,987 2,037 2,088 2,140 2,193 2,248 2,304 2,362 
                               
Gross income 18,852 19,965 20,227 20,863 21,457 22,071 22,701 23,772 24,017 24,705 25,413 26,138 27,372 27,655 28,445 29,260 30,096 30,957 32,420 32,868 33,974 35,118 36,300 38,188 38,802 40,138 41,518 42,946 44,423 45,950 
                               
Management 6,197 6,303 6,410 6,500 6,532 6,695 6,863 7,034 7,210 7,390 7,575 7,764 7,959 8,158 8,361 8,570 8,785 9,004 9,229 9,460 9,697 9,939 10,188 10,442 10,703 10,971 11,245 11,526 11,814 12,110 
Maintenance 4,012 4,072 4,133 4,237 4,343 4,451 4,563 4,677 4,794 4,914 5,036 5,162 5,291 5,424 5,559 5,698 5,841 5,987 6,136 6,290 6,447 6,608 6,773 6,943 7,116 7,294 7,476 7,663 7,855 8,051 
Bad debt provision 225 275 368 379 392 403 415 426 439 451 465 478 492 516 521 536 551 567 583 612 617 635 654 672 705 712 732 753 775 798 
Other 156 121 102 83 88 98 100 102 104 107 109 111 114 116 119 122 124 127 130 133 136 139 142 145 149 152 155 159 162 166 
Depreciation 4,820 4,941 5,064 5,191 5,320 5,453 5,590 5,729 5,872 6,020 6,170 6,324 6,482 6,644 6,811 6,981 7,155 7,334 7,518 7,705 7,898 8,095 8,298 8,505 8,718 8,936 9,159 9,388 9,623 9,864 
Interest payable 2,545 2,478 2,399 2,320 2,265 2,232 2,192 2,133 2,064 1,959 1,805 1,633 1,432 1,210 991 764 516 244 51 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Capital contribution 0 0 0 382 1,884 1,933 1,984 2,036 2,090 598 616 634 652 671 1,272 1,306 1,341 1,377 1,414 1,140 1,171 1,203 1,236 1,269 0 0 0 0 0 0 
                               
Gross costs 17,955 18,190 18,476 19,092 20,824 21,265 21,707 22,137 22,573 21,439 21,776 22,106 22,422 22,739 23,634 23,977 24,313 24,640 25,061 25,340 25,966 26,619 27,291 27,976 27,391 28,065 28,767 29,489 30,229 30,989 
                               
Surplus 897 1,775 1,751 1,771 633 806 994 1,635 1,444 3,266 3,637 4,032 4,950 4,916 4,811 5,283 5,783 6,317 7,359 7,528 8,008 8,499 9,009 10,212 11,411 12,073 12,751 13,457 14,194 14,961 
HRA reserve b/fwd 1,897 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 6,785 14,313 22,321 30,820 39,829 50,041 61,452 73,525 86,276 99,733 113,927 
 2,794 3,275 3,251 3,271 2,133 2,306 2,494 3,135 2,944 4,766 5,137 5,532 6,450 6,416 6,311 6,783 7,283 7,817 8,859 14,313 22,321 30,820 39,829 50,041 61,452 73,525 86,276 99,733 113,927 128,888 
Debt repayment -1,294 -1,775 -1,751 -1,771 -633 -806 -994 -1,635 -1,444 -3,266 -3,637 -4,032 -4,950 -4,916 -4,811 -5,283 -5,783 -6,317 -2,074 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
HRA reserve c/fwd 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 6,785 14,313 22,321 30,820 39,829 50,041 61,452 73,525 86,276 99,733 113,927 128,888 
 
 
 
 

P
age 106



 

   

$h5rajrdr.doc Page 1 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 October 2011 

Advice and Inclusion Contract 
 

Accountable member Councillor John Webster, Cabinet Member Finance & Community 
Development 

Accountable officer Martin Stacy, Housing & Communities Manager 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Social & Community 

Ward(s) affected All  
Key Decision Yes   
Executive summary The Council’s Single Advice Contract with the Citizens’ Advice Bureau 

expires on 31st March 2012. This provides the Council with an opportunity to 
review the outcomes and service specification to ensure we are best able to 
meet the needs of Cheltenham residents most affected by the changes 
being brought about to the welfare benefits system.  
The proposed way forward is supported by Officers and Members of the 
Housing Review Group. 

Recommendations To authorise the Director of Built Environment to re-tender this 
contract, as the ‘Advice & Inclusion Contract’, for a term of 3 years 
from April 1st 2012, plus a further 2 years, subject to satisfactory 
performance and available finance.  

 
Financial implications Funding at the current level of £155,000 is built into the council’s medium 

term financial strategy. If the new contract terms outlined in paragraph 3.1 
of this report are approved, there will be an annual budget saving of 
£25,000, which will be built into the medium term financial strategy as part 
of the 2012/13 budget setting process.  
Re-tendering of the Advice & Inclusion Contract will be a financial 
commitment for a period of 3 years, plus a further 2 years, subject to 
satisfactory performance of the Provider(s).   
Contact officer: Sarah Didcote,                 
sarah.didcote @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264125 

Agenda Item 9
Page 107



 

   

$h5rajrdr.doc Page 2 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Legal implications The existing Single Advice Contract does not need to be formally 
terminated, as it will expire on 31st March 2012. Any new contract awarded 
will go through the normal tendering process in accordance with the 
Council’s contract procedure rules, within the timelines specified in this 
Report.  
Contact officer:  Donna Ruck, Solicitor 
Donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01242 272696 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None. 
 

Key risks The risks are set out in the risk matrix, Appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

One of our key corporate objectives is to strengthen communities. Re-
tendering this contract with a new service specification will support this 
objective. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 

1. Background 
1.1 Cheltenham Borough Council currently has a Single Advice Contract with the Citizens’ Advice 

Bureau to deliver Debt Advice, Benefit Take-Up Advice, Housing Advice to the single homeless, 
along with advice and assistance to Cheltenham residents about their rights in respect of these 
matters. 

1.2 The existing contract expires on 31st March 2012, giving the Council the opportunity to re-tender 
the service, but also  to review the service specification in light of the proposed changes outlined 
in the Welfare Reform Bill and Local Housing Allowance Regulations. More detail about the 
changes is outlined in Appendix 2. In summary, they are likely to lead to: 
• Private rented accommodation and some social housing becoming less affordable for low-

income households; 
•  

More challenges on benefits decisions, as households are assessed and move onto 
benefits which are less favourable financially; 

• A greater reliance on individuals managing their benefits and financial affairs better 
themselves, through the introduction of Universal Credit. This will have a greater impact 
on our most vulnerable residents. 

1.3 The impact of these changes have been considered by the Housing Review Group, with a 
recommendation being to ensure that any negative impacts are mitigated by the future Advice & 
Inclusion Contract.   
 
 
 

Page 108



 

   

$h5rajrdr.doc Page 3 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

2. Outcomes 
2.1 Key outcomes identified within the proposed Advice and Inclusion Contract are as follows: 

• To prevent homelessness; 
• To reduce debt; 
• To prevent future debt arising (through the provision of financial inclusion and financial 

capability work); 
• To ensure the rights of individuals are protected (in respect of benefits, debt and housing); 

and  
• To ensure that our most vulnerable residents are adequately supported in securing their 

rights.  
2.2 These outcomes are complemented by a Statement on the Council’s vision, aims and priorities, 

as detailed within the Service Requirements and Specification document. Please see Appendix 
3.   

3. Financing the Contract and Maintaining Local Priorities 
3.1 Budgetary pressures on the Council mean that any proposed contract will see a reduction of 

£25,000/year, reducing the value of the contract to approximately £130,000/year. The proposed 
contract will run for 3 years, with potential for a further 2 years, subject to satisfactory 
performance and available finance.   

3.2 In order for the Council to retain its focus on achieving the outcomes stated in paragraph 3.1 
against a reduced budget, we propose the following changes to the original Contract 
Specification: 
• Debt advice will be restricted to those with a housing related debt issue (i.e. rent or 

mortgage arrears) as part of their overall debt; 
• There will be a strong focus on debt prevention work (i.e. tackling financial exclusion and 

improving financial capability), but that this will be restricted only to those seeking advice 
on their existing debt and/or benefits issues; 

• Any duplication in the provision of Housing Options Advice to single homeless people is 
removed from the contract specification. Currently, both the Council’s Housing Options 
Service at Cheltenham First Stop and the Citizens’ Advice Bureau provide this service;   

• Greater emphasis will be placed on supporting the needs of vulnerable people;  
• Core opening hours will be reduced from 9am-5pm to 10am-4pm, Monday – Friday. 

 

4. Timeline 
4.1 Provided the re-tendering of this contract is approved, it is necessary to ensure that the 

successful provider(s) are notified of the outcome by the end of December 2011. This is to 
ensure that there is sufficient time for transitional arrangements to be in place by the start of the 
contract on April 1st, should there be a change in provider.   

4.2 It is proposed that the Evaluation Panel will comprise, Cllr John Webster, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Community Development; Cllr Klara Sudbury, Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Safety; Mike Redman, Director of Built Environment; Martin Stacy Housing & Communities 
Manager and Sarah Didcote, Group Accountant. 

Page 109



 

   

$h5rajrdr.doc Page 4 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

4.3 Further details of key processes to follow, against timelines, is found in Appendix 4.  
5. Alternative options considered 
5.1 Three alternative options have been considered:  

� 1. To integrate the Cheltenham Advice Contract within a County-wide Single Advice 
Contract. Whilst a county-wide approach to delivering advice services is still favoured in 
principle, the conditions for entering into such a contract at this time is not considered to 
be in the best interests of Cheltenham residents. A number of factors contributed to this 
conclusion, including the differences between the length of time the County Council were 
able commit to funding their Advice Contract; uncertainty over the commitment of other 
District Authorities at this time; uncertainty over whether a Grant or a tendered Contract 
would be the final way forward for the County; and a potential variance between the 
Council and the County over the contract/grant specification details. Given these 
uncertainties, it was considered necessary for Cheltenham Borough Council to set in 
motion the re-tendering of its own contract for Cheltenham, in view of the remaining 
timescales and the need to have a service in place by April 1st 2012. 

� 2. To issue a grant instead of a contract. This was rejected on the basis of the need to 
demonstrate that value for money will be achieved in the delivery of the service 
specification, as well as to ensure that the successful provider(s) can ultimately be held 
accountable, by terminating the contract, should there be unsatisfactory performance 
which cannot be resolved by other means.   

� 3. To provide the full specified service in-house. This was rejected on the basis of the 
significant potential for ‘added value’ which it is believed can be achieved through 
contracting this service out to an external provider.  

6. Consultation and feedback 
6.1 Consultation has taken place with the Citizens’ Advice Bureau, County Community Projects, 

Cheltenham Housing Aid Centre and Shelter. All agree the proposed service specification as a 
reasonable way forward, in light of the welfare reform changes and potential financial cuts to the 
contract.  

6.2 Wider consultation has also been carried out with the Third Sector, via GAVCA, on the proposed 
service requirements for the new contract. No concerns have been raised by this Sector..  

6.3 Consultation has also been carried out with Officers and Members of the Council’s Housing 
Review Group. This Review Group supports the proposals.   

 

Report author Contact officer: Martin Stacy, Housing and Communities Manager 
martin.stacy@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 775213 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Summary of Benefit Changes 
3. Service Requirements and Specification 
4. Timeline for Re-tendering the Contract 

 

Page 110



 

   
$h5rajrdr.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If the proposal to re-tender the 
Advice & Inclusion Contract, 
along with a new service 
specification is not agreed, this 
is likely to lead to more 
residents, particularly vulnerable 
households, being incapable of 
managing their financial affairs 
adequately, falling into debt 
and/or becoming homeless. This 
is also likely to put significantly 
increased pressures on the 
Housing Options Team and 
other services. In particular, it is 
likely to lead to the increased 
use of inappropriate temporary 
accommodation, such as Bed & 
Breakfast, at additional financial 
cost to the Council. 

 

MSt 14.9.11 3 4 12 Reduce Seek to bring about a 
collaborative approach 
amongst key Providers to 
tacking the worst effects 
of the changes 

April 
2012 

MSt  

 

P
age 111



Page 112
This page is intentionally left blank



 

Welfare Reform - Timetable for change                                   Appendix 2 
 

 
 

From April 2011 
 

 

Baby premium and child tax credits baby addition both ending for children under one. 
 
 

Non dependant deductions start to significantly increase –by 2014 they will be the rate they 
would have been in 2001 (when frozen) plus annual inflationary increases – Approx 300 
customers affected by this change. 
 
 

Local Housing Allowance (LHA) capped at four bedroom rate – 11 customers will be affected, 
but they will receive transitional protection  
 
 

LHA capped values introduced for each type of property  
– Cheltenham not affected as our LHA rates are well below the capped figures 
 

 

LHA cash back of up to £15.00 per week stops for new customers. 
 (money given to customer on top of rent if they found a property cheaper than the LHA rate)  
 
LHA rates (maximum values for benefit) reduced for new customers – Prior to April they could 
rent a property in the bottom 50% of all properties available to rent for their family needs. After 
April they can only rent a property in the bottom 30% of private sector rents. 
 

 

Existing LHA customers fall under new LHA scheme on their rent anniversary date after April 
2011. 
• They will lose any cash back from the Anniversary date   - 700 approx affected  
• Get nine months transitional protection if they are worse off – 1,000 approx affected  
• If landlord reduces rent to new level in order for customer to stay then we will pay benefit 

direct to LL  
• Increasing the discretionary housing fund to help tenants move to cheaper 

accommodation.  
 

 

Incapacity benefit customers will start to be reviewed under the new Employment & Support 
allowance scheme, which may include a work capability assessment to establish if they are fit 
for full or part-time work. Transitional protection scheme as a significant number are anticipated 
to be worse off  
 

 
Job centre adopting new work programme. They will have a set period to get the customer ‘work 
ready’ which involves work clubs, voluntary work, work placements, support etc. At the end of 
the period the customer is passed onto a private company for two years who are paid based on 
the number of people they find employment. Tougher rules on actively looking for work and set 
sanctions/ suspensions periods if they don’t.  
 
 

Basic and 30hr elements in Working tax credits are frozen for three years 
Proportion of child care costs covered by WTC reduced from 80% to 70% 
 

 

Freezing the max Savings credit award in pension credit for four years  
 
 

Shared room rate in LHA scheme extended from 25 to under 35 year olds  
from January 2012 for new customers. 
 
Existing customers are protected until their next annual rent review. Will be approx £40 per 
week worse off if in a one bedroom property. -Approx  250 affected by this change  

Page 113



 

Proposed changes for  April 2012 
 

 

Means testing of contribution-based Employment & Support Allowance after one year, if the 
ESA payment includes a work-related element  
 
 

 

Couples with children must work 24 hours between then (one must do 16hrs ) to get Working 
tax credits 
 

 

Increase the child element of child tax credits by £50 
 

 

Stop paying Disability Living Allowance for people in residential care  
 

 

Proposed changes for April 2013 
 

 

LHA rates based on Consumer price index and only updated annually 
 
 

Transfer of crisis loans and community care grants for living expenses to local authorities 
 
 

Under occupancy restrictions in social housing to mirror private sector restrictions e.g. rent 
benefit paid based on the number of bedrooms the customer needs not what they have. 
 

 

Replacing Disability Living Allowance payments with a Personal Independence Payment for 
new and existing customers. Some savings will be made as a result of people being found fit for 
work under the incapacity review. The new PIP payment may involve a medical assessment 
and some payments may be for fixed periods with regular medical reviews depending on the 
illness 

 

 

Local authorities will be asked to make deductions from the Housing benefit payments if the 
customers overall out of work benefits exceed the average weekly wage for working families. In 
Cheltenham this will probably only affect large families who are not in work and are privately 
renting     
 

 

Universal credit proposed timetable 2013 to 2017 
 

 

April 2013 
 

Possible Pilot of Universal credit  
 

 

October 2013 
 

New claims for out of work benefits will be paid under Universal credit 
- One monthly payment direct to customer including rent benefit 
 

 

April 2014  
 

New claims for Tax credits will be paid under Universal credit  
 

 

April 2014 to Oct 
2017 

 

Existing benefit claims will be transferred over to Universal credit in 
batches depending on the type of client.  
 

 

 October 2014  
 

New claims for Pension credit will include housing costs and probably 
paid monthly.  
 

 

October 2014 to Oct 
2019 
 

 

Existing Pensioners getting help with housing costs transferred over to 
Pension credit in batches. 
 

 

April 2015  
 

Review of face to face delivery of Universal credit and possible contracts 
issued for delivery of this service  
 

 
 

Page 114



 

 

         Appendix 3 
1. Service Requirements 
  
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vision 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council’s (CBC’s) vision is to secure an  integrated 
borough wide service that delivers quality advice, assistance and support to 
Cheltenham residents in respect of: 
  
- Debt (where housing-related debt forms part of the overall debt);   
- Debt prevention, through the provision of Financial Inclusion and 

Financial Capability work; 
- Benefit Take-Up and Benefit Rights; 
- Housing Rights and Homelessness Prevention. 

 
 
Aims 
 
CBC will ensure that households most affected by the changes proposed in the 
Welfare Reform Bill and the Localism Bill are advised and, where required, 
supported through these changes, in order to minimise any potentially adverse 
impacts, such as debt and homelessness. It is considered that vulnerable 
households in particular will be susceptible to any negative impacts.  
 
 
Priorities 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council will ensure its vision and aims are aligned to the 
following priorities:- 
 

-      Providing a key focus on debt prevention and homelessness prevention.       
CBC considers that the provision of preventative services is more cost 
effective than tackling issues at the point of crisis, and that this will be 
beneficial for Cheltenham residents and communities at large; 

  
- Ensuring there is a holistic assessment of a household’s needs. Debt, 

financial exclusion and poor financial capability, along with benefits 
issues and risks to housing, are usually inextricably linked. It will be 
expected that advice, assistance and support will be delivered 
holistically for households experiencing a combination of debt, benefit 
and housing issues; 

 
- Ensuring that the rights of individuals and families in respect of debt, 

benefit take-up and housing, are protected through the provision of 
advice, representation and advocacy; 

 
- Recognising that whilst many households will be able to deal with their 

own issues themselves once they have received information, others – 
particularly vulnerable groups and those with complex issues - will 
require ongoing assistance and support, until their case has reached a 
resolution. For the purposes of the specification attached (Appendix A), 
vulnerability is considered to apply to anyone who would be unable to 
resolve their affairs adequately on the basis of being given information 
alone.  Emphasis is placed on vulnerable groups because the 

Page 115



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 

consequences of these households failing to act properly on information 
given is likely to have adverse consequences, not only for the 
households concerned, but also for the community and other services at 
large; 

 
- Ensuring the availability and accessibility of relevant advice and support 

services; 
 

- Facilitating awareness through education and publicity of the availability 
of these services to all service users and potential service users and 
groups. 

 
Outcomes 
 
Our key target outcomes are therefore to: 
 
• Prevent homelessness; 
• Reduce debt problems; 
• Prevent future unsustainable debt issues arising; 
• Maximise incomes;  
• Ensure the rights of individuals are protected; 
• Ensure vulnerable residents are supported in securing their rights and 

other outcomes, as highlighted above.  
 
 
 
  
 
 

  

Page 116



 

 

Advice and Inclusion Contract – Service specification and management 
information requirement 

  
Activity PI Period 
1. Debt Advice and Advocacy 
To provide advice, assistance, support  (when required) and/or representation on 
all matters relating to debt –  where housing-related debt forms part of the overall 
debt -  including negotiation with creditors, arranging for debt to be set aside, 
representation in court proceedings and tribunals and in seeking to obtain financial 
assistance for them. 
 
To secure finance, where appropriate, from charities and other relevant agencies 
 
To ensure incomes are maximised for debt clients through Benefit Take-Up advice 
and assistance.  
 
Explanatory Notes for the PIs: 
 
 
 
4. A vulnerable person is considered to be an individual who would be unable to 
deal adequately with his or her enquiry on the basis of information being provided 
alone. The Council will agree with the Provider an approved method for identifying 
vulnerable households at the outset.  
 
5. This measures other complex cases which do not involve vulnerable groups. A 
complex case is one which requires the ongoing work of a specialist caseworker, 
rather than a simple, short ‘one-off’ interview.  
 
 

Key outcomes highlighted in bold 
 
Total number of individuals approaching the 
service with an issue. (Closed cases only). 
 
Of which:  
 
1. Number given basic advice/information;  
 
2. Number of referrals made; 
 
3. Number of straight signposting cases.  
 
Complex & Vulnerable cases: 
 
4. Number of individuals identified as 
‘vulnerable’  
 
 
 
5. Number of individuals with a complex 
case 
 
Total income gained (including Benefit 
Take-Up) and/or debt set aside. 
 
Of which, number of clients who were 
vulnerable or had a complex case 

 
Quarterly 
unless 
stated 
otherwise 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
P

age 117



 

 

 
 
 
 
Commentary to be provided 
Report on trends, issues arising, likely future pressure points and anticipated 
responses. Collaborative working opportunities pursued and future opportunities 
identified. 

 
Total number of clients who maintain 
regular payment plan (for min. 3 months) 
 
Of which, number who were vulnerable or 
had a complex case 
 
Reasons for unsuccessful outcomes and 
actions to be taken to mitigate in future.  
 
Report  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually 

2. Benefit Take-Up Advice & Representation/Advocacy PI  Period 
To provide advice, assistance and support (when required) in claiming all available 
benefits (for all other non-debt related inquiries).  
 
To seek to maximise the income of clients and to liaise with relevant benefit 
agencies.  
 
To support and represent claimants through tribunals and appeals processes.. 
 
Explanatory Notes  
 
As above, unless indicated separately below 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total number of individuals approaching the 
service with an issue. 
 
Of which:  
 
1. Number given basic advice/information;  
 
2. Number of referrals;  
 
3. Number of straight signposting cases; 
 
4. Number of individuals who are vulnerable;  
 
5. Number of individuals with a complex 
case.  
 
 

Quarterly, 
unless 
otherwise 
stated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 118



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commentary to be provided on the types of benefit being unclaimed, the  
household types under-claiming, priorities for Cheltenham in terms of awareness 
raising, and potential publicity campaigns, etc, along with collaborative working 
opportunities explored during the year and identified for the coming year.  
 

Total benefit gained. 
Of which benefit gained for vulnerable 
clients and those with a complex case 
 
Total number of reviews, appeals, tribunal 
hearings 
 
Successful reviews, appeals, tribunals 
Of which number gained for vulnerable 
clients and those with a complex case 
 
Reasons for unsuccessful outcomes and 
actions to be taken to mitigate in future. 
 
Report 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually 
 
 
 
 

3. Financial Inclusion & Capability Assessment and Advice   
To assess, advise, assist and/or support (when required) households seeking debt 
advice (where housing-related debt is included as part of their overall debt) and/or 
benefit take-up advice in accessing basic financial services, including banking and 
personal credit, as appropriate.  
 
To advise, assist and/or support (when required) households in developing their 
knowledge and skills in order to improve their financial capability.   
 
To work collaboratively with other organisations to support the wider financial 
inclusion agenda around healthy eating and fuel poverty, etc. 
 
Explanatory Notes 

PIs 
 
Total number of individuals approaching the 
service with an issue. 
 
Of which:  
 
1. Number given basic advice/information;  
 
2. Number of referrals;  
 
3. Number of straight signposting cases; 

Quarterly, 
unless 
otherwise 
stated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 119



 

 

 
As stated above, unless identified separately below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commentary to be provided 
 
Report on trends, issues arising, likely future pressure points and anticipated 
responses. Collaborative working opportunities pursued and future opportunities 
identified – particularly around the wider financial capability agenda of healthy 
eating, tackling fuel poverty, etc. 

 
4. Number of individuals identified as 
vulnerable; 
 
5. Number of individuals with a complex 
case. 
 
Number who consider themselves to be 
financially capable upon conclusion of 
their case 
 
Of which were vulnerable or had a complex 
case 
 
Number gaining a basic bank account 
and/or an account with a recognised 
Credit Union, who were previously 
without one  
 
Reasons for unsuccessful outcomes and 
actions to be taken to mitigate in future.  
Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually 
 

4. Housing Rights and Homelessness Prevention 
To advise, assist and/or support households (when required) in understanding their 
housing rights and to enable these households to achieve a resolution.  
 
To challenge local decision makers, including the Local Housing Authority and 
other Housing Providers on all housing related matters, where those decisions 

PIs 
 
Total number of individuals approaching the 
service with an issue. Cases closed only. 
 

 
Quarterly, 
unless 
otherwise 
stated 

P
age 120



 

 

appear to the detriment of the individual, and where it is believed that the individual 
has an arguable case. This will include decisions made by Cheltenham Borough 
Council under Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996 (allocations), and decisions taken by 
Cheltenham Borough Council under Part 7 of the Housing Act 1996 
(homelessness).  
 
To represent and/or advocate for households (as appropriate) who are at risk of 
homelessness as a result of actions taken by relevant bodies and individuals, such 
as private landlords (e.g. illegal evictions, harassment), social landlords (e.g. 
decisions to serve notice) and mortgage providers.  
 
To provide advice, assistance and support (where required) to all tenants and 
landlords about their respective rights and responsibilities, and to negotiate in 
disputes. To assist tenants in dispute with their landlords and, with the tenant’s 
consent and where appropriate, to negotiate with landlords to try to resolve 
disputes amicably, so as to reduce the risk of tenants losing their homes. 
 
To be an active member (and to chair where required) relevant vehicles for 
accessing housing and related support services including, but not exclusively,  the 
SPA and SHOP organisations 
  
PI Explanatory Notes 
 
As above, unless stated otherwise 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Of which:  
 
1. Number given basic advice/information;  
 
2. Number of referrals;  
 
3. Number of straight signposting cases; 
 
4. Number of individuals identified as 
vulnerable;  
 
5. Number of individuals who are not 
vulnerable but are identified as having a 
complex case;  
 
Number of reviews on part 6 & 7 local 
authority decisions (formal and informal) 
 
Total number of decisions overturned by 
CBC  
 
Total number of challenges made to other 
housing providers/private landlords 
 
Total number of other successful 
resolutions for clients (broken down to 
vulnerable clients and those with a complex 
case) 
 
Total number of homelessness 
preventions achieved  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 121



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Commentary to be provided 
 
Report on key issues affecting households presenting to the service with issues 
around housing rights and potential homelessness resulting from the decisions of 
private landlords, the local housing authority and other housing providers. Identify 
existing and likely future pressure points, along with collaborative working 
opportunities achieved in the previous year and sought in the following year. 
 

Of which, number of clients who were either 
vulnerable or had a complex case 
 
Reasons for unsuccessful outcomes and 
actions to be taken to mitigate in future.  
 
 
Report  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually  
 

5. Other General Advice and Sign Posting 
To provide advice where appropriate, and sign post to specialist advisors or 
agencies where necessary, on all other issues, including but not restricted to family 
breakdown, domestic violence, loss of job, immigration and nationality, anti social 
behaviour and harassment. To identify and refer to appropriate agencies where 
eligible for service. 

No. of cases signposted. 
No. of referrals. 
 

Quarterly 

6.Monitoring, reporting and consultation 
To ensure that files, records and computer based data are maintained, for the 
period of the contract and for one year beyond that, for the purpose of providing 
accurate statistics whenever required. 
 
 
To submit Initial Needs Assessment and Outcome forms as required and as 
prescribed by the Council, and any other performance management framework 
required by the council, in respect of every client at such stages and within such 
timescales as determined by the Council. 
 

Statistics timely presented in the required 
format. 

 

On completion 

Within 10 
working 
days of 
request 
 
On 
completion 

P
age 122



 

 

To develop information sharing protocols with relevant agencies where this would 
ensure efficient and cost effective service delivery. 

Completed protocols in active use. Annually, or 
as required 

7. Customer Engagement and Customer Satisfaction    
To conduct customer engagement activities with service users and the community 
at large (via existing community engagement mechanisms) on all aspects of the 
services being delivered, on a continual basis, and to evidence that the results 
have been used to bring about improvements to the service (where required).  
 
 
Explanatory Notes for PIs 
 
Surveys completed at the time cases are closed, to include views from all service-
users, including vulnerable households and other communities, such as BME 
groups 
 
Questionnaire should assess satisfaction levels around, but not exclusively limited 
to: 
 
- General accessibility 
 
- Timescales in being seen by a specialist case worker 
 
- Satisfaction with the advice/assistance and/or support given 
 
This is to understand any issues around access failure (or otherwise) from those 
who do not engage with the service. This engagement can be achieved though 
existing community engagement mechanisms, e.g. community ambassadors, 
ethnic groups, other specialist community engagement forums, as appropriate.  
 

 
PIs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Surveys completed and report produced.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report will include any Customer 
Engagement with non-service users  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annually. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 123



 

 

The report will identify key areas of success, as well as improvement, complete 
with a SMART action plan  to address (where appropriate) any identified 
underperformance  
 
To allow the use of mystery shoppers – or any other such mechanism 
commissioned by Cheltenham Borough Council to obtain a separate understanding 
of any underlying issues affecting the service.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
Separate report commissioned by CBC 
 

 
 
 
  
When 
required 

8. Complaints   
 
Complaints will, in the first instance, be dealt with under the Provider’s complaints 
policy. Where a complainant remains dissatisfied at the end of stage 1 of the 
internal complaint, the complainant will have a right to complain directly to CBC (at 
stage 2 of CBC’s complaint’s policy).   
 

 
Number of complaints made 
Number upheld 
Number escalated to stage 2 and above 
Number upheld 

Quarterly 

9. General Service Requirements 
The Services must be provided or accessed from premises within Cheltenham town centre, which is served by public transport and, preferably, 
within easy walking distance of Cheltenham Borough Council’s main Housing Options Service. 
 
To provide the service between 10am – 4pm Monday to Friday to include a drop in service - service provision can be withdrawn for a weekly 
team meeting of one hour and a drop in service must be available at all other times.  
 
To offer a range of ways for service users to contact them – by telephone, in person or electronically – all of which are dealt with efficiently and 
effectively. 
The Contractor will be required to create and maintain a website which includes specified information and hyper-links to other sites with specific 
translation facilities. 
 
In consultation with the Council, to bid for external funds to enable additional advice and support services to be provided in Cheltenham.  
Evidence of this must be provided to the Council at the annual review.  
 

P
age 124



 

 

To provide a clear and well used procedure manual, which is reviewed and updated appropriately. 

To ensure advice services comply with quality assurance standards and to maintain a well established internal service monitoring scheme. 

To use well established, regularly reviewed and monitored protocols to liaise with appropriate partner agencies within the county council, 
primary care trust and criminal justice agencies.  
Working with the Council, Cheltenham Borough Homes and other relevant agencies via relevant forums to: 
- Develop good practice arrangements and effective referral mechanisms; 
- Identify gaps in service delivery; 
- Identify collaborative working opportunities; 
- Avoid duplication. 

 
To implement and promote a best practice complaints procedure which encourages feedback from service users and uses it to improve levels 
of service delivery. 
To review and amend the specification and/or monitoring information where both the Council and Provider jointly agree it is pertinent, for 
example, in response to emerging new priorities. 
9. Equal Opportunities 
To have in place and to review regularly policies and working practices to ensure that no aspect of the service discriminates against any 
person, or other organisation, on the grounds of race, ethnic origin, disability, nationality, gender, sexuality, age, class, appearance, religion, 
responsibility for dependants, unrelated criminal activities, being HIV positive or with AIDS, or any other matter which may cause a person to be 
treated with injustice. 
To ensure that all written communication is easy to understand and compliant with legislation and available in a variety of formats and other 
languages on request. 
To publicise its equal opportunities policy on the premises in public areas and interview rooms 

To ensure that any advice given orally is summarised and followed up in writing, with relevant advice leaflets and information enclosed 
whenever it is appropriate to do so and that all advice is recorded on the client’s computerised record. 
To ensure that adequate private interview space is made available for clients, which enables clients to be accompanied by a friend, relative, 
advocate and/ or interpreter if they so wish. 

P
age 125



 

 

To provide home visits to clients who are unable to attend normal advice sessions owing to disability or illness, wherever it is safe to do so and 
to publicise the availability of this service. 
 
The Contractor will be required to comply with all statutory provisions relating to the provision of the Service. 

To provide reasonable translation facilities to users of the Service including, as necessary, through Language Line or some similar service. 

To provide quarterly activity reports in a form specified by the Council within three weeks of the end of each quarter (i.e. 30th June, 30th 
September, 31st December, 31st March), such form to include after the first year, year-on-year comparisons. 
 
To provide an annual return in a form specified by the Council within four weeks of the 31st March in respect of the twelve month period ending 
that day.  

 
 

P
age 126



Angela CoxAngela CoxAngela CoxAngela Cox    
Single Advice Contract Single Advice Contract Single Advice Contract Single Advice Contract 2012201220122012    

                                                                                                                                            Appendix 4Appendix 4Appendix 4Appendix 4    
Tender TimetableTender TimetableTender TimetableTender Timetable    

Cheltenham Borough Council Cheltenham Borough Council Cheltenham Borough Council Cheltenham Borough Council Single AdviceSingle AdviceSingle AdviceSingle AdviceTender Tender Tender Tender     
    
 

DateDateDateDate    ActionActionActionAction    CompleteCompleteCompleteComplete    
�    

04/10/2011 Issue Non-Mandatory OJEU Notice   
(with subject to cabinet approval of re-

tendering included) 

 

By 18/10/2011 Expression of interest received   
18/10/2011 Cabinet Meeting to approve process  
19/10/2011 ITT out  
18/11/2011 ITT back    

w/c 21/11/2011 Evaluation & Supplier Short-listing  
w/c 28/11/2011 Supplier Presentations  

5/12/2011 Contract Award decision 
 

 

6/12/2011 Contract award confirmed to provider  
21/12/2011 15 day standstill period (final version of 

contract to winning supplier for signing) 
 

22/12/2011 Exchange of contracts  
01/04/2012   Contract start date  

 

Page 127



Page 128
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 1 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18th October 2011 

Budget Monitoring Report 2011/12 – position as at August 2011 
 
 

Accountable member Councillor John Webster, Cabinet Member for Finance and Community 
Development 

Accountable officer Paul Jones, Head of Financial Services 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary To update Members on the Council’s current financial position for 2011/12 

based on the monitoring exercise at the end of August 2011. The report 
covers the Council’s revenue, capital, treasury management and the 
housing revenue account. The report identifies any known significant 
variations (minimum £10,000) to the 2011/12 original budget and a position 
statement on major schemes. 

Recommendations 1. Note the contents of this report including the key projected 
variances to the original 2011/12 budget identified at this stage 
and the potential projected overspend of £476,400 for the 
financial year 2011/12. 

2. The current freeze on spending against supplies and service 
expenditure budgets, where possible, is continued until further 
notice. This will be factored into the revised 2011/12 budget. 

3. If, following the more detailed monitoring process currently 
being undertaken as part of the budget setting process for 
2012/13, the potential overspend is confirmed, take corrective 
action to ensure that the Council delivers services within the 
overall net budget for the year. 

 
Financial implications  As detailed throughout this report. 

Contact officer: Paul Jones,      paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 775154 

Legal implications None directly arising from the recommendations. The current legal position 
regarding Icelandic Banks is referred to in the report. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis,   Peter.Lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk,     
01684 272695 

Agenda Item 10
Page 129



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 2 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

Service Managers and the HR Advisors are continuing to work together to 
ensure vacancies are managed effectively. A request to recruit to a new or 
vacant post must be approved by the divisional Director. The decision to 
approve or reject the recruitment request is based on the business case 
outlining the impact on the service delivery and/or loss of income 
generation if the post were to remain unoccupied.  
Contact officer:   Julie McCarthy ,   
julie.mccarthy @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Key elements of the budget are aimed at delivering the corporate 
objectives within the Corporate Business Plan. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None. 

Page 130



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 3 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

1. Background 
1.1 This report provides the second monitoring position statement for the financial year 2011/12. The 

purpose of this report is to notify members of any known significant variations to budgets for 
2011/12 and highlight any key issues, allowing Members to take action if required. 

1.2 Financial Services carry out a regular budget monitoring exercise for services in liaison with 
Directors and cost centre managers.  This identifies any variations from the current approved 
budget that are anticipated to occur in the financial year.  The current approved budget is the 
original budget 2011/12 agreed by Council on the 8th February 2011, subject to any amendments 
made under delegated powers (for example supplementary estimates, virement, etc).  Possible 
significant variations to revenue budgets are outlined in this report. 

1.3 There is currently a freeze on spending against supplies and services budgets, where possible. 
This freeze should continue until further notice and any savings generated be incorporated into 
the 2011/12 revised budget, to partially offset the potential overspend detailed in table 2.1 below. 

2. Net revenue position 
2.1 The table below summarises the net impact of the variances identified at this stage in the financial 

year, projecting the position to the end of the financial year for all budget variances in excess of 
£10,000. A more detailed explanation of budget variances in excess of £50,000 are provided in 
paragraphs 2.2 to 3.10.  

Significant budget variances ( > £10,000) Overspend / 
(Underspend) 

£ 

para. ref: 

Employee costs  
Shortfall in salary savings target 80,000 2.2
Customer Services restructure savings (50,000) 2.3
  
Resources  
Misc. Properties – Additional Regent Arcade income 
iiiincome. 

(37,500) 
  
Wellbeing & Culture   
Town Hall – net shortfall in income 11,400 
Pump Rooms – net shortfall in income 13,100 
  
Built Environment  
Off Street car parking – shortfall of income 104,000 2.4
Building Control – shortfall of income 50,000 2.5
Strategic Planning – shortfall of income 15,500 
  
Operations  
Refuse Collection – shortfall of income 110,000 2.6

Page 131



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 4 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Recycling Centre/CA Site – surplus income (100,000) 2.7
Garden Waste Scheme – shortfall of income 306,000 2.8
  
Miscellaneous  
Utilities – savings from contract extension (50,000) 2.9
  
Treasury  
Interest – net surplus General Fund (23,000) 3.8
Interest – Item 8 General Fund shortfall 46,900 3.9
  
Total projected overspend  476,400 

 
2.2 Savings from employee costs  

The 2011/12 original budget included a target of £480,000 from salary savings to be made 
throughout the council from vacant posts arising during the year. An initial assessment of vacant 
posts (i.e. staff turnover) and restructures in the first five months of the year indicates that there is 
likely to be a net shortfall in this budget target of £80,000. This is partially offset by the employee 
savings from the Customer Services restructure detailed in paragraph 2.3. The projection includes 
a saving of £59,800 in respect of a budget allocation to fund early retirement costs in 2010/11 
where a change to the pension rules meant this contribution to the superannuation fund was not 
required.      
 

2.3 Customer Services restructure  
The Bridging the Gap programme identified savings of £115,000 in 2012/13 from the systems 
thinking work highlighting opportunities to encompass the front-office service provided to 
Revenues and Benefits by Customer Services.  The restructure has been put in place from 1st 
April 2011, a year prior to the planned saving, on the basis that any 2011/12 saving would be 
required to fund the decommissioning costs.   However, decommissioning costs are significantly 
less than anticipated.  As a result it is anticipated that around £50,000 of savings will be brought 
forward and delivered in 2011/12. 
 
 

2.4 Off-street Car Parking Income  
2.4.1 The current projections show that off-street parking revenue continues to fall, Cheltenham is not 

alone on this front, as national indicators show a general fall in local authority off-street parking 
and fine revenues. Prices have not increased in 2011/12 and the VAT rise has also been 
absorbed within income targets. Off-street car parking income has also been impacted by the 
introduction of new parking zones by Gloucestershire County Council. This has had an effect on 
customer choice as there is more opportunity to park closer to their destination using on-street 
spaces at a competitive rate.   

 
2.4.2 The income position for off-street car parking to the end of August is falling short of target by 

around £35k, which equates to around 2.3% of the target.  A corresponding shortfall in fine 
income is also being generated, with income being around £8k down against target.  This equates 
to around 32% of target demonstrating a marked drop in fine income.  Should these trends 
continue as currently anticipated, car parking income is likely to be £84,000 short of target, and 
fine income down by around £20,000. This will leave a total forecasted shortfall against income 

Page 132



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 5 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

targets of around £104,000. Future budget monitoring reports will provide updated positions with 
a greater degree of accuracy. 
 

2.5 Building Control fees 
The income figures for the first five months of the financial year show the level of income to be 
£25,000 behind the budgeted target. If this trend continues throughout the year the annual 
shortfall would be in the region of £50,000.  

2.6 Refuse collection 
This cost centre is overspent by £45,800 as at the end of August due to a reduction in Trade 
Waste income which can be attributed to the current economic conditions. It is anticipated that 
this trend will continue until the year end with a projected shortfall in income of £110,000 

2.7 Recycling Centre/CA Site 
This cost centre is anticipated to be underspent by £41,700 at the end of August due to additional 
recycling income. It is anticipated that this trend will continue until the year end with a projected 
over recovery in income of £100,000. 

2.8 Garden Waste Scheme 
This cost centre is anticipated to be overspent by £150,000 at the end of August. This is 
attributable to a shortfall in Garden Waste bin sales. If this trend continues until the year end it is 
anticipated that there could be a projected shortfall in income of £306,000, which represents an 
anticipated sale of 11,500 Garden waste bins based on current sales data. However, a 
promotional campaign and operational reorganisation is underway to address this position. The 
anticipated savings on employee costs of £34,000 are incorporated in the global employee cost 
figure in Table 2.1 above. The net over spend on this cost centre is therefore anticipated to be 
£272,000 at the year end. 

2.9 Utilities 
Gas and electricity contracts were due for renewal at the end of October 2011.  However due to 
issues within the wholesale energy market in respect of timings, the council has opted for a six 
month contract extension up to April 2012, with a view that optimum prices will be better 
achievable next year.  The gas extension prices are around 13% cheaper than the existing 
contract and so in-year savings are anticipated.  Work is ongoing to establish the full extent, 
although a prudent estimate of £50k is currently forecast. 

3. Treasury Management 
3.1 Icelandic Banks  

Members will be aware that on 1st April 2011 the Reykjavik District Court in Iceland ruled that local 
authority deposits in Glitnir Bank Hf have priority status, resulting in a 100% likely recovery rate 
for the council’s £3 million investment (plus interest due up until the date the bank collapsed).  
The council had previously assumed such deposits did not have priority status, in line with the 
decision of the winding up board, giving a recovery rate of just 29%.   

3.2 The court decision enabled the council to reverse previous write downs (impairments) in the value 
of the investment, resulting in a credit to revenue of £2.4 million in 2010/11.  As the decision is 
subject to appeal to the Icelandic Supreme Court, the credit was transferred to an earmarked 
reserve in 2010/11, for use in case the appeal is successful and the credit has to be reversed.  
The results of the appeal are not expected until late October 2011. 

3.3 Should the appeal not be successful and the ruling remain, the reserve will be used to repay the 
borrowing taken out when the original losses were capitalised, using the Capitalisation Direction 
received in 2009/10.  This will reduce budgeted borrowing repayments (Minimum Revenue 
Provision) by £120,000 per annum from 2012/13.  

Page 133



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 6 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

3.4 The court decision does not affect the impairment charge made for the Landsbanki deposits, as 
the council had in this case already assumed priority status would be achieved, in line with the 
view taken by that bank’s winding up board.  For the 2010/11 accounts the council had assumed 
a recovery rate of 94.85% for these deposits, based on the best available information at the time.  
Very recent indications from the bank’s administrators, however, suggest that the recovery rate 
could now be around 98%, resulting in a possible further credit to revenue of £100-150,000.   
Used to repay the borrowing, this would reduce budgeted repayments by £5-7,000 per annum, 
from 2012/13.  

3.5 The decision of the appeal court in the Glitnir case is likely to have implications for the 
recoverable amount for the Landsbanki deposits, however, since the decision as to whether local 
authority deposits have priority status is ultimately expected to be the same for both banks.  If 
such deposits do not have priority status then the recovery rate for the Landsbanki deposits is 
estimated to be around 38%, resulting in an increased impairment charge, possibly in 2011/12, of 
£2.4 million, for which a further Capitalisation Direction would be sought.  If such a direction is 
received in 2011/12 then borrowing repayments (Minimum Revenue provision) would need to 
increase by £120,000 per annum from 2012/13.   

3.6 The likely recovery rate for the Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander (KS&F) deposits continues to be 
between 78% and 86%, with a mid point of 82% assumed for the Statement of Accounts 2010/11.   

3.7 The table below shows the overall likely recovery rates for the original £11 million invested in 
Icelandic banks under three different scenarios.  It must be stressed there are still a number of 
uncertainties, for example the effect of exchange rates on the banks assets, and the rates shown 
are based on the best available information at present.  
 
 

Scenario Likely Recovery Rate Likely Recoverable 
amount 

Estimated effect on 
revenue account 

2012/13 
 % £m £m 
Worst Case – Glitnir 
appeal is successful, 
Landsbanki no longer 
priority status, KS&F 
78%                     

46 5.1 +0.123* 

Middle Case – Glitnir 
appeal unsuccessful, 
Landsbanki at 94.85%, 
KS&F 82% (as per 
Statement of Accounts 
2010/11) 

93 10.2 -0.120 

Best Case – Glitnir 
appeal is unsuccessful, 
Landsbanki rate 
increases to 98%, KS&F 
at 86% 

95 10.5 -0.130 

* Assumes capitalisation direction received 
 
The middle case shows the position assumed in the Statement of Accounts for 2010/11, however 
the recovery rate could be as high as 95% if local authority deposits continue to have priority 

Page 134



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 7 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

status and the recovery rates for the Landsbanki and KS&F deposits increase further. 
 

3.8 Treasury Management Activity  
There is a predicted surplus of interest of £23,000 to report on Treasury Management within the 
general fund for 2011/12. Lending interest is forecast to be around £30,400 better off compared to 
the original budget due to receiving better rates for one year deposits compared with that 
estimated in late 2010.  Temporary borrowing interest is predicted to be around £7,400 adverse 
compared with the 2011/12 original budget.   

3.9 The calculation for the HRA Item 8 Debit last February estimated the consolidated rate of interest 
to be 3.08% on all borrowing for this financial year. However due to the council’s weighted 
average borrowing estimated to be lower than the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which is 
a measure of the authorities underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, a different formula is 
required to calculate the HRA Item 8 Debit than what was used previously. This has reduced the 
consolidated rate of interest to around 2.80%. This could result in £46,900 less interest being 
payable by the HRA to the General Fund for 2011/12. 

4. Capital expenditure 
4.1 Possible significant variances to the 2011/12 original capital budgets and a position statement on 

major capital schemes are detailed below: 
4.2 A budget of £104,800 has been allocated for CCTV in Car Parks in 2011/12.  The scheme is 

currently out to tender on the parking management and software solution for the Regent Arcade. 
The chosen system will become the platform for future upgrades including CCTV at car parks. 
Until we have determined our choice of operating system we are not able to progress the CCTV 
upgrades. 

4.3 There is an anticipated under spend of £250,000 on Private Sector Renewals (PSR).  The under 
spend is due to a tightening of eligibility criteria following the cessation of PSR funding. The 
priority is now to make this money last in order to help meet our statutory duties in respect of 
vulnerable householders. In addition this capital pot may also be legitimately used to fund the 
difference between costs and receipts where the council pursues compulsory purchase and can 
therefore be used to facilitate bringing empty properties back into use. Any under spend should 
be carried forward at year end for these purposes. The Private Sector Renewal Policy is due for 
amendment this year and although it currently covers all aspects of suggested spend, it will be 
recommended that eligibility criteria for grants/loans be substantially narrowed. 

5. Programme maintenance expenditure 
5.1 All the work that has been planned for completion in 2011/12 remains as scheduled.  However, a 

detailed exercise will be undertaken in putting together the revised budgets to ensure that the 
priorities in place remain appropriate. 
 

6. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
6.1 HRA Capital Programme  

The HRA budget for 2011/12, approved in February 2011, estimated a deficit of £1,092,300 for 
the year resulting in a balance of £1,896,700 to be carried forward in revenue reserves at 31st 
March 2012.  

6.2 The outturn position for 2010/11 showed an increased level of reserve at 31st March 2011 of 
£3,673,200 (previously estimated at £2,989,000) resulting from delays to projects within the 
capital programme. Budgets for the transformational improvements in St Pauls and 

Page 135



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 8 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

neighbourhood works at Scott and Edward Wilson House were transferred to the current year, 
increasing capital spend to £5,600,000 (previously £4,828,000) and revenue contributions to 
capital to £2,078,000. 

6.3 The net impact of these variations will be to increase the forecast deficit to £1,583,200 but leave 
an enhanced balance of £2,090,000 in reserve at 31st March 2012. 

6.4 No other significant variations have been identified at this time.  
 

7. Council tax and Business rates collection 
7.1 The monitoring report for the collection of council tax and business rates (NNDR) income is 

shown in Appendix 2. This shows the position at the end of August 2011 and the projected 
outturn for 2011/12. 

8. Sundry debt collection 
8.1 The monitoring report for the collection of sundry debt income is shown in Appendix 3. This shows 

the position at the end of August 2011. There are no significant matters to report. 

9. Section 151 Officer advice 
9.1 The council has a sound track record for delivering services within budget. Members will recall 

that the budget monitoring position to the end of August 2010 projected an overspend for the year 
of £801,700. Measures were put in place which enabled the council to address the potential in 
year budget deficit and delivered services within the resources available resulting in a budget 
saving of £174,086 in 2010/11. 

9.2 The monitoring report is clearly an estimated position and there are many variables which may 
result in a more favourable outturn for the year than currently predicted. The position is not 
unexpected given the impact of the current economic climate on investment interest and car 
parking income.   

9.3 If, following the more detailed monitoring process currently being undertaken as part of the budget 
setting process for 2012/13, the potential overspend is confirmed the Cabinet will need to take 
corrective action to ensure that the Council delivers services within the overall net budget for the 
year. There is a strong possibility that this will require a contribution from General Balances and 
this is identified within the risk assessment at Appendix 1.  

10. Conclusion 
10.1 This report summarises the results of a broad monitoring exercise at an early stage in the year 

which reports a position which may result in the identification of further projected net variances 
identified during the more detailed budget monitoring exercise referred to above. 

10.2 The continued impact of the economic recession and the uncertainty in the banking system 
present particular concerns for the council’s budgets. It is clearly important to ensure that budgets 
are more closely monitored over the coming months with a view to taking action at a future date, if 
necessary, in order to ensure that the Council delivers services within budget. 

 
 

Page 136



 

   

$hfuiwswp.doc Page 9 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

11. Consultation 
11.1 The work undertaken to produce this report has involved consultation with a wide number of 

services and cost centre managers. 
 

Report author  Contact officer: Paul Jones, Head of Financial Services     
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Council Tax and NNDR collection 
3. Sundry Debt collection 

Background information 1. Section 25 Report – Council 8th February 2011  
2. Final Budget Proposals for 2011/12 – Council 8th February 2011 

Page 137



 

   
$hfuiwswp.doc Page 10 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1. Unable to take corrective 
action in respect of reduced 
income streams. 

Cabinet June 
2010 

3 6 18 Reduce In preparing the revised 
budget for 2011/12, SLT 
to consider the options 
for offsetting reduced 
income streams by 
analysing and reducing 
the level of expenditure 
across the Council. 

December 
2011 

SLT Corporate 
Risk 
Register 

2. Requirement to fund 
projected overspend from 
General Balances would 
result in General Balances 
falling below the minimum 
range of £1.5m to £2m set 
by the Chief Finance Officer. 

Cabinet June 
2010 

3 6 18 Reduce In preparing the revised 
budget for 2011/12, an 
exercise to realign 
earmarked reserves will 
be undertaken in order to 
strengthen the level of 
General Balances. 

December 
2011 

Chief 
Finance 
Officer 

Corporate 
Risk 
Register 

 

P
age 138



Co
un

ci
l T

ax
 a

nd
 B

us
in

es
s 

Ra
te

s
Co

lle
ct

io
n 

Ra
te

s 
20

11
 - 

20
12

AP
PE

ND
IX

 2

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C

ha
rg

es
 - 2

01
1/2

01
2

 %
 C
oll
ec
ted

Au
gu

st 
20
11
 Ta

rg
et 

20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

55
.67

%
54

.80
%

98
.80

%
N/
A

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

11
As

 at
 31

.08
.10

% 
Co

lle
cte

d 3
1.0

3.1
1

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

54
.58

%
98

.71
%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs

 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re

nt 
Ye

ar
 (2

01
1/2

01
2) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D

eb
ts 
Ou

tst
an
din

g
Au

gu
st 
20
11
 Ta

rg
et 

20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

£5
06

,09
2

£4
90

,00
0

£2
60

,00
0

N/
A

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

11
As

 at
 31

.08
.10

Am
ou

nt 
o/s

 31
.03

.11
To

p Q
ua
rti
le 

£6
16

,34
5

£2
82

,55
9

N/
A

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C

ha
rg

es
 - 2

01
1/2

01
2

 %
 C
oll
ec
ted

Au
gu

st 
20
11
 Ta

rg
et 

20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

48
.29

%
48

.22
%

98
.21

%
N/
A

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

10
As

 at
 31

.08
.10

% 
Co

lle
cte

d 3
1.0

3.1
1

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

48
.20

%
98

.19
%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs

 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re

nt 
Ye

ar
 (2

01
1/2

01
2) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D

eb
ts 
Ou

tst
an
din

g
Au

gu
st 
20
11
 Ta

rg
et 

20
11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

11
/20

12
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

As
 at
 31

.03
.12

£1
,19

5,7
04

£1
,20

0,0
00

£7
55

,00
0

 N
/A
 

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
10
/20

10
As

 at
 31

.08
.10

Am
ou

nt 
o/s

 31
.03

.11
To

p Q
ua
rti
le 

£1
,14

6,6
21

£7
51

,09
9

N/
A

Bu
si

ne
ss

 R
at

es
  2

01
1/

20
12

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
  2

01
1/

20
12

Th
e a

rre
ars

 ar
e s

lig
htl
y l
ow

er 
tha

n t
he
 ta
rge

t a
lth
ou
gh

 hi
gh

er 
tha

n a
t th

e s
am

e t
im
e 

las
t y
ea
r. A

ga
in,
 w
e a

re 
mo

nit
ori
ng

 th
e p

os
itio

n c
los

ely
 an

d w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 co

un
cil 

tax
 

pa
ye
rs 
ha
vin

g d
iffic

ult
y i
n p

ay
ing

, b
ut 

at 
the

 m
om

en
t re

ma
in 
op
tim

ist
ic 
tha

t w
e c

an
 

ac
hie

ve
 th

e y
ea
r e

nd
 ta
rge

t o
f £
75

5,0
00

.

Th
e c

urr
en
t c
oll
ec
tio
n r

ate
 is
 hi
gh

er 
tha

n t
he
 ta
rge

t fo
r th

e e
nd

 of
  A

ug
us
t a
nd

 
hig

he
r th

an
 at
 th

e s
am

e t
im
e l
as
t y
ea
r. T

he
 po

sit
ion

 ca
n f
luc

tua
te 
thr

ou
gh

t th
e y

ea
r 

bu
t a
t th

is 
sta

ge
 w
e a

re 
op
tim

ist
ic 
tha

t w
e c

an
 ac

hie
ve
 th

e y
ea
r e

nd
 ta
rge

t o
f 

98
.80

%

Th
e a

rre
ars

 ar
e s

lig
htl
y h

igh
er 

tha
n t

he
 ta
rge

t b
ut 

low
er 

tha
n a

t th
e s

am
e t
im
e  
las

t 
ye
ar.

 W
e a

re 
mo

nit
ori
ng

 th
e p

os
itio

n c
los

ely
 an

d w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 an

y b
us
ine

ss
es
 

ha
vin

g d
iffic

ult
y i
n p

ay
ing

. A
t th

e m
om

en
t w

e a
re 

op
tim

ist
ic 
tha

t w
e c

an
 ac

hie
ve
 th

e 
ye
ar 

en
d t

arg
et 
of 
£2

60
,00

0.

Th
e c

urr
en
t c
oll
ec
tio
n r

ate
 is
 sl
igh

tly
 hi
gh

er 
tha

n t
he
 ta
rge

t a
nd

 hi
gh

er 
tha

n a
t th

e 
sa
me

 tim
e l
as
t y
ea
r. W

e c
on
tin
ue
 to
 m

on
ito
r c
oll
ec
tio
n l
ev
els

 cl
os
ely

 bu
t  a

re 
op
tim

ist
ic 
tha

t w
e w

ill a
ch
iev

e o
ur 

ye
ar 

en
d t

arg
et 
wh

ich
 is
 98

.21
%

Page 139



Page 140
This page is intentionally left blank



 Su
nd

ry 
De

bto
r In

vo
ice

s
Ou

tst
an

din
g 2

01
1-1

2
AP

PE
ND

IX
 3

% 
of

 in
vo

ice
s 

ou
tst

an
din

g m
or

e  
th

an
 on

e m
on

th
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at

 31
.08

.11

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 In

vo
ice

s
4,3
68

£3
,97
1,7
31

1,6
59

£9
51
,21
3

19
9

£1
90
,21
4

12
%

Le
ss
 th
an
 15
%

HR
A 

Inv
oic

es
70
0

£8
4,0
93

22
9

£5
9,0
88

16
5

£4
2,2
74

72
%

Le
ss
 th
an
 50
%

W
ork
 is
 on
go
ing
 to
 try
 to
 re
du
ce
 th
e n
um
be
r o
f 

inv
oic
es
 ou
tst
an
din
g f
or 
mo
re 
tha
n o
ne
 m
on
th.

Au
gu

st 
20

11
 

Ta
rg

et 
20

11
/20

12
 Y

ea
ren

d 
Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.08
.11

As
 at

 31
.08

.11

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 In

vo
ice

s
19
4

£2
51
,64
7

£2
00
,00
0

£6
0,0
00

Th
e v

alu
e o

f p
rev

iou
s y

ea
r in

vo
ice

s i
s h

igh
er 

tha
n 

the
 ta

rge
t b

ut 
ac

tio
n i

s b
ein

g t
ak

en
 to

 re
co

ve
r th

e 
su

ms
 du

e.

HR
A 

Inv
oic

es
1,1
18

£2
93
,17
4

£2
50
,00
0

£1
70
,00
0

Inv
oic

es
 ou

tst
an

din
g m

or
e 

th
an

 a 
mo

nt
h  

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

(E
xc

 In
sta

lm
en

t In
vo

ice
s)

As
 at

 31
.08

.11

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 In

vo
ice

s -
 20

11
/20

12
Cu

rre
nt 

Ye
ar 

Inv
oic

es
    

    
    

  
Ra

ise
d 

 Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
r In

vo
ice

s 
Ou

tst
an

din
g

As
 at

 31
.08

.11

As
 at

 31
.08

.11

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
r In

vo
ice

s O
uts

tan
din

g i
n 2

01
1/1

2

Su
nd

ry
 D

eb
t  2

01
1/1

2

Cu
rre

nt
 Ye

ar
 In

vo
ice

s 
Ou

tst
an

din
g 

As
 at

 31
.08

.11

Page 141



Page 142
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 1 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 October 2011 

Budget strategy and process 2012/13 
 

Accountable member Cabinet Member for Finance  and Community Development , 
John Webster 

Accountable officer Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer), Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary The purpose of this report is to propose a broad strategy and 

outline a process for setting the budget, housing rents and 
council tax for 2012/13. It outlines a number of principles that 
need to be established at this stage to enable budget preparation 
to commence. 

1. Recommendations That Cabinet: 
1. Approve the budget setting timetable at Appendix 2. 
2. Note the estimated funding gap for 2012/13 of £824k at 

Appendix 3, based upon a 2.5% increase in council tax. 
3. Approve the budget strategy outlined in section 4 below. 
4. Delegate to the Section 151 Officer, in consultation with 

the Cabinet Member for Finance, to consider the 
suggestions from the Budget Working Group in preparing 
the interim budget proposals for 2012/13 as outlined in 
section 5. 

 
Financial implications This report sets out the budgetary process for 2012/13 and the general 

financial parameters under which the budget will be prepared. 
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon               
@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264123 

Legal implications The budget process is governed by the Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules (contained in the Council Constitution) and the process 
recommended in this report is designed to meet and exceed the 
requirements of those Rules. 

Contact officer: Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury .gov.uk, 01684 
272012  

Agenda Item 11
Page 143



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 2 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None at this stage, other than the need to ensure proper consultation with 
staff and trade unions in relation to the budget.  

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy         
@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks The Council, as part of its work on corporate governance, has a corporate 
risk management strategy and corporate risk register, which highlights key 
risks to the organisation in achieving business objectives. The high level 
risks will need to be addressed as part of the budget process and may 
require additional resources or the re-direction of existing resources to 
mitigate unacceptable levels of risk. These risks are regularly reviewed by 
the Corporate Governance Group, Economy and Business Improvement 
overview and scrutiny committee and Cabinet.  
See risk assessment at Appendix 1. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The annual budget aims to deliver the outcomes defined by the council 
corporate business plan and resourcing should be aligned to the delivery 
of corporate plan priorities. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None arising from this report 

1. Background 
1.1 The responsibility for preparing the budget in line with the Council’s policy framework, taking 

proper account of technical and professional advice and presenting proposals to Council for 
approval, lies with the Cabinet.  

1.2 It is customary for the Cabinet Member for Finance, at this time of year, to present a report on 
the budget process. In view of the scale of the budget funding gap and the political balance of 
the Council, this report aims to outline a process designed to arrive at an acceptable budget. 

2. Budget / business planning timetable 
2.1 The budget and policy framework requires that the Council publish a timetable setting out the key 

dates in the budget setting process. A draft budget timetable, attached for approval at Appendix 
2, sets out the sequence of events leading up to the setting of the budget and council tax level 
for the Council for 2012/13 and the council business plan. 

2.2 The timetable allows sufficient time to consider alternative budget proposals or amendments put 
forward to the budget proposed by the Cabinet. 

2.3 The following fundamental principles, established in previous budget rounds, are incorporated 
into the process of determination of the budget for 2012/13. 

• Cabinet make timely decisions in order to assist the officers in presenting the budget proposals 
to Cabinet and Council in accordance with the timetable. 

• Opposition parties work up alternative budget proposals ready for initial budget meeting in 
February 2012, validated by Financial Services. 

• Members aim to set Cheltenham Borough Council’s budget and council tax at the initial Council 
meeting.   

Page 144



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 3 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

3. 2012/13 and MTFS funding gap 
3.1 Included in the budget presented to Council in February 2011 was an estimate of the Medium 

Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which identified a funding gap of £824k for 2012/13 between 
what the Council will need to spend to maintain services and what it can spend assuming an 
illustrative council tax increase of 2.5%. The MTFS also identified a funding gap over the period of 
the MTFS (2012/13 – 2016/17) of £2.5m. 

 
3.2 The MTFS projection will be reassessed to include the latest view of the financial implications of 

more recent developments including any information in respect of future funding levels in the 
presenting final budget proposals in February 2012. 

 
3.3 At the time of writing this report the Government has unveiled a scheme to extend a council tax 

freeze to 2012/13 to those authorities that limit spending rises to 2.5%. Given that this Council’s 
funding strategy was to limit spending rises to 2.5% it is anticipated that Cheltenham will be able 
to take advantage of this proposal to freeze council tax in 2012/13 although we await full details of 
how the scheme will work. 

 
3.4 The economic downturn continues to impact on the Council’s finances with depressed income 

levels for car parking income, investment returns and housing activity showing little sign of 
recovery. The budget monitoring exercise for the current year indicates that, unless corrective 
action is taken to address the potential overspend in 2011/12, the General Reserve would be 
significantly depleted, placing further pressure on the council’s overall resources. This includes 
the shortfall on the delivery of some of the initiatives to bridge the funding gap in the current year 
which, if not resolved, may add circa £400k to the funding gap for 2012/13. 

 
 
4. Cabinet Budget Strategy 
4.1 The Cabinet is also acutely aware that, in the present state of the economy, many council 

taxpayers are struggling financially.   
 
4.2 The main thrust of the 2012/13 budget is for the Council to respond to the current economic crisis 

to play its part in helping the country manage its way out of recession into economic recovery.  
 

The key aims in developing an approach to the budget is to: 
 

• Protect frontline services, as far as possible 
 

• Develop longer term plans for efficiencies over the period of the MTFS including 
increasing emphasis on shared services and a new approach to commissioning services. 

 
‘Bridging the Gap’ Programme 

 
4.3 The Council takes a long term strategic approach to the MTFS funding gaps and continually 

works throughout the year to address the budget problem through the ‘Bridging the Gap’ 
programme. The following summarises the co-ordinating activity undertaken by the programme. 

 
Asset Management  
 

4.4 The Council has a significant property portfolio including some key public buildings which place 
significant pressure on the Council’s budget and represents a significant cost to the tax payer. 
Both the council’s Asset Management Working Party and the BtG programme develop initiatives 
which aim to reduce the net cost of the Council’s property portfolio through reducing the size of 
the asset base, increasing income from investment properties and increasing income from the 
sale of surplus properties. 

Page 145



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 4 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

 
Shared Services  

 
4.5 The Council has already developed shared services with Tewkesbury Borough Council for Legal 

Services and Building Control and with Cotswold District Council for Audit Services and, in 
2012/13 will share Finance, HR, payroll and procurement with 4 district councils (Cheltenham, 
Forest of Dean, Cotswold and West Oxfordshire District Council) using a single Enterprise 
Resource Planning system. The council is also forming a local authority company with Cotswold 
district council to deliver its refuse and recycling and grounds maintenance services. It is 
anticipated that shared service delivery will deliver significant savings over time. Other 
opportunities for shared services are actively being considered. 

 
Service reviews / Systems thinking 

 
4.6 This work stream seeks to examine how services are provided in order to seek improvements and 

efficiencies and reduce costs through the use of ‘systems thinking’ analytical approaches. 
 

Identification of further savings 
 

4.7 Given that a number of the work streams deliver savings in the medium term there is still an 
immediate budget gap for 2012/13 which has to be met. The Cabinet have requested that 
Directors and Service Managers identify options for closing the gap, accepting that there is little 
scope for ‘salami slicing’. The Cabinet will consider these proposals in preparing the interim 
budget in light of the Cabinet’s lower priority areas. 

 
Service growth 
 

4.8 The Cabinet’s initial approach is that, given the difficult financial situation, there should be no 
growth in services except where there is a statutory requirement or a compelling business case 
for an 'invest to save' scheme.  

 
4.9 Officers and members will need to base decision-making, particularly requests for additional 

resources, upon the priorities in the Business Plan. Overview and Scrutiny Committees will be 
invited to review and feedback to the Cabinet their priorities for relevant bids received. These 
priorities will be considered by the Cabinet in pulling together the consultation budget. 
 

 
5. Budget working Group 
5.1 In February 2011, the council agreed to set up a budget working group with the following terms of 

reference:  
 

• To consider options for bridging the funding gap i.e. proposals for charging or reduction in 
expenditure 

• To review the work programme for commissioning and options being considered 
• To develop members’ scrutiny skills and understanding of financial matters 
• To develop the approach to budget consultation 

 
5.2 The group has met on a number of occasions during the year so far and has thoroughly 

considered the current budget process and paperwork and has made a number of proposals to 
improve and simplify the budget setting process including the following key suggestions: 

 
• Reducing the size of reports generally. 
• Merging the Section 151 officer’s Section 25 report into the main budget report  
• Removing a number of appendices including capital charges, investment income and detailed 

Page 146



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 5 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

reserve movements. 
• Removing some duplicated narrative e.g. treasury management which is included in the Treasury 

Management Policy. 
• Placing some of the more detailed supporting appendices e.g. budget consultation responses in 

the members room rather than reproducing it for all members in the budget papers. 
• Moving the HRA budget item to earlier on the council agenda. 
• Introducing a time limit for budget speeches 
• No longer consulting with overview and scrutiny committees ahead of the cabinet agreeing the 

interim budget proposals since this adds no value to the process. 
 
5.3 It is proposed that the Section 151 Officer be delegated to work with the Cabinet Member for 

Finance to consider the suggestions from the Budget Working Group in preparing the interim 
budget proposals for 2012/13. 

 
 
6. Budget Setting Process 2012/13 – key stages 
6.1 In approaching the budget setting process for 2012/13, the Cabinet will endeavour to adhere to 

some well established principles designed to deliver budget proposals in a timely manner 
following proper process, including: 

• Debating the allocation of one-off money at the earliest opportunity 
• Requirement for early and clear direction input from Cabinet and Senior Leadership Team 
• Ensure Financial Services maintain strong role in moderating process 
• Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) leads and advises on strategic budget issues 
• Agree Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH) management fee and Housing Revenue Account 

(HRA) budget as early as possible 
• Maintain good communications between Chief Executive, Senior Leadership Team, Council 

Leader, Cabinet Member for Finance and Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) over 
budget progress / issues. 

• Ensure clarity of savings achieved from procurement. 
• Senior Leadership Team aligned behind collective approach to resolving budget gap issue. 
• Include Overview and Scrutiny Committees in the budget process 

 
6.2 The proposed key stages in the process for setting the budget for 2012/13 are summarised in the 

timetable at Appendix 2 and are detailed below. The timing of events may change as the process 
develops. 
Publication of budget timetable  

6.3 The Cabinet will publicise a budget timetable by including this in its Forward Plan and via other 
media. 
Budget preparation 

6.4  Between October and November 2011, the Cabinet Member for Finance and officers will work 
with the Cabinet towards the creation of ‘interim budget’ proposals which will incorporate the 
following: 

• A standstill budget projection prepared under a general philosophy of no growth in levels of 
service. Inflation for contractual and health and safety purposes will only be allowed where 
proven at the appropriate inflation rate. No pay inflation will be budgeted for. 

• The current MTFS assumes inflation on fees and charges at an average rate of 2.5% (excluding 
the VAT increase) annually over the 5 year period. This increase will be assumed in the 

Page 147



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 6 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

preparation of the standstill budget and any deviation form this will form part of the interim 
budget proposals. 

• The impact of prevailing interest rates on the investment portfolio will be assessed in preparing 
the budget. The Treasury Management Panel will consider the position in respect of treasury 
management activity during the budget setting cycle, including the latest position in respect of 
Icelandic banks. 

• An assessment of the charges to be made to Cheltenham Borough Homes and the Housing 
Revenue Account including assessing the impact on the General Fund of the changes to the 
housing subsidy system. 

• An assessment of potential savings from procurement and any savings identified in order to 
meet the funding gap. 

• Proposals for service growth (invest to save schemes only). 
• Proposals for increases in fees and charges 
• An updated assessment of the MTFS incorporating the financial assessment of the Business 

Plan tasks and any updated estimates for future funding pressures and sources of income.   
Publication of initial budget proposals 

6.5 The Cabinet will present its initial budget proposals and publish them for consultation in line with 
the advertised plan. The initial budget proposals will include all general fund revenue, capital and 
housing revenue account estimates to meet a balanced budget, together with assumptions made 
on future council tax and rent levels.  
Budget Consultation 

6.6 Last year, given the scale of the level of public sector funding squeeze, the Cabinet were keen to 
engage with the public on where to make savings ahead of the decision making process. A 
summer public consultation road show was rolled out across the town requiring residents to 
identify which services should be protected, reduced or stopped given the need to make savings. 
This was not a scientific exercise and the results were not drawn from a representative sample of 
the population. However, the consultation proved to be very effective in engaging the public and 
was seen as the start of a dialogue about the future role of the council given reducing resources. 
This was followed up by resident’s panels where the results had been relayed and options for 
saving money have been tested. The information gained from this exercise was valuable and, not 
only informed the budget setting process for 2011/12, but will support decisions in future years.   

6.7 The Cabinet considered whether to repeat this exercise but concluded that the results may be 
similar and it would not add any further value. Instead it proposes, in addition to the formal budget 
consultation, some targeted consultation around specific issues particularly those arising from 
commissioning. This approach was endorsed by the Budget Working Group.  

6.8 The formal budget consultation period will be no less than four weeks and will take place during 
December 2011 to January 2012. The Cabinet will seek to ensure that the opportunity to have 
input into the budget consultation process is publicised to the widest possible audience. During 
the consultation period all interested parties will be welcome to provide feedback on the initial 
budget proposals. Groups, businesses, tenants, residents, staff and trade unions will be 
encouraged to comment on the initial budget proposals at this time. They will be asked to identify, 
as far as possible, how alternative proposals complement the Council’s Business Plan and 
Community Plan, how they will be financed, and how they will help the Council to achieve best 
value. Presentations will be made to key business groups as part of the consultation process.  

Page 148



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 7 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

6.9 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees will be invited to review the interim budget proposals in 
the meetings scheduled for January 2012 and feed any comments back to the Cabinet as 
proposed by the Budget Working Group (see section 5). 

6.10  Whilst the Cabinet will be as flexible as possible, it is unlikely that any comments received after 
the consultation period can be properly assessed to consider their full implications and to be built 
into the budget. Accordingly, if alternative budget proposals are to come forward, this should 
happen as early as possible. 

6.11  All comments relating to the initial budget proposals should be returned to the Section 151 Officer 
by the end of the consultation period for consideration by the Cabinet in preparing their final 
budget proposals. Consultation questionnaires will be available in key locations and for 
completion on line via the council’s website. Comments can be e-mailed to 
moneymatters@cheltenham.gov.uk. 
Assessment of alternative Budget Proposals 

6.12 It is important that any political group wishing to make alternative budget proposals should 
discuss them, in confidence, with the Section 151 Officer and / or the appropriate Strategic 
Director / Director / Chief Executive (preferably channelled through one Group representative) to 
ensure that the purpose, output and source of funding of any proposed changes are properly 
identified. 

6.13 Given the financial pressures and the potentially very difficult decisions which will have to be 
made, it is very important that there is time for members to carefully consider and evaluate any 
alternative budget proposals. Political groups wishing to put forward alternative proposals are not 
obliged to circulate them in advance of the budget-setting meeting, but in the interests of sound 
and lawful decision-making, it would be more effective to do so, particularly given that they may 
have implications for staff. 
Final Budget Proposals and Council Approval 

6.14  At the end of the consultation period, the Cabinet will draw up firm budget proposals having 
regard to the responses received. In drawing together its budget proposals to Council the report 
will reflect the comments made by consultees and the Cabinet’s response. The firm budget 
proposals will be presented to Council at the budget setting meeting for decision in February 
2012. 

7. Housing Revenue Account 
 

7.1 Draft proposals for the Housing Revenue Account will also form part of the same process for 
considering the General Fund revenue and capital budgets. 
 

7.2 The financial projections contained in the HRA Business Plan are currently being updated to 
reflect revised estimates for: 

 
• Need to spend on stock investment and maintenance, 
• Subsidy changes, 
• Stock numbers, 
• Rent and service charge income. 

 
7.3 The revised projections will be available to inform decisions on the level of management and 

maintenance and capital investment in 2012/13 (to include fees payable to Cheltenham Borough 
Homes and administrative charges from Council Divisions). 

 

Page 149



 

   

$z3omeme3.doc Page 8 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

7.4 The HRA financial strategy adopted by the Council in recent years has been to seek ongoing 
efficiency savings in management and maintenance, to retain a contingency balance of 
approximately £1 million on the account and use any surplus resources to fund capital investment 
in the stock. 

 
7.5 Now that the Decent Homes programme is completed, future investment will focus on retaining 

the decency standard and further neighbourhood works. CBH are also currently investigating 
funding options for new social housing which will include bids to the Housing Corporation for 
Social Housing Grant. 

 
7.6 Other issues that will impact on the HRA in 2012/13 include the following: 
 

• Changes to the Housing Subsidy system 
• Right to Buy Sales – sales continue to be low. Overall a reduction in sales will reduce the capital 

receipts available to fund new investment.   
 
8. Reasons for recommendations 
8.1 The council is required to agree a budget process and timetable. 
9. Alternative options considered 
9.1 The process for considering alternative budgets is set out above. 
10. Consultation and feedback 
10.1 The consultation process is described fully above. In view of the size of the challenge the Council 

faces in setting the 2012/13 budget, consultation has already commenced with trade unions. 
 
11. Performance management – monitoring and review 
11.1 The delivery of savings and additonal income proposed as part of the budget will be monitored 

through the Bridging the Gap programme which meets monthly with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance. 

Report author Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon               
@cheltenham.gov.uk,  01242 264123 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Budget timetable 
3. Funding gap projection 

Background information 1. RSG projections 2011/12 – 2012/13 
2. MTFS 2011/12 to 2016/17 

 

Page 150



 

   
$z3omeme3.doc Page 9 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk ref. Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CR3 If the council is unable to 
come up with long term 
solutions which bridge the 
gap in the medium term 
financial strategy then it 
will find it increasingly 
difficult to prepare 
budgets year on year 
without making 
unplanned cuts in service 
provision 

Director of 
Resources     
Mark 
Sheldon 

 3 4 12 Reduce Development of the 
BtG programme. 
Establishment of a 
cross party working 
group following the 
elections in May. 
Review budget 
scrutiny process. 
Review and rolled out 
revised budget 
consultation process  
SLT presentation of 
new ideas to Cabinet 
leads. 

on -going Mark 
Sheldon 

1/9/2010 

CR27 Icelandic banks - financial 
exposure  
 
If the group claim against 
Glitnir bank fails and the 
council is not recognised 
as a ‘priority depositor’ 
the council’s deposits  
would be re-classified as  
‘general unsecured 
creditors’ resulting in a 
lower recovery rate and 
exposure to defendants 
costs. 
 

Director of 
Resources     
Mark 
Sheldon 

 4 3 12 9/4/2010 Council commitment to 
join in group action 
with other councils to 
make case for priority 
depositor status. 
 
Capitalisation direction 
approved for £4.43m 
allows for write off of 
loss over 20 years. 

1/12/2011 Mark 
Sheldon 

9/4/2010 

CR28 Icelandic banks - financial 
exposure  
 
If the current status as 

Director of 
Resources     
Mark 
Sheldon 

 4 3 12 9/4/2010 Council commitment to 
join in group action 
with other councils to 
defend current priority 

 Mark 
Sheldon 

9/4/2010 

P
age 151



 

   
$z3omeme3.doc Page 10 of 10 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

priority deposits with 
Llandsbanki bank is 
successfully challenged, 
the council’s deposits 
would be re-classified as 
‘general unsecured 
creditors’ resulting in a 
lower recovery rate and 
exposure to claimant 
costs and impact on the 
MTFS over that already 
factored in through 
capitalisation of losses. 

depositor status. 

            
 

P
age 152



Appendix 2

Budget / Business Planning Process 2012/13 – Timetable of key stages / dates

July - September 2011 SLT / Councillor/ Service Manager reviews to identify options for savings and 
additonal income

October 2011 Members seminar - business plan prioritisation / budget position

20th October 2011 Joint Liaison Forum -CFO / HR to discuss the emerging budget and staff 
implications

14th October 2011 Deadline to submit taxbase calculation - applicable date is 14th October 2011 
(CTB1 figure used in RSG calculation).

18th October 2011 Cabinet approve budget guidelines, timetable and estimated funding gap for 
2012/13

1st November 2011 Deadline for preparation of standstill budget on basis of no growth and further 
detailed analysis of under spends / additional income.

18th November 2011 CBH - deadline for review of support to CBH / HRA 

21st November 2011 Treasury Management Panel to consider budget estimates for treasury 
management budget assumptions.

Week commencing 21st November 2011 Briefing Cabinet Member on HR implications on budgets including potential 
redundancies 

Week commencing 21st November 2011 Posts at risk of redundancy to be confirmed by Directors

Week commencing 21st November 2011 Directors in consultation with HR identify redundancy selection pools prior to 
preparation of at risk and consultation letters.

Week commencing 21st November 2011 HR to prep consultation/at risk letters

Week Commencing 21st November 2011 Joint Consultative Committee - briefing on HR implications on budgets including 
potential redundancies, consult on areas being considered for redundancy, issue 
statutory S188 notification of posts being considered for redundancy, present the 
draft "at risk" and "consultation" letters for information

1st December 2011 Budget Working Group

1st December 2011 Recalculate taxbase figure for Section 151 Officer sign off under delegated powers 
and production of briefing note for Cabinet Deputy

1st December 2011  “at risk” and “consultation” letters distributed to line managers ready for 
distribution.

2nd December 2011 “at risk” and “consultation” letters issued by line managers.

13th December 2011 Cabinet present interim budget proposals for consultation including proposals for 
growth, savings and levels of fees and charges and projection of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS).

14th December 2011 to 13th January 2012 Cabinet consult on budget proposals including Overview and Scrutiny committee, 
public and the business community.

January 2012 Finance Settlement.

9th January 2012 Social & Community Overview and Scrutiny committee meeting – budget 
consultation

13th January 2012 Recalculate taxbase and confirm or amend figure under delegated powers, if 
necessary.  

Page 1

Page 153



Appendix 2

16th January 2012 Advise all precepting authorities (including parishes) re. relevant taxbase figures

18th January 2012 Environment Overview and Scrutiny committee meeting – budget consultation

23rd January 2012 Economy & Business Improvement Overview and Scrutiny committee meeting – 
budget consultation

24th January 2012 Budget Working Group - review responses from O&S

26th January 2012 Treasury Management Panel – consider final recommendations to Cabinet in 
respect of treasury management activity.

27th January 2012 Deadline for submission of alternative budget proposals to Financial Services for 
validation.

7th February 2012 Cabinet present final budget proposals including response to consultation 
exercise.

10th February 2012 Council meet to approve Cheltenham Borough Council budget only - approve 
proposed Cabinet or alternative budget (approved in principal). 

13th February 2012 Potential adjourned meeting if unable to agree budget on 10th February 2012.

9th February 2011 Police Authority approve budget and council tax level.

22nd February 2012 GCC meet to approve budget and council tax level.

10th - 15th February 2012 Special council meeting (if required) – meets the requirement for the proper officer 
to call a council meeting to discuss objections to an alternative budget within 7 
days of receipt of objections.

24th February 2012 Council meet to approve the Council tax resolution (includes GCC and police tax) 
– last day for Council to approve any proposed budget. 

24th February - 1st March 2012 Council tax charge calculation / bill file creation.

Week beginning 27th February 2012 Application of redundancy selection criteria by ADs/SMs where required. 

24th February 2012
Final amendments to council tax leaflet/sign off for printing

28th February - 1st March 2012 Billing information sent to printers.  

2nd March 2012 Redundancy notice letters (or stand down letters) prepared by HR. 2nd March 
2012 – redundancy notice letters (or stand down letters) distributed to managers 
for distribution on the 5th March 2012.

5th March 2012 Managers issue redundancy notification (or stand down letters) to those for whom 
redundancy selection criteria need not apply (maximum notice periods = 12 
weeks/3 months)

Week commencing 5th March 2012 and 
through notice periods 

HR guide and support managers to work with their employees under notice of 
redundancy to seek alternative CBC employment (for those with little service their 
notice might only be 1 month, therefore redeployment prospects significantly 
reduced).

2nd - 6th March 2012 Council tax booklets to be delivered to printers/CBC

By 12th March 2012 Bills to be issued (14 days notice required before first payment - some payments 
due on 1st April)

5th April 2012 First (earliest) dismissal likely to take effect, assumes notice given on 5th March 
2012

Page 2

Page 154



Appendix 2

*Need to make staff available at short notice, for meetings with the trade unions for the purpose of 
ensuring genuine consultation i.e. to receive and continue discussions around ways of reducing 
the number of potential redundancies, mitigating or avoiding them in the run up to week before 
the papers  final budget papers are distributed.  This is essential to demonstrate a genuine 
approach to consultation and to be willing to explore those alternatives before decisions are made.

Consultation Timetable

Trade Unions
21st November 2011 – 27th January 2012 (68 days) for Cabinet proposals
21st November 2011–  10th February 2012 (82 days) for Council decision.
Employees
1st December 2011 – 27th January 2012 (58 days) for Cabinet proposals

      5th December 2011 – 10th February 2012 (68 days) for Council decision.
First dismissal –5th April 2012
Last dismissal – 5th June 2012

Page 3

Page 155



Page 156
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2012/13 TO 2016/17
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£ £ £ £ £ £
NET COST OF SERVICES B/F FROM PREVIOUS YEAR 14,077,293 13,609,666 13,559,089 13,528,263 13,763,639

IN YEAR BUDGET VARIATIONS

INCREASED COSTS OF EXISTING SERVICES
Estimated general inflation / leasing costs / utilities 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Pay inflation 57,700 392,100 381,400 387,800 394,700
Phasing out of pension reserve contribution - 2004 Revaluation 50,000 50,000
Phasing out of pension reserve contribution - 2007 Revaluation
Additional pension funding required - 2010 Revaluation 110,000 82,000
Additional pension funding required - 2013 Revaluation 120,000 120,000 120,000
Landfill Tax 40,000 41,100 41,100
Maintenance of watercourses, streams and ditches 30,000

INCOME 
Fees & charges - inflation (348,700) (356,500) (366,400) (375,100) (384,600)
Investment Interest 17,400 (77,800)
Specific Grant to fund council tax freeze ceases 197,000

RESERVES
* Increased property repair and renewal fund contributions 200,000 200,000 200,000 107,000

** FUNDING GAP (824,027) (581,477) (606,926) (401,324) (88,323)

PROJECTED NET COST OF SERVICES 14,077,293 13,609,666 13,559,089 13,528,263 13,763,639 14,005,416

*** Government Grant support (6,098,332) (5,473,039) (5,199,387) (4,939,418) (4,939,418) (4,939,418)
Collection Fund surplus contribution (59,500)

Council tax income assuming council tax increases by 2.5% per annum (7,919,461) (8,136,627) (8,359,702) (8,588,846) (8,824,221) (9,065,998)
(14,077,293) (13,609,666) (13,559,089) (13,528,263) (13,763,639) (14,005,416)

Cummulative Funding Gap (824,027) (1,405,504) (2,012,430) (2,413,754) (2,502,077)

Gap to be funded from savings or increase in council tax precept 0 (0) (0) (0) (0) 0

Projected Council Tax at annual 2.5% rise (assuming gap is reduced by 
savings or additional income) 187.12 191.80 196.59 201.51 206.55 211.71

Projected annual % rise to assuming funding gap is met 0.0% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

*
Assumed level for estimating - subject to either a policy decision or 
confirmation of legal framework / Statute

**
Funding gap may include efficiency savings of 2.5% which deliver non-
cashable or cashable savings

*** Assumed increase in government grant support -10.25% -5% -5% 0% 0%

Projected Taxbase 42,322.90 42,422.90 42,522.90 42,622.90 42,722.90 42,822.90

Page 157



Page 158
This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet promoting cheltenham fund  18 October 2011 
 Page 1 of 4 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council 

Cabinet – 18 October 2011 
Promoting Cheltenham Fund 

 
Accountable member Leader of the Council 
Accountable officer Richard Gibson, Policy and Partnerships Manager 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Ward(s) affected all 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary On 26 July, Cabinet agreed to create the Promoting Cheltenham Fund 

which is a pot of funding worth £179,000 to support events, projects and 
initiatives that will stimulate economic and business growth in Cheltenham.  
 
The funding would be allocated in two tranches; phase 1 was launched at 
the end of July with a closing date of Friday 30th September. 
 
The grant assessment panel met on Friday 7th October to assess the phase 
1 applications and to make recommendations to cabinet. The panel 
comprised the Leader of the Council, the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Community Development, the Cabinet Member for Sport and Culture, 
representatives from the council’s Economic and Business Improvement 
Committee and Cheltenham Business Partnership.  
 

Recommendations Cabinet to approve the list of projects to be funded from the Promoting 
Cheltenham Fund as set out in appendix 2 – “List of projects and 
recommendations.” 

 
Financial implications The fund comprises £160,275, of new homes bonus supplemented by 

£18,731 of unspent LAA performance reward grant, giving a total fund of 
£179,006, for economic development purposes to help tackle the 
recession and promote the town as a place in which to do business. 
Contact officer: Andrew Sherbourne 
Principal Accounting Technician 
E-mail: andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264337 

Legal implications The grants will be formalised by agreement based on the Community 
Giving Grant template, which will be adapted as necessary to include 
terms, if any, imposed by the County Council on transfer of the funding.  
 
Contact officer:  
E-mail: @tewkesbury.gov.uk  
Tel no: 01684 272695 

Agenda Item 12
Page 159



Cabinet promoting cheltenham fund  18 October 2011 
 Page 2 of 4 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None 
 

Key risks If funding is allocated to an organisation that subsequently goes onto use 
the funding on a fraudulent basis. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The proposed allocations set out in appendix 2 will enable the council to 
deliver on the following outcomes: 
• Cheltenham is able to recover quickly and strongly from the recession 
• We attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham. 
• Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community. 
• Arts and culture are used as a means to strengthen communities, 

strengthen the economy and enhance and protect our environment. 
 
 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None identified 

1. Background 
1.1 On 26 July, Cabinet agreed to create the Promoting Cheltenham Fund which is a pot of funding 

worth £179,000 to support events, projects and initiatives that will stimulate economic and 
business growth in Cheltenham. The funding would be allocated in two tranches; phase 1 was 
launched at the end of July with a closing date of Friday 30th September. 

1.2 Organisations across Cheltenham were invited to apply for a single award typically up to a 
maximum of £20,000 though larger bids for multiple events could be considered. 

1.3 Organisations were asked to deliver one or more of the following outcomes: 
• Increased visitor numbers; 
• Increased new business investment; 
• Increased retention, investment and expansion of existing businesses; 
• Increased recognition of the Cheltenham brand on a national/international scale. 

1.4 The guidelines stated that successful projects must produce economic outputs which are 
measurable (e.g. the number of attendees; revenue generated for the organisation, revenue 
generated for other businesses) but also have lasting economic benefits for Cheltenham and the 
local community.  

1.5 In total 19 applications were received, with a cumulative request for £409,000, which were 
assessed by the grant assessment panel met on Friday 7th October. The panel comprised the 
Leader of the Council, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Community Development, the 
Cabinet Member for Sport and Culture, Cllrs. Tim Cooper and Malcolm Stennett from the 
Economic and Business Improvement Committee and John Forward and John Leamon from 
Cheltenham Business Partnership.  

 
2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The reasons for the recommendations are set out in appendix 2 - List of projects and 

recommendations. 
 
 

Page 160



Cabinet promoting cheltenham fund  18 October 2011 
 Page 3 of 4 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

3. Performance management –monitoring and review 
3.1 Once approved, the council will enter into written agreements with the succesful applicants which 

are based on the community giving grant template. This specifies that the grant recipient will 
submit a project monitoring report, summarising the project achievements, outcomes and lessons 
learnt to the grant administrator on completion of the project. 

 
 
Report author Richard Gibson, Policy and Partnerships Manager, 01242 235354, 

richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Appendices 1. Risk assessment 

2. List of projects and recommendations 
Background information  
 

Page 161



   
$hynwml5d.doc Page 4 of 4 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If the commissioning division does not 
put proper controls in place for the 
management of the partnership small 
grants funds, then we run the risk of 
funds being used inappropriately or even 
fraudulently 

Policy and 
Partnerships 
Manager 

Apr 2010 3 3 9 reduce Implement and monitor small grants 
protocols 

ongoing Policy and 
Partnerships 
Manager 

Implementation 
of grant 
protocols has 
reduced the 
likelihood to 2. 

            

 
 

P
age 162



Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18th October 2011 

Agenda Item 12-Promoting Cheltenham Fund 
 
 
 
Appendix 2 - List of projects and recommendations 
 
1.1 The grant assessment panel met on Friday 7th October to assess the 19 phase 1 applications and to 

make recommendations to cabinet. The panel comprised the Leader of the Council, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Community Development, the Cabinet Member for Sport and Culture, Cllrs. 
Tim Cooper and Malcolm Stennett from the Economic and Business Improvement Committee and 
John Forward and John Leamon from Cheltenham Business Partnership.  

1.2 The following declaration of interests were recorded: 
• Cllr. Webster: Member of the Friends of St. Mary’s and Member of Cheltenham Festivals 
• Cllr. Cooper: member of Friends of Pittville and Bath Road Traders 
• John Forward (Manager of Regent Arcade): potential (non-personal) financial interest in the By 
Local proposal as it was seeking funding to pay for rent on premises at Regent Arcade. Has also 
been consulted on the development of the Northcliffe Media bid. 

• John Leamon: Has been consulted on the development of the Cheltenham Motorsports bid. 
1.3 None of the interests were directly pecuniary.  
1.4 The panel assessed the 19 applications against the criteria set out in the application guidelines  

• How the project would deliver one or more of the four identified outcomes. 
• Evidence that there is a need for the project. 
• The degree of community involvement and support 
• How the organisation will ensure the sustainability of financial support and plans to raise 
additional financial support or support in-kind to complement the grant funding from the Council. 

 
1.5 Each project was given a Red, Amber or Green assessment depending on the number of positive 

answers. The table below sets out the panel’s assessment of each application. Out of the 19: 
1.6 Four were Red – and no funding was awarded. 
1.7 Four were Amber – indicating that the panel were seeking further reassurances about the project 

before funding would be released. 
1.8 Eleven were Green – indicating that the panel were happy to recommend approval for the amounts 

shown below.  
1.9 In total £150,100 was recommended to be allocated leaving a sum of £28,900 to be allocated as part 

of the second tranche in March 2012.  
1.10 The panel were also keen to seek cabinet’s views on the viability of using this funding to create a 

self-sustaining pot, whereby grant recipients are encouraged to re-invest any surplus from their 
activities back into a grant pot that could be used to support future events and festivals.  

 
ENDS 
 

Page 163



Promoting Cheltenham Fund – List of projects and recommendations 
Project Description cost of 

project 
amount 
sought 

visitor 
numbers 

new 
business 
invest-
ment 

support 
for 
existing 
business 

support 
for Chelt 
brand 

evidence 
of need 

comm. 
involve
ment  

addition 
financial 
support 

R-A-G 
assessm
ent 

Recomm
endation 

Notes from 
Panel 

Amount 

The Everyman (and 
Cheltenham) 
Heritage 
Experience 

The Everyman will raise its 
profile as a heritage attraction 
to encourage people to visit 
the newly restored theatre on 
a guided tour as part of a 
specifically created 
Cheltenham Heritage 
Experience package 

17,400 13,400 Yes unclear unclear Yes unclear unclear unclear  Green Partially 
fund 

Panel generally 
supportive but 
not bowled over 
by the project, 
recommended 
partial funding 
as some 
questions 
marks over 
added value of 
the project 

5,000 

Cheltenham Poetry 
Festival 

To broaden the outreach 
programme of the poetry 
festival (which had a 
successful first year in 2011) 
as well as taking the 
children's poetry slam, 
workshops, readings, film 
showings, public space art 
events to an even wider 
audience  

25,000 10,000 Yes Yes unclear unclear unclear Yes unclear  Green Partially 
fund 

Panel 
recommending 
the amount 
requested to 
fund the 
outreach 
project 

5,000 

Cheltenham Design 
Foundation 

To support Cheltenham 
Design Foundation which 
educates and inspires 14-16 
year olds through its design 
academy, works to improve 
the design understanding of 
local businesses through its 
Master Classes and 
promotes new creative 
thinking through the Design 
Festival  

90,000 20,000 Yes Yes unclear Yes unclear Yes unclear  Green Partially 
fund 

Panel generally 
supportive and 
felt proposals 
were of value 
but some 
question marks 
over the broad 
value that the 
design festival 
will have 

5,000 

Cheltenham Film 
Festival 2012 

In 2012, the film festival will 
stage a series of high profile 
exclusive events throughout 
the year approx 1 event every 
2 months to help establish a 
genuine reputation for 
Cheltenham as a film festival 
town. 

22,800 12,000 Yes Yes unclear Yes unclear unclear unclear  Green Partially 
fund 

  5,000 

Re-ordering St. 
Mary's Parish 
Church 

To install 2 toilets (one for 
disabled people) a 
kitchenette for serving light 
refreshments and provision 
for a display area to help the 
church become more visitor-
friendly 

85,000 20,000 Yes unclear unclear No unclear No unclear  Red No Panel 
supportive of 
the friends work 
but felt that the 
proposal would 
not meet many 
of the criteria of 
the promoting 
cheltenham 
fund 
 

0 

Appendix 2 
P

age 164



Project Description cost of 
project 

amount 
sought 

visitor 
numbers 

new 
business 
invest-
ment 

support 
for 
existing 
business 

support 
for Chelt 
brand 

evidence 
of need 

comm. 
involve
ment  

addition 
financial 
support 

R-A-G 
assessm
ent 

Recomm
endation 

Notes from 
Panel 

Amount 

FAB - Fashion and 
Beauty in 
Cheltenham 

Glos Media will work in 
partnership with retailers, 
businesses, local schools and 
colleges to put on an annual 
fashion festival that will 
promote Cheltenham's status 
as a regional shopping 
destination 

45,000 35,000 Yes unclear Yes Yes unclear Yes Yes  Amber Partially 
fund 
subject to 
submissi
on of 
further 
informati
on 

Panel 
supportive of 
the concept but 
requested 
additional 
information 
from the 
applicant about 
the financial 
feasibility of the 
project as they 
had requested 
£35k 
 

15,000 

Pittville heritage 
boards: 
Understanding 
Pittville 

To install three heritage 
boards describing the history 
and importance of Pittville 
and the significance of 
Pittville Gates 
 

4,350 4050 Yes unclear Yes No unclear Yes unclear  Green Yes   2,500 

Cheltenham Folk 
Festival expansion 
and audience 
development 

to add another concert and 
workshop venue to increase 
numbers, introduce a schools 
outreach programme, 
increase advertising and 
promotion, increase town 
dressing banners, attract 
major folk performers and 
create town centre fringe 
events 
 

63,250 20,000 Yes Yes unclear Yes unclear Yes unclear  Green Yes   15,000 

Olympic Torch 
Relay and 
celebration event 

To provide an extended 
celebration and entertainment 
event to celebrate the visit of 
the Olympic Torch to 
Cheltenham on 23 May both 
at the evening venue and 
along the route 
 

20,000 20,000 Yes unclear unclear Yes Yes Yes unclear  Green Yes   15,000 

Prince of Wales 
Music and Beer 
Festival 

To put on an outdoor music 
and beer festival to be held 
over 2 days at the Prince of 
Wales stadium with 90% of 
the bands coming from 
Cheltenham 

37 - 
42,000 

15,000 unclear unclear unclear No No No Yes  Red No The panel were 
not convinced 
that the location 
was right for a 
beer/music 
festival and the 
application 
failed to set out 
a convincing 
case for the 
project.  
 
 

0 

P
age 165



Project Description cost of 
project 

amount 
sought 

visitor 
numbers 

new 
business 
invest-
ment 

support 
for 
existing 
business 

support 
for Chelt 
brand 

evidence 
of need 

comm. 
involve
ment  

addition 
financial 
support 

R-A-G 
assessm
ent 

Recomm
endation 

Notes from 
Panel 

Amount 

Midsummer Fiesta 
2012 

to increase the scope and 
marketing of the event to 
attract even more visitors and 
to provide opportunities for 
more local businesses, 
performers and local 
organisations to reach new 
audiences. 

11,200 5,000 Yes Yes unclear Yes unclear Yes unclear  Green Yes   2,500 

Sustainable Street 
Expo 2012 

To bring together motor 
sports, motor manufacturing 
and transport industries in the 
context of sustainability and a 
low carbon future 

300-350, 
000 

20,000 Yes Yes unclear Yes unclear unclear Yes  Green Yes   10,000 

Cheltenham Time 
Bank 

To bring together existing 
time banking activities in 
Cheltenham creating a new 
time bank to work across the 
town. This will facilitate the 
exchange of time, services 
and support between 
individuals and organisations 

23,255 18,255 No No No No unclear Yes unclear  Red No The panel are 
supportive of 
the efforts to 
establish a 
Cheltenham-
wide time bank 
but 
unfortunately 
the project did 
not meet 
sufficient 
criteria for the 
fund 

0 

By Local To support a shop in Regent 
Arcade that offers local artists 
and craft-makers the chance 
to sell their produce at 
affordable rates promoting 
local pride and sense of 
community 

32,000 20,000 unclear unclear Yes No unclear unclear No  Amber No - 
encourag
e bid in 
phase 2 

The panel 
welcomed the 
work of the By 
Local collective 
but were 
unconvinced 
that the project 
could sustain 
itself beyond 
the initial year 
of funding. The 
panel 
suggested that 
the applicant 
make another 
application in 
phase 2 with a 
more 
convincing 
business plan.  

0 

Bath Road 
Christmas Lights 
Switch on 

To make the Bath Road look 
attractive and inviting during 
the Christmas period and to 
hold a grand lights turning on 
event at the 3 local pubs 
 

8,232 6518 unclear Yes Yes unclear Yes Yes Yes  Green Yes   4,100 

P
age 166



Project Description cost of 
project 

amount 
sought 

visitor 
numbers 

new 
business 
invest-
ment 

support 
for 
existing 
business 

support 
for Chelt 
brand 

evidence 
of need 

comm. 
involve
ment  

addition 
financial 
support 

R-A-G 
assessm
ent 

Recomm
endation 

Notes from 
Panel 

Amount 

Cheltenham 
Festivals; Jazz, 
Science, Music and 
Literature 

Create an exciting festival 
space in the centre of the 
town which will encourage 
audiences to try a number of 
events and to linger at the 
festival site or in the town 
taking in the atmosphere 

5,373,49
6 

120,000 Yes Yes Yes Yes unclear Yes unclear  Amber Partially 
fund 
subject to 
submissi
on of 
further 
informati
on 

Panel 
recognised the 
critical role that 
Chelt Festivals 
play and the 
potential of this 
project to meet 
all of the criteria 
of the 
promoting 
cheltenham 
fund, but due to 
the amount 
requested the 
panel wished to 
see more 
information 
about how the 
proposed 
projects will be 
implemented. 

50,000 

Winter Wonderland 
Ice Rink, Pittville 
Park 

To open an outdoor synthetic 
ice-rink in Pittville park for 6 
weeks over the festive period 
to draw visitors into the park. 
This will also enable Central 
Cross Café to remain open 
during the winter 

29,750 19,000 Yes unclear unclear unclear Yes Yes unclear  Amber Partially 
fund 
subject to 
submissi
on of 
further 
informati
on 

The panel liked 
the project but 
had a number 
of questions 
about licensing, 
planning, turf 
replacement 
costs, liaison 
with Friends of 
Pittville and 
ongoing 
sustainability 

10,000 

Holst Discovery 
Space 

Improve conservation and 
interpretation of Holst archive 
material using modern 
display methods; at present 
the archive is not available to 
the public or researchers 

53,900 12,000 Yes unclear unclear Yes unclear unclear Yes  Green Yes   6,000 

Stable company 
mini-farm 

to turn a 1 acre builders' yard 
at the space business centre 
into a mini-farm with raised 
beds, wildlife area and a 
small pets corner 

30,000 19,000 No unclear unclear No No Yes unclear  Red No The panel like 
the work of the 
Stable 
Company but 
the proposed 
project did not 
meet the 
criteria for the 
promoting 
cheltenham 
fund 

0 

    5,550,633 409,223                     150,100 
 

P
age 167



Page 168
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$ly2qg04l.doc Page 1 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18th October, 2011 

Environmental Improvements Scheme 
Allocation of ‘New Homes Bonus’ funding 

 
Accountable member Cllr John Rawson, Cabinet Member Built Environment 
Accountable officer Mike Redman, Director Built Environment 
Accountable scrutiny 
committees 

Environment  

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary As approved by Cabinet, Environmental Improvements schemes have been 

subject to a bidding process by Council departments, with bids prioritised by a 
member panel drawn from the Cabinet and comprising the Council Leader and 
Cabinet members for Built Environment and Sustainability. 
The aim is to tackle environmental issues in packages costing up to a 
maximum of £15,000 or so. An initial request has been supported by Cabinet, 
for £10,800 for waste bins. This leaves £149,200 in the Fund.  
This report summarises all bids submitted and using a scoring matrix of 
appropriate criteria (see Appendix C), makes recommendations for the 
distribution of the remaining Fund’s £149,200.  

Recommendation That Cabinet determine which bids to support and at what level, having 
regard to the:- 

1. Prioritised list of bids attached at Appendix C;  
2. Available budget of £149,200; and 
3. Minutes of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

attached at Appendix D. 
 
Financial implications None arising directly from this report.   

Although, as mentioned in the key risks, care will need to be taken to ensure 
that those granted funds are appropriately vetted prior to the release of 
funding, and a process is in place to monitor delivery to ensure the best use 
of council funds. 
Contact officer:  Nina Philippidis 
E-mail:                nina.philippidis@cheltenham.gov.uk  
Tel no:                01242 775221 

Agenda Item 13
Page 169



 

   

$ly2qg04l.doc Page 2 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Legal implications The payment of funding to any external parties will require the production of 
documentation, based on the council’s ‘Community Giving Grant’ template, to 
ensure that any funding is properly spent in accordance with the approved 
application. 
 
Contact officer:  Donna Ruck 
 
E-mail:                 donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
Tel no:                 01684 272696 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There may be capacity issues that will need to be fully considered, depending 
on what decisions are made as to the use of the New Homes Bonus funding 
for Environmental Improvements. 
 
Contact officer:   Julie McCarthy 
 
E-mail:                julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no:                01242 264355 

Key risks 
(See also Appendix A) 

� Financial – it will be important to ensure that any funds allocated, 
particularly to external organisations are the subject of appropriate 
controls to make sure they effectively deliver target outcomes; 

� Capacity – staffing resources are currently stretched and the 
allocation and support mechanisms for this scheme will therefore 
need to take this into account, to minimise the risk of impacts on other 
corporate priorities. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

As part of the bid process, applicants were asked to identify how individual 
projects supported at least one of the Council’s high level environmental 
objectives-  
• Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained environment 
• Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced and protected 
• Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to adapt to the 

impacts of climate change 
 
� A copy of the application guidelines is attached at Appendix B. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The Environmental Improvements fund offered an opportunity for the Council 
to support schemes to directly enhance the town’s environment and 
contribute to helping reduce climate change impacts. 
As part of the bid process, applicants were asked to identify the impact of 
individual projects on carbon emissions and how they would help adapt to the 
impacts of climate change. The majority would have some impact. 

 
1. New Homes Bonus 2011 
1.1 The Council recently received its first allocation of the New Homes Bonus (NHB) from central 

government. 
1.2 NHB has been designed to address the disincentive within the local government finance system 

for local areas to welcome growth. Until now, increased housing in communities has meant 
increased strain on public services and reduced amenities. NHB reduces this disincentive by 

Page 170



 

   

$ly2qg04l.doc Page 3 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

providing local authorities with the means to help mitigate the strain the increased population 
causes. This should ensure that the economic benefits of growth are returned to the local 
authorities and communities where growth takes place. In addition, in doing so, NHB is intended 
to engender a more positive attitude to growth, and create an environment in which new housing 
is more readily accepted. 

1.3 The Bonus commenced in April 2011, and will match fund the additional council tax raised for new 
homes and long term empty properties brought back into use, with an additional amount for 
affordable homes, in each of the following six years.   

1.4 Cheltenham’s first allocation of NHB amounts to £290,275 and Council agreed on 27th June, 
2011, this has been used to create 2 funds for the following uses:- 

1.5 Environmental improvements - £130,000, supplemented by £30,000 from the civic pride 
reserve, to provide a total fund of £160,000 for small environmental works. Bids from within 
council departments will be made and decided by Cabinet in the autumn. The aim is to tackle 
environmental issues in packages costing around £15,000 or so a time. An initial request has 
been made, and supported by Cabinet, for £10,800 to purchase larger waste bins for the council’s 
parks to remove the need to use wheelie bins to cope with the summer peak in activity, plus 
replacement bins adjacent to Imperial gardens to complement the re-paving scheme. 

1.6 Promoting Cheltenham - £160,275, supplemented by £18,731 of unspent LAA performance 
reward grant, giving a total fund of £179,006, for economic development purposes to help tackle 
the recession and promote the town as a place in which to do business, by sponsoring activities 
and events which will attract visitors and trade. It will include cultural activities such as the 
festivals and tourism activities.  

1.7 The environmental improvements fund has been the subject of a bidding process by internal 
Council departments, with bids signed off by a member panel drawn from the Cabinet. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 Cabinet needs to be satisfied with the prioritising and funding projects under the fund and must 

ensure that it has considered the risks which may impact on the financing and delivery of relevant 
outcomes. 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 None. 
4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 The ‘Environmental Improvements’ scheme was the subject of consultation with the Environment 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee in September. 
5. Performance management – monitoring and review 
5.1 Performance in implementing the environmental improvements scheme will be monitored through 

the Council’s normal internal performance management and scrutiny processes. 
 

Page 171



 

   

$ly2qg04l.doc Page 4 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Report author Mike Redman, Director Built Environment  
Cheltenham 264160 (Ext 4160)  
mike.redman@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices A. Risk Assessment 
B. Cheltenham Environmental Fund – application guidelines 
C. Prioritised scheme bid list 
D. Draft minutes of Environment O&S Committee – 14th Sep, 2011 

Background information Report to Cabinet on 26th July, 2011, from the Leader of the Council, entitled 
’Economic development update and proposals for administering New Homes 
Bonus funding’   
Discussion paper to Environment O&S Committee on 14th September, 2011, 
from the Leader of the Council, entitled ’Economic development update and 
proposals for administering New Homes Bonus funding’   

 

Page 172



 

   
$ly2qg04l.doc Page 5 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix A  
 

The risk Original risk 
score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

CR29 If the council does 
not implement the 
actions identified in 
the climate change 
adaptation risk 
assessment there is 
a risk that resources 
will not be used to 
best effect which 
could impact on 
financial, 
environmental and 
service decisions 
and affect service 
delivery. 

Director 
Commissioning 
- Jane Griffiths 

06/05/2010 4 2 8 Reduce Services are 
required to identify 
the actions they 
will be taking to 
respond to climate 
change (both 
adaptation and 
mitigation) in 
2011/12 service 
plans. Internal 
audit has a trained 
officer in 
environmental 
auditing who will 
be assessing 
progress against 
the adaptation risk 
assessment. 

01/09/2011 All Directors 
 
Audit 
Partnership 
Manager 
 
Richard 
Gibson, 
policy and 
partnerships 
manager 

 

 If insufficient staffing 
capacity is available 
to manage allocation 
and monitoring 
processes there is a 
risk that projects and 
related outcomes will 
not be delivered on 
time, or to an 
acceptable standard 

Director Built 
Environment 

26/07/2011 3 2 6 Accept Internal bids need 
to clearly identify 
resources required 
for effective 
management and 
delivery 
 
Capacity for 
managing bidding 
process needs to 
be identified 

- Directors 
and service 
managers 
tasked with 
project 
delivery 

 

 

P
age 173



 

   
$ly2qg04l.doc Page 6 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Appendix B 

Cheltenham Environmental Fund 
Application Guidelines 

Introduction 
The Cheltenham Environmental Fund is a funding programme for small-scale environmental 
works. These will generally be capital works in streets, public spaces, parks or open spaces.  
The fund will be allocated by Cabinet in October 2011.  
Who can apply 
Bids can be made in conjunction with external organisations, including community groups.  Single 
award bids, typically up to a maximum of £15,000, must be submitted by an officer of the Council.  
Larger bids may be considered.  
Officers can make more than one grant application. 
What we are looking to support 
Funding applications will be assessed on the basis of their relevant merits and their ability to 
deliver one or more of the following outcomes: 
• an improvement in the quality of streets, public spaces, parks or open spaces; 
• a positive contribution to environmental sustainability; and 
• an increase in the community’s involvement in its local environment. 
 

Bids are encouraged which have additional benefits including an ability to: 
• demonstrate innovative design or delivery solutions to environmental issues; 
• act as learning pilots for other areas or organisations; or  
• make a further contribution to wider areas of interest, particularly the economy, education, 

transport, health and well-being, bio-diversity or civic pride. 
 

Funding will be awarded for capital works and reasonable associated costs (design, project 
management etc).  
Projects should demonstrate community engagement in development and/or delivery. 
Projects will need to evidence long-term maintenance. 
Projects can be existing or new but must be capable of making significant progress by 31st March 
2012 in terms of community engagement, design or implementation. 
Making an application 
Your application must clearly demonstrate the following which will form the basis of the 
assessment criteria:Eligibility Criteria Yes No 
• how your project will deliver one or more of the fund’s outcomes 
• how your project will have lasting environmental or sustainability benefits  
• how the success of your project will be measured 

 

Page 174



 

   
$ly2qg04l.doc Page 7 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

• how Cheltenham’s community will be involved in the development, design or delivery of the 
project  

• what additional benefits your project will deliver 
• when various stages of your project will be delivered and the project completed 
• how your project will be maintained in the future 
• how you will involve partners in your project and what they will contribute (funding or in-kind) 
 

• if your project is eligible for other funding, how the Cheltenham Environmental Fund will 
complement, secure and add value to those other sources of funds. 

 
How we will assess applications 
An assessment panel will be drawn from the Cabinet.  The panel will be looking for: 
• projects that have been well thought out and can demonstrate that they meet the assessment criteria 
set out above; 

 
• applications that demonstrate clarity of both planning and delivery of the projects with an 
understanding of what permissions will be required to see the successful implementation of the 
project; 

 
• assurances that project deliverers will put in place a robust system for collecting, monitoring and 
assessing the impacts of the project and for reporting and sharing this information. 

 
Recommendations will be made to the Borough Council’s Cabinet that meets on 18th October 
2011. Successful applicants will be notified shortly afterwards.  
 
 
 

 

Completed applications for the main fund must be returned no later 
than Friday 30th September to: 

 
Judith Baker, Built Environment Directorate, Municipal Offices 

Email: judith.baker@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 175



 

   
$ly2qg04l.doc Page 8 of 8 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Appendix D 
 

Draft minutes of Environment O&S on 14th September, 2011 - to be approved at the next meeting 
on Wednesday, 23rd November, 2011 
 
9.  NEW HOMES BONUS (INCLUDING ENVIRONMENT IMPROVEMENTS 

PROGRAMME) 
 
The Cabinet Member Built Environment introduced the report and informed 
members that any scheme not included this year could potentially be included in 
subsequent years as the new homes bonus would continue to be allocated to 
the authority from central government. 
 
Members remarked that they would have been better placed to comment on the 
proposed schemes had the criteria been included, but understood that this was 
still being worked on. In response the Cabinet Member explained that rather 
than getting involved in elaborate scoring systems the proposed projects should 
be examined in terms of best value for money. The proposals had in the main 
been put forward internally by officers, but some had come forward from 
community groups. 
 
A discussion was held as to whether the proposed projects did actually fit the 
purpose of the funding which was to mitigate the strain on the increased 
population causes. The example of guttering on allotment sheds was given.  
 
The Cabinet Member Built Environment was confident that the projects proposed 
were small scale infrastructure projects and were consistent with the 
Government’s intentions. Meanwhile some Members applauded the flexibility 
being used. The example of the project of Pittville Gates and Railings 
Restoration was given, which in Cllr Hibbert’s view would represent the perfect 
project for Cheltenham to mark the Queen’s diamond jubilee. 
 
Rather than each member comment on the project relating to their ward the 
Chair proposed that each member e-mail directly to the Cabinet member their 
comments on the proposals. 
 
When asked whether grass cutting could be included in order to enhance the 
appearance of the town, the Cabinet Member Sustainability replied that grass 
cutting was an ongoing revenue item and could not be allocated to the new 
homes bonus. 
 
Members agreed that those projects proposed by community groups be given 
priority. 
 
Resolved 
 
•  That Members forward to the Cabinet member their comments on the 

proposals. 
 

•  That the minutes of this item be forwarded to Cabinet 

Page 176



�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	

��
�
�
�
��
��
�	�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�
��
	�

�
��
�	

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�
�	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
	
 
�
��
��
!	

�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
"�
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
!	

��
��
��
��
��
�
%�
�
�
��
#

��
�
�

&
��
�
��
�
	

�
���
�

'
��
�
	

��
��
�
"�
�
�
�
��
	

��
��
�

�
�
#�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
#

��
��

(
��
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

)
�
��
�	

"�
�
�
	

�
*
��
�
	�
�
��
	#
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
!	
�
�
��
�	

�
��

�
��
��	

��


��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
���
��
��



�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��

��
��
��
�


��
�
��
���
�

�
��
��

��
�
 

�
	�
��

�
��
!�
�"
#


��
��
��
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
$
%
��
!�


��

&
�
�



��
"�
'
�	

�
�(
��
	

'
��
!

)�
*�
++
+

+,
-.
-/
/

,
-

,
,

,
,

.
-

.
01

/
2
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

0�
��
��
��

��
1�
��
��	
2�
��
��
��
"�

��
���
�
��
1�
��

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

	�
��
"
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

3
'
��
��
��
"

��
��
�"
��
��

��
'
�

)4
�+
++

+3
./
//

.
,

,
.

,
-

4
,

,
0-

5
�
�

�
��
�4"

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��

��
�
�
�
�
��
!

�
�
�5
��

�
�
�
�
��

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
"�

��
��
��
���
�
�(
�
�

�
��
�6�
'
���
(�
��
�"
��
�
�
��
��
��

 
��
�
��
���
�

��
��
���
"$

�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�
�

7
��
��
��
��	
�

��
�1
��
��
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

8
��
�	
�
��

�
��
��
��

)*
�+
++

+1
./
//

.
.

,
,

,
-

*
-

�+
0-

4
6
�
�
$
�
��
�
�
�
"�
!
�
�
��
"
7
�
��
$
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
��
�"

�
��

�
��
��	

��

��
��
��
�
��

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
���
�

��
�

1
��
���
��

��
��
�"
�

��
��
���
"

)-
�+
++

+0
./
//

,
.

,
.

,
9

-
-

.
0,

*
�
��
��
���
�	
�
�
�	


�
�
��
��
�
��
�"

0�
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
'
�	
�

 
��
"�
�"
�#

��
��
��
��

��
�
 
1�
�:
�
��
��
��	

��
�
"
&
��
�
��

��
�	

�
��
�#

��
��
��
$

)�
.�
++
+

+,
8.
//
/

,
-

,
-

9
,

*
.

.
98

9
�
���
�!
	*
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	�
�"
�
��

�
��
�

'
��
!

��


��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�

 

�
��
��
��
��
��



��
��
�
��
"

��
��
��
"�


��
��
��

�
��
��
��
"

��



��
��
��
��
��

�
��

(�
�

��
��
��
�

��


��
��
��
�


)/
+�
++
+

+,
/.
//
/

.
,

.
9

-
-

9
.

.
90

-
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
!�
��
	%�
�
�"
�
�
��
�
�
		

�
�

��
�
��
�

�
��
��

1
��
���
��

��

�
	�
���
"$

�



��
�
1�
�

�(

�
��
��
��

�
��
�

1�
��

�
��
��(
��


1	



��
�

�
	�
��

;
��
��


�
�

�
	�
��

�
��

��
�"
�$

)�
*�
++
+

+,
-.
1/
/

-
,

.
9

*
.

9
.

,
99

�
�"
�

�

�

�
��
	

�(

�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�

(�
��
�

��

�
��
���
1�
�

��

��
�

<
��

1�
��
=
�
��
�



5�


>
��
�1
��

/
+�
�

Page 177



�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	

��
�
�
�
��
��
�	�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�
��
	�

�
��
�	

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�
�	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
	
 
�
��
��
!	

�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
"�
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
!	

��
��
��
��
��
�
%�
�
�
��
#

��
�
�

&
��
�
��
�
	

�
���
�

'
��
�
	

��
��
�
"�
�
�
�
��
	

��
��
�

�
�
#�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
#

��
��

(
��
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

)
�
��
�	

"�
�
�
	

.
:
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
"	
'
�!
	;
	�
���
�
��
	'
�!
	

:
�
��
	�
�
��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
���
"�

��
��

�
��
��
��
"

'
��

(�
�'
��

�
��
��
��
"

��



��
��
��
�

1�
�
��
��
��
�	

�
�

"�
��
�

��
��
�$

?
�'



��
�	

�
@�
��
�
��
�$

)�
*�
++
+

+,
<.
//
/

.
9

-
9

-
.

.
.

.
99

,
�
�"
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�	
�
��
��
���
�	
:
��
�"

�
��
��
��
���
�
��

��
��
��
�
��
1�
��
��
"
�(

���
��


&
��
��
�
��
��
�#

��
��
��

�(
��
�
�
��
��

'
��
!#

��
�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��

��
��



)/
+�
++
+

+-
/.
//
/

.
9

.
9

-
9

.
.

.
91

�+
�
�"
��
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
�4
"

�
�
�
�
��
��
#

�
�
�"
�	
�
�
�	
5
�
�
"	
�
�
�!

�
��
��
��
���
�
�(

;
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
"
��
��
��
��
�

 
��
��
��
��
��
�'

��
�
��
��
��
"
 
��
��
��
��
��
���
�$

0�
���
��
'
��
!
:
��
"�
"�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
 

��
��
�
�
��


'
��
!$

).
�+
++

+8
./
//

.
*

-
9

*
,

,
-

,
91

��
�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
���

:
�
�
��
"

��
�
	�
��
��
���
�	
��
��
	

�
��
�

��
��
��
��
�(
��
�
�
��
��
�
���
��
���
�
��
!
:

�
��
�(
"�
�
�

��
��
��
��
(��
�(
��
<
��
��
��
���
�
&
�
�

��


��
��
�

��
��
�

�(

�
���
��
���

&
�
�$




)�
�*
++

+,
.1
//

.
-

-
9

-
.

*
.

,
91

A�
/
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�	


�
�
��
��
�
��
�"

�
�(
��
1�
��

�
��
!

"�
�
��

:

�
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
"


��
��
�
(
��


��
��
���
"

 

�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�"
�

�
��
��


�
��

�
��
��	

�
��
��
��
�$

�
��
��
���
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
"$

)�
9�
++
+

+,
/.
//
/

.
-

-
9

-
.

*
.

,
91

�5
*
�
=�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

:
�
�
�
�
.

!�
�
�
�

��
���
�
�
4"
	�
��
!"
�
��
�

�
��

��
�
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��

��
��
��
�
'
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
	
��
��

��

��
��
��
2
1�
�:
�
��
��
��	

��
��
��
��

��
��

)�
*�
++
+

+,
/.
//
/

-
9

9
-

9
.

.
.

,
91

�
�"
�

/

�

�
��
	

�(

�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�

(�
��
�

��

�
��
���
1�
�

��

��
�

<
��

1�
��
=
�
��
�



5�


>
��
�1
��

/
+�
�

Page 178



�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	

��
�
�
�
��
��
�	�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�
��
	�

�
��
�	

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�
�	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
	
 
�
��
��
!	

�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
"�
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
!	

��
��
��
��
��
�
%�
�
�
��
#

��
�
�

&
��
�
��
�
	

�
���
�

'
��
�
	

��
��
�
"�
�
�
�
��
	

��
��
�

�
�
#�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
#

��
��

(
��
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

)
�
��
�	

"�
�
�
	

�4
6
�
�
�!
$
�
�
�
�	
&
��
�	
�
�
)
>
	�
�
��
��

0�
��
��
�
�
�
�
B

�
��

��
��

:

�
�
��
�

�
�
�

 

�
��
�


��
��
��

�
��
��

(�
�

��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��

�

:

-



��
�
��
��

1
��
'
��
�

��
�

�
��
�'
�	

�
��
���
�

 



��
1�
��
�

�
��
"�



)�
*�
++
+

+,
1.
//
/

-
,

*
*

*
.

.
.

�+
91

�*
�
�"
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�	


�
5
�
�
	'
��"
�
�
	"
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
���
�

��
��
��

��

��
�

%�
�"

&
��
�
��

:



��
'

��
��
��
��
��
���
�

1�
��


��


1�
��
C�

�
��
@�
�$



/+
�/

��

��
�

��
��
��
��
	

D
���
��
=�

��
��



)5
�+
++

+<
./
//

-
*

-
*

*
,

,
.

,
93

AA
�9
'
��
�
#5
�"
�

�
��
��
	

"�
���
���
"

 

'
��
��

1
��
��

��

�
��

��
��
��
�


��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

��

�
�
��
�

'
��
��

1
���
�

 



��
��

��
�

��
��
��
��

��
��
�
�
'
��
��
��
�$

).
�+
++

+/
9

�+
,

.
-

,
*

,
�

93

�-
?
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
�
��
	�
�
��
	
��
	6
�"
��
@
"	
'
�!
	

�
�
�

�
��

��
�

��
�(

��
'
�2
��
'
��
��


��
��
��
��
�

 



��
��
��
�
�
E�
���

�
��
��
��

'
���

�
��"
��
��

��
!�
�	



��
��
�
�

�
��
��
��

)/
+�
++
+

+/
.

-
*

9
-

.
*

.
,

9<

�.
�
�!
�
�

�
�
"�
��
�7

�
��

$
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
��
�"

�
��

�
��
��	

��

��
��
��
�
��

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
���
�

��
�

1
��
���
�

��
��
�"
�

��
��
���
"

)*
�+
++

+/
.

-
.

-
-

9
-

-
*

9-

�,
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�"
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�"

8
��
��
��

 

"
��
��

�
�"
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
��



��

�
��

�
��
!

:

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�

 

�
�



��
�
�
��
��	
�
�
��
���
��

��
�
 

�
��
��
�
	


)�
+�
++
+

+/
-

-
-

*
9

.
9

-
.

9,

/+
:
�
"�
��
�
	
)
�
�
��
	:
�
��
	

�
�
��
��
�
��
�A

8
��
��
��

 
"�
��
�
&
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
!

��

%�
��

��
F
�"
�
�
��
��
�
:
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

�E
��
���
��
�
 
��

��
�
�
��
��	
�
��
��
��
��

��
�
 

��
��
��

	


)�
*�
++
+

+/
.

9
4

.
.

-
4

-
.

9/

�
�"
�

5

�

�
��
	

�(

�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�

(�
��
�

��

�
��
���
1�
�

��

��
�

<
��

1�
��
=
�
��
�



5�


>
��
�1
��

/
+�
�

Page 179



�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	

��
�
�
�
��
��
�	�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�
��
	�

�
��
�	

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�
�	

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
	
 
�
��
��
!	

�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
"�
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
!	

��
��
��
��
��
�
%�
�
�
��
#

��
�
�

&
��
�
��
�
	

�
���
�

'
��
�
	

��
��
�
"�
�
�
�
��
	

��
��
�

�
�
#�
�
��
�
	

�
��
�
��
�
#

��
��

(
��
��
�
#

�$
���
�!

)
�
��
�	

"�
�
�
	

/�
B�
�
�
�
	:
�
�
��
"	
�
��
��
�.
	B
��
�
�
	:
�
�
��
"

�
��

�
��
��
��

��
��
��

�(
8
'
��

��
��
��
�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��
"�
�(�
��
��

��
��

��
�

�(
�
��
���
��
��

=�
��
���
�"
�
 
��
��
�
�
�

��
1�
��

�
��

��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��

)�
*�
++
+

+/
9

*
,

*
*

.
-

-
-

1C

//
�
�
�
��
��
���
	
"�
�
��
	"
��
�
�	

�
��
��
��
�

��


��
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�

��
�
��
���
�


�
��
��

��
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��

��

<
��
��
��
���
�

�
�


 

D
��
!

%�
�!
�

��

&
�
�

�
��
!�
�"

�
��
��
'



)�
*�
++
+

+/
-

9
-

.
-

.
4

*
*

10

/5
�
�
��
�
�
	
:
!�
.	�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
(��
��
��

�@
��
��

��
�
��
@�
��
��


1	

;
���
�
�

"�
��
�$



)�
*�
++
+

+/
.

*
9

9
*

-
,

4
9

19

A
�
'
�

�
��
(
��


�
��
!

1�
�

�
��

1�
��


+-
8/
.1
//

+,
3C
.-
//

AA
�
��
((�
�"

��
��
��

:

�
��


��
��
��
�1
��

��
��

�

� � � 	 
 � �  � � ��

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

��
��

��
 �

��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�
�

��
 !

"�
��

��
��

��
#$

�
��

��
��

��
 �

�$

%
��

#

�
��

��
!�

�#

&
'�

$�
��

# 
�!

(
��

��

)�
��

�

��
� $

*�
��

��
��

�'
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

 �
�$

+
��

�$
��

��
��

��
� �

�$

�
�"
�

4

�

�
��
	

�(

�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�

(�
��
�

��

�
��
���
1�
�

��

��
�

<
��

1�
��
=
�
��
�



5�


>
��
�1
��

/
+�
�

Page 180



Cabinet partnership structures  18 October 2011 
 Page 1 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18th October 2011 

Improving Partnership Structures 
 

Accountable member Leader of the Council 
Accountable officer Richard Gibson, Policy and Partnerships Manager 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Ward(s) affected all 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary In 2011 senior officers and practitioners within the public sector and the 

voluntary and community sector, participated in the Partnership 
Improvement Programme (PIP) which met three times between March and 
May 2011. This process resulted in a new structure for partnership working 
in Cheltenham that has been consulted on over the summer months. The 
new structure is brought to cabinet for endorsement. 
 

Recommendations Cabinet endorses the new structures for partnership working in 
Cheltenham as set out in appendix 2. 
Cabinet note the issues raised by the consultees and the responses of 
the CSP task and finish group in appendix 3. 

 
Financial implications There are no financial implications of the proposed new structures. 

Economy and Business Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
have requested additional information on whether the new structures will 
generate any savings and this will be considered as part of the 
development of the 2012-13 budget.  
 
Contact officer: Andrew Sherbourne 
Principal Accounting Technician 
E-mail: andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264337 

Legal implications There are no legal implications of the proposed new structures.  
 
Contact officer: Donna Ruck 
E-mail: donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
Tel no: 01684 272695 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 181



Cabinet partnership structures  18 October 2011 
 Page 2 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Key risks Corporate Risk CR 40 says “If Partner organisations are not sufficiently 
‘bought into’ the commissioning process then there is a risk that the 
commissioning work will be done in isolation and potential savings and 
effective delivery of outcomes will be reduced.” 
The mitigating action is  
“£10k pa agreed in budget to extend current grant agreement with 
Cheltenham VCA. Positive meetings held to take forward the partnership 
improvement project with Institute for Voluntary Action Research and 
programme of 3 sessions completed. Action plan and new structures 
proposed and will be taken forward. CSP endorsed the proposals at their 
meeting in June and a meeting has been held with officers at GCC to 
ensure that proposals are discussed at senior level within the 
organisation.” 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The proposed structures will enable the council to deliver many of the 
partnership elements set out in the corporate strategy.  
 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None identified 

Page 182



Cabinet partnership structures  18 October 2011 
 Page 3 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

1. Background 
1.1 In 2011 senior officers and practitioners within the public sector and the voluntary and community 

sector, participated in the Partnership Improvement Programme (PIP) which met three times 
between March and May 2011. In sessions one and two, participants spent time discussing the 
strengths of partnership working in Cheltenham and areas where they would like to do further 
work to build on those strengths as part of a commitment to continuous improvement to meet 
local needs in the light of changing legislation.  

1.2 During the final PIP session, a draft partnership structure was proposed and was agreed by all 
participants. It has fewer partnerships and simplified governance arrangements; it appears to be 
flexible, outcomes focussed and has the potential to engage diverse groups. The group identified 
three main issues that will need to be resolved: 
• Developing a terms of reference for all parts of the new structure setting out outcomes, roles, 

responsibilities, accountabilities, membership and frequency of meetings.  
• How will the transition be made from the existing partnership structure to the new model? 
• How will the Cheltenham structure relate to county-wide partnership structures? 

1.3 The CSP met on 23 June to endorse the draft structure and to agree a period of consultation to 
gain partner views on the proposals. The consultation closed on the 2 September and the 7 
responses were discussed by a CSP task and finish group that met on 8 September.  

1.4 Appendix 3 sets out the Task and Finish group’s responses to the issues raised by the 
consultees.  

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The task and finish group that met on the 8th September reviewed the consultation comments and 

also reflected on comments about the proposed structures that had been made informally 
throughout the process. Because of the overall positive nature of the comments, the group was 
firmly of the view that the proposed structure be endorsed by the CSP at its September meeting. 

2.2 The structures were duly endorsed by the CSP at its meeting on 29 September. A number of 
questions were raised at the CSP meeting that will be considered as the structure evolves: 
• Where does Arts and Culture representation sit? 
• Ensuring effective representation from businesses? 
• Do we need a place for the University/GlosCol? 

2.3 The CSP also agreed to review the primary function of the strategic leadership group and this will 
now concentrate on setting out how quality of life in Cheltenham can be improved through 
improved partnership working and leading the process of aligning organisational priorities to 
deliver priority outcomes. 

3. Implementation plans 
3.1 Endorsement and organisational buy-in 
3.2 The CSP made a request to all CSP partner agencies that they take time to endorse the 

proposals. This paper to Cabinet fulfils the council’s part of this commitment. The structures were 
also endorsed by the VCS forum that met on Monday 3rd October 2011.    

3.3 Membership: 
3.4 The task and finish group has identified who might best sit on the new partnership groups and 

these are set out in the appendix 2 for discussion.  

Page 183



Cabinet partnership structures  18 October 2011 
 Page 4 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

3.5 In terms of the Positive Participation Partnership, the group would like to see the Stronger 
Communities Partnership (SCP) take the lead in setting this partnership up and this will be 
discussed at the next SCP meeting on 3 November. They will be supported to manage this 
transition by Helen Down.  

3.6 In terms of the Positive Lives Partnership, It is suggested that a meeting be facilitated of the lead 
officers who would make up the partnership (where they are in-post). This meeting is being 
planned and will be held in October. They will be supported to manage the transition by Richard 
Gibson.  

3.7 In terms Strategic Leadership Group, it is planned to use the next CSP date on 15 December to 
formally close the CSP whilst at the same time as inviting new representatives from Probation and 
Fire and Rescue. The main business of the meeting will be endorse an updated needs analysis, a 
set of collective priorities for partnership working and an assessment of resources available to 
meet these priorities. They will be supported to manage the transition by Jane Griffiths.  

3.8 Future priorities: 
3.9 It is anticipated that the Stronger Communities Partnership meeting on 3 November will review 

the March 2011 needs analysis (and any subsequent updates) in order that an updated needs 
analysis can be presented to the CSP meeting on 15 December.  

3.10 Governance arrangements:  
3.11 Appendix 2 to this report includes a draft philosophy of partnership working that sets out a range 

of commitments on partners. The CSP meeting on 15th December will review this document and 
sign it off. More detailed terms of references for the constituent partnership groups will need to be 
developed and signed off.  

 
 
Report author Richard Gibson, Policy and Partnerships Manager, 01242 235354, 

richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Appendices 1. Risk assessment 

2. Improving partnership structures for Cheltenham 
3. Summary of questions / issues raised and responses 

Background information  
 

Page 184



   
$h15gvmag.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 06 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CR 
40  

If Partner organisations are not 
sufficiently ‘bought into’ the 
commissioning process then there is a 
risk that the commissioning work will be 
done in isolation and potential savings 
and effective delivery of outcomes will 
be reduced. 
 

Chief 
Executive 
Andrew 
North 
 

28th 
October 
2010 
 

4 3 12 reduce Effective engagement with the 
VCS forum, plus other partners 
through CSP and thematic 
partnerships. The objective of 
‘place based’ project is to engage 
partners and create alignment. 
Ensure that joint funding is 
subject to use of proper 
commissioning disciplines. 

31-Mar-12 Policy and 
Partnerships 
Manager 

remains on 
corporate risk 
register 

            

 
 

P
age 185



Page 186
This page is intentionally left blank



 

Improving partnership structures for Cheltenham 
 
In 2011 senior officers and practitioners within the public sector and the voluntary and 
community sector, participated in the Partnership Improvement Programme (PIP) which met 
three times between March and May 2011. In sessions one and two, participants spent time 
discussing the strengths of partnership working in Cheltenham and areas where they would 
like to do further work to build on those strengths as part of a commitment to continuous 
improvement to meet local needs in the light of changing legislation.  
 
Strengths of partnership working in Cheltenham 
Partnerships between the public and voluntary and community sectors work well, because of 
the enthusiasm, commitment and competencies of the individuals involved in them. These 
qualities among the people that get involved mean that ideas developed in cross-sector 
partnership meetings are taken up and implemented. Representation of the voluntary and 
community sector is strong and well supported and understood in the public sector. There 
are several strong and successful partnerships from which to learn and develop cross-sector 
partnership working further, for example, Inspiring Families.  Participants see the current 
spending cuts as an opportunity to create leaner partnerships that focus on meeting local 
needs and can deliver value for money. 
 
A partnership structure for Cheltenham 
During the final PIP session, the group began looking specifically at alternative models for a 
new partnership structure in Cheltenham. The group discussed a number of reasons why the 
partnership structures need to be reviewed: 
• The current partnership structures are resource intensive and more elaborate than is 

necessary in the new operating environment; governance can now be simplified with an 
emphasis on outcomes and action. 

• The thematic partnerships have worked well and the individuals involved in them have a 
lot to offer future partnerships but the structure of partnerships could usefully change to 
reflect current and future priorities as set out in the Cheltenham Community Needs 
Analysis. 

 
A draft structure was proposed and was agreed by all participants. It has fewer partnerships 
and simplified governance arrangements; it appears to be flexible, outcomes focussed and 
has the potential to engage diverse groups.  
 
The draft structure was consulted on over the summer and the final proposals will be 
considered by the CSP on 29 September and CBC’s Cabinet on 18 October.  
 
 
Some questions still to be resolved: 
• Where does Arts and Culture representation sit? 
• Ensuring effective representation from businesses? 
• Do we need a place for the University/GlosCol? 
 

Appendix 2 
Page 187



 
Our vision and objectives  
Our vision is for a simplified partnership structure that is easy to understand and keeps 
partners focussed on working together to meet local need, while making the best use of 
reduced resources.  
 
The objectives to deliver this vision are: 
• To achieve well-governed and relevant partnership structures to deliver outcomes 
• To develop better focused partnerships that deliver shared outcomes informed by needs 

analysis 
• To build better, relevant engagement, not just more engagement.  
 
 
 
A structure for partnership working in Cheltenham 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Positive 
Participation 

Positive 
Lives Task & 

Finish 
Groups 

Strategic Leadership Group 

Glos Safer 
Stronger 
Justice 

Commission 

Gloucestershire 
Enterprise 
Partnership 

Health & 
wellbeing 
board 

Leadership  
Glos 

Positive 
Development 

Low 
Carbon 

Dev 
Task 
Force 

JCS 

Glos 
Children’s 
Partnership 

Page 188



 
 
 
Positive Participation Partnership 
 
 
What will the Positive Participation Partnership do? 

• It will build stronger and resilient communities that can influence public service 
design and delivery 

• It will produce a regular needs analyses to support the Strategic Leadership Group in 
commissioning better public services 

 
How will the Positive Participation Partnership do this? 
The partnership will support partner’s commissioning processes by bringing together those 
groups/agencies that have a particular remit to work with specific communities, whether 
these are communities with shared needs or interests, or geographic areas. The expectation 
would be that partnership members would: 

• Ensure that there is effective coordination of consultation and engagement activities 
between service providers and communities across Cheltenham, identifying and 
plugging gaps where appropriate.  

• Collate data and information from communities (and other sources including crime 
and disorder statistics) to ensure that their needs and priorities are used to develop 
regular needs analyses. 

• Share data with other partners in line with agreed information-sharing protocols. 
• Support public bodies understand the role that their assets can play in supporting 

communities in light of the Government’s Localism Bill.  
• Support capacity building activities with communities so that they are stronger and 

more resilient 
• Work with service providers and communities to identify opportunities for community-

owned solutions in line with the needs and outcomes framework.  
• Work with commissioners of public services to ensure that there is an effective 

process for managing community budgets in line with government’s expectations 
• Ensure that communities understand constraints and limitations and why they can’t 

always have everything they need. 
• Support task and finish groups to address specific issues. 
 

How will the Positive Participation Partnership be held to account? 
The partnership will report both on progress and on updates to the needs analysis to the 
Strategic Leadership Group on a 6-monthly basis and will report as appropriate to county 
partnership structures.  
 
The partnership will also be held accountable through the democratic processes of the 
partner organisations, particularly through Cheltenham Borough Council and Cheltenham’s 
voluntary sector forum.  
 
The Positive Participation Partnership will also be accountable for commissioning small 
community-focused pots of funding.  
 
Who will sit on the Positive Participation Partnership? (suggestions from the task and 
finish group) 
 
Area-based 
• 1 x representative from the Neighbourhood Coordination Chairs’ Group 
• 3 x regeneration partnerships 
• 1 x Transition Town Cheltenham 
• 1 x representative from the Tenant and resident associations 
• 1 x representative from the C5 group (Parish Councils) 
 

Page 189



 
 
 
Communities of interest 
• Representation from CHAMPS network 
• Glos Older People’s Association 
• Cheltenham Inter-faith 
• Third Sector Services – representing volunteers 
• Discussions to be had with VCS Forum and CHAMPS network to work out how to 

represent those communities of interest that are not covered by the above representation. 
 
Organisations 
• 2 x VCS representation 
• NHS Gloucestershire – Public Health Manager 
• Gloucestershire Police Local Police C/Insp 
• Cheltenham Borough Council – Cabinet Member / Strategic Director 
• Cheltenham Borough Homes – regeneration manager 
• Gloucestershire County Council – elected member plus relevant officer 
 
How often will the Positive Participation Partnership meet? 
Proposed to be every 2 months.  

Page 190



 
 
 
Positive Lives Partnership 
 
 
What will the Positive Lives Partnership do? 

• It will translate the needs analyses and Strategic Leadership Group (SLG) priorities 
into a partnership delivery framework with appropriate resources to make things 
happen 

• It will tackle SLG priorities and achieve positive outcomes for communities by 
commissioning specific, time-limited task and finish groups or specific pieces of work.  

 
How will the Positive Lives Partnership do this? 
The positive lives partnership brings together the people who have the ability, resources and 
commitment to make things happen. It will drive the partnership commissioning process 
through its understanding of data, evidence, intelligence, needs, resources, priorities and 
outcomes. It will mobilise, align and deploy all available resources to deliver priorities and 
look to community-based preventative solutions wherever possible together with the positive 
participation partnership.  
 
It will also identify where gaps in service provision exists and how these could be addressed 
and bring forward new ways of working to overcome long-standing or complex problems.  
 
How will the Positive Lives Partnership be held to account? 
The partnership will report to the Strategic Leadership Group on a 6-monthly basis and will 
report as appropriate to county partnership structures.  
 
The partnership will also be held to account through the democratic processes of the partner 
organisations, particularly through Cheltenham Borough Council and Cheltenham’s voluntary 
sector forum.  
 
The Positive Lives Partnership will be accountable for all partnership funding allocated by 
partners to support the delivery of partnership projects.  
 
Who will sit on the Positive Lives Partnership? (suggestions from the task and finish 
group) 
 
Gloucestershire Care Services - Locality Manager 
GCC - Cheltenham Locality Action Group Manager 
GCC - Area Manager, Targeted Youth Service 
GCC – Adult Services 
Cheltenham Borough Homes 
Cheltenham Borough Council – cabinet member, strategic director plus commissioning 
director 
Gloucestershire Police Local Police Area Sup’t / C/Insp 
NHS Glos – Public Health Manager plus locality commissioning director 
Schools – Primary and Secondary representation 
Children’s Centres representative 
2 x VCS representation 
Jobcentre Plus 
 
How often will the Positive Lives Partnership meet? 
Proposed to be every 2 months.  
 

Page 191



 
 
 
Strategic Leadership Group 
 
 
What will the Strategic Leadership Group do? 

• It will set out how quality of life in Cheltenham can be improved through improved 
partnership working and lead the process of aligning organisational priorities to 
deliver priority outcomes.  

• It will ensure that there are effective working relationships between all elements of 
the public sector and VCS and that partnership structures are focused on delivering 
the vision and priority outcomes and that blockages are removed.  

• It will ensure that the public sector is moving to a better understanding of the 
collective resources available (staff, finance, property, expertise etc) to deliver the 
vision and priority outcomes 

 
How will the Strategic Leadership Group do this? 
The Strategic Leadership Group will provide strategic co-ordination, ensuring linkages with 
their own organisational plans and priorities, plus other plans and bodies established at 
national, county and local level and agreeing a vision and priority outcomes for the area and 
gaining consensus about the way forward. 
 
It will develop and drive the effective delivery of the vision and priority outcomes through 
effective performance management and holding delivery partners to account. 
 
It will own the needs analysis and any associated strategic assessments.  
 
It will be responsible for monitoring/evaluating partnership work in Cheltenham. 
 
 
How will the Strategic Leadership Group be held to account? 
The Strategic Leadership Group will be held accountable through the democratic processes 
of the partner organisations, particularly through Cheltenham Borough Council and 
Cheltenham’s voluntary and community sector forum  
 
Who will sit on the Strategic Leadership Group? (suggestions from the task and finish 
group) 
• Gloucestershire County Council - nominated county councillor and commissioning 

director) 
• Cheltenham Borough Council - Leader of the Council and Chief Executive) 
• Gloucestershire Police Local Police Area Superintendent 
• NHS Gloucestershire– Locality Commissioning Director, plus Public Health Consultant 
• 1 x VCS representation 
• Representation from business 
• Chairs of Positive Participation and Positive Lives Partnerships 
• Chair – Low Carbon Partnership to represent climate change agenda. 
• Fire and Rescue 
• Gloucestershire Probation 
• Gloucestershire Police Authority 
• Cheltenham MPs 
 
 
 
How often will the Strategic Leadership Group meet? 
Proposed to be every 4 months for the first year but then 6 monthly thereafter.  
 

Page 192



 
 
 
Positive Development Group 
 
 
What will the Positive Development Group do? 
It will ensure that there is clear link between the development and growth of Cheltenham and 
the aspirations and priorities of the Strategic Leadership Group. 
 
It will ensure that there is improved coordination between the key agendas of economic 
regeneration, climate change, health and wellbeing, travel and transport.  
 
How will the Positive Development Group do this? 
To explore how best to accommodate SLG priorities within the three key programmes of 
work: 
• Joint Core Strategy 
• Cheltenham Development Task Force 
• Low Carbon Partnership 
 
For representatives of these three programmes of work to share their short, medium and 
longer-term plans.  
 
For representatives of these three programmes of work to reflect the overall vision and 
direction for Cheltenham and the priority outcomes within their policies and work 
programmes.  
 
How will the Positive Development Group be held to account? 
The partnership will also be held accountable through the democratic processes of the 
partner organisations, particularly through Cheltenham Borough Council and Cheltenham’s 
voluntary sector forum.  
 
The three key programme areas will report annually to the SLG 
 
Who will sit on the Positive Development Group? (suggestions from the task and 
finish group) 
• CBC Leader and Chief Exec (JCS role) 
• Development Task Force Chair and Chief Exec 
• Chair Low Carbon Partnership 
• Chair Cheltenham Business and Economic Partnership 
• VCS representation 
 
How often will the Positive Development Group meet? 
The group might not meet and instead be a virtual group.  

Page 193



 
 
 
Task and Finish groups 
 
 
 
Definition of a task and finish group 
A key element of this new structure of partnership working is the ability to establish task and 
finish groups only as required to focus on the priorities for our communities. A working 
definition is as follows:  
• The group has a clear remit to tackle a specific priority issue; 
• The group is made up only of the right partners needed to tackle the issue; 
• The group involves only the people from those partner organisations with appropriate 

expertise or authority; 
• The group acknowledges which organisation has formal responsibility for delivery; 
• The group is accountable to one of the four parts of the partnership structure; 
• The group is time limited. 
 
 

Page 194



 

A draft philosophy of partnership working 
 
 
What do we want out of partnership working? 
In terms of shaping our future ambitions for partnership working in the current climate, there are two 
significant drivers; using whatever money is available in the most effective way, and building up the 
capacity of local people to be more influential in shaping service delivery. Therefore, our partnership 
structures need to be robust in the following areas: 
• Understanding existing public sector and VCS investment in Cheltenham and ensuring a return on 

this investment in terms of economic and community prosperity. 
• Strengthening how money is spent to get the best possible outcomes for the people of Cheltenham. 
• Understanding community needs from information sources as well as robust community 

engagement. 
• Maximising the potential to commission and deliver services in partnership with others using place-

based commissioning as a model. 
• Ensuring that commissioning drives up performance and creates stronger and more economically 

prosperous communities. 
• Ensuring that what we do does not knowingly undermine or duplicate the work of others, but that 

where change is needed, we use our partnerships to challenge existing service delivery models and 
use data and customer experiences to design and commission more effective solutions.  

• Ensuring that the services and projects that we commission build the capacity and capabilities of 
communities to release innovation and resource to define and build their own futures.  

 
How do we want our partnerships to work? 
• They will be clear about geographies and ensure partnership working happens at the lowest 

possible level. 
• They will be clear about our collective priorities and where partnership working can make the most 

difference and that these are then set our in our community strategy. 
• They will be clear about accountability both to the communities that we serve and the organisations 

that constitute the partnership. 
• They will challenge existing ways of delivering services and work to design new ways of working that 

meet local needs. 
• They will use the commissioning processes to ensure that we collectively deliver better outcomes at 

lower cost. 
• They will develop new relationships with communities that moves away from supply-led solutions 

and reactive interventions to a focus on early intervention that is proven to save money in the long-
run.  

 
What we will do to support partnership working 
• We will commit fully to working in partnership to deliver improved quality of life in Cheltenham 
• We will commit to ensuring that the right people are at the table who are able to influence and 

secure change. 
• We will ensure that all partners are seen as equals and we will build up trust and a shared 

commitment to our priorities. 
• We will use data, intelligence and evidence to inform and underpin decision making about how we 

collectively use our organisations’ resources to improve quality of life.   
• We will commit to working together to generate ideas and solutions to deliver these plans. 
• We will not be constrained by existing structures and processes. Instead we will put the customer at 

the heart of what we do, so that we can collectively design services around their needs.  
• We will be open to new ways of working and new types of partnership models/service providers. 
• We will support and encourage a healthy range of suitable service providers in Cheltenham. 
 
 
 

Page 195



 

For more information, please contact: 
 
Richard Gibson 
Policy and Partnerships Manager 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
Promenade 
Cheltenham 
Glos 
GL50 1PP 
 
Tel 01242 235 354 
Email: richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 196



Improving partnership structures for Cheltenham - 
summary of questions / issues raised and responses 

 
Issue/question who raised response from CSP task and finish group 
GCC fully supports the vision and 
objectives for its new partnership 
structures. 

Gloucestershire 
County Council (GCC) 

Noted 

Will the Positive Lives Partnership 
commission the Positive Participation 
Partnership or is Positive Participation 
independent 

GCC The group sees an equal relationship with a 2-
way flow of information between the 2 
partnerships.  

How will cross-cutting issues be dealt 
with 

GCC The group expects commissioners of services 
who sit on the Positive Lives Partnership to be 
able to deal with most cross-cutting issues, but 
where they are not able these issues will have 
to be escalated to the strategic leadership 
group 

Should the Positive Participation 
Partnership be a task and finish group 

GCC No, the group sees the Positive Participation 
Partnership having a critical and enduring role 
to play in the commissioning of public services. 

Should Positive Participation just meet 
every 6 months or even be a virtual 
group? 

GCC No, the group suggests that the group should 
meet every 2/3 months – frequency to be 
determined by the partnership itself.  

Is there a risk that Positive 
Participation duplicates work being 
undertaken by GCC research team 

GCC The group welcomes the continuing support 
from the GCC Research Team, but feels that 
Positive Participation will build on their hard 
data with much more local intelligence and 
data to enable the production of robust needs 
analyses  

There is a need to be clearer about 
whether Positive Lives about 
commissioning or operational delivery? 

GCC The group acknowledges some confusion in 
the wording of the consultation document – it 
suggest that Positive Lives will be very much 
about commissioning outcomes and that 
delivery will be through Task and Finish 
groups.  

Is Positive Development independent 
of Strategic Leadership Group? 

GCC The group is less certain about how this 
relationship will develop though the 
expectation is that the leadership group will 
lead and influence the Positive Development 
group on some key issues like climate change, 
transport, community engagement, health 
inequalities etc. Given the importance of the 
JCS in particular, it is critical to get this 
relationship right.  

How will Positive Development add 
value to the work-streams of the 3 
groups (Joint Core Strategy, the 
development task-force, Low Carbon 
Partnership)? 

GCC The group sees a critical role for the SLG 
about being absolutely certain about the key 
issues facing Cheltenham and ensuring that 
these are picked up in the agendas of the 
each. There is still a question over whether PD 
meets or not.  

Should membership of the Strategic 
Leadership Group be restricted to just 
commissioners? 

GCC No, the group feels that the VCS has a key 
role to play in shaping the agenda of the SLG 
and that this reflects the maturity of the 
relationship between public and VCS sectors.  

The need for partnerships to permit 
debate on key issues facing 
communities eg waste disposal, street 
cleaning, parking and to work with 
police-led neighbourhood groups to 
make sure that they are responding to 
these wider community concerns 

St Philip and St. 
James Residents 
Association 

The group sees a critical role for the Positive 
Participation Partnership in formalising the 
relationship between neighbourhood working 
and the partnership structures. There is a new 
gathering of neighbourhood chairs that PPP 
needs to nurture and ensure that local issues 
are being addressed by partners whilst at the 

Appendix 3 
Page 197



same time as supporting the chairs in their 
community roles.   
 

Welcomed the formal role of area-
based community groups / 
neighbourhood co-ordination groups 
(NCGs) in the new structures which 
gives them accountability and will help 
them develop 

St Philip and St. 
James Residents 
Association / Stronger 
Communities 
Partnership 

Through ensuring that local issues are being 
addressed, and through promoting high 
standards in accountability, inclusivity and 
transparency the Positive Participation 
Partnership will help the NCGs become more 
effective. 

Need for Strategic Leadership Group 
to provide effective leadership be more 
aspirational and remove barriers and 
align mechanisms. There needs to be 
explicit wording about sharing budgets 
and a need to provide greater 
leadership on transport issues 

St Philip and St. 
James Residents 
Association / Stronger 
Communities 
Partnership 

The group agrees with this sentiment and 
acknowledges that transport issues are of 
critical importance to the well-being of many 
communities.  

The need for proper monitoring of 
qualitative evidence to maintain a 
focus on building stronger 
communities 

Stronger Communities 
Partnership 

The group felt that there was a general 
acceptance of the need for up-front investment 
in communities to build their resilience and that 
this will be reflected in commissioning 
exercises. Though there is a key role for the 
Positive Participation Partnership in 
championing this agenda.  

Businesses need to be more clearly 
involved – need to keep links with 
Cheltenham Business Partnership; 
should CBP/Chamber of Commerce 
be on the leadership group? 

Stronger Communities 
Partnership / 
Cheltenham Business 
Partnership 

The group agrees that businesses are not 
clearly represented and that they should be; 
the challenge though is to identify a champion 
for business/economic development issues 
who can provide a strategic overview and sit 
on the SLG. 

There is a debate to be had about 
which group at district or county level 
will hold the crime and disorder 
statutory duties. There is a possibility 
that Glos Safer Stronger Justice 
Commission could hold these duties at 
the county level but this may weaken 
the districts’ contribution and local 
influence.   
 
Within this there is a debate as to 
where the 6 statutory partners would 
meet.  The Strategic Leadership Group 
will meet bi-annually which may not be 
frequent enough.   

Cheltenham 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

The group remains comfortable with the 
proposal to dis-band the community safety 
partnership; it feels that the Positive 
Participation Partnership will pick up the 
analysis of crime data / trends (strategic 
assessment), the consultation and 
engagement with communities on community 
safety issues and the recommendation of key 
community safety needs to the Positive Lives 
Partnership / SLG.  
 
The SLG will formally hold the statutory 
obligations and its membership will need to 
include Fire and Rescue / Glos Police 
Authority and Probation.  

Raised a question about how the new 
structures will ensure that 
organisations commit resources to 
support better partnership working 

Social and Community 
O+S 

The group felt that by reducing the number of 
partnerships there is a greater opportunity for 
partners to commit resources to partnership 
working.  

Welcomed the proposals as reducing 
the number of partnerships which will 
be beneficial for elected members. 

Social and Community 
O+S 

Noted 

Welcomed the opportunity for the 
community to take the lead in driving 
partnership agendas through the 
positive participation partnership.  

Social and Community 
O+S 

Noted 

Welcomed new structure – but 
suggested that the leadership group 
have a police authority presence. 

Glos Police Authority As above, the group suggested that Glos 
Police Authority sits on the SLG.  

Develop linkages between district 
structures and county structures 
especially the new Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
 

Economy and 
Business Improvement 
O+S 

To be explored moving forward; need to check 
with Andrew North about district 
representation.  

Page 198



Critical that partnerships are clear 
about needs, priorities and outcomes 
and that these are reflected in joint 
commissioning arrangements between 
partners; progress on delivering these 
outcomes needs be measurable in 
order that partnerships can be held to 
account.  

Economy and 
Business Improvement 
O+S 

The more explicit commissioning of outcomes 
is the reason for re-structuring the 
partnerships.  

Partnership structures need to add 
value; we need to be mindful of the 
costs of supporting and attending 
partnerships versus the value derived 
from working collectively to deliver 
outcomes. Partnerships needs to be 
mindful that these costs and benefits 
need to be quantified in order that they 
can be scrutinised by members.  

Economy and 
Business Improvement 
O+S 

Costs and benefits to be assessed so that 
members can have a before and after picture.  

 
  

Page 199



Page 200
This page is intentionally left blank



   
$hyj43h10.doc Page 1 of 4 Last updated 07 October 2011 
 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council 

Cabinet – 18 October 2011 
 Cheltenham Borough Air Quality Management Area& Revocation 

of (lower) Bath Road Air Quality Management Area 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Safety  

Accountable member Cabinet Member Housing and Safety, Councillor Klara Sudbury 
Accountable officer Head of Public Protection, Barbara Exley 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Social & Community 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The Environment Act 1995 and associated regulations require that local 

authorities assess outdoor air pollution against national objectives.  
Monitoring of nitrogen dioxide in Cheltenham has identified a number of new 
locations where the annual mean objective limit of 40ug/m3 has been 
exceeded.  The existing AQMA (Air Quality Management Area) on (lower) 
Bath Road continues to exceed the national objective for nitrogen dioxide 
and will be revoked and included within a new Borough-wide AQMA. 
A Detailed Assessment for the nitrogen dioxide at six locations has been 
carried out, and there is expected to be continuing breaches of annual 
nitrogen dioxide at these locations until significant traffic control measures 
are implemented. The Detailed Assessment is attached to this report as 
Appendix 1. 
 

Recommendations 1. Cheltenham Borough Council declares a new Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA) to cover the whole of Cheltenham Borough 
and revokes the current AQMA located in the portion of (lower) Bath 
Road and High Street. 
2. Cheltenham Borough Council endorses the joint working with the 
County Council as the Transport Authority in the development and 
implementation of the required Further Assessment and Air Quality 
Action Plan to address this issue. 

 

Agenda Item 15
Page 201



   
$hyj43h10.doc Page 2 of 4 Last updated 07 October 2011 
 

Financial implications Declaring the AQMA will commit the Council to producing a Further 
Assessment Report within 12 months and an Action Plan within 18 months 
which will involve some expenditure. The monitoring of the whole of 
Cheltenham AQMA will be met from existing Air Pollution budgets. Further 
resources, estimated between £7,500 and £10,000 will be required to carry 
out an Assessment Report of the results and the need for further exposure 
modelling. This expenditure will either be met by a request for a growth bid 
in 2012/13 or a virement from another public protection budget. 
Contact officer: Sarah Didcote 
E-mail: sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264125 
 

Legal implications The Environment Act 1995 Section 83(1) places a duty on Local Authorities 
to designate those areas where the air quality objectives are unlikely to be 
met as Air Quality Management Areas.   
 
Contact officer:  Sarah Farooqi 
E-mail: sarah.farooqi@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 775074 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

It is anticipated that the declaration of the AQMA will be delivered within 
existing resources. 
 
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield 
E-mail: amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264186 

Key risks  If the report is not approved, the Council will be in breach of its statutory 
obligations under the Environment Act 1995.  
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Declaring an AQMA will ensure that Cheltenham Borough Council, together 
with Gloucestershire County Council, being the Transport Authority, are 
working towards the corporate strategy objectives of : 
 

Enhancing & Protecting our Environment  
• Cheltenham’s natural & built environment is enhanced and protected 
• Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to adapt to 

the impacts of climate change 
 

Strengthening our Economy 
• We attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham 

 
Strengthening our communities 
• Communities feel safe and are safe 
• People are able to lead healthy lifestyles 

 
Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The environmental benefit of reducing nitrogen dioxide levels in Cheltenham 
should also cause a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions.  

1. Background 
1.1 The National Air Quality Strategy has required local authorities since 1997 to assess the quality of 

the outdoor air in their district that residents are exposed to.  Assessments are made for seven 
pollutants and there are separate national objectives for each pollutant.  Six pollutants are gases 
and the seventh is fine dust; only one of these pollutants, nitrogen dioxide, is a concern. 

Page 202



   
$hyj43h10.doc Page 3 of 4 Last updated 07 October 2011 
 

1.2 Nitrogen dioxide is a brown gas produced as a by-product when fossil fuel is burnt.  Man-made 
sources are combustion, such as burning coal and oil for electricity supply or heating, motor 
vehicles and industry.  The main national sources are power stations, industry and road transport.  
As an urban area, Cheltenham’s nitrogen dioxide will mainly come from road transport. 

1.3 The main effect of breathing in raised levels of nitrogen dioxide is the increased likelihood of 
respiratory problems and increased levels of nitrogen dioxide are more likely to affect people with 
asthma. 

1.4 Nitrogen dioxide has been measured in Cheltenham since 1996.  Small test tube-like devices 
(diffusion tubes) are clipped to lampposts or building facades at 40 locations around the town; 
most sites are by busy roads (“roadside”) and some in residential areas (“urban background”).  
The diffusion tubes are changed monthly and give reliable annual average data.  The authority 
has also leased an air quality monitoring station located on Swindon Road for a period of 12 
months. This is a unit containing a nitrogen dioxide analyser which operates continuously and 
provides real-time data on nitrogen dioxide pollution levels. 

1.5 There are two national objectives for nitrogen dioxide; averaged over one hour and averaged over 
one year.  The one hour objective is 200 µg/m3 (micrograms per cubic metre of air), but this is 
never exceeded so it not considered further.  The year-long objective is 40µg/m3 and is exceeded 
at six locations in Cheltenham where there is potential human exposure.  These locations are 
identified in the Detailed Assessment Report. It was considered appropriate to declare one AQMA 
to cover the whole of the Borough rather than six individual AQMA’s for ease of management and 
subsequent Action Planning. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The Environment Act 1995 and associated regulations require that local authorities assess 

outdoor air pollution against national objectives.  Monitoring of nitrogen dioxide in Cheltenham 
has identified a number of new locations where the annual mean objective limit of 40ug/m3 has 
been exceeded.  The existing AQMA (Air Quality Management Area) on (lower) Bath Road 
continues to exceed the national objective for nitrogen dioxide and will be revoked and included 
within a new Borough-wide AQMA. 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 No other options have been considered. 
4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 The Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) has been consulted and has 

accepted Cheltenham Borough Council’s Detailed Assessment Report. 

Report author Contact officer:  paul.scott@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 264358 

Appendices Detailed Assessment for new Air Quality Management Area 2011 
 

Background information DEFRA is consulting on updated draft air quality plans that set out the 
action taken and being planned at national, regional and local levels to 
meet the annual and hourly EU NO2 limit values in England as soon as 
possible.For further details please see the consultation documents at 
http://www.defra.gov.uk/consult/2011/06/09/air-quality/ 

Page 203



   
$hyj43h10.doc Page 4 of 4 Last updated 07 October 2011 
 

 

Page 204



�

�������

���������������	�
�����
����

������
��	������������	�
���	�
�����������

�

��� �
��������
�

����	
����	�������������� �
������� ����
��� ��� ���
� �������������� ��
�� ��� �����	���

��
���� 	�� ���������� ��� � 
�� !����"�
� �##$%� � ����&�
� ����	��� ��
���
� ����	���

���	��
	��'� ���
�� 	�� ���� �� 
�(�	
������ ��� 
�&�)�� ��	�� �	
� (��	��� ����������� �
��� ����

����
��������� �
��
���
��������������� ��� 	���
��
���� ��&�
�� ����
� ����	���� ����� ��&��

����"���� 	����	�	�������*����	������	���� 	�	��� ��
� �	�
������	�*	��� 	���������������
��

���
��	��������	����"	���*����
�%�

������	�������������� ��
� �	�
������	�*	��� ��
�����
�� ��� ���� ���� �	
� (��	��������������

+,���-��������	��
�������"�� ����.�&	
������������//0%�1�� 	����
�(�	
�����������
����� ����

���'���������������
���������������
����������	2���
��
����
���
�������#�#������#��%�

3����� 
���
��� �������� ����� �� ����	��� ����������� 	�� 
�(�	
��� ��� ����	���� ���
��

�*������������ �����������������
��	�
������	�*	�����������

��%�3�	��	������������������

��������%�

���� � ���������� �! �"�# !�"�� ��� $��

3�	������	�����������������������	��4�

�� 3�� 
���
�� ������	��
	��� ��� �	�
����� �	�*	��� �&��� ��� ���� ����	���� ����� �
�� �*����	���

5��	����6"7���	&��	�	��%�

�� 3�� 
�������������"	���������� ����	
�(��	���������������
��� ��� ��&�
� �������
����

������
��	���*��������%�

�

��� %��&���
��

���� � � �'(�)���$������ ��! $���� !���� ��

���������� 	�� �� ����� ��� ���'###� 
��	������ 	�� ��� �
"��� �
��� ��� 8#� )��%� 3��
�� �
�� ���

��"�����	�� 	�����
	�� ���
������� �	�
������	�*	��� +56�-� 	�� �����
��%�3��
�� 	�� �� 
�����	
��	��

�
���������������
	��	��������
�����������������

	�������"�)���������	��9����
���
���	�%�3��
��

�
�� ������	�� 
����� +�8#-� ���	��� 	���� ���� ����� �
��� ���� ����� +,����������-� ���� ������

+:�������
� ����-� "���� ��� ��	��� �����
� �
��� &��	��� �������	��� ��
	��� ���)� �
�&�� �	���%��

3��� ����	���� ���
�� ���
�� ���� "���� ��� �*��������� ��� ���� ������ ����� �"7���	&�� ��
�

�	�
������	�*	����������
�����
��	��������	���������*����
���
������
	"����������������

�
��	��	������	��������	*����	�������	���������
�����	�������	��������	*��;�

Page 205



�

�������

�%�3�����

����������
���+��������"��
�&�)��-�<�����������
���
��������������������	���

��
���%�3�	���������	��0=����
��������	���"�	�	�����&�
��	����	������
����	�������������

�	��%�3���
���������
���������
��������	��������
�����7����	��'����
���	��
�
�����7�	�������

������
����������������;���	��	����������
����"���
���	��	����%�3���
������������
��	������

���� �	��� ���� ����� ��� �
���	�� ��	��� �������
��'� 	�� �	���� ���
��� �	��� ���� ���� ��&�������

�	���
��	����������
����	���+�	����	���
����������*��-%�3��
���
��
��	����	���
��	���������'�

�������$�����������%��3������
�������������	
��������	���
����
���"�&��������������������

�	��%�3����	��2���	
�������������� ���� �
���	�� 	����'��� �	����"���'� ���"�	�	������������

���

��
����������
	"�����������	��������	����	�
������	�*	����&����"��
&�����
�%�

�%���	���������%� �������	������ ����������
���	��������	�����������
�������7����	���������

:��
���� ��
���� ��� ���
	����� ��
���%� � 3�	�� 
���� �����
� ��� �����
�� ����
	���� �� ��
��� ����

7����	�������
�����	����������������
���	��	���������������	������
�����	����������������
���	�%�

3��� �	���� �	
����������� ��� ���� �
���	�� 	����'� �	��� �
���	�� ���� ���� �
���	�� �������	��� ��

����
	"���� ��� ���� �	��� �	�
����� �	�*	��� �&��� �*��
	������ ��
�%� 3��
�� �
�� ��
��� ���� ���
�

���
��� 
��	����	�� �
��	���� ��� ���� ������ �	��� ��� ��	����� ����� ������� �	��	��  �� ��� ����


����	��%�

 %��	�����
���%�3�	������	������
����������������
��������������	�����
����"�������"�������

,��������3��)��"�
������%�3�	��
���������
���������
��	����������������	�������������
���

���
���"�	�	�������"�����	������������	�����
���������	�����
�����	������9�����
���	���������

���
��� �	���%� � 1�� ���� ��&������� ��� ���� ��� ��
������
��� �	���� ��� "���� �	���� ��� ���� 
���%�

���	����	���
��	�����
���
�����������&�
������	����	����	��������������� 8 ��	�����
���%�

8%� ,����������%� 3��� 
���� ����	��� ��� �����
�� 	�� ���� 7����	��� ��� ,������������	��� �����

���������
	�	��������8 0'��8#>0������8#�7����	��%��1��	�������
�����7����	�������
�����	���

�
���	��	����%�����	���
���������9��&	����
���	��	��������������
������������&���������
���	��

���	��� 	�������������%�3��
�� 	��������	���*����
�� �����&������	�
������	�*	��� �&��� ���


��	����	�� �
��	���� ��� ���� ������
�� �	��� ��� ,������ ����� "������� $�� ���� �#>%� 3���

"�	�	������
���
����
������
���������
�*	������/����
�����	��������
������
�������
����"��

�� ���	�����&�����%�

0%�?�	
&	�������%�3���
��������	�����������
��	����������	������?�	
&	���������
�����
�����

��
���� +�8=-� 7����	��� ��� ?	���
�� ,���� 	����	��� ���� 7����	��� �	��� @	������"�� ��
���%��

������������
����	��
���	&����	�������&�
� #�'����
���
�����
����������
���	���������7����	���

�	�����
�������
���'�����
����"����&�
���
���	��	����%��3���7����	������@	������"����
����

$#�� ��
���
� ����� 	�� &�
�� �	�	�
%� 3��� �
���	�� ������ 	�� �	��� ���� ���
�� 	�� 
���	��� �������	��%�

�������� ���
�� 	�� �� 	�	���� ������� ������'� 
��	����	�� �
���
�	��� �
�� ������� ����� ��� ����


����	����	�����&�
�����	9���
���"��)���������%��

Page 206



�

����� �

=%������)�����%�3��� 
��������	��� �
������������� ��������)���
���� 	�� ��� �����
������ ���

�	����
���	�������������
����
�&��	����������	��%�3��
�� 	����������	�����������������������

������
������
���"�	�	�����������������������
�����	���
���	&�����

�����&�������
�������

��%�3��
���
�� ��&�
�� 
��	����	�� �
��	��������� ��	�� ����	�����������)������ 	����	������

���;�>'�/'�$'���'��=������8%��

>%�   $� <�  8=�:�������
� ����%� 3��� 
���� ����	��� �
��� ����:�������
������ 7����	��� �	���

,�������� ����� ���
� ��� ���� �
���	�� 	����%� ��
�� ���
�� 	�� �� ���� ���
��� 
��� ��� ��

�����

�
���
�	����������������������
���	������:�������
������������
���	��	�� �����������������


�����	���&��	����
���	����(���	�����������
���	��	���������	��������"����%�

���� � ��*(' �"))�(���$� $��

3������
��������	�
������	�*	�������� �������	������
��������������"����"�����	��� �
���	�9

"����%�������������������	��	�	�����	�����
	���	�
������	�*	������
���%�3��������������


��	�	����	�
������	�*	����&����
��##$�������������	2���
"���"��)�
�����
��9�	����	
�(��	���

��	������������%=��A� %��3�	��B�	����������"����
���&�������"��)�
������	
�(��	���	�����

����
� �����
��� ��� ��	�� ����	��%� � �����
��� �&��� ��� ���� )�
"�	��� ����	���� �*����	���

���	���� �"7���	&��� 	����	�	��� 	�� ����	��� �%�� �
�� �&�
� ��	��� ���� �	���
	��� �
"��� "��)�
�����

�&�'����
���
���	����������
��	��	�	������������
���'�
�����
���	����������
�	�������"������

������"�����	�����
�����������
�%�

�

+�� ,������
��	�
����
��

+��� 	�$���(�$-�� ���!�

���������� ��
����� �����	� ��

����� �����
��� �	�
����� �	�*	��� ��� 8#� �	���� ��
���� ����

������	����	����	�����"�������#C�3.��	������
�����	���"���
	������	���	�	����
&	���%�3��
��

	��������
��9�	����	
�(��	�����	�������
����	�������	����������7����	���������:��
������
����

������	������������	����������������
��	���	����������#��%�3����	����	�����"���
������

�
�� 
��	�	�����������	��������	����"	�����7�������� �����
��"��	���� ��
� �
	�	���������	���"��

��&�
������
������
	�	�����	����
	������	���	�	����
&	���%��6����
��������&��"����&�	�����'�

������
���	�������������������	2����"�	���	�����	���
���	&�����%��

+��� 	�$���(�$-�#�'"���$��

5	�
������	�*	�������"���������
����������D��������	������=������������	�����###%�3�	��

���	��
	�������	�������"���������
	����	�
������	�*	�����
����	��	�	���������������	�������


������ �
��� ��	�� ����	��� ��
�� 	���
������� 	�� ���� ����
��	��� ��� ���� �	
��� �	
� ���	���

������������
���+����-�	��!����"�
��##$���	���
�������	����
������	������	��
	������

��	���
��%��?���	�����
�&	�������������������	
����	��
	�������	����	���##/'���&�
������

Page 207



�

�����8�

���	��
	�������	������
��	����	�	������
��������	���*����
������
���	����
	&�������	��������

"������

	��������
���������	���&��	������������
���	���������	��%�����������7������
������

�������
�������������
���
����&�
�������
�������
��������������	�
������	�*	��� �&���

�
��"�	����*������%� �3����� ����	�����
��������"7���� �����
������	������������������ 	��

����"���������
���������
�� 	����������������
����������
��
��
����������������������

�����
����
� ����� 7���� �����
	�	��� ����	���������������%� �3�"����"���������	��� 
������

�"��	�����	�������	��
	���������������������������	���%�?�
���
�	���
���	���	���
�&	����	��

�����#����
��
��������
�������"�	�����"��������������
����������	%�

+�+� 	�$���(�$-�( �*#���

=��������������	��
	����	���

3���"	��9��7�������	�
������	�*	�������������� �&��� ��
� ������
	����###� ����#�#��
�����

�����4�

�".# ��/�
��(�- $�!��0�! �"$$*"#�� "$����(�#�1 (�%"����"!���	����$���(�$-�)��$��

� "(� �###� �##�� �##�� �## � �##8� �##0� �##=� �##>� �##$� �##/� �#�#�


���"$$*"#�

� "$�2*-3�+4�

 $% �  >%0�   %=� 8 % � 8�%$� 8�%#� 8=%�� 88%=� 88%#� 80%8� 8=% �

�

3��� �
���� 	�� ������	*� �� 	���
����� �	���
	���� ���	�	��� �&��� ��� ��������� ����� ����	���

��
	���������
	����###�����##�'�"������������
)���
	���	���## �������&��������*�����������

�"7���	&�%�3�	����&������&�������	����"���������	������������	��������"
���������������

�"7���	&�%�3�	���	��� ���
���
���*������������##0��	�
������	�*	���������������"7���	&�����

8#��A� �	�������	
����	���������	����+.�����-+@���-��###�+����������-%�3�	���	�������

	������� 	�� ���� ����
��� �	
� ���	��� ����������� �
��� 	�� �##$%� 3�	�� �	��� 	�� �*������� ���

����	���� �*����	��� ���� �	�
����� �	�*	��� ������ ����� �"7���	&�� ���� ���
���
�� ���
��
	����

���	�����
��
�(�	
������
�������&������"�����������	�����"7���	&��	�	�����8#��A� %�

6���
� ����	���� ���
�� �*��������� ���� "���� 	����	�	��� ��&�� ���� "���� ���	��
��� �	����

�#�#%����	�	�������	��
	�����"�����&��"�����������������������	�����	��������"��	��	������

�#�������"��	����
������	���	���
���	�����������*��������56���*��������%�

�".# � �/� 
��(�- $� !��0�! � "$$*"#� � "$� ( �*#��� ��(� $ 1� ��$���(�$-� #�'"���$�� �$�

�� #� $�"����"�� 0'  !��� �$"���$"#��.5 '��6 �#��������7�*-3�+�

��'"���$� ������
���# 6 #��*-3�+�

��
�������
����<�?�	
&	��������7����	��� 8�%$�

Page 208



�

�����0�

��	����������<����
	�������
���� 80%>�

88 ��	�����
���� 8�%8�

$��,����������� 80%0�

 8#�:�������
������ 88%0�

>������)������ 8#%��

��������������+����*����
�����
"�-� 8>%/�

�

7�� ,������
��	������
��

5�� ������������	��� ���� "���� ��

	��� �����	��� ���� �#�#� ����� �������� ����	��� �
�&	����

����	��� 	�� 	������	��
��� ����� �����
���������� �
���	�� 	����'�����
� 
�����"��������������)�

�
���	�� ���� �
�&	��� �	��	�	����� 	����	����� ��� ���� ������� ���� ��� �
���	�� ��� ������ ����	����

��	��� ��&����� 56�� �&��� ��&�� "���� 
���
���%� � 3�	�� ������ ����� &��	���� �
�� ������

�����
��	��� ���� �����
��	��� ��	��� ���� ���� ��� �
����
� ����	��� ��	��	���%� 3�����

��	��	�����
������������	�����	��	������
��&��������	�������������

���
������
����������
'�

���
���������
�������
�����'������
�*	�	������)�
"�	���
��	����	���
���
�	������������
��	��

�	
�����*����
�������&������	�
������	�*	����&��%�

�

8�� ��
������
�

3������	��
	����&	��������������������*	��	��������������
��������A�	�����
�����	�������

����	��	��� ���"
����� ����������������"7���	&�%�����&�
������ 
�������� ��
���
����	��
	���

�����������	�����#�#'�	��	�����
���������
���
����&�
������
�����	����������
������"
����	���

���� ������ �"7���	&�� ��
�56�%� 3��
���
�� �� ����������	��
� ����� ������ "�� ����
��� ���

��&�
� �� �
���� ����� �
�� "
����	��� 5��	���� ,	�	��� ��
� 56�%� � 1�� �
��
� ��� ����
�� ����� ��

����	���� 	�� �*��������� �
�� 	������� �	��	�� �� ���� ����� ���� ��� ����
�� ����� ���� ����
��

�����
��������	�����	��	��������	���������������	������&�������
�"���������
�'� 	�� 	��

�
������� ��� ����
�� ��������� ���������������
����� ��� �������%� � 3�	�� 	�� ����	��
���

�������
�����
�	���
�����������������������
��	
�(��	���	�����������������"�����)�������

�������
������������
�"���	�������	������	������
�����	��	���������
����%�

�

9�� ���		�
�����
�

1��	������������"�&���	��	���'�����	
�(��	���������������
���+����-�������"������
������

��&�
��� ���� ����	�������
���*������������56������������� 	�	�������"���������
��%�

:�	������ ������� ����� ����2�� ����� ���������� �� )����� ���� �
��	����� �
���� ���

�*������������
�� ���
�� 	�� 
��&���� �*����
�%� � 1�� ���	�	��'����
�&�
� ���� "�����
�� ��� ����

Page 209



�

�����=�

�����	���
���'��������	���������&��������������	��������
�"���	��	)��������&�
�����&���

�	��
� �
��%� 3��
���
�� 	�� 	�� 
����������� ����� ��� ����� 	�� ����
��� ��� ��&�
� ���� ���	
��

��
����� ��� ���������%� � 3�	�� �	� ����
�� ����� ���� ����
�� ����	���� ��	&�
��� ��
�����

	���������	������������
�����	��������	������	��������������
�"���������
���	��	������

��
����%�����������������
�����"�����
��	��	�������	��������	*��%�

�

�

Page 210



�

�����>�

���������,,�
������

�

�)) $!�0� � ��$� $��

�� � ��������
������������������
�������������������	�������
���

� � �*����������������56�����������������"����	����	�	���

�� � ������
��������&�
	��������	�������
���*�����������������

���

�� � :
��������	�
������	�*	��������������
���	�������=�����������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 211



�

�����$�

�)) $!�0���:�,#"$����)(�)�� !�$ 1���(��*"#��;�	"$"- � $���( "���(��� #� $�"���

2��##�1�$-��� �%�(�*-��%�*$!"(;4�

�

�

Page 212



�

�����/�

�)) $!�0�%�<��,����-(")��������0�#�'"���$��1����$��� �%�(�*-��1� ( �
��(�- $�

���0�! � 0'  !"$' ��"��.  $�� "�*( !�"$!��� ( ����( # 6"$�� 0)��*( �

�

��� �����*(( $����	��"( "��$�%"����"!�=���-����(  ��

�

��� �����1�$!�$��"!�$ "(����� �(- ����(  �3� $(� ��"����

�

Page 213



�

������#�

�

��� �+����-����(  ����1"(!��� 1> �.*(;��"!�5*$'���$�26� 1� "��4�

�

�

��-����(  ����1"(!��� 1> �.*(;��"!�5*$'���$�26� 1�1 ��4�

�

�

Page 214



�

��������

��� �7����$!�$��"!�:�5*$'���$�1�����"# ���"!�26� 1�1 ��4�

�

�

��$!�$��"!�:�5*$'���$�1�����"# ���"!�26� 1� "��4�

�

�

�

Page 215



�

��������

��� �8���"�(6� 1��"!�:���$'�'��. ���(  ��5*$'���$�26� 1� "��4�

�

�

�"�(6� 1��"!���1"(!��,�(�#"$!���(  ��5*$'���$�26� 1�1 ��4�

�

�

�

Page 216



�

������ �

�"�(6� 1��"!�:���$'�'��. ���(  ��5*$'���$�26� 1�1 ��4�

�

�

��� �9���*���#>��"!�

�

�

�

Page 217



�

������8�

��� �?���#�*' �� (��"!�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 218



�

������0�

�)) $!�0���:��(")�����"$$*"#�� "$�
��(�- $����0�! �# 6 #��"��9�%"����"!�

�


���"$$*"#�� "$�# 6 #��"��9�%"����"!��� #� $�"�

#

0

�#

�0

�#

�0

 #

 0

8#

80

0#

�### �##� �##� �## �##8 �##0 �##= �##> �##$ �##/ �#�#

� "(



�
��
*
-
3�

+

�

Page 219



Page 220
This page is intentionally left blank



V1 

 

   

   

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18th October 2011 

Constitution Working Group - Review of the Constitution 
Part 3E Executive Functions 

 
Accountable member Cabinet Member Corporate Services – Colin Hay 
Accountable officers Borough Solicitor, Sara Freckelton 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement 

Ward(s) affected None specifically 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary Cabinet is being asked to consider a revised Part 3E of the Constitution -

Responsibility for Executive Functions. The revisions propose a 
fundamentally different approach on the basis that the functions delegated 
to Cabinet and Cabinet Members are prescribed in greater detail than at 
present, with those functions not so prescribed being exercised by 
Officers.  This proposal provides greater clarity as to the functions 
exercised by Members and provides for more flexibility within the Officer 
delegations.  The effectiveness of the proposed revisions is reliant upon 
sufficient safeguards elsewhere in the Constitution, particularly in Part 2 
Article 13 (Principles of Sound Decision Making).  Other parts of the 
Constitution will require significant review, consequent upon the proposed 
changes.  
This report is part of a comprehensive review of the Constitution which is 
being taken to Council for initial consideration on 10th October and for final 
approval as soon as possible, but, in any event, in time for implementation 
on or before start May 2012. Whilst Council will be asked to agree to the 
whole of the new Part 3 being incorporated in the Constitution, it will be for 
the Leader to allocate/delegate the Executive Functions in Part 3E. 

Recommendations That Cabinet 
1. Consider the proposed Executive Functions set out in the new 

Part 3E (appendix 2 to agenda item 10 Council 10th October); 
2. Make any consequential recommendations to the Leader as to 

the final form of Part 3E 
Financial implications There are no specific revenue or capital implications of this report. 

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264123 

Agenda Item 16
Page 221



V1 

 

   

   

 

Legal implications As contained in this report. 
Contact officer: Sara Freckleton, sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.gov.uk.  
01684 272011 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

The proposed changes will need to be communicated to members and 
officers once approved. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264355 

Key risks See attached risk assessment – Appendix 1 
 
1. Background 
1.1 A comprehensive review of the Council’s Constitution was commenced last year to address both 

the Council’s Action Plan approved in March 2010 and to recognise the fact that the last full 
review of the Constitution was in 2005. 

1.2 The Constitution Working Group has considered a number of matters including a comprehensive 
review of Part 3 of the Constitution – Responsibility for Functions. Part 3E relates to Executive 
Functions which are functions allocated/delegated by the Leader. 

1.3 The proposed overall approach to Part 3 will result in a requirement for consequential 
considerable amendment to other parts of the Constitution particularly the Articles (Part 2) in 
order to ensure that the decision-making is carried out transparently with robust safeguards.  
Therefore, on 10th October, Council will be asked to approve, in principle, the proposed revisions 
to Part 3 to enable the fully revised Constitution to be placed before the Council for approval once 
the Constitution Working Group is satisfied that all necessary amendments, including those 
needed to accommodate the outcome of the Overview and Scrutiny review, have been 
addressed. 

1.4 Whilst Council will be asked, in due course, to agree to the whole of the new Part 3 being 
incorporated in the Constitution, it is for the Leader (and not Council) to allocate/delegate the 
Functions contained in Part 3E. 

1.5 The new draft Part 3 is considerably shorter than the current Part 3.  This is due to: 
(a) rewriting and shortening of much of the current text; 
(b) transfer of a number of current tables/schedules to appendices to the Constitution; 
(c) a fundamental change in approach to the allocation/delegation of functions to Officers. 

1.6 The current Part 3 operates on the basis of those functions delegated to Cabinet and Cabinet 
Members being drawn in a wide sense and the delegated functions to Officers being closely 
prescribed.  The new draft Part 3 is drawn on the basis of the functions delegated to Cabinet and 
Cabinet Members being prescribed in more detail than at present;  Officers will then be able to 
exercise all other functions not so prescribed (and subject to certain safeguards as referred to 
below).  This new approach potentially has at least two key benefits: 
• greater clarity as to what the Functions of Members actually are; 
• a clearer and more flexible scheme of Officer delegation because Officers will simply 

exercise those Functions not allocated elsewhere in Part 3 and there will not be detailed line 
by line delegations which will quickly become out of date. 

Page 222



V1 

 

   

   

 

1.7 It will be important to build in safeguards to the new approach to Officer delegation.  The 
proposed safeguards are fourfold: 
(i) the Leader or a Cabinet Member (in respect of an Executive Function falling within their 

portfolio) may direct in any particular case that an Officer shall not exercise their delegated 
power and that the matter shall be referred upwards to the Leader, the Cabinet Member or 
Cabinet for decision; 

(ii) Key Decisions cannot be made by Officers except where the Chief Executive or an Executive 
Director is exercising their urgency powers; 

(iii) all Officers must comply with the principles of sound decision making set out in Article 13 of 
the Constitution (these principles, which include the obligation to comply with Financial Rules 
and Contract Rules, are being reviewed to ensure that they are comprehensive and robust 
and an updated Article 13 will be referred to Council subsequently for approval along with the 
final version of Part 3); 

(iv) where the Chief Executive, Executive Directors or Directors sub-delegate their Functions, 
they will be obliged to ensure that the empowered Officer is fully aware of the responsibilities 
and accountabilities that come with those Functions. 

1.8 It should be noted that the description of Functions and service areas delegated to Officers 
reflects the Chief Executive’s proposals to transfer some functions from the Director Operations 
to other Directors, principally the Director Wellbeing & Culture in readiness for the creation of the 
proposed local authority company with Cotswold District Council. 

1.9 The proposed delegations to officers in Part 3E include provision for the Chief Executive and 
Executive Directors to undertake functions where other officers are absent or unable to act.  

1.10 Appendix 3 to the Council report contains a draft table showing the Authority’s current corporate 
(as opposed to operational) policies, plans and strategies. This document is cross referenced in 
the new Part 3 and is intended to set out which parts of the Authority are responsible for which 
policies, etc. and who the Lead Members/Officers are together with other information such as 
when the policy, etc. is up for review. The table includes those policies, etc. which comprise the 
Policy Framework, .i.e. those which are produced by the Executive and approved by Council. 
Some elements of the table remain to be populated. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 To allow the opportunity for Cabinet to formally consider the form of Executive Functions 
2.2 To ensure that Part 3E Responsibility for Executive Functions is clear, robust, transparent and 

flexible. 
3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 The retention of a similar approach to officer delegations as that in the current Part 3 was 

considered. The Constitution Working Group decided to pursue the revised approach in view of 
the benefits set out in section 1 above but also subject to the safeguards in that section. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 Consultation on the proposed revised Part 3E has taken place with Officers, the Constitution 

Working Group and informally with Cabinet Members. 
4.2 If Members wish to make any further observations or comments on the Constitution, particularly 

any suggestions for amendment, then these can be made to any member of the Constitution 
Working Group (Councillors Les Godwin, Colin Hay and Duncan Smith) or to the Borough 
Solicitor/Monitoring Officer.  The Working Group will continue to meet and would welcome any 
input from Members to inform the review. 

Page 223



V1 

 

   

   

 

 

Report authors Contact officers: 
Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272012 
Rosalind Reeves, rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 774937 
Sarah Didcote, sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264125 

Appendix 1 – risk assessment 
Background information Council Constitution 

Report to Council 10th October 2011 

Page 224



V1 

 

   

   

 

 
Risk Assessment                 Appendix 1 
 

The risk Original risk 
score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

 Legal risks of 
challenge to 
decisions and 
processes arising 
through occasional 
but not 
comprehensive 
review 
 

Borough 
Solicitor 

6/6/11 3 1 3 Reduce Comprehensive 
review of 
constitution is being 
undertaken 

12/10/11 Borough 
Solicitor 

 

 Risk of Officers 
decisions being 
made outside of due 
process 
 

Borough 
Solicitor 
 
 
 
 

     Ensure robustness 
of the Decision 
Making principles in 
the Constitution 
 
Ensure that Officers 
sub-delegating that 
the Officers 
understand scope 
and obligations and 
accountability for 
their decisions 
 

January 
2012 

Borough 
Solicitor 
 
 
 
Chief 
Executive 

 

 

P
age 225



Page 226
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$rja1bw3t.doc Page 1 of 6 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

1.  

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 18 October 2011 
Built Environment review 

 
 

Accountable member Councillor John Rawson, Cabinet Member Built Environment 
Accountable officer Grahame Lewis, Executive Director 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary The Council has been conducting a commissioning review for the built 

environment which covers development control, strategic land use, urban 
design, heritage and conservation and building control.  A member working 
group was established to support the Cabinet Member with this review.   
The review has covered a wide range of issues and has reached the 
conclusion that given the current national planning context and feedback 
from stakeholders that an externalised delivery model is not appropriate at 
this time.  However the review has identified a number of recommendations 
which will improve service efficiency, the customer experience and 
ultimately provide savings to support the medium term financial strategy. 

Recommendations (1) That the outcome framework set out at appendix 3 is approved 
and used as a basis for the development of a service 
specification, against which the internal team will deliver. 

(2) That the Director of Built Environment restructures his team to 
assist delivery of the outcomes and agreed service specification. 

(3) That the Director of Built Environment reports back to the Cabinet, 
once there is clarity on the legislation, with regards to the local 
setting of planning fees and identifies the additional planning 
income which may be realised. 

(4) That the division continue to improve the customer experience by 
embedding the systems thinking approach across the full range of 
its services. 

(5) That the division explores with partners the opportunities to 
undertake collaborative working, where it will provide service 
resilience and make the most efficient use of resources. 

(6) That a review of alternative delivery models for building control is 
undertaken in 2013, as part of the programmed review of the 
current shared service arrangement with Tewkesbury Borough 

Agenda Item 17
Page 227



 

   

$rja1bw3t.doc Page 2 of 6 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

Council. 
(7) That the inscope range of built environment services will be tested 

against private sector service alternatives in 2013/14, to confirm 
whether the internal service continues to deliver value for money, 
based on an assessment of both cost and quality. 

(8) That the division holds regular (at least twice per year) 
stakeholder sessions including agents, developers, conservation 
and heritage groups, architects panel as well as councillors to 
discuss progress in delivering the outcomes. 

(9) That the Director of Built Environment explores the opportunities 
to extend the charging for pre application process to other areas 
currently not within scope. 

(10) That the commissioning division works with the Voluntary and 
Community Sector to support market development in areas which 
will underpin the localism bill. 

 
  
 
Financial implications Due to the levels of uncertainty around legislation on local planning fees, 

the likely levels of savings / additional income to be generated from the 
review are currently not available.  As legislation and timeframes become 
clear, further work will be required to establish the financial benefits from 
the review. 
As mentioned in the report, to ensure internally provided services are able 
to compete on a financial as well as qualitative footing, regular monitoring 
and benchmarking will be necessary to assure the council and its 
members that they are being provided with value for money services. 
Contact officer: Nina Philippidis,  Accountant         
nina.philippidis@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775221 

Legal implications None directly arising from this report but various legislative provisions and 
legal processes will apply to the reviews and the exploration of 
opportunities set out in the recommendations. 
Contact officer: Shirin Wotherspoon, 
shirin.wotherspoon@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272017 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

The Built Environment team and the recognised trade unions have been 
kept advised about the development of this project on an informal basis 
but full formal consultation will be required as soon as details of the 
proposed restructure are available.   
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy      
,Julie,McCarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
 01242 26 4355 
 

Page 228



 

   

$rja1bw3t.doc Page 3 of 6 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

Key risks As set out in appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The review has identified a set of outcomes which help deliver the 
corporate plan and community plan aspirations 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

 

1. Background to the review 
1.1 The Council has agreed to become a commissioning council by April 2012, and to meet this 

objective has embarked upon a series of commissioning reviews.  The built environment was 
considered as a priority area as it has significant expenditure and income but is also subject to 
some fundamental changes nationally.  It is important that the Council is ready to meet these new 
challenges.  It was also recognised that some funding which was previously available from 
Planning Delivery Grant to deliver these services is no longer available and some of the changes 
nationally could result in additional expenditure and higher expectations about the way in which 
the services in scope are delivered. 

1.2 A project team and member working group were established to support the review, which 
included the Director for the services within scope.  The review team have been impressed with 
the way in which managers and others from the services in scope have engaged with the review 
and are also grateful for the support they received from stakeholders who took part in the 
consultation events being prepared to give up a considerable amount of their time in contributing 
to the debate. 

2. Strategic context 
2.1 The strategic context for the review is set out in the attached document.  The review is set against 

a background of a corporate budget gap within the medium term financial strategy and legislative 
changes which will impact on the relationships between the Council and its community with the 
delivery of the Localism Bill.   

2.2 The principal challenge being thrown down by the Localism Bill is to make planning more relevant 
to local communities, by making the process demonstrably more engaging and responsive to the 
needs of those communities. At the same time, the bill makes clear that this is not a charter for 
resisting development, as the Government is also clearly committed to delivering sustainable 
growth.   

2.3 The new approach will demand more engagement with communities at the earliest possible stage 
in the planning process, including the option of local communities taking a lead on promoting a 
development vision for their own areas. 

3. Current service delivery arrangements 
3.1 The current delivery arrangements are set out in the attached document.  The total net costs of 

the services in scope are £860,600.  Over the last three years, the Council has made significant 
investments in the ICT infrastructure supporting its Built Environment services and this has 
resulted in the transformation of the planning service in particular, from one which relied heavily 
on paper, to one which is now largely web-based. This has had massive customer benefits in 
terms of the availability and accessibility of on-line information, electronic consultation with the 
public and statutory consultees and the ability for applications to be submitted through the 
planning portal. This has made the service both transparent and highly accountable to the public 
for the decision-making process. 

Page 229



 

   

$rja1bw3t.doc Page 4 of 6 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

3.2 The costs associated with the ICT infrastructure capital investment and associated training, were 
funded primarily through performance-related Planning Delivery Grant (later known as Housing 
and Planning Delivery Grant – HPDG), awarded to the authority for significant improvements in 
the speed of decision-making and the implementation of key aspects of the local development 
framework. Between 2003 and 2010,the services in scope were awarded a total of £2.1 million in 
capital performance grant via this route. This funding was also in part used to underpin core 
staffing arrangements, which helped maintain the quality and effectiveness of the service, as the 
authority implemented revenue savings to help with its corporate ‘Bridging the Gap’ (BtG) 
programme. 

3.3 Whilst underpinning service transformation, improved ICT infrastructure has inevitably increased 
the Council’s revenue expenditure on annual maintenance fees to support Uniform, its externally 
supported integrated database for both planning and building control, as well as other key internal 
services (e.g. Property, Land Charges and Environmental Health). Although efficiency savings, 
have been delivered beyond those specifically identified in the BtG programme the additional 
revenue costs of these support services have had to be borne by the division’s supplies and 
services base budgets. 

3.4 The consultation with stakeholders and with members demonstrated that there is support for the 
current in-house provision but nonetheless potential areas for further improvement were 
identified.  The services have started a System Thinking process which is putting the customer at 
the heart of delivery, and even though this is only in the early stages of implementation has been 
well received by applicants. 

3.5 Benchmarking exercises have been undertaken and demonstrate that the service compares well 
to other councils of a similar size.  In 2011, two of the RIBA’s national awards out of seven within 
the south-west region went to schemes within Cheltenham, both of which had had significant 
input from staff within Built Environment. This was more than any other local authority area within 
the south-west region. 

4. Reasons for recommendations 
4.1 The attached document sets out a range of issues that the review team considered as part of the 

commissioning process and the recommendations as set out above reflect the findings from the 
review. 

4.2 The review has identified a set of outcomes for the Built Environment division.  The 
recommendations will help the current in-house team to deliver against these recommendations, 
ensuring that this statutory service continues to deliver high quality and value for money.  They 
will also create a degree of stability for the service over the coming years.  Bringing the strategic 
land use and development management teams together under a single service manager, would 
help to ensure an appropriate balance of resourcing is maintained between policy development 
and development management activities. 

4.3 The introduction of the ability for councils to set their own planning fees, for which there is at 
present no firm timetable, will be an opportunity for the Council to close the gap between costs 
and fee income.  It is disappointing that the legislation in relation to this has been delayed and the 
review team have felt frustrated that because of this the report cannot set a definitive budget 
target for this additional income-generating potential.  However, it was recognised that there is 
scope to raise some additional income through further extensions to pre-application advice 
services and potential efficiency savings through the realignment of resources. 

5. Alternative options considered 
5.1 The review considered other delivery models including outsourcing.  The review’s findings are set 

out in the attached document.  The review team, having looked at the experience of other local 

Page 230



 

   

$rja1bw3t.doc Page 5 of 6 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

planning authorities that have externalised their service, but were unconvinced that the benefits 
outweighed the obvious risks and disadvantages, particulary with the current uncertainties about 
the national planning framework.  However, they did see opportunities to work more 
collaboratively with other local authorities, voluntary and community groups and in exploring more 
flexible “call off” contracts to cover future peaks and troughs in workloads. 

5.2 The review has also identified that it would be appropriate to undertake some form of soft market 
testing of the services within scope in 2013/14 once there is some certainty over planning income 
levels following the introduction of local fee setting.  This will provide additional reassurance about 
whether internal services continue to offer value for money, based on an assessment of both cost 
and quality. 

6. Consultation and feedback 
6.1 The review held a number of stakeholder facilitated workshops which provided valuable insight 

into the way in which the services are perceived.  Details are set out in the attached document.  
Whilst appreciating the resource implications, the review team felt that it would be useful for the 
division to undertake more regular sessions with stakeholders.  The consultation clearly 
demonstrated that the current services are valued and there was no appetite from key 
stakeholders to look at externalising the service. 

6.2 A range of potential providers were also contacted during the review and the member working 
group provided a useful member sounding board as the review progressed. 

6.3 The outcome framework set out at appendix 3 has yet to be tested with our stakeholders or with 
the wider council membership and it is suggested that this should happen before we finalise the 
framework for inclusion within our corporate strategy. 

7. Performance management –monitoring and review 
7.1 It is proposed that a service specification/service plan is developed for a three year period from 1 

April 2012 which will provide a framework against which the service can be monitored. 
7.2 It is proposed that a report is presented to the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 

six months time setting out progress against the recommendations in this report. 

Report author Contact officer: Jane Griffiths, Director of commissioning 
,jane.griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264126 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. A commissioning strategy for the built environment 
3. Outcomes framework 
4. Financial savings to date 

Background information 1. None 
 

Page 231



 

   
$rja1bw3t.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 04 October 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-4 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1. The council has an 
ambitious change 
agenda and undertaking 
a restructure within the 
team could divert 
resources away from 
the delivery of key 
projects. 

Mike 
Redman 

27.9.2011 3 3 9 Reduce The director will build 
the review into 
workplans. 
Timescales will need 
to be agreed with key 
personnel including 
HR. 

31.10.11 Mike 
Redman 

 

2. If the legislation and 
guidance for the 
introduction of planning 
fees is delayed it will 
impact on the council’s 
medium term financial 
strategy. 

Mark 
Sheldon 

27.9.2011 3 3 9 Accept The Council cannot 
control the timing or 
content of national  
legislation.   

   

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-4 (4 being the greatest impact) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6 (6 being most likely) 

Impact Description Impact 
score 

 Probability Likelihood Description 
Likelihood 
Score 

Negligible  1 0% - 5% Almost 
impossible  1 

Marginal 2 5% - 15% Very low 2 

Major 3 15% - 30% Low 3 

Critical 4 30% - 60% Significant 4 

  60% - 90% High 5 

  > 90% Very high 6 
 

 

P
age 232



 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Bo

ro
ug
h C

ou
nc
il 

 
A 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 st
rat

eg
y f
or
 th

e b
uil
t e
nv
iro

nm
en
t 

 
 1. 

Int
ro
du
cti
on
 

 1.1
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 ag
ree

d t
o b

ec
om

e a
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 co
un

cil 
by

 Ap
ril 

20
12

 an
d h

as
 co

mm
en

ce
d a

 se
rie

s o
f re

vie
ws

 w
hic

h w
ill e

na
ble

 it 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 th

is 
am

bit
ion

.  T
he

 re
vie

w 
of 

its
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s s

tar
ted

 ea
rlie

r th
is 
ye

ar 
an

d a
 m

em
be

r w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p w

as
 es

tab
lish

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e p
roc

es
s. 

 1.2
 

Th
is 
rep

ort
 se

ts 
ou

t th
e k

ey
 fin

din
gs

 fro
m 

the
 re

vie
w 
to 

en
ab

le 
Ca

bin
et 

to 
co

ns
ide

r a
 se

t o
f re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 on
 ho

w 
bu

ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s s

ho
uld

 be
 

de
live

red
.  T

he
 re

po
rt s

ets
 ou

t th
e c

on
tex

t o
f th

e r
ev

iew
, th

e m
eth

od
olo

gy
 ad

op
ted

, d
eta

ils 
of 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

ho
w 
ou

tco
me

s h
av

e b
ee

n d
ev

elo
pe

d, 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 an
d a

lte
rna

tiv
e d

eli
ve

ry 
mo

de
ls.
  It

 al
so

 se
ts 

ou
t th

e s
av

ing
s t

ha
t h

av
e a

lre
ad

y b
ee

n a
ch

iev
ed

 by
 th

e s
erv

ice
s. 

 1.3
 

Th
e s

erv
ice

s w
hic

h a
re 

wit
hin

 th
e s

co
pe

 of
 th

e r
ev

iew
 ar

e: 
� 

Str
ate

gic
 la

nd
 us

e 
� 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

� 
Bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ol 
� 

Ur
ba

n d
es

ign
, h

eri
tag

e a
nd

 co
ns

erv
ati

on
 

 
1.4

 
W
he

n t
he

 C
ab

ine
t re

ce
ive

d a
n u

pd
ate

 re
po

rt i
n J

uly
 th

ey
 re

qu
es

ted
 th

at 
the

 re
vie

w 
gro

up
 co

ns
ide

r th
e l

ink
ag

es
 to

 ho
us

ing
 en

for
ce

me
nt,

 an
d t

he
 re

po
rt 

ma
ke

s s
om

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s a

s t
o h

ow
 th

is 
ma

y b
e t

ak
en

 fo
rw

ard
 in

 fu
tur

e. 
 2. 

Co
nte

xt 
 2.1

 
Na

tio
na

lly,
 th

e G
ov

ern
me

nt 
ha

s s
et 

ou
t it

s a
mb

itio
ns

 fo
r th

e b
uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t in
 th

e L
oc

ali
sm

 Bi
ll, 
wh

ich
 pr

op
os

es
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ch
an

ge
s t

o t
he

 pl
an

nin
g 

reg
im

e. 
Th

e B
ill e

nc
ou

rag
es

 co
mm

un
ity
 em

po
we

rm
en

t, s
oc

ial
 ac

tio
n a

nd
 th

e o
pe

nin
g u

p o
f p

ub
lic 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

 Al
tho

ug
h e

lem
en

ts 
of 

the
 Bi

ll, 
wh

ich
 is
 

pro
ce

ed
ing

 th
rou

gh
 Pa

rlia
me

nt,
 m

ay
 ch

an
ge

, th
e C

ou
nc

il s
till 

ne
ed

s t
o b

e a
ler

t to
 th

e d
ire

cti
on

 of
 th

e B
ill a

nd
 to

 be
 in

 a 
po

sit
ion

 to
 re

sp
on

d t
o t

he
 pr

op
os

als
 

on
ce

 pa
ss
ed

 by
 Pa

rlia
me

nt.
  T

he
 G

ov
ern

me
nt 

ha
s a

lso
 es

tab
lish

ed
 a 

fra
me

wo
rk 

for
 Lo

ca
l E

nte
rpr

ise
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s (

LE
P)
 w
hic

h h
av

e a
 re

mi
t w

hic
h 

inc
lud

es
 ec

on
om

ic 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d s

tra
teg

ic 
tra

ns
po

rt a
nd

 w
e n

ee
d t

o b
e a

wa
re 

of 
the

 st
rat

eg
ic 
dir

ec
tio

n s
et 

by
 th

e n
ew

ly 
es

tab
lish

ed
 G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 

LE
P i

n h
ow

 Bu
ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
pro

vid
ed

 in
 th

e f
utu

re.
  

 2.2
 

Th
e p

rin
cip

al 
ch

all
en

ge
 be

ing
 th

row
n d

ow
n b

y t
he

 Lo
ca

lism
 Bi

ll is
 to

 m
ak

e p
lan

nin
g m

ore
 re

lev
an

t to
 lo

ca
l c
om

mu
nit

ies
, b

y m
ak

ing
 th

e p
roc

es
s 

de
mo

ns
tra

bly
 m

ore
 en

ga
gin

g a
nd

 re
sp

on
siv

e t
o l

oc
al 

 ne
ed

s. 
 At

 th
e s

am
e t

im
e, 

the
 Bi

ll m
ak

es
 it 

cle
ar 

tha
t th

is 
is 
no

t a
 ch

art
er 

for
 re

sis
tin

g d
ev

elo
pm

en
t, 

as
 th

e G
ov

ern
me

nt 
is 
als

o c
lea

rly
 co

mm
itte

d t
o d

eli
ve

rin
g s

us
tai

na
ble

 gr
ow

th.
  T

he
 ne

w 
ap

pro
ac

h w
ill d

em
an

d m
ore

 en
ga

ge
me

nt 
wit

h c
om

mu
nit

ies
 at

 th
e 

ea
rlie

st 
po

ss
ibl
e s

tag
e i

n t
he

 pl
an

nin
g p

roc
es

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e o

pti
on

 of
 lo

ca
l c
om

mu
nit

ies
 ta

kin
g a

 le
ad

 on
 pr

om
oti

ng
 a 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
vis

ion
 fo

r th
eir

 ow
n 

are
as

. 
 

Page 233



 
2.3

 
Th

e G
ov

ern
me

nt 
ha

s r
ec

en
tly
 is
su

ed
 a 

dra
ft N

ati
on

al 
Pla

nn
ing

 Po
licy

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 w
hic

h s
ets

 ou
t th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
co

nte
xt 

for
 pl

an
nin

g w
ith

in 
a n

um
be

r o
f k

ey
 

ob
jec

tiv
es

: 
� 

pla
nn

ing
 fo

r p
ros

pe
rity

 (a
n e

co
no

mi
c r

ole
) –

 us
ing

 th
e p

lan
nin

g s
ys
tem

 to
 bu

ild
 a 

str
on

g, 
res

po
ns

ive
 an

d c
om

pe
titi
ve

 ec
on

om
y, 

by
 en

su
rin

g t
ha

t s
uff

icie
nt 

lan
d o

f th
e r

igh
t ty

pe
, a

nd
 in

 th
e r

igh
t p

lac
es

, is
 av

ail
ab

le 
to 

all
ow

 gr
ow

th 
an

d i
nn

ov
ati

on
; a

nd
 by

 id
en

tify
ing

 an
d c

oo
rdi

na
tin

g d
ev

elo
pm

en
t re

qu
ire

me
nts

, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e; 
� 

pla
nn

ing
 fo

r p
eo

ple
 (a

 so
cia

l ro
le)

 – 
us

ing
 th

e p
lan

nin
g s

ys
tem

 to
 pr

om
ote

 st
ron

g, 
vib

ran
t a

nd
 he

alt
hy

 co
mm

un
itie

s, 
by

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 an
 in

cre
as

ed
 su

pp
ly 
of 

ho
us

ing
 to

 m
ee

t th
e n

ee
ds

 of
 pr

es
en

t a
nd

 fu
tur

e g
en

era
tio

ns
; a

nd
 by

 cr
ea

tin
g a

 go
od

 qu
ali
ty 

bu
ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt,

 w
ith

 ac
ce

ss
ibl
e l

oc
al 

se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t re

fle
ct 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
’s 
ne

ed
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort

s i
ts 

he
alt

h a
nd

 w
ell
-be

ing
; a

nd
 

� 
pla

nn
ing

 fo
r p

lac
es

 (a
n e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 ro

le)
 – 

us
ing

 th
e p

lan
nin

g s
ys
tem

 to
 pr

ote
ct 

an
d e

nh
an

ce
 ou

r n
atu

ral
, b

uil
t a

nd
 hi

sto
ric

 en
vir

on
me

nt,
 to

 us
e n

atu
ral

 
res

ou
rce

s p
rud

en
tly
 an

d t
o m

itig
ate

 an
d a

da
pt 

to 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge

, in
clu

din
g m

ov
ing

 to
 a 

low
-ca

rbo
n e

co
no

my
. 

 
2.2

 
Lo

ca
lly,

 th
e r

ev
iew

 al
so

 ha
d r

eg
ard

 to
 th

e c
on

tex
t s

et 
by

 th
e C

he
lte

nh
am

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t T

as
k F

orc
e, 

wh
ich

 w
as

 es
tab

lish
ed

 by
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 ke

y 
pa

rtn
ers

.  I
t h

as
 an

 am
bit

ion
 (u

nd
erp

inn
ed

 by
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y p
lan

nin
g g

uid
an

ce
) to

 “s
up

po
rt t

he
 to

wn
’s 
ec

on
om

ic 
str

en
gth

 an
d s

us
tai

na
ble

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
by

 
rev

ita
lisi

ng
 ke

y s
tre

ets
 an

d s
pa

ce
s t

o t
he

 hi
gh

es
t a

tta
ina

ble
 qu

ali
ty 

for
 th

e b
en

efi
t o

f th
e w

ho
le 

co
mm

un
ity
”.  

Th
e r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s f
rom

 th
e r

ev
iew

 w
ere

 
dra

fte
d w

ith
 a 

vie
w 
to 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t th

e B
uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t s
erv

ice
s a

re 
ab

le 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

is 
am

bit
ion

 bo
th 

dir
ec

tly
 an

d i
nd

ire
ctl
y. 

 2.3
 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
ha

s a
 un

iqu
e h

eri
tag

e w
hic

h u
nd

erp
ins

 its
 ec

on
om

ic 
pro

sp
eri

ty 
an

d w
hic

h c
an

 pr
ov

ide
 th

e b
as

is 
for

 sh
ap

ing
 fu

tur
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t. T
he

 re
vie

w 
tea

m 
ha

s h
ad

 th
is 
fac

t a
t th

e f
ore

fro
nt 

of 
ou

r m
ind

s i
n c

on
sid

eri
ng

 th
e f

utu
re 

of 
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

 W
e h

av
e r

ec
og

nis
ed

 th
e n

ee
d f

or 
a r

ob
us

t, h
igh

 
qu

ali
ty 

pla
nn

ing
 se

rvi
ce

 ca
pa

ble
 of

 pr
ote

cti
ng

 C
he

lte
nh

am
’s 
he

rita
ge

.  I
n a

dd
itio

n w
e r

ec
eiv

ed
 su

pp
ort

 fro
m 

En
gli
sh

 H
eri

tag
e t

o t
es

t o
ut 

ou
r th

ink
ing

 on
 

he
rita

ge
 is
su

es
 w
ith

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
.   

 2.4
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il is
 al

rea
dy

 w
ork

ing
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 Te
wk

es
bu

ry 
Bo

rou
gh

 an
d G

lou
ce

ste
r C

ity
 C
ou

nc
ils 

on
 th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f a
 Jo

int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y w

hic
h 

is 
he

lpi
ng

 to
 se

t th
e b

roa
de

r s
tra

teg
ic 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 th
e b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.  
Th

e r
ev

iew
 w
as

 m
ind

ful
 th

at 
it s

ho
uld

 no
t tr

y t
o d

up
lica

te 
str

ate
gic

 as
pir

ati
on

s 
wh

ich
 w
ill b

e s
et 

ou
t in

 th
e J

CS
, b

ut 
we

 ho
pe

 th
at 

ou
tco

me
s d

ev
elo

pe
d t

hro
ug

h t
his

 re
vie

w 
wil

l h
elp

 sh
ap

e t
he

 st
rat

eg
ic 
thi

nk
ing

 as
 th

e J
CS

 is
 de

ve
lop

ed
 

ag
ain

st 
its
 ev

ide
nc

e b
as

e. 
 2.5

 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 a 

fun
din

g g
ap

 of
 £2

.5m
 ov

er 
the

 ne
xt 

fiv
e y

ea
rs 

as
 se

t o
ut 

in 
its
 m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an

cia
l s
tra

teg
y a

nd
 sa

vin
gs

 ne
ed

 to
 be

 id
en

tifi
ed

 to
 cl
os

e 
thi

s g
ap

.  C
ou

nc
illo

rs 
ha

ve
 ex

pli
cit
ly 
ind

ica
ted

 th
at 

the
y w

ish
 to

 se
e f

ron
t-li

ne
 se

rvi
ce

s p
rot

ec
ted

.  T
his

 be
ing

 th
e c

as
e, 

the
 re

vie
w 
gro

up
 ac

ce
pte

d t
ha

t it
 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 th
ink

 in
no

va
tiv
ely

 ab
ou

t h
ow

 w
e c

an
 se

cu
re 

qu
ali
ty 

ou
tco

me
s a

t a
 re

du
ce

d n
et 

co
st 

to 
co

un
cil 

tax
 pa

ye
rs.

 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 pr

ov
ide

s a
 fra

me
wo

rk 
in 

wh
ich

 to
 ha

ve
 th

es
e d

isc
us

sio
ns

 w
ith

 of
fic
ers

, e
lec

ted
 m

em
be

rs,
 cu

sto
me

rs 
an

d s
tak

eh
old

ers
.  

 2.6
 

Th
e s

erv
ice

s i
n s

co
pe

 ha
ve

 al
rea

dy
 de

live
red

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 bu
dg

et 
sa

vin
gs

 an
d t

he
se

 ar
e s

et 
ou

t la
ter

.  T
he

 se
rvi

ce
s a

lso
 ha

ve
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ex
ist
ing

 Br
idg

ing
 

the
 G

ap
 ta

rge
ts 

wh
ich

 st
ill n

ee
d t

o b
e a

ch
iev

ed
 in

 th
e c

urr
en

t y
ea

r.  
Th

e r
ev

iew
 w
as

 th
ere

for
e c

on
ce

rne
d t

o b
e r

ea
list

ic 
in 

se
ttin

g n
ew

 ta
rge

ts 
for

 fin
an

cia
l 

sa
vin

gs
 ta

rge
ts 

ov
er 

an
d a

bo
ve

 w
ha

t h
as

 al
rea

dy
 be

en
 ag

ree
d. 

 O
ur 

thi
nk

ing
 on

 th
is 
as

pe
ct 

of 
the

 re
vie

w 
is 
se

t o
ut 

in 
se

cti
on

 12
 be

low
. 

 3. 
Me

tho
do
log

y 
 3.1

 
Th

e r
ev

iew
 w
as

  u
nd

ert
ak

en
 by

 th
e C

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 D
ivis

ion
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 th
os

e w
ith

in 
the

 se
rvi

ce
s i
n s

co
pe

.  A
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

wa
s e

sta
bli
sh

ed
 ch

air
ed

 by
 

the
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
 D
ire

cto
r a

nd
 in

clu
de

d t
he

 C
ab

ine
t M

em
be

r fo
r B

uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t.  
Th

e r
ev

iew
 w
as

 su
pp

ort
ed

 by
 a 

me
mb

er 
wo

rki
ng

 gr
ou

p c
ha

ire
d b

y t
he

 
Ca

bin
et 

Me
mb

er 
an

d c
om

pri
se

d: 

Page 234



 
 

Co
un

cill
or 

Jo
hn

 R
aw

so
n 

 
Co

un
cill

or 
Tim

 C
oo

pe
r 

 
Co

un
cill

or 
Ba

rba
ra 

Dr
ive

r 
 

Co
un

cill
or 

Be
rna

rd 
Fis

he
r 

 
Co

un
cill

or 
Pe

ter
 Je

ffe
rie

s 
 

Co
un

cill
or 

He
len

a M
cC

los
ke

y 
  

Th
e p

roj
ec

t te
am

 m
et 

ev
ery

 tw
o w

ee
ks
 an

d t
he

 m
em

be
r w

ork
ing

 gr
ou

p m
et 

se
ve

ral
 tim

es
 to

 co
ns

ide
r th

e k
ey

 is
su

es
 an

d s
up

po
rt t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
thi

s 
str

ate
gy

. 
 3.2

 
Th

e r
ev

iew
 is
 us

ing
 th

e c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 m

eth
od

olo
gy

 (a
na

lys
is,
 pl

an
, p

roc
ure

 an
d r

ev
iew

) a
nd

 se
t o

ut 
be

low
 is
 a 

su
mm

ary
 of

 th
e w

ork
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

nd
 th

e 
ke

y f
ind

ing
s. 

  4. 
Fu
tur

e p
ro
ofi

ng
 

 4.1
 

Of
fic
ers

 fro
m 

the
 se

rvi
ce

s w
ith

in 
sc
op

e p
lus

 ot
he

r o
ffic

ers
 fro

m 
the

 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 D
ivis

ion
, u

nd
ert

oo
k a

 fu
tur

e p
roo

fin
g e

xe
rci

se
 at

 th
e s

tar
t o

f th
e r

ev
iew

.  
Th

is 
en

ab
led

 of
fic
ers

 to
 th

ink
 ab

ou
t th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
co

nte
xt 

in 
wh

ich
 th

ey
 de

live
r th

eir
 se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 w
ha

t th
e f

utu
re 

ma
y h

old
 in

 te
rm

s o
f s

erv
ice

 de
live

ry.
  It

 
all
ow

ed
 th

em
 to

 id
en

tify
 so

me
 of

 th
e r

isk
s a

nd
 un

ce
rta

int
ies

 an
d a

lso
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

ha
t m

ay
 ar

ise
 fro

m 
the

 pr
op

os
ed

 ch
an

ge
s a

t th
e n

ati
on

al 
lev

el.
  

Th
ey

 re
co

gn
ise

d t
ha

t h
ow

ev
er 

se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
de

live
red

, fu
tur

e s
erv

ice
 de

live
ry 

ne
ed

s t
o b

e f
lex

ibl
e, 

co
st 

eff
icie

nt 
an

d t
o b

e a
ble

 to
 ex

plo
it n

ew
 te

ch
no

log
y. 

 4.2
 

Th
is 
ini
tia

l s
co

pin
g w

ork
 id

en
tifi
ed

 th
at 

the
 C
ou

nc
il w

ill n
ee

d t
o b

e i
n a

 po
sit
ion

 to
 ac

tiv
ely

 su
pp

ort
 co

mm
un

itie
s s

ho
uld

 th
ey

 w
ish

 to
 pu

rsu
e t

he
 ap

pro
ac

he
s 

se
t o

ut 
wit

hin
 th

e L
oc

ali
sm

 Bi
ll. 
 It 

wa
s r

ec
og

nis
ed

 th
at 

the
re 

ma
y b

e s
ev

era
l w

ay
s i
n w

hic
h t

his
 ca

n b
e d

eli
ve

red
 an

d t
he

se
 ar

e e
xp

lor
ed

 in
 m

ore
 de

tai
l in

 
se

cti
on

 ei
gh

t.. 
 H
ow

ev
er 

it w
as

 re
co

gn
ise

d t
ha

t th
ere

 ar
e n

o d
ed

ica
ted

 bu
dg

ets
 fo

r th
is 
ac

tiv
ity
 an

d s
o s

om
e s

av
ing

s m
ay

 ne
ed

 to
 be

 re
inv

es
ted

 to
 su

pp
ort

 
thi

s w
ork

. 
 5. 

Ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is 
 5.1

 
Th

e C
he

lte
nh

am
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ha

s p
rep

are
d a

 “n
ee

ds
 an

aly
sis

” fo
r th

e a
rea

. It
 is
 ba

se
d o

n e
vid

en
ce

 dr
aw

n f
rom

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 so
urc

es
 in

clu
din

g t
he

 
Jo

int
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Ne

ed
s A

ss
es

sm
en

ts 
un

de
rta

ke
n a

t a
 co

un
ty 

lev
el 

bu
t a

lso
 dr

aw
ing

 on
 m

ore
 lo

ca
lly 

ba
se

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y a

 ra
ng

e o
f s

tak
eh

old
ers

 
an

d p
art

ne
rs.

 
 5.2

 
Th

e r
ev

iew
 ha

s t
ak

en
 th

is 
inf

orm
ati

on
 an

d d
ev

elo
pe

d i
ts 

ow
n n

ee
ds

 as
se

ss
me

nt 
for

 th
e b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, a
 co

py
 of

 w
hic

h h
as

 be
en

 m
ad

e a
va

ila
ble

 to
 

me
mb

ers
.   

Th
e m

em
be

r w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p c

on
sid

ere
d t

he
 an

aly
sis

 an
d r

eq
ue

ste
d t

ha
t it

 be
 up

da
ted

 to
 re

fle
ct 

the
 ne

ed
s o

f C
he

lte
nh

am
’s 
div

ers
e 

co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

, w
he

the
r d

efi
ne

d g
eo

gra
ph

ica
lly 

or 
de

mo
gra

ph
ica

lly.
 Th

e w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p i

s o
f th

e v
iew

 th
at 

wh
en

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

a “
on

e-s
ize

-fit
s-a

ll-a
pp

roa
ch

” m
ay

 no
t b

e a
pp

rop
ria

te 
for

 so
me

 ar
ea

s o
f th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

 

Page 235



 
5.3

 
Th

e n
ee

ds
 an

aly
sis

 se
ts 

ou
t k

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s i
n r

ela
tio

n t
o t

he
 ec

on
om

y, 
ho

us
ing

, g
ree

n s
pa

ce
, c

lim
ate

 ch
an

ge
, d

em
og

rap
hy

, h
ea

lth
 an

d d
ep

riv
ati

on
.  A

 
sp

ati
al 

pla
nn

ing
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
es

e i
ss
ue

s i
s b

ein
g a

dd
res

se
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 Jo
int

 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y, 

bu
t th

e r
ev

iew
 te

am
 ha

ve
 us

ed
 th

es
e n

ee
ds

 to
 he

lp 
de

ve
lop

 
a s

et 
of 

ou
tco

me
s  

 6. 
De

ve
lop

ing
 ou

tco
me

s 
 6.1

 
De

ve
lop

ing
 ou

tco
me

s i
s t

he
 cr

itic
al 

ph
as

e o
f a

ny
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 ex
erc

ise
 as

 th
ey

 an
sw

er 
the

 qu
es

tio
n “

wh
at 

do
 w
e w

an
t o

ur 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o a

ch
iev

e”.
  

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e f
rom

 th
e l

eis
ure

 an
d c

ult
ure

 re
vie

w,
 ha

s h
elp

ed
 us

 to
 ad

op
t a

 rig
oro

us
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o d

ev
elo

pin
g o

utc
om

es
 by

 as
kin

g: 
• 

Do
 th

e o
utc

om
es

 de
sc
rib

e a
n e

nd
 re

su
lt /

 th
e d

iffe
ren

ce
 w
e w

ill m
ak

e?
 

• 
Do

 th
e o

utc
om

es
 re

lat
e t

o t
he

 ne
ed

s w
e h

av
e i

de
nti

fie
d?

 
• 

Ar
e t

he
 ou

tco
me

s e
as

ily 
un

de
rst

oo
d b

y e
lec

ted
 m

em
be

rs 
an

d m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 pu
bli
c?

 
• 

Do
 th

e o
utc

om
es

 fe
el 

like
 an

 in
trin

sic
 pa

rt o
f w

ha
t C

he
lte

nh
am

 Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou

nc
il d

oe
s?

 
 6.2

 
Us

ing
 th

is 
fra

me
wo

rk,
 th

e p
roj

ec
t g

rou
p d

ev
elo

pe
d a

n i
nit

ial
 se

t o
f o

utc
om

es
 ba

se
d o

n t
he

 ne
ed

s a
nd

 th
e c

urr
en

t c
orp

ora
te 

str
ate

gy
 an

d t
he

se
 w
ere

 te
ste

d 
wit

h t
he

 m
em

be
r w

ork
ing

 gr
ou

p. 
De

ba
tin

g t
he

 fu
nd

am
en

tal
s o

f “w
ha

t d
o w

e w
an

t o
ur 

Bu
ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o a
ch

iev
e” 

ha
s e

na
ble

d m
em

be
rs 

to 
ha

ve
 

he
alt

hy
 an

d i
nn

ov
ati

ve
 di

sc
us

sio
ns

 an
d t

he
y h

av
e i

np
utt

ed
 a 

fur
the

r ra
ng

e o
f o

utc
om

es
 th

at 
the

y w
ou

ld 
wis

h t
o s

ee
 de

live
red

, fo
cu

sin
g o

n t
he

 ec
on

om
y, 

go
od

 de
sig

n a
nd

 fle
xib

le 
us

e o
f s

pa
ce

, h
eri

tag
e a

nd
 su

sta
ina

bil
ity
. In

 di
sc
us

sin
g o

utc
om

es
 th

ey
 ha

ve
 al

so
 id

en
tifi
ed

 so
me

 of
 th

e u
nd

erl
yin

g p
rin

cip
les

 th
at 

the
y w

ou
ld 

wa
nt 

to 
se

e b
uil
t in

to 
an

y s
erv

ice
 pr

ov
isio

n. 
 Th

e o
utc

om
es

 w
ere

 te
ste

d w
ith

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
 th

rou
gh

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
se

ss
ion

s w
hic

h, 
alt

ho
ug

h f
oc

us
ing

 on
 he

rita
ge

 an
d c

on
se

rva
tio

n, 
ga

ve
 us

 an
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o a
sc
ert

ain
 w
ha

t is
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 

ou
r s

tak
eh

old
ers

.  I
n c

rea
tin

g t
he

se
 ou

tco
me

s t
he

 
rev

iew
 te

am
 ar

e m
ind

ful
 th

at 
a s

erv
ice

 w
hic

h d
eli
ve

rs 
va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y i
s i
mp

era
tiv
e. 

 6.3
 

Th
e p

rop
os

ed
 ou

tco
me

s a
re 

inc
lud

ed
 in

 a 
ch

art
 at

 ap
pe

nd
ix 

3 
 Pr
im

ary
 ou

tco
me

: 
Pr
om

ote
, e

nh
an

ce
 an

d b
uil
d a

 be
tte

r a
nd

 su
sta

ina
ble

 en
vir

on
me

nt 
for

 C
he

lte
nh

am
. 

  En
vir

on
me

nta
l o

utc
om

es
 

• T
o e

ns
ure

 th
e c

on
se

rva
tio

n a
nd

 en
ha

nc
em

en
t o

f C
he

lte
nh

am
's 
arc

hit
ec

tur
al 

an
d l

an
ds

ca
pe

 he
rita

ge
 is
 co

ns
erv

ed
 an

d e
nh

an
ce

d 
• C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
arc

hit
ec

tur
al 

an
d l

an
ds

ca
pe

 he
rita

ge
 is
 w
ell
 m

ain
tai

ne
d a

nd
 th

eir
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 fu

tur
e i

s s
ec

ure
d 

• N
ew

 de
ve

lop
me

nts
 m

ee
t h

igh
 de

sig
n a

nd
 su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 st

an
da

rds
, re

sp
ec

tin
g a

nd
 re

sp
on

din
g t

o C
he

lte
nh

am
’s 
sp

ec
ial
 he

rita
ge

 id
en

tity
. 

• B
iod

ive
rsi

ty 
is 
pro

tec
ted

 an
d e

nh
an

ce
d a

nd
 th

e n
atu

ral
 en

vir
on

me
nt 

is 
ab

le 
to 

ad
ap

t to
 cl
im

ate
 ch

an
ge

 
• E

xis
tin

g b
uil
din

gs
, in

clu
din

g h
eri

tag
e a

ss
ets

, c
on

tin
ue

 to
 be

 fu
nc

tio
na

l a
nd

 fit
 fo

r p
urp

os
e a

s t
he

 cl
im

ate
 ch

an
ge

s 
 Ec

on
om

ic 
ou

tco
me

s 
• C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
arc

hit
ec

tur
al 

an
d l

an
ds

ca
pe

 he
rita

ge
 an

d s
en

se
 of

 lo
ca

l d
ist
inc

tiv
en

es
s m

ak
es

 th
e b

oro
ug

h a
 de

sir
ab

le 
loc

ati
on

 fo
r b

us
ine

ss
es

. 
• C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
arc

hit
ec

tur
al 

an
d l

an
ds

ca
pe

 he
rita

ge
 an

d s
en

se
 of

 lo
ca

l d
ist
inc

tiv
en

es
s c

rea
tes

 an
 at

tra
cti
ve

 en
vir

on
me

nt 
wh

ere
 pe

op
le 

ch
oo

se
 to

 
rel

oc
ate

 in
 se

arc
h o

f e
mp

loy
me

nt 
• C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
arc

hit
ec

tur
al 

an
d l

an
ds

ca
pe

 he
rita

ge
 an

d s
en

se
 of

 lo
ca

l d
ist
inc

tiv
en

es
s c

rea
tes

 an
 at

tra
cti
ve

 en
vir

on
me

nt 
wh

ich
 at

tra
cts

 vi
sit
ors

 

Page 236



 
• C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
bu

sin
es

se
s a

re 
ab

le 
to 

gro
w 
an

d i
nv

es
t in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h t
hro

ug
h e

nc
ou

rag
ing

 go
od

 qu
ali
ty 

ne
w 
arc

hit
ec

tur
e d

es
ign

ed
 fo

r th
e f

utu
re 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g h

ist
ori

c b
uil
din

gs
 ar

e f
lex

ibl
e t

o b
us

ine
ss
 ne

ed
s w

hil
st 

sa
feg

ua
rdi

ng
 th

eir
 sp

ec
ial
 qu

ali
tie

s 
• C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
ec

on
om

y d
ev

elo
ps

 in
 a 

su
sta

ina
ble

 w
ay

 w
hic

h r
efl

ec
ts 

en
vir

on
me

nta
l lim

its
 an

d t
he

 ne
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 ca
rbo

n e
mi

ss
ion

s. 
 

 So
cia

l o
utc

om
es
 

• 
Pe

op
le 

ha
ve

 an
 im

pro
ve

d q
ua

lity
 of

 lif
e a

nd
 w
ell
be

ing
 th

rou
gh

 be
ing

 ab
le 

to 
ac

ce
ss
 an

d e
njo

y f
orm

al 
an

d i
nfo

rm
al 

rec
rea

tio
n a

nd
 gr

ee
n s

pa
ce

s. 
 

• 
Pe

op
le 

ha
ve

 an
 im

pro
ve

d q
ua

lity
 of

 lif
e a

nd
 w
ell
be

ing
 by

 en
ha

nc
ing

 an
d s

us
tai

nin
g a

 se
ns

e o
f lo

ca
l d

ist
inc

tiv
en

es
s a

nd
 go

od
 de

sig
n o

f n
ew

 
bu

ild
ing

s 
• 

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 an

 im
pro

ve
d u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
cu

ltu
ral

 he
rita

ge
 

• 
Pe

op
le 

ha
ve

 an
 im

pro
ve

d q
ua

lity
 of

 lif
e a

nd
 w
ell
be

ing
 by

 m
ain

tai
nin

g a
 hi

gh
 qu

ali
ty 

bu
ilt 
an

d n
atu

ral
 en

vir
on

me
nt 

 
• 

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 in

flu
en

ce
 ov

er 
an

d a
re 

ab
le 

to 
co

ntr
ibu

te 
to 

the
ir l

oc
al 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
• 

Pe
op

le 
live

 in
 sa

fe,
 w
arm

 & 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

me
s t

ha
t m

ee
t th

eir
 pe

rso
na

l n
ee

ds
 

• 
Pe

op
le 

ha
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 a 
wid

e r
an

ge
 of

 so
cia

l a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity
 fa

cili
tie

s 
 

Va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
 ou

tco
me

s 
• P

eo
ple

 re
ce

ive
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 fro

m 
the

 se
rvi

ce
s t

he
 C
ou

nc
il p

rov
ide

s 
• T

he
 ga

p b
etw

ee
n t

he
 co

st 
of 

de
live

ry 
an

d f
ee

 in
co

me
 is
 re

du
ce

d 
  6.4

 
As

 w
e a

re 
sta

rtin
g t

o p
rog

res
s a

 ra
ng

e o
f c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 re

vie
ws

 it 
is 
ev

ide
nt 

tha
t th

ere
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e  

lin
ka

ge
s w

ith
 th

e o
utc

om
es

 fro
m 

the
 ot

he
r re

vie
ws

, s
o 

the
 ou

tco
me

s h
av

e b
ee

n t
es

ted
 ag

ain
st 

tho
se

 be
ing

 de
ve

lop
ed

 in
 le

isu
re 

an
d c

ult
ure

, h
ou

sin
g a

nd
 gr

ee
n e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 7. 

Cu
rre

nt 
se
rvi

ce
 de

liv
er
y 

 7.1
 

Th
ere

 ar
e a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

se
rvi

ce
s w

ith
in 

the
 sc

op
e o

f th
e r

ev
iew

 bu
t it

 is
 al

so
 ob

vio
us

 th
at 

de
fin

ing
 ou

tco
me

s f
or 

the
se

 se
rvi

ce
s w

ill a
lso

 im
pa

ct 
on

 ot
he

r 
se

rvi
ce

s e
g p

ark
s a

nd
 ga

rde
ns

, h
ou

sin
g, 

ec
on

om
ic 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d c

ar 
pa

rki
ng

.  H
ow

ev
er 

the
se

 ar
ea

s h
av

e n
ot 

be
en

 co
ns

ide
red

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

is 
rev

iew
 in

 
ord

er 
to 

ke
ep

 th
e r

ev
iew

 pr
oc

es
s t

o a
 m

an
ag

ea
ble

 sc
ale

. 
 7.1

.0 
Bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ol 
 7.1

.1 
Bu

ild
ing

 C
on

tro
l s
ee

ks
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 m

ini
mu

m 
sta

nd
ard

s o
f c

on
str

uc
tio

n t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e h

ea
lth

 an
d s

afe
ty 

of 
pe

op
le 

in 
or 

aro
un

d b
uil
din

gs
 an

d i
s a

lso
 

inc
rea

sin
gly

 co
nc

ern
ed

 w
ith

 en
erg

y c
on

se
rva

tio
n a

nd
 w
ith

 ac
ce

ss
 an

d f
ac

iliti
es

 fo
r d

isa
ble

d p
eo

ple
. It

 ha
s a

n e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
rol

e a
nd

 th
is 
ca

n r
es

ult
 in

 ac
tio

n 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e c

ou
rts

.  T
he

 Bu
ild
ing

 R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 ar

e a
 st

atu
tor

y f
ram

ew
ork

 ag
ain

st 
wh

ich
 th

e s
erv

ice
 pr

ov
ide

s a
dv

ice
 an

d s
up

po
rt t

o c
us

tom
ers

 ab
ou

t s
afe

, 
se

cu
re 

an
d c

om
for

tab
le 

bu
ild
ing

s a
nd

 so
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

is 
ge

ne
ral

ly 
co

ns
ide

red
 to

 be
 a 

‘la
st 

res
ort

’. 
 7.1

.2 
Ta

sk
s w

hic
h t

he
 Bu

ild
ing

 C
on

tro
l te

am
 un

de
rta

ke
 in

clu
de

: 
• 

As
sis

tin
g c

us
tom

ers
 so

 th
at 

the
ir p

roj
ec

ts 
are

 su
cc
es

sfu
lly 

co
mp

let
ed

 an
d c

om
ply

 w
ith

 th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
of 

the
 Bu

ild
ing

 R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 

• 
Ch

ec
kin

g a
pp

lica
tio

ns
 fo

r c
om

pli
an

ce
 w
ith

 th
e B

uil
din

g R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 

• 
Sit

e i
ns

pe
cti
on

s t
o c

he
ck
 fo

r c
om

pli
an

ce
 w
ith

 th
e B

uil
din

g R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 

Page 237



 
• 

En
for

ce
me

nt 
ac

tio
n r

ela
tin

g t
o t

he
 Bu

ild
ing

 R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 

• 
De

ali
ng

 w
ith

 da
ng

ero
us

 st
ruc

tur
es

 
• 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 he
lp 

an
d a

dv
ice

 on
 is
su

es
 of

 in
clu

siv
e d

es
ign

 an
d a

cc
es

s t
o b

uil
din

gs
 

• 
As

sis
tin

g c
oll
ea

gu
es

 in
 th

e p
lan

nin
g s

erv
ice

 
• 

Str
ee

t n
am

ing
 an

d n
um

be
rin

g 
• 

Ac
ce

ss
 au

dit
s 

• 
As

sis
tin

g w
ith

 th
e r

es
olu

tio
n o

f d
an

ge
rou

s s
tru

ctu
res

 an
d r

ela
ted

 in
cid

en
ts.

 
 7.1

.3 
Th

e B
uil
din

g C
on

tro
l s
erv

ice
 op

era
tes

 in
 a 

co
mp

eti
tiv
e m

ark
et 

an
d t

he
re 

are
 nu

me
rou

s p
riv

ate
 se

cto
r s

up
pli
ers

 of
 se

rvi
ce

s. 
Bu

ild
ing

 C
on

tro
l is

 re
qu

ire
d b

y 
go

ve
rnm

en
t g

uid
an

ce
 to

 br
ea

k-e
ve

n o
n f

ee
 in

co
me

. 
 7.1

.4 
Jo

int
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith

 Te
wk

es
bu

ry 
Bo

rou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il (

TB
C)

 ha
s b

ee
n o

pe
rat

ion
al 

sin
ce

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9 t
hro

ug
h a

 Se
cti
on

 10
1 a

gre
em

en
t w

he
re 

we
 de

live
r th

e 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o T

BC
. T

his
 ac

tio
n w

as
 ai

me
d a

t p
rov

idi
ng

 a 
res

ilie
nt 

se
rvi

ce
 w
hic

h c
ou

ld 
be

 de
ve

lop
ed

 to
 w
ork

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 w
ith

in 
a c

om
pe

titi
ve

 en
vir

on
me

nt.
 

Th
ere

 w
as

 al
so

 as
se

ss
ed

 to
 be

 a 
sm

all
 fin

an
cia

l b
en

efi
t re

su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
e l

os
s o

f o
ne

 m
an

ag
er 

an
d o

ne
 su

pp
ort

 te
am

 m
em

be
r.  

 7.1
.5 

Th
ere

 ar
e a

 to
tal

 of
 13

.6 
ful

l-ti
me

 eq
uiv

ale
nt 

(FT
E)
 st

aff
 co

mp
ris

ing
. 3

 (F
TE

)su
pp

ort
 of

fic
ers

, 9
.6 

(FT
E)
 si
te 

ins
pe

cti
on

 st
aff

 an
d 1

 m
an

ag
er 

wo
rki

ng
 ac

ros
s 

the
 tw

o a
uth

ori
tie

s. 
  7.2

 
St

rat
eg

ic 
lan

d u
se

 
 7.2

.1 
Th

is 
tea

m 
pro

vid
es

 th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
fra

me
wo

rk 
wit

hin
 w
hic

h s
pa

tia
l p

lan
nin

g r
ela

ted
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y s

tra
teg

y o
utc

om
es

 ca
n b

e d
eli
ve

red
.  T

his
 re

qu
ire

s 
eff

ec
tiv
e e

ng
ag

em
en

t b
oth

 in
ter

na
lly 

wit
h o

ffic
ers

 an
d e

lec
ted

 m
em

be
rs 

an
d e

xte
rna

lly 
wit

h s
tat

uto
ry 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs 
an

d t
he

 w
ide

r p
ub

lic.
  T

he
 Lo

ca
lism

 Bi
ll 

wil
l re

qu
ire

 a 
rev

iew
 of

 en
ga

ge
me

nt 
an

d t
he

 w
ay

 in
 w
hic

h s
erv

ice
s a

re 
de

live
red

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f a

cti
vit
ies

 un
de

rta
ke

n w
ith

 pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
ils 

an
d 

co
mm

un
ity
 gr

ou
ps

.  T
he

 w
ork

 of
 th

e t
ea

m 
ca

n b
e b

rok
en

 do
wn

 ac
ros

s t
hre

e s
tra

nd
s w

hic
h a

re 
se

t o
ut 

be
low

: 
 

De
liv
eri
ng
 th
e s
tat
uto
ry 

de
ve
lop
me
nt 
pla
n f
or
 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 

Mo
nit
or
ing
 an
d r
es
ea
rch
 

St
ak
eh
old
er 
en
ga
ge
me
nt 

Pr
ep
ara

tio
n a

nd
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 

of 
the

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Bo

rou
gh

 Lo
ca
l 

Pla
n a

nd
 C
he

lte
nh

am
's 
Lo
ca
l 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk.
 

 

La
nd

 us
e m

on
ito
rin

g. 
 

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 an

d 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 ac

ros
s C

he
lte
nh
am

 
Bo

rou
gh
 in
 di
ss
em

ina
tin
g p

lan
nin

g 
po
lici

es
/ad

vic
e/b

es
t p
rac

tic
e. 

 
Su

pp
ort

 pr
ep

ara
tio
n a

nd
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

Gl
ou
ce
ste

r, 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

an
d T

ew
ke
sb
ury

 
Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y. 

 

Pr
ep
ari

ng
 LD

F a
nn

ua
l 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 re

po
rt. 

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 di
vis

ion
s a

cro
ss
 th
e 

Co
un
cil 

to 
inp

ut 
int
o s

pa
tia
l p
lan

nin
g. 

 

De
live

rin
g S

tra
teg

ic 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l A
ss
es
sm

en
t 

Un
de
rta

kin
g r

es
ide

nti
al 
lan

d 
av
ail
ab

ility
 an

d c
ap

ac
ity
 

W
ork

ing
 th
rou

gh
 th
e l
oc
al 
str

ate
gic

 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 en

su
re 

the
 Su

sta
ina

ble
 

Page 238



 
(S
EA

). 
stu

die
s. 

 
Co

mm
un
ity
 St

rat
eg

y a
nd
 LD

F a
re 

co
-

ord
ina

ted
 an

d d
eli
ve
rab

le.
 

Pr
ov
idi
ng

 ad
vic

e a
nd

 re
sp
on

din
g 

to 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 an

d 
ap
pe

als
 – 

bo
th 

in 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

an
d n

eig
hb

ou
rin

g a
uth

ori
tie
s 

wh
ere

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
ha
s 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo

r C
he
lte
nh

am
. 

 

Un
de
rta

kin
g 

pro
jec

ts/
res

ea
rch

 to
 su

pp
ort

 
the

 st
rat

eg
ic 
pla

nn
ing

 
fun

cti
on
. 

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 ne

igh
bo

uri
ng
 lo
ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es
. 

Re
sp
on

din
g t
o n

ati
on

al 
pla

nn
ing

 
po
lici

es
 an

d p
rop

os
als

. 
 

W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 pa

ris
h c

ou
nc
ils.

 

 7.2
.2 

Th
ere

 ar
e 4

.5 
FT

E s
taf

f in
 th

e t
ea

m.
  O

ne
 of

 th
es

e p
os

ts 
is 
a f

ixe
d t

erm
 po

st 
sh

are
d b

y C
he

lte
nh

am
, G

lou
ce

ste
r a

nd
 Te

wk
es

bu
ry 

to 
su

pp
ort

 th
e J

CS
 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

 Fo
r th

e p
as

t tw
o y

ea
rs 

the
re 

ha
s b

ee
n a

 sh
are

d p
lan

nin
g m

an
ag

er 
(0.

5 o
f F

TE
) d

ed
ica

ted
 to

 su
pp

ort
ing

 Te
wk

es
bu

ry 
Bo

rou
gh

 pl
an

nin
g 

se
rvi

ce
, b

ut 
it w

as
 re

ce
ntl

y a
gre

ed
 th

at 
du

e t
o c

ap
ac

ity
 is
su

es
 th

is 
arr

an
ge

me
nt 

sh
ou

ld 
ce

as
e. 

 7.2
.3 

Th
rou

gh
 th

e J
oin

t C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y t

ea
m,

 of
fic
ers

 w
ork

 ac
ros

s a
ll t
hre

e c
ou

nc
ils 

on
 a 

rec
ipr

oc
al 

ba
sis

.  C
urr

en
tly
 on

e o
f th

e m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 te
am

 is
 on

 
ma

ter
nit

y l
ea

ve
 an

d t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

tea
m 

ha
ve

 se
co

nd
ed

 a 
me

mb
er 

of 
the

ir s
taf

f to
 su

pp
ort

 th
e J

CS
. 

 7.2
.4 

In 
Ap

ril 
20

11
 th

e t
ea

m 
too

k o
ve

r re
sp

on
sib

ility
 fo

r h
ou

sin
g e

na
bli
ng

.  C
urr

en
tly
 th

e p
os

tho
lde

r is
 on

 m
ate

rni
ty 

lea
ve

 an
d T

ew
ke

sb
ury

 ha
s b

ee
n o

ffe
rin

g 
su

pp
ort

 on
 a 

pa
rt t

im
e b

as
is.
  H

ow
ev

er 
it h

as
 be

en
 re

co
gn

ise
d t

ha
t th

is 
is 
no

t s
us

tai
na

ble
 in

 th
e l

on
ge

r te
rm

. 
   7.3

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
 

7.3
.1 

Th
e t

ea
m 

ma
na

ge
s t

he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
lan

d a
nd

 bu
ild
ing

s w
ith

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
, c

arr
yin

g o
ut 

the
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 st
atu

tor
y o

bli
ga

tio
ns

 as
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 le
gis

lat
ive

 
fra

me
wo

rk 
(To

wn
 an

d C
ou

ntr
y P

lan
nin

g A
ct 

19
90

, P
lan

nin
g (

Lis
ted

 Bu
ild
ing

s a
nd

 C
on

se
rva

tio
n A

rea
s) 

Ac
t 1

99
0, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d C
om

pu
lso

ry 
Pu

rch
as

e A
ct 

20
04

). T
he

 ob
jec

tiv
e i

s f
or 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
in 

the
 bo

rou
gh

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 th
e a

im
s a

nd
 as

pir
ati

on
s o

f n
ati

on
al 

an
d l

oc
al 

po
licy

 an
d c

rea
te 

a b
ett

er 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

for
 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m,
 its

 in
ha

bit
an

ts,
 w
ork

ers
 an

d v
isit

ors
. 

 7.3
.2 

Th
e t

ea
m 

as
se

ss
es

 an
d d

ete
rm

ine
s a

 va
rie

ty 
of 

pro
po

sa
ls 
inc

lud
ing

 ap
pli
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r: p

lan
nin

g p
erm

iss
ion

 (b
oth

 bu
ild
ing

 w
ork

s a
nd

 ch
an

ge
 of

 us
e);

 lis
ted

 
bu

ild
ing

 an
d c

on
se

rva
tio

n a
rea

 co
ns

en
t; a

dv
ert

ise
me

nt 
co

ns
en

t; a
nd

 ce
rtif

ica
tes

 of
 la

wf
ul 

us
e o

r d
ev

elo
pm

en
t. 

 7.3
.3 

Th
e w

ork
 ca

n b
e b

rok
en

 do
wn

 ac
ros

s t
wo

 w
ork

 st
ran

ds
 as

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 ta

ble
 be

low
: 

 
Th
e a
pp
lic
ati
on
 pr
oc
es
s  

 
Ot
he
r s
erv
ice
s a
nd
 ac
tiv
itie
s 

 
Va
lid
ati
on

 – 
ac
kn
ow

led
ge

 ap
pli
ca
tio
n, 

ch
ec
k 

rel
ev
an
t in

for
ma

tio
n p

rov
ide

d a
nd
 re

qu
es
t 

an
y a

dd
itio

na
l in

for
ma

tio
n n

ee
de

d. 
Du
ty 
pla
nn
ing
 of
fic
er 

– p
rov

ide
s a

dv
ice

 to
 

an
yo
ne

 w
ho

 co
nta

cts
 th

e p
lan

nin
g 

de
pa
rtm

en
t (i
n p

ers
on
, e

ma
il, 
ph

on
e).

 

Page 239



 
Co
ns
ult
ati
on

 - i
nfo

rm
 in
ter

es
ted

 pa
rtie

s, 
ne
igh

bo
urs

, c
on
su
lte
es
 an

d i
nv
ite
 co

mm
en
ts 

on
 pr

op
os
al.
 

Ne
go
tia
tio
n –

 ho
ld 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 

ap
pli
ca
nt 

an
d o

the
r in

ter
es
ted

 pa
rtie

s t
o s

tee
r 

pro
po
sa
ls 
su
cc
es
sfu

lly 
thr

ou
gh
 th

e p
lan

nin
g 

pro
ce
ss
. Id

en
tify

 fla
ws

 an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

im
pro

ve
me

nt.
 

De
ter
mi
na
tio
n –

 m
os
t a
pp
lica

tio
ns
 ar

e 
de
leg

ate
d t

o o
ffic

ers
, b
ut 
pla

nn
ing

 co
mm

itte
e 

de
ter

mi
ne
s c

on
ten

tio
us
 sc

he
me

s. 
 

Pr
e-a
pp
lic
ati
on
 di
sc
us
sio
ns

 – 
wit

h 
ap
pli
ca
nts

 ra
ng

ing
 fro

m 
pri
va
te 

ind
ivid

ua
ls 
to 

lar
ge
 co

rpo
rat

ion
s (

ch
arg

ea
ble

 an
d n

on
-

ch
arg

ea
ble

). 
Po
st-
de
cis
ion
 w
or
k –

 ap
pe

als
, a

me
nd
me

nts
 

to 
pro

po
sa
ls,
 m

on
ito
rin

g o
f c
om

pli
an

ce
 w
ith
 

co
nd
itio

ns
 an

d i
nv
es
tig
ati
ng

 an
d e

nfo
rci
ng

 
bre

ac
he
s o

f p
lan

nin
g c

on
tro

l. 
Co
un
cil
lor
 en
qu
irie
s –

 w
ork

 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 

me
mb

ers
 to
 he

lp 
wit

h t
he

ir c
as
e w

ork
. 

 
 

 7.3
.4 

Th
ere

 is
 a 

tot
al 

of 
16

.5 
FT

E s
taf

f c
om

pri
sin

g a
 m

an
ag

er,
 9.

5 F
TE

 pl
an

nin
g/e

nfo
rce

me
nt,

 5 
FT

E s
up

po
rt o

ffic
ers

 an
d a

n a
pp

ren
tic
e. 

 As
 ou

tlin
ed

 ab
ov

e o
ne

 
FT

E p
lan

ne
r is

 cu
rre

ntl
y s

ec
on

de
d t

o p
lan

nin
g p

oli
cy
 on

 JC
S w

ork
. 

 7.3
.5 

Ke
y d

ev
elo

pm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta 

Ind
ica
tor
 

res
ult
 fo
r (
Q4
 20
10
) 

Pr
ev
iou
s q
ua
rte
r 

% 
of 

ap
ps
 de

cid
ed

 w
ith
in 
8 w

ee
ks
 

88
% 

(24
5 o

f 2
78

) 
84
% 

(28
3 o

f 3
37

) 
% 

of 
ma

jor
 ap

ps
 de

cid
ed
 in
 13

 w
ee
ks
 

66
.67

% 
(4 

of 
6) 

(Ta
rge

t –
 60

%)
 

66
.67

% 
(4 

of 
6) 

% 
of 
mi
no
r a

pp
s d

ec
ide

d i
n 8

 w
ee

ks
 

84
.62

% 
(33

 o
f 
39
) 
(Ta

rge
t 
– 

65
%)

 
61
.40

% 
(35

 of
 57

) 
% 

of 
oth

er 
ap

ps
 de

cid
ed

 in
 8 

we
ek
s 

90
.13

% 
(21

0 
of 

23
3) 

(Ta
rge

t 
80
%)

 
90
.51

% 
(24

8 o
f 2

74
) 

% 
of 

de
leg

ate
d d

ec
isio

ns
 

91
.67

% 
(26

4 o
f 2

88
) 

92
% 

(32
0 o

f 3
49

) 

Page 240



 
7.4

 
Ur

ba
n D

es
ign

  
 7.4

.1 
Th

e t
ea

m 
co

ns
ist
s o

f p
rof

es
sio

na
ls 
in 

urb
an

 de
sig

n, 
he

rita
ge

, a
rbo

ric
ult

ure
 an

d l
an

ds
ca

pe
 ar

ch
ite

ctu
re.

 Th
ey

 de
al 

wit
h p

roj
ec

ts 
an

d c
as

es
 bo

th 
pro

ac
tiv
ely

 
an

d r
ea

cti
ve

ly.
 Th

e f
oc

us
 ra

ng
es

 fro
m 

str
ate

gic
 (p

oli
cy
 de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 cr
os

s b
ou

nd
ary

 is
su

es
) to

 de
tai

led
 (b

uil
din

g c
on

str
uc

tio
n d

eta
ils,

 pl
an

tin
g s

ch
ed

ule
s, 

tre
e h

ea
lth

, s
tre

et 
de

sig
n).

  
 7.4

.2 
Th

e t
ea

m 
de

als
 w
ith

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 pa
rtn

ers
 an

d c
us

tom
ers

 – 
bo

th 
int

ern
al 

an
d e

xte
rna

l –
 of

fic
ers

 an
d e

lec
ted

 m
em

be
rs;

 ce
ntr

al 
go

ve
rnm

en
t, c

ou
nty

 an
d 

dis
tric

t c
ou

nc
ils;

 de
ve

lop
ers

, p
rop

ert
y o

wn
ers

, m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 pu
bli
c, 

int
ere

st 
gro

up
s e

tc.
 M

uc
h o

f th
e w

ork
 is
 no

w 
foc

us
se

d o
n w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
co

mm
un

ity
 gr

ou
ps

 in
ter

es
ted

 in
 im

pro
vin

g o
r m

ain
tai

nin
g t

he
ir e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts 
(st

ree
ts,

 pa
rks

, u
rba

n s
pa

ce
s, 

he
rita

ge
 as

se
ts,

 tre
es

 et
c) 

wh
ich

 is
 in

 tu
ne

 w
ith

 
the

 G
ov

ern
me

nt’
s t

hin
kin

g o
n t

he
 Bi

g S
oc

iet
y b

ut 
is 
res

ou
rce

 in
ten

siv
e. 

 Th
e o

the
r m

ajo
r w

ork
 st

ran
d i

s s
up

po
rt f

or 
the

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t T

as
k 

Fo
rce

. 
 7.4

.3 
Th

e w
ork

 ca
n b

e b
rok

en
 do

wn
 be

tw
ee

n t
wo

 di
ffe

ren
t w

ork
 st

rea
ms

 as
 se

t o
ut 

be
low

: 
Re

ac
tiv

e w
or
k  

 
Pr
oa

cti
ve
 w
or
k 

o
 

Th
e l

ea
d c

as
e o

ffic
ers

 fo
r li

ste
d b

uil
din

g 
co

ns
en

t a
nd

 m
ino

r re
lat

ed
 pl

an
nin

g 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

, tr
ee

 pr
es

erv
ati

on
 or

de
rs 

an
d 

co
ns

erv
ati

on
 ar

ea
 tre

e a
pp

lica
tio

ns
. 

o
 

W
ork

 w
ith

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t (a
nd

 
ap

pli
ca

nts
) o

n p
lan

nin
g a

nd
 re

lat
ed

 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

, p
re-

ap
pli
ca

tio
n, 

en
for

ce
me

nt,
 

s.2
15

, c
om

pli
an

ce
, a

pp
ea

ls 
& c

ou
rt c

as
es

 
(ex

pe
rt w

itn
es

s) 
& P

lan
nin

g C
om

mi
tte

e. 
o
 

Be
st 

pra
cti
ce

, d
es

ign
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 pr

oje
ct 

su
pp

ort
 on

 tra
ffic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, s

tre
et 

de
sig

n, 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 an
d a

ss
et 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
to 

the
 In

teg
rat

ed
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 

tea
m,

 G
CC

 an
d G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 H
igh

wa
ys
. 

o
 

Th
e t

ree
 te

am
 m

an
ag

e C
BC

 an
d C

BH
 tre

e 
as

se
ts 

(3-
ye

arl
y c

on
dit

ion
s s

urv
ey

, p
lan

tin
g, 

rem
ed

ial
 w
ork

, c
on

tra
ct 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
etc

) 
an

d m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f tr
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 in
 

ad
ve

rse
 w
ea

the
r, a

cc
ide

nts
, d

am
ag

e t
o 

bu
ild
ing

s e
tc.

  
o
 

Th
e H

eri
tag

e t
ea

m 
ad

vis
es

 Pr
op

ert
y, 

Pa
rks

 
& c

lie
nt 

div
isio

ns
 (li

ste
d b

uil
din

gs
, 

reg
ist
ere

d p
ark

s e
tc)

. 
o
 

Su
pp

ort
 & 

ad
vis

e C
he

lte
nh

am
 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

o
 

Pr
ep

are
 & 

ad
op

t s
up

ple
me

nta
ry 

pla
nn

ing
 

do
cu

me
nts

, d
ev

elo
pm

en
t b

rie
fs,

 co
nc

ep
t 

sta
tem

en
ts,

 co
ns

erv
ati

on
 ar

ea
 ch

ara
cte

r 
ap

pra
isa

ls 
etc

. 
o
 

He
rita

ge
 or

ga
nis

es
 H
eri

tag
e O

pe
n D

ay
s, 

an
nu

al 
rev

iew
 of

 Lo
ca

l In
de

x &
 in

sti
ga

te 
rep

air
s a

nd
 s.

21
5 n

oti
ce

s. 
o
 

Pr
oje

ct 
de

sig
n &

 im
ple

me
nta

tio
n e

g C
ivic

 
Pr
ide

, s
tre

et/
sp

ac
e e

nh
an

ce
me

nt,
 pu

bli
c 

art
, h

eri
tag

e r
ep

air
s e

tc.
 

o
 

Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al,
 de

sig
n, 

fun
din

g &
 pr

oje
ct 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ad

vic
e o

n c
om

mu
nit

y 
pro

jec
ts 

eg
 D
IY 

Str
ee

ts,
 Je

nn
er 

Ga
rde

ns
.  

o
 

Pr
es

en
tat

ion
s t

o t
he

 pu
bli
c, 

int
ere

st 
gro

up
s, 

me
mb

ers
 & 

off
ice

rs 
on

 tre
e, 

he
rita

ge
 & 

urb
an

 de
sig

n i
ss
ue

s. 
o
 

W
ork

 w
ith

 U
niv

ers
ity
 of

 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

, 
Fe

sti
va

ls 
an

d e
du

ca
tio

n w
ork

. 
 

Page 241



 
  

Th
e t

ea
m 

is 
ma

de
 up

 of
 a 

tea
m 

ma
na

ge
r, 2

 FT
E h

eri
tag

e o
ffic

ers
, o

ne
 la

nd
sc
ap

e a
rch

ite
ct 

an
d 2

 tre
es

 of
fic
ers

. 
  8. 

Ot
he
r p

ro
vid

ers
 an

d m
ark

et 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

8.1
 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 te
am

 co
ns

ide
red

 w
ha

t a
lte

rna
tiv
e m

od
els

 ar
e a

va
ila
ble

 to
 th

e C
ou

nc
il f
or 

de
live

rin
g t

he
 se

rvi
ce

s i
n s

co
pe

.  A
 pa

pe
r w

as
 pr

ep
are

d f
or 

the
 

me
mb

er 
wo

rki
ng

 gr
ou

p s
ett

ing
 ou

t e
xa

mp
les

 el
se

wh
ere

 in
 th

e c
ou

ntr
y w

he
re 

so
me

 of
 th

e s
erv

ice
s i
n s

co
pe

 ha
ve

 be
en

 ou
tso

urc
ed

, w
he

re 
de

cis
ion

 m
ak

ing
 

ha
s b

ee
n d

ev
olv

ed
 to

 ot
he

r p
ub

lic 
se

cto
r b

od
ies

 su
ch

 as
 pa

ris
h c

ou
nc

ils,
 an

d w
he

re 
the

re 
are

 sh
are

d-s
erv

ice
s. 

 
Ou

tso
ur

ce
d m

od
els

 
8.2

 
Ur

ba
n V

isio
n i

s j
us

t o
ne

 of
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 in

 th
e p

riv
ate

 se
cto

r th
at 

are
 pr

ov
idi
ng

 pl
an

nin
g s

erv
ice

s f
or 

loc
al 

au
tho

riti
es

.  I
t is

 a 
joi
nt 

ve
ntu

re 
be

tw
ee

n S
alf

ord
 C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il, 
Ca

pit
a S

ym
on

ds
 an

d G
all
ifo

rd 
Try

. T
he

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 em
plo

ys
 ab

ou
t 5

00
 pe

op
le 

pro
vid

ing
 m

os
t b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t re
lat

ed
 

se
rvi

ce
s i
nc

lud
ing

 pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ol.
  T

he
y p

rov
ide

 Sa
lfo

rd 
Cit

y C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 Br

ec
kla

nd
 D
ist
ric

t C
ou

nc
il w

ith
 a 

ful
l d

ev
elo

pm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t 

se
rvi

ce
.  T

he
y a

lso
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
sp

ec
ific

 se
rvi

ce
s t

o o
the

r lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
tie

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 m
ine

ral
s a

nd
 w
as

te 
pla

nn
ing

 se
rvi

ce
, h

an
dli
ng

 pu
bli
c i
nq

uir
ies

 
an

d h
ea

rin
gs

, p
lan

nin
g e

nfo
rce

me
nt,

 ur
ba

n d
es

ign
, c

on
se

rva
tio

n a
nd

 he
rita

ge
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
str

ate
gic

 pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f c
ore

 st
rat

eg
ies

.  .
 Th

ey
 

rec
og

nis
e t

ha
t e

ve
ry 

au
tho

rity
 is
 di

ffe
ren

t a
nd

 ha
s i
ts 

ow
n p

lan
nin

g p
oli
cy
 fra

me
wo

rk,
 co

rpo
rat

e a
ge

nd
a a

nd
 w
ay

 of
 en

ga
gin

g w
ith

 lo
ca

l m
em

be
rs 

an
d l

oc
al 

pe
op

le 
an

d h
av

e i
nd

ica
ted

 th
at 

the
y t

ail
or 

the
ir s

erv
ice

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e s
erv

ice
 th

ey
 pr

ov
ide

 is
 re

lat
ed

 di
rec

tly
 to

 th
e l

oc
al 

au
tho

rity
. 

 
8.3

 
Th

ere
 is
 no

 do
ub

t th
at 

if C
he

lte
nh

am
 Bo

rou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 de
cid

e t
o o

uts
ou

rce
 its

 pl
an

nin
g s

erv
ice

s, 
the

re 
wo

uld
 be

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

wh
o c

ou
ld 

tak
e t

his
 jo

b o
n 

in 
a p

rof
es

sio
na

l w
ay

.  H
ow

ev
er,

 th
e q

ue
sti
on

 w
e h

av
e f

ou
nd

 di
ffic

ult
 to

 re
so

lve
 is
 w
he

the
r o

uts
ou

rci
ng

 w
ou

ld 
or 

co
uld

 de
live

r s
ign

ific
an

t s
av

ing
s o

r a
 m

ore
 

eff
icie

nt 
se

rvi
ce

.  A
uth

ori
tie

s t
ha

t h
av

e b
ee

n d
ow

n t
his

 pa
th 

se
em

 re
luc

tan
t to

 en
ga

ge
 w
ith

 us
 on

 th
es

e p
oin

ts.
  W

e h
av

e a
lso

 ha
d d

iffi
cu

lty
 in

 ob
tai

nin
g 

co
mp

ara
tiv
e p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta 

wit
h n

eit
he

r S
alf

ord
 C
ou

nc
il n

or 
Br
ec

kla
nd

 C
ou

nc
il p

art
icip

ati
ng

 in
 th

e C
IPF

A b
en

ch
ma

rki
ng

 re
vie

w.
 

 8.4
 

Ou
r o

wn
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing

 su
gg

es
ts 

tha
t th

e e
ffic

ien
cy
 of

 ou
r e

xis
tin

g B
uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t s
erv

ice
s i
s n

ot 
a m

ajo
r is

su
e. 

 W
e h

av
e a

n i
n-h

ou
se

 se
rvi

ce
 th

at 
ge

ne
ral

ly 
de

live
rs 

a g
oo

d a
nd

 ef
fic
ien

t s
erv

ice
 an

d t
his

 is
 co

nfi
rm

ed
 by

 th
e v

iew
s e

xp
res

se
d b

y o
ur 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs.
  F

urt
he

rm
ore

 th
ere

 is
 a 

cle
ar 

ris
k i
n 

ou
tso

urc
ing

 a 
se

rvi
ce

 so
 ce

ntr
al 

to 
the

 ch
ara

cte
r a

nd
 fu

tur
e p

ros
pe

rity
 of

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 to

 an
 ex

ter
na

l a
ge

nc
y. 

 Th
is 
be

ing
 th

e c
as

e, 
the

 re
vie

w 
co

nc
lud

ed
 

tha
t g

oin
g d

ow
n t

he
 ou

tso
urc

ing
 ro

ute
 co

mp
reh

en
siv

ely
 is
 no

t a
pp

rop
ria

te 
at 

thi
s t

im
e. 

 H
ow

ev
er,

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
 an

d t
he

 re
vie

w 
gro

up
 fe

lt t
ha

t th
ere

 m
ay

 be
 

sc
op

e t
o p

roc
ure

 el
em

en
ts 

of 
the

 se
rvi

ce
 fro

m 
oth

er 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 on
 a 

“ca
ll o

ff” 
ba

sis
 to

 co
ve

r p
ea

ks
 in

 de
ma

nd
, o

r s
pe

cif
ic 
pro

jec
ts.

  It
 is
 ap

pre
cia

ted
 th

at 
thi

s a
lre

ad
y h

ap
pe

ns
 to

 a 
lim

ite
d d

eg
ree

 w
ith

in 
the

 se
rvi

ce
s i
n s

co
pe

, b
ut 

giv
en

 th
e c

urr
en

t e
co

no
mi

c c
lim

ate
 an

d u
nc

ert
ain

tie
s a

rou
nd

 w
ork

loa
ds

, 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 co
uld

 be
 gi

ve
n t

o r
ed

uc
ing

 st
aff

ing
 to

 lo
we

r le
ve

ls 
an

d u
sin

g s
uc

h a
n a

rra
ng

em
en

t to
 pr

ov
ide

 ad
dit

ion
al 

ca
pa

cit
y s

ho
uld

 de
ma

nd
 fo

r s
erv

ice
s 

Ta
sk
 Fo

rce
 on

 pl
an

nin
g, 

urb
an

 de
sig

n, 
lan

ds
ca

pe
 an

d h
eri

tag
e i

ss
ue

s. 
o
 

Su
pp

ort
 po

licy
 w
ork

 on
 th

e j
oin

t c
ore

 
str

ate
gy

. 
o
 

Ad
vis

e d
ev

elo
pe

rs,
 ow

ne
rs 

an
d p

ros
pe

cti
ve

 
pu

rch
as

ers
 on

 re
sp

on
sib

iliti
es

 an
d o

the
r 

iss
ue

s r
eg

ard
ing

 tre
es

 & 
his

tor
ic 
bu

ild
ing

s. 
 

Page 242



 
inc

rea
se

. It
 w
as

 re
co

gn
ise

d t
ha

t a
ny

 su
ch

 de
cis

ion
 w
ou

ld 
ne

ed
 to

 be
 su

bje
ct 

to 
a c

os
ted

 bu
sin

es
s c

as
e, 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t b

oth
 co

st 
an

d q
ua

lity
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s 
are

 ad
dre

ss
ed

 by
 an

y a
lte

rna
tiv
e d

eli
ve

ry 
arr

an
ge

me
nt.

  
 8.5

 
Alt

ho
ug

h t
he

 re
vie

w 
do

es
 no

t p
rop

os
e c

om
pre

he
ns

ive
 ou

tso
urc

ing
, it

 is
 im

po
rta

nt 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il c
on

tin
ue

s t
o c

om
pa

re 
its
elf

 w
ith

 ot
he

r a
uth

ori
tie

s a
nd

 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 w
ith

 th
os

e t
ha

t h
av

e o
uts

ou
rce

d t
o s

ee
 w
ha

t w
e c

an
 le

arn
 fro

m 
alt

ern
ati

ve
 m

od
els

 of
 se

rvi
ce

 de
live

ry.
  T

he
ref

ore
 w
ork

 is
 on

go
ing

 to
 ex

plo
re 

wit
h 

oth
er 

co
un

cils
 w
hy

 th
ey

 de
cid

ed
 to

 ou
tso

urc
e t

he
ir s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 w
ha

t b
en

efi
ts 

an
d/o

r c
ha

lle
ng

es
 th

ey
 ha

ve
 ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 - f
or 

ex
am

ple
, w

ha
t re

ve
nu

e 
sa

vin
gs

 ha
ve

 be
en

 se
cu

red
, a

nd
 ho

w 
res

idu
al 

ce
ntr

al 
se

rvi
ce

 co
sts

 be
en

 ab
so

rbe
d. 

 It 
wil

l a
lso

 be
 us

efu
l to

 ex
plo

re 
wit

h t
he

m 
ho

w 
the

y p
rop

os
e t

o 
ac

co
mm

od
ate

 ch
an

ge
s t

o p
lan

nin
g l

eg
isla

tio
n a

s s
et 

ou
t in

 th
e L

oc
ali
sm

 Bi
ll a

nd
 ho

w 
the

y i
nte

nd
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 lo

ca
l s
ett

ing
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 pl
an

nin
g f

ee
s, 

if t
he

y 
are

 tie
d t

o a
 co

ntr
ac

t w
ith

 an
 ex

ter
na

l p
rov

ide
r. 

 8.6
 

No
t w

ith
sta

nd
ing

 th
e a

bo
ve

 th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou

p a
gre

ed
 th

at 
it w

ou
ld 

be
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 th

at 
on

ce
 th

ere
 w
as

 ce
rta

int
y a

bo
ut 

the
 lo

ca
lism

 bi
ll a

nd
 pl

an
nin

g f
ee

 
leg

isla
tio

n a
nd

 it 
im

pa
cts

 in
 te

rm
s o

f in
co

me
 an

d e
xp

en
dit

ure
 w
as

 kn
ow

n, 
it w

ou
ld 

be
 se

ns
ibl
e t

o u
nd

ert
ak

e s
om

e s
oft

 m
ark

et 
tes

tin
g. 

 In
 or

de
r to

 en
ab

le 
the

 
div

isio
n t

o f
ull
y i
mp

lem
en

t s
uc

h l
eg

isla
tio

n i
t is

 pr
op

os
ed

 th
at 

thi
s m

ark
et 

tes
tin

g i
s u

nd
ert

ak
en

 in
 20

13
/14

. 
 

Vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 co

mm
un

ity
 gr

ou
ps

 
8.7

 
So

me
 el

em
en

ts 
of 

the
 w
ork

 in
 sc

op
e p

art
icu

lar
ly 
in 

rel
ati

on
 to

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d p

lan
nin

g a
nd

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 co

uld
 be

 un
de

rta
ke

n b
y t

he
 vo

lun
tar

y a
nd

 
co

mm
un

ity
 se

cto
r.  

An
 in

itia
l c
on

ve
rsa

tio
n h

as
 be

en
 un

de
rta

ke
n w

ith
 th

e G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 R
ura

l C
om

mu
nit

y C
ou

nc
il, 
wh

ich
 cu

rre
ntl

y s
up

po
rts

 pa
ris

h 
co

un
cils

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f p

ari
sh

 pl
an

nin
g. 

 D
ep

en
din

g h
ow

 th
e L

oc
ali
sm

 Bi
ll p

rog
res

se
s, 

the
 G

RC
C 
se

es
 an

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o p

lay
 a 

pa
rt i

n h
elp

ing
 em

po
we

r lo
ca

l 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

 Th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou

p f
elt

 th
at 

the
 di

alo
gu

e w
ith

 th
e G

RC
C 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 m

ain
tai

ne
d, 

on
ce

 th
ere

 is
 cl
ari

ty 
ab

ou
t th

e L
oc

ali
sm

 Bi
ll a

nd
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d p

lan
nin

g. 
 Th

e G
RC

C 
ha

s a
lre

ad
y b

ee
n a

pp
roa

ch
ed

 to
 he

lp 
su

pp
ort

 th
e w

ork
 w
ith

 pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
ils 

to 
as

sis
t th

em
 th

rou
gh

 th
e J

CS
 pr

oc
es

s. 
 

Th
ere

 is
 al

rea
dy

 a 
str

on
g n

etw
ork

 of
 vo

lun
tar

y a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity
 gr

ou
ps

 w
ho

 su
pp

ort
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

d e
ng

ag
em

en
t. A

ga
in,

 as
 cl
ari

ty 
de

ve
lop

s o
n t

he
 Lo

ca
lism

 
Bil

l, f
urt

he
r d

ial
og

ue
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e h

ad
 w
ith

 th
e s

ec
tor

 as
 to

 ho
w 
the

y a
nti

cip
ate

 th
eir

 co
mm

un
ity
 su

pp
ort

 ro
le 

de
ve

lop
ing

.  T
he

 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 di

vis
ion

 ha
s 

res
po

ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r s

up
po

rtin
g m

ark
et 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wit

hin
 th

e v
olu

nta
ry 

an
d c

om
mu

nit
y s

ec
tor

 an
d w

ill n
ee

d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
re 

is 
dia

log
ue

 an
d a

 cl
os

e 
wo

rki
ng

 re
lat

ion
sh

ip 
wit

h t
he

 vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 co

mm
un

ity
 se

cto
r.. 

 8.8
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il a
lre

ad
y h

as
 st

ron
g l

ink
s w

ith
 th

e C
he

lte
nh

am
 C
ivic

 So
cie

ty.
  It

 pl
ay

s a
n a

cti
ve

 ro
le 

in 
the

 co
mm

un
ity
 an

d h
elp

s s
up

po
rt t

he
 pl

an
nin

g p
roc

es
s 

by
 co

ntr
ibu

tin
g i

ts 
vie

ws
 th

rou
gh

 th
e c

on
su

lta
tio

n p
roc

es
s a

nd
 in

 ru
nn

ing
 th

e s
uc

ce
ss
ful

 C
ivic

 Aw
ard

s a
nd

 bl
ue

 pl
aq

ue
 sc

he
me

s. 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il v

alu
es

 th
e 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
he

 so
cie

ty 
ma

ke
s a

nd
 re

co
gn

ise
s t

he
 de

dic
ati

on
 of

 th
os

e i
nv

olv
ed

.  D
uri

ng
 th

e r
ev

iew
, e

ve
nts

 w
ere

 he
ld 

wit
h s

tak
eh

old
ers

 w
he

re 
the

 C
ivic

 
So

cie
ty 

wa
s g

ive
n a

n o
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 co
ns

ide
r w

he
the

r it
 w
ou

ld 
be

 in
ter

es
ted

 in
 su

pp
ort

ing
 fu

rth
er 

ac
tiv
ity
 w
hic

h m
igh

t  o
the

rw
ise

 no
t b

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 by

 th
e 

Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou

nc
il d

ue
 to

 re
so

urc
e c

on
str

ain
ts.

  T
he

re 
wa

s a
 di

sc
us

sio
n a

mo
ng

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
 ab

ou
t w

ha
t, i

f a
ny

, w
ide

r ro
le 

the
 C
ivic

 So
cie

ty 
co

uld
 ta

ke
 in

 
su

pp
ort

ing
 th

e H
eri

tag
e t

ea
m.

  A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e S

oc
iet

y w
ere

 in
ter

es
ted

 in
 gr

ea
ter

 in
vo

lve
me

nt,
 it 

ac
kn

ow
led

ge
d t

ha
t it

s m
em

be
rsh

ip 
ha

d l
im

ite
d t

ec
hn

ica
l 

kn
ow

led
ge

. T
his

 w
ou

ld 
res

tric
t it

 fro
m 

tak
ing

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
rol

e i
n p

roj
ec

ts 
wit

h a
 st

ron
g t

ec
hn

ica
l o

r le
gis

lat
ive

 el
em

en
t (s

uc
h a

s c
on

se
rva

tio
n a

rea
 bo

un
da

ry 
rev

iew
s).

 Th
e d

isc
us

sio
n c

on
clu

de
d t

ha
t th

e m
ain

 ro
le 

sh
ou

ld 
co

nti
nu

e t
o b

e “
pro

mo
tio

na
l” a

cti
vit
y m

uc
h a

s i
t c

urr
en

tly
 un

de
rta

ke
s (

su
ch

 as
 de

sig
n a

wa
rds

, 
He

rita
ge

 O
pe

n D
ay

s e
tc.

) a
nd

 th
at 

ste
ps

 m
igh

t b
e t

ak
en

 to
 se

e h
ow

 th
is 
rol

e c
ou

ld 
be

 ex
pa

nd
ed

. T
he

 So
cie

ty 
als

o  
 ca

uti
on

ed
 th

at 
it h

as
 lim

ite
d v

olu
nte

er 
ca

pa
cit
y. 

 As
 pa

rt o
f th

e m
ark

et 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 it 
wil

l b
e i

mp
ort

an
t to

 w
ork

 w
ith

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
s s

uc
h a

s T
hir

d S
ec

tor
 Se

rvi
ce

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

vo
lun

tee
rin

g f
or 

so
cie

tie
s s

uc
h a

s t
he

 C
ivic

 So
cie

ty 
is 
pro

mo
ted

.  D
uri

ng
 th

es
e s

tak
eh

old
er 

se
ss
ion

s, 
rep

res
en

tat
ive

s f
rom

 th
e C

he
lte

nh
am

 Lo
ca

l H
ist
ory

 So
cie

ty 
als

o 
fla

gg
ed

 up
 th

e p
os

sib
ility

 of
 th

eir
 sk

ills
 be

ing
 us

ed
 to

 he
lp 

pro
mo

te 
he

rita
ge

 is
su

es
 w
ith

in 
the

 to
wn

 an
d a

ga
in,

 a 
dia

log
ue

 ne
ed

s t
o b

e m
ain

tai
ne

d w
ith

 th
em

 
as

 to
 w
ha

t o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

he
re 

are
 to

 be
co

me
 m

ore
 in

vo
lve

d. 
 

 

Page 243



 
8.9

 
It w

as
 al

so
 re

co
gn

ise
d t

ha
t th

ere
 ar

e a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
res

ide
nt 

gro
up

s a
nd

 “fr
ien

ds
 of

” g
rou

ps
 w
ho

 ha
ve

 an
 in

ter
es

t in
 th

e b
uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.  
It i

s i
mp

ort
an

t th
at 

the
re 

sh
ou

ld 
co

nti
nu

e t
o b

e a
 di

alo
gu

e w
ith

 th
em

 ov
er 

sp
ec

ific
 is
su

es
 w
ith

in 
the

ir a
rea

s o
f in

ter
es

t, a
s t

he
re 

ha
s b

ee
n w

ith
 th

e F
rie

nd
s o

f Im
pe

ria
l S

qu
are

 
an

d G
ard

en
s o

ve
r th

e r
ed

es
ign

 of
 Im

pe
ria

l G
ard

en
s a

nd
 w
ith

 th
e F

rie
nd

s o
f P

ittv
ille

 Pa
rk 

ov
er 

the
 po

ten
tia

l re
sto

rat
ion

 of
 Pi

ttv
ille

 G
ate

s. 
 

 8.1
0 

Th
e A

rch
ite

cts
’ P

an
el 

als
o s

up
po

rts
 th

e p
lan

nin
g p

roc
es

s a
nd

 th
e c

ou
nc

il is
 gr

ate
ful

 fo
r th

e w
ork

 of
 th

e p
an

el 
me

mb
ers

, w
ho

 gi
ve

 up
 th

eir
 tim

e t
o r

ev
iew

 
de

sig
n i

ss
ue

s o
n s

ele
cte

d p
lan

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns

 an
d p

rov
ide

 co
mm

en
ts 

ba
ck
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e p

roc
es

s. 
 D
uri

ng
 th

e c
ou

rse
 of

 th
e r

ev
iew

, m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 
pa

ne
l fe

lt t
ha

t th
ere

 w
as

 m
ore

 th
at 

the
y c

ou
ld 

do
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e p
roc

es
s a

nd
 pa

rtic
ula

rly
 m

en
tio

ne
d t

he
 po

ss
ibi
lity

 of
 su

pp
ort

ing
 th

e r
e-a

pp
lica

tio
n p

roc
es

s. 
 

Cle
arl

y t
he

re 
are

 is
su

es
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 co
mm

erc
ial
 co

nfi
de

nti
ali
ty,

 bu
t if

 th
e a

pp
lica

nts
 w
ere

 w
illin

g, 
the

 pa
ne

l m
ay

 be
 ab

le 
to 

pro
vid

e u
pfr

on
t a

dv
ice

 an
d 

su
pp

ort
 w
hic

h c
ou

ld 
res

ult
 in

 a 
sp

ee
die

r a
nd

 m
ore

 cu
sto

me
r fo

cu
se

d e
xp

eri
en

ce
.  A

ga
in,

 as
 w
ith

 ot
he

r g
rou

ps
, th

e r
ev

iew
 te

am
 fe

lt t
ha

t th
ere

 ne
ed

s t
o b

e 
an

 on
go

ing
 di

alo
gu

e a
s t

o w
ha

t o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

he
re 

are
 to

 ex
ten

d t
he

 re
mi

t a
nd

 th
e s

kill
-ba

se
 of

 th
e p

an
el.

  
  

Ot
he

r p
ub

lic
 se

cto
r p

ro
vis

ion
 

8.1
1 

Pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
ils 

alr
ea

dy
 ha

ve
 a 

rol
e w

ith
in 

the
 pl

an
nin

g p
roc

es
s a

nd
 th

e l
oc

ali
sm

 bi
ll e

nv
isa

ge
s t

ha
t th

is 
rol

e c
ou

ld 
inc

rea
se

 in
 th

e f
utu

re.
  A

t th
e C

5 m
ee

tin
g 

wh
ich

 is
 a 

me
eti

ng
 be

tw
ee

n r
ep

res
en

tat
ive

s o
f th

e f
ive

 pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e c
ou

nc
il, 
inf

orm
al 

so
un

din
gs

 w
ere

 ta
ke

n a
bo

ut 
the

ir a
pp

eti
te 

to 
pla

y a
 gr

ea
ter

 
rol

e i
n t

he
 pl

an
nin

g p
roc

es
s. 

 Th
ey

 sh
ow

ed
 in

itia
l s
ce

pti
cis

m 
an

d w
ari

ne
ss
 ab

ou
t th

e l
oc

ali
sm

 bi
ll, 
wis

hin
g t

o s
ee

 th
e f

ina
l d

eta
ils.

  D
uri

ng
 th

e c
ou

rse
 of

 th
e 

rev
iew

 th
e c

ou
nc

il h
as

 co
nta

cte
d t

he
 pa

ris
h c

ou
nc

ils 
as

kin
g t

he
m 

mo
re 

for
ma

lly 
ab

ou
t th

eir
 ap

pe
tite

 to
 pl

ay
 a 

gre
ate

r ro
le.

  T
he

 5 
pa

ris
h c

ou
nc

ils 
in 

Sw
ind

on
 Vi

lla
ge

, C
ha

rlto
n K

ing
s, 

Pr
es

tbu
ry,

 Le
ck
ha

mp
ton

 w
ith

 W
ard

en
 H
ill a

nd
 U
p H

ath
erl

ey
 re

sp
on

de
d u

na
nim

ou
sly

 w
ith

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 vi
ew

s: 
• 

Pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
il v

iew
s o

f d
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

re 
oft

en
 co

ntr
ary

 to
 bo

rou
gh

 w
ide

 pl
an

s a
s m

os
t p

ari
sh

es
 do

n't
 w
an

t to
 se

e m
ore

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
in 

or 
ad

jac
en

t 
to 

the
ir a

rea
s, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 on
 gr

ee
nb

elt
 la

nd
.   

• 
Th

e c
rea

tio
n o

f a
 tie

red
 Pl

an
nin

g S
ys
tem

 w
ou

ld 
be

 lik
ely

 to
 cr

ea
te 

gre
y a

rea
s w

hic
h w

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 a 
dis

as
tro

us
 im

pa
ct 

on
 ex

ist
ing

 co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd
 it 

is 
im
po
rta

nt 
tha

t p
lan

nin
g d

ec
isio

ns
 ac

ros
s t
he
 bo

rou
gh

 ar
e r

ea
so
na

bly
 co

ns
ist
en
t a

nd
 fit
 in
 w
ith
 st
rat

eg
ic 
pla

ns
 fo

r th
e w

ho
le 
bo
rou

gh
. T

he
 cu

rre
nt 

arr
an

ge
me

nt 
of 

the
 bo

rou
gh

 co
un

cil 
ba

lan
cin

g t
he

 in
ter

es
ts 

of 
co

mm
un

itie
s a

cro
ss
 th

e t
ow

n i
s t

he
 be

st 
op

tio
n, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 be
ca

us
e t

he
re 

is 
pro

fes
sio

na
l 

ex
pe

rtis
e a

nd
 ca

pa
cit
y a

t b
oro

ug
h l

ev
el,

 w
hic

h i
s n

ot 
av

ail
ab

le 
at 

pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
il g

ive
n t

ha
t th

e p
ari

sh
 co

un
cill

or 
rol

e i
s v

olu
nta

ry.
  T

he
re 

is 
the

 ris
k 

tha
t p

ari
sh

 co
un

cils
 w
ou

ld 
be

 le
ss
 ab

le 
to 

res
ist
 pr

es
su

re 
fro

m 
lar

ge
 de

ve
lop

ers
.   

• 
Th

e a
dv

an
tag

es
 to

 pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
ils 

ma
y n

ot 
ou

tw
eig

h t
he

 co
sts

 in
vo

lve
d i

n i
nv

es
tin

g. 
 Be

ing
 he

ld 
lia
ble

 fo
r th

e c
os

ts 
of 

su
cc
es

sfu
l a

pp
ea

ls 
ag

ain
st 

loc
al 

de
cis

ion
s i
s a

 m
att

er 
of 

se
rio

us
 co

nc
ern

.  T
he

re 
wo

uld
 ne

ed
 to

 be
 w
ritt

en
 as

su
ran

ce
 th

at 
ex

ter
na

l fu
nd

ing
 w
as

 av
ail
ab

le 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

es
e 

co
sts

.   
• 

Th
e v

alu
e o

f e
xis

tin
g p

ari
sh

 pl
an

s i
s l
eft

 un
kn

ow
n i

f n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

 pl
an

s c
om

e i
nto

 be
ing

.   
 

 
Ho

we
ve
r, p

ari
sh
 co

un
cils

 do
 ne

ed
 to

 pl
ay
 a 
rol

e i
n e

ns
uri
ng
 th

at 
the

 im
pa
ct 
of 

an
y n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 on
 ex

ist
ing

 co
mm

un
itie

s a
re 

ca
ref

ull
y t
ho
ug

ht 
thr

ou
gh
.   

 
8.1

2 
An

y f
urt

he
r c

om
me

nts
 w
ill b

e u
pd

ate
d a

t th
e c

ab
ine

t m
ee

tin
g b

ut 
the

 fe
eli
ng

 so
 fa

r is
 th

at 
the

re 
are

 gr
av

e c
on

ce
rns

 ab
ou

t th
e p

rop
os

al 
tha

t th
ey

 ta
ke

 on
 

mo
re 

res
po

ns
ibi
lity

 w
ith

in 
the

 pl
an

nin
g p

roc
es

s. 
 O

f c
ou

rse
 no

t th
e e

nti
re 

bo
rou

gh
 is
 co

ve
red

 by
 pa

ris
h c

ou
nc

ils 
an

d s
ho

uld
 pa

ris
he

s b
e g

ive
n a

 gr
ea

ter
 ro

le 
we

 w
ou

ld 
ne

ed
 to

 th
ink

 ab
ou

t h
ow

 w
e e

ns
ure

 co
ns

ist
en

cy
 to

 ot
he

r n
on

 pa
ris

he
d a

rea
s. 

 8.1
3 

As
 pr

ev
iou

sly
 ou

tlin
ed

 so
me

 of
 th

e c
urr

en
t s

erv
ice

s a
re 

alr
ea

dy
 de

live
red

 th
rou

gh
 ex

ist
ing

 sh
are

d a
rra

ng
em

en
ts.

  A
 co

py
 of

 th
e d

raf
t re

po
rt h

as
 be

en
 se

nt 
to 

Te
wk

es
bu

ry 
Bo

rou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il w

ho
 ar

e o
ur 

pa
rtn

ers
 in

 de
live

ry 
of 

so
me

 of
 th

e s
erv

ice
s s

o t
ha

t th
ey

 ar
e a

wa
re 

of 
the

 ou
tco

me
 of

 th
e r

ev
iew

.   
 

Page 244



 
8.1

4 
Te

wk
es

bu
ry 

ma
ke

 a 
na

tur
al 

pa
rtn

er 
for

 sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s i
n r

ela
tio

n t
o t

he
 bu

ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

be
ca

us
e o

f th
e m

an
y c

ros
s b

ou
nd

ary
 is
su

es
.  T

he
 cu

rre
nt 

JC
S 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 ar

e w
ork

ing
 w
ell
 an

d h
av

ing
 st

ron
ge

r li
nk

s w
ith

 th
e T

ew
ke

sb
ury

 te
am

 ha
s b

ee
n b

en
efi

cia
l a

nd
 th

e r
ev

iew
 te

am
 w
ou

ld 
be

 ke
en

 to
 se

e t
his

 co
-

op
era

tiv
e w

ay
 of

 w
ork

ing
 co

nti
nu

ing
 ev

en
 if 

the
re 

are
 no

t m
ore

 fo
rm

ali
se

d s
ha

red
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

. 
 8.1

5 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

ha
s a

 sh
are

d B
uil
din

g C
on

tro
l s
erv

ice
 w
ith

 Te
wk

es
bu

ry 
Bo

rou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

is 
ha

s b
ee

n s
uc

ce
ss
ful

 in
 ac

hie
vin

g t
he

 ef
fic
ien

cie
s a

nd
 

res
ilie

nc
e s

et 
ou

t in
 th

e b
us

ine
ss
 ca

se
 w
hic

h l
ed

 to
 its

 cr
ea

tio
n. 

Th
e s

erv
ice

 re
ma

ins
 op

en
 to

 ex
ten

din
g t

he
 sc

op
e o

f jo
int

 w
ork

ing
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 its

 bu
sin

es
s 

ob
jec

tiv
es

, b
ut 

an
y s

uc
h d

ec
isio

n w
ill r

eq
uir

e b
uy

-in
 fro

m 
ou

r lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
ty 

pa
rtn

er,
 ba

se
d o

n a
 ro

bu
st 

rat
ion

ale
. T

he
 re

vie
w 
tea

m 
wa

s a
wa

re 
tha

t th
ere

 
ma

y b
e o

pp
ort

un
itie

s t
o e

xp
lor

e w
ide

nin
g t

he
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 fo

r B
uil
din

g C
on

tro
l a

nd
 th

at 
ex

plo
rat

ory
 co

nv
ers

ati
on

s h
ad

 ta
ke

n p
lac

e w
ith

 tw
o o

the
r a

uth
ori

tie
s 

bu
t a

t th
e c

urr
en

t ti
me

 it 
wa

s f
elt

 th
at 

the
 ex

ist
ing

 sh
are

d a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

ne
ed

 to
 be

d d
ow

n a
nd

 th
at 

an
y r

ev
iew

 co
uld

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 w
he

n t
he

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
ag

ree
me

nt 
is 
un

de
r re

vie
w.
  

 8.1
6 

Du
rin

g t
he

 st
ak

eh
old

er 
se

ss
ion

s i
t w

as
 re

co
gn

ise
d t

ha
t s

ha
red

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 ca

n d
eli
ve

r m
ore

 se
rvi

ce
 re

sili
en

ce
 pa

rtic
ula

rly
 fo

r s
ma

ll t
ea

ms
 su

ch
 as

 
he

rita
ge

 an
d c

on
se

rva
tio

n. 
 Th

ere
 se

em
ed

 a 
ge

nu
ine

 ap
pe

tite
 fro

m 
oth

er 
he

rita
ge

, tr
ee

, la
nd

sc
ap

e a
nd

 de
sig

n o
ffic

ers
 an

d s
tak

eh
old

ers
 to

 se
e i

f th
ere

 ca
n 

be
 m

ore
 co

lla
bo

rat
ive

 w
ork

ing
 ac

ros
s G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 in

clu
din

g t
he

 ar
ch

ae
olo

gy
 se

cti
on

 at
 th

e c
ou

nty
 co

un
cil.

 
 8.1

7 
Th

e r
ev

iew
 te

am
 w
ere

 al
so

 aw
are

 of
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 ex
plo

re 
wit

h G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il w

he
the

r th
ere

 ar
e w

ay
s i
n w

hic
h w

e c
ou

ld 
be

 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 to
 de

live
r s

om
e o

f th
eir

 se
rvi

ce
s o

r w
he

the
r th

ere
 ar

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

o c
om

mi
ss
ion

 th
em

 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 ce

rta
in 

as
pe

cts
 of

 se
rvi

ce
 de

live
ry 

for
 

us
.  C

urr
en

tly
 th

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il a

re 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 G
lou

ce
ste

r C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il o

n P
roj

ec
t F

us
ion

 (a
 pr

oje
ct 

to 
de

live
r a

 ra
ng

e o
f s

ha
red

 se
rvi

ce
s) 

an
d w

ish
 to

 
de

live
r s

om
e o

utc
om

es
 fro

m 
thi

s w
ork

 be
for

e c
on

sid
eri

ng
 ho

w 
the

y m
igh

t ta
ke

 th
is 
for

wa
rd 

wit
h o

the
r d

ist
ric

t c
ou

nc
ils.

  T
he

 re
lev

an
t c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 di

rec
tor

 
at 

the
 C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il h

as
 be

en
 se

nt 
a c

op
y o

f th
e d

raf
t re

po
rt a

nd
 on

go
ing

 di
alo

gu
e w

ill c
on

tin
ue

.   
 

Lo
ca

l a
uth

or
ity

 co
mp

an
y 

8.1
8 

Th
e p

roj
ec

t te
am

 ha
s a

lso
 ex

plo
red

 w
he

the
r th

ere
 is
 an

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o c

on
sid

er 
a t

rad
ing

 co
mp

an
y m

od
el 

for
 so

me
 of

 th
e s

erv
ice

s u
nd

er 
sc
op

e, 
su

ch
 as

 
Bu

ild
ing

 C
on

tro
l.  

Th
is 
se

rvi
ce

 al
rea

dy
 w
ork

s i
n a

 co
mp

eti
tiv
e m

ark
et 

an
d t

he
 re

vie
w 
tea

m 
fel

t th
at 

the
re 

ma
y b

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

o e
xp

lor
e d

iffe
ren

t d
eli
ve

ry 
mo

de
ls 
su

ch
 as

 a 
tra

din
g c

om
pa

ny
, s

oc
ial
 en

ter
pri

se
 or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t b

uy
ou

t.  
Ho

we
ve

r, t
rad

ing
 co

nd
itio

ns
 ar

e c
urr

en
tly
 di

ffic
ult

 an
d f

ee
 in

co
me

 le
ve

ls 
are

 
un

pre
dic

tab
le.

 Th
is 
is 
a d

iffi
cu

lt t
im

e t
o b

e, 
in 

eff
ec

t, s
tar

tin
g a

 ne
w 
bu

sin
es

s. 
 It 

is 
als

o q
ue

sti
on

ab
le 

wh
eth

er 
the

 sa
vin

gs
 ga

ine
d b

y s
ett

ing
 up

 a 
tra

din
g 

co
mp

an
y a

re 
as

 su
bs

tan
tia

l a
nd

 th
ey

 m
igh

t s
ee

m,
 as

 th
e c

orp
ora

te 
ov

erh
ea

ds
 w
hic

h a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y c

ha
rge

d t
o B

uil
din

g C
on

tro
l w

ou
ld 

be
 in

 pr
ac

tic
e d

iffi
cu

lt 
to 

sa
ve

 if 
the

 se
rvi

ce
 be

ca
me

 an
 ar

ms
 le

ng
th 

co
mp

an
y. 

 N
on

eth
ele

ss
 it 

is 
fel

t th
at 

thi
s o

pti
on

 ne
ed

s t
o b

e k
ep

t in
 m

ind
 an

d p
erh

ap
s r

ec
on

sid
ere

d w
he

n 
tra

din
g c

on
dit

ion
s i
mp

rov
e. 

 8.1
9 

Fo
r th

e r
ea

so
ns

 ex
pla

ine
d i

n t
his

 se
cti
on

, th
e r

ev
iew

 te
am

 do
es

 no
t re

co
mm

en
d a

 m
ajo

r c
ha

ng
e i

n t
he

 w
ay

 Bu
ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
de

live
red

.  T
he

 
pre

fer
red

 ap
pro

ac
h w

hic
h i

s s
up

po
rte

d b
y t

he
 D
ire

cto
r o

f B
uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t is
 to

 fu
rth

er 
int

eg
rat

e t
he

 te
am

, ta
kin

g t
he

 op
po

rtu
nit

y o
f a

 do
wn

tur
n i

n s
erv

ice
 

de
ma

nd
 to

 fu
rth

er 
str

ea
ml

ine
 th

e s
taf

fin
g s

tru
ctu

re.
  

 9. 
Co

ns
ult

ati
on
 

 9.1
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il t
oo

k t
he

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o w

ork
 w
ith

 En
gli
sh

 H
eri

tag
e o

n t
he

 re
vie

w 
an

d s
ec

ure
d a

 sm
all
 su

m 
of 

fun
din

g f
rom

 th
em

 as
 pa

rt o
f a

 w
ide

r n
ati

on
al 

rev
iew

 pr
og

ram
me

.  I
t w

as
 ev

ide
nt 

fro
m 

ou
r in

itia
l d

isc
us

sio
ns

 w
ith

 En
gli
sh

 H
eri

tag
e, 

tha
t th

ey
 re

co
gn

ise
d t

ha
t C

he
lte

nh
am

 he
rita

ge
 pr

ov
ide

d a
 un

iqu
e 

se
llin

g p
oin

t fo
r th

e t
ow

n. 
 Th

ey
 w
ere

 ke
en

 to
 su

pp
ort

 us
 w
ith

 th
e r

ev
iew

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
in 

vie
w 
of 

the
 ch

all
en

ge
s a

nd
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 of
 ha

vin
g a

 la
rge

 

Page 245



 
co

ns
erv

ati
on

 ar
ea

, a
 si
gn

ific
an

t n
um

be
r o

f li
ste

d b
uil
din

gs
 an

d a
 lo

ca
l in

de
x o

f b
uil
din

gs
 of

 ar
ch

ite
ctu

ral
 or

 hi
sto

ric
 in

ter
es

t.  
Th

e f
un

din
g w

as
 us

ed
 to

 
su

pp
ort

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
fac

ilita
ted

 se
ss
ion

s w
ith

 m
em

be
rs,

 of
fic
ers

 an
d s

tak
eh

old
ers

.  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il w

as
 pl

ea
se

d t
o s

ec
ure

 th
e e

xp
ert

ise
 of

 Le
s S

pa
rks

 O
BE

, 
wh

o h
ad

 pr
ev

iou
sly

 w
ork

ed
 at

 Bi
rm

ing
ha

m 
Cit

y C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 ha

s a
 na

tio
na

l re
pu

tat
ion

 w
ith

in 
the

 pl
an

nin
g c

om
mu

nit
y. 

 
 9.2

 
Th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n i

nv
olv

ed
 se

ve
ral

 fa
cili

tat
ed

 se
ss
ion

s w
ith

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 st
ak

eh
old

ers
, m

em
be

rs 
an

d o
ffic

ers
 as

 se
t o

ut 
in 

ap
pe

nd
ix 
5. 

 Th
e i

nit
ial
 se

ss
ion

s d
id 

no
t in

clu
de

 of
fic
ers

 fro
m 

the
 se

rvi
ce

 ar
ea

s, 
en

ab
lin
g a

 fu
ll a

nd
 fra

nk
 di

sc
us

sio
n a

bo
ut 

se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 th

e o
utc

om
es

 w
hic

h s
tak

eh
old

ers
 w
ish

ed
 to

 se
e 

de
live

red
.  F

urt
he

r s
es

sio
ns

 w
ere

 th
en

 he
ld 

wh
ich

 en
ab

led
 al

l th
e p

art
ies

 to
 co

me
 to

ge
the

r to
 sh

are
 id

ea
s. 

 D
es

pit
e p

erc
ep

tio
ns

 pr
ior

 to
 th

e e
ve

nts
 th

at 
dif

fer
en

t s
ec

tor
s w

ou
ld 

wis
h f

or 
dif

fer
en

t o
utc

om
es

, th
ere

 w
as

 re
ma

rka
ble

 al
ign

me
nt 

ac
ros

s a
tte

nd
ee

s a
s t

o t
he

 de
sir

ed
 fo

cu
s o

f th
e s

erv
ice

.  T
he

 re
vie

w 
tea

m 
are

 gr
ate

ful
 fo

r th
e p

art
icip

ati
on

 of
 al

l th
os

e i
nv

olv
ed

 an
d t

he
 w
illin

gn
es

s t
o s

up
po

rt t
he

 pr
oc

es
s. 

 9.3
 

On
e o

f th
e m

ain
 m

es
sa

ge
s e

me
rgi

ng
 fro

m 
the

 se
ss
ion

s w
as

 th
e n

ee
d f

or 
co

ns
ist
en

cy
 an

d t
ran

sp
are

nc
y i
n a

dv
ice

.  T
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
ind

us
try

 ha
d p

art
icu

lar
 

co
nc

ern
s a

bo
ut 

the
 pl

an
nin

g p
roc

es
s a

nd
 so

me
 of

 th
e P

lan
nin

g C
om

mi
tte

e d
ec

isio
ns

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
wh

ere
 ap

pli
ca

nts
 ha

d a
lre

ad
y r

ec
eiv

ed
 pr

e-a
pp

lica
tio

n 
ad

vic
e a

nd
 th

ere
 w
ere

 di
sc
us

sio
ns

 ab
ou

t h
ow

 th
is 
ad

vic
e c

ou
ld 

be
 be

tte
r re

fle
cte

d w
ith

in 
rep

ort
s t

o a
ss
ist
 m

em
be

rs.
  L

es
 Sp

ark
s u

nd
ert

oo
k a

 fu
rth

er 
pie

ce
 

of 
wo

rk 
to 

rev
iew

 on
e s

pe
cif
ic 
pla

nn
ing

 re
fus

al 
wh

ich
 ha

d r
es

ult
ed

 in
 a 

los
t a

pp
ea

l a
nd

 re
vie

we
d t

he
 in

itia
l p

ap
erw

ork
 an

d a
pp

ea
l p

ap
erw

ork
 - a

 co
py

 of
 hi

s 
rep

ort
 is
 at

tac
he

d a
t a

pp
en

dix
 6.

  H
is 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s w

ill b
e c

on
sid

ere
d b

y t
he

 Pl
an

nin
g C

om
mi

tte
e. 

 9.4
 

Th
e s

tak
eh

old
ers

 va
lue

d t
he

 w
ork

 of
 th

e h
eri

tag
e a

nd
 co

ns
erv

ati
on

 te
am

 an
d t

he
 pr

oc
es

s r
ais

ed
 qu

es
tio

ns
 as

 to
 w
he

the
r th

e l
ev

el 
of 

res
ou

rci
ng

 is
 su

ffic
ien

t 
for

 th
e t

ow
n w

he
re 

he
rita

ge
 is
 su

ch
 a 

ke
y f

ea
tur

e. 
 In

 a 
co

ns
tra

ine
d f

ina
nc

ial
 en

vir
on

me
nt,

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 ad
dit

ion
al 

sta
ffin

g r
es

ou
rce

s i
s n

ot 
an

 im
me

dia
tel

y 
via

ble
 op

tio
n. 

Ho
we

ve
r, e

ns
uri

ng
 th

at 
the

 sk
ills

 of
 ou

r h
eri

tag
e s

taf
f a

re 
tar

ge
ted

 an
d u

se
d t

o t
he

 be
st 

eff
ec

t is
 a 

mo
re 

rea
list

ic 
wa

y f
orw

ard
.  T

his
 w
ou

ld 
inv

olv
e i

nc
rea

sin
g h

eri
tag

e k
no

wle
dg

e r
igh

t a
cro

ss
 th

e p
lan

nin
g s

erv
ice

 so
 th

at 
pla

nn
ing

 of
fic
ers

 co
uld

 de
al 

wit
h a

 w
ide

r ra
ng

e o
f a

pp
lica

tio
ns

, re
lea

sin
g t

he
 

he
rita

ge
 an

d c
on

se
rva

tio
n t

ea
m 

to 
foc

us
 m

ore
 on

 hi
gh

er 
pro

file
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 an
d a

 m
ore

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o s

ec
uri

ng
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 - f
or 

ex
am

ple
, a

 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f A

rtic
le 

4 d
ire

cti
on

s t
o r

em
ov

e p
erm

itte
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t ri
gh

ts 
in 

se
ns

itiv
e a

rea
s t

hu
s p

rev
en

tin
g i

na
pp

rop
ria

te 
ex

ter
na

l c
ha

ng
es

 to
 ch

ara
cte

r 
bu

ild
ing

s w
ith

in 
the

 to
wn

’s 
se

ve
n C

on
se

rva
tio

n a
rea

s. 
 9.5

 
Th

e w
ork

 fro
m 

the
 st

ak
eh

old
er 

se
ss
ion

s h
as

 be
en

 us
ed

 to
 su

pp
ort

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f th

e o
utc

om
e f

ram
ew

ork
.  T

he
 ev

en
ts 

we
re 

so
 su

cc
es

sfu
l in

 br
ing

ing
 

tog
eth

er 
a r

an
ge

 of
 st

ak
eh

old
ers

 an
d s

ha
rin

g v
iew

s a
bo

ut 
se

rvi
ce

 im
pro

ve
me

nt,
 th

at 
the

 re
vie

w 
tea

m 
be

lie
ve

 th
e s

erv
ice

s i
n s

co
pe

 sh
ou

ld 
run

 re
gu

lar
 

ev
en

ts 
wit

h t
he

ir c
us

tom
ers

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

ey
 ge

t q
ua

lita
tiv
e f

ee
db

ac
k a

nd
 us

e t
he

 ex
pe

rtis
e a

nd
 w
illin

gn
es

s o
f g

rou
ps

 to
 su

pp
ort

 ta
rge

t o
utc

om
es

. 
 9.6

 
Th

e r
ev

iew
 w
as

 aw
are

 th
at 

the
 se

rvi
ce

s i
n s

co
pe

 al
so

 un
de

rta
ke

 th
eir

 ow
n c

on
su

lta
tio

n w
ith

 cu
sto

me
rs 

by
 w
ay

 of
 su

rve
ys
 an

d t
he

se
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e 

en
co

ura
ge

d i
n t

he
 fu

tur
e. 

  
 10
. 

Be
nc
hm

ark
ing

 
10

.1 
So

me
 of

 th
e s

erv
ice

s i
n s

co
pe

 ha
ve

 un
de

rta
ke

n a
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing

 ex
erc

ise
 co

-or
din

ate
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 Pl
an

nin
g A

dv
iso

ry 
Se

rvi
ce

 an
d t

he
 C
ha

rte
red

 In
sti
tut

e 
of 

Pu
bli
c F

ina
nc

e a
nd

 Ac
co

un
tan

cy
 (C

IPF
A)
.  T

he
 pu

rpo
se

 of
 th

e b
en

ch
ma

rki
ng

 ex
erc

ise
 is
 to

 us
e t

he
 in

for
ma

tio
n t

o c
om

pa
re 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 an

d c
os

ts 
wit

h 
pe

ers
 an

d t
o s

up
po

rt m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e s

erv
ice

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

ns
.   

 10
.2 

Alo
ng

 w
ith

 97
 ot

he
r c

ou
nc

ils,
 C
BC

 su
bm

itte
d d

ata
 on

 its
 ac

tiv
ity
, in

co
me

 an
d c

os
ts 

to 
CI
PF

A w
hic

h w
as

 ba
se

d u
po

n o
ne

 m
on

th 
ac

tiv
ity
 an

d t
he

n m
ult

ipl
ied

 
up

 fo
r th

e y
ea

r. C
BC

 th
en

 se
lec

ted
 11

 si
mi

lar
 au

tho
riti

es
 to

 be
 w
ith

in 
its
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing

 gr
ou

p t
o c

om
pa

re 
its
elf

 w
ith

: 
 Ca

mb
rid

ge
 C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il  

Page 246



 
Cit

y o
f L

inc
oln

 C
ou

nc
il  

Gl
ou

ce
ste

r C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il  

Gu
ild
for

d B
oro

ug
h C

ou
nc

il  
Ha

rlo
w 
Dis

tric
t C

ou
nc

il  
No

rw
ich

 C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il  

Ox
for

d C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il  

Tu
nb

rid
ge

 W
ell
s B

oro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il  

W
atf

ord
 Bo

rou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il  

W
elw

yn
 H
atf

iel
d  

W
orc

es
ter

 C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il  

 10
.3 

Th
e d

ata
 in

dic
ate

s t
ha

t c
om

pa
red

 to
 th

e a
uth

ori
tie

s w
ith

in 
thi

s g
rou

p w
e h

av
e t

he
 se

co
nd

 lo
we

st 
co

sts
 fo

r s
tra

teg
ic 
pla

nn
ing

, a
re 

in 
the

 se
co

nd
 qu

art
ile
 

(sl
igh

tly
 be

tte
r th

an
 av

era
ge

) fo
r th

e c
os

ts 
of 

pro
ce

ss
ing

 pl
an

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns

, th
e c

os
ts 

of 
co

mp
lia
nc

e (
en

for
ce

me
nt)

 an
d t

he
 am

ou
nt 

of 
inc

om
e w

e 
ge

ne
rat

e f
rom

 fe
es

. W
e a

re 
in 

the
 th

ird
 qu

art
ile
 (s

lig
htl

y w
ors

e t
ha

n a
ve

rag
e) 

for
 th

e c
os

ts 
as

so
cia

ted
 w
ith

 “o
the

r” p
lan

nin
g w

ork
.  

 10
.4 

Fro
m 

oth
er 

be
nc

hm
ark

ing
 da

ta,
 w
e k

no
w 
tha

t C
he

lte
nh

am
 ha

s t
he

 hi
gh

es
t c

os
ts 

an
d s

pe
nd

s t
he

 m
os

t h
ou

rs 
on

 ap
pe

als
 co

mp
are

d w
ith

 ot
he

r a
uth

ori
tie

s. 
Ho

we
ve

r, t
he

 nu
mb

er 
of 

pla
nn

ing
 ap

pe
als

 is
 le

ss
 th

an
 2%

 of
 th

e t
ota

l n
um

be
r o

f a
pp

lica
tio

ns
.  I

n r
ec

og
nit

ion
 of

 th
is 
as

 an
 is
su

e, 
the

 co
rpo

rat
e s

tra
teg

y 
inc

lud
es

 a 
co

mm
itm

en
t to

 m
on

ito
r th

e p
rop

ort
ion

 of
 pl

an
nin

g d
ec

isio
ns

 up
he

ld 
at 

ap
pe

al 
on

 a 
qu

art
erl

y b
as

is.
  

 
  

  
  

To
tal
 R
ep
ort
ed
 C
os
ts 
£'k
 

  

Au
tho
rity
 

Po
pu
lat
ion
 

Ap
pli
cs
 

Re
ce
ive
d 

(H
igh
 is
 

go
od
) 

Ge
ne
ric
 

(Lo
w 
is 

go
od
) 

Str
ate
gic
 

Pla
nn
ing
 

(Lo
w 
is 

go
od
) 

Pla
nn
ing
 

Ap
pli
cs
 

(Lo
w 
is 

go
od
) 

Co
mp
lia
nc
e 

& D
eli
ve
ry 

(Lo
w 
is 

go
od
) 

Ot
he
r 

(Lo
w 
is 

go
od
) 

Ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

Fe
es
 

(H
igh
 is
 

go
od
) 

Ox
for
d C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il 

15
4 

14
44
 

34
1 

56
7 

65
1 

13
2 

25
9 

66
5 

Ca
mb
rid
ge
 C
ity
 

Co
un
cil 

12
3 

12
22
 

55
0 

47
0 

85
7 

18
5 

60
4 

54
7 

No
rw
ich
 C
ity
 C
ou
nc
il 

13
6 

11
34
 

22
8 

35
2 

42
4 

94
 

29
1 

29
9 

Gu
ild
for
d B

oro
ug
h 

Co
un
cil 

13
6 

19
73
 

31
4 

43
4 

93
0 

18
5 

57
8 

62
4 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
 

11
2 

15
34
 

21
8 

18
2 

55
3 

78
 

28
6 

49
5 

Gl
ou
ce
ste
r C
ity
 

Co
un
cil 

11
5 

92
6 

32
9 

13
5 

26
7 

87
 

13
5 

31
5 

W
elw

yn
 H
atf
iel
d 

10
8 

17
60
 

14
0 

26
4 

45
6 

52
 

33
6 

42
8 

Tu
nb
rid
ge
 W
ell
s 

Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou
nc
il 

10
7 

18
76
 

20
6 

47
8 

80
9 

21
3 

19
9 

47
8 

W
orc
es
ter
 C
ity
 

Co
un
cil 

94
 

76
5 

18
2 

50
4 

37
0 

77
 

20
5 

26
6 

W
atf
ord

 Bo
rou

gh
 

Co
un
cil 

81
 

88
0 

28
0 

44
9 

82
9 

13
7 

24
3 

27
5 

Ha
rlo
w 
Dis

tric
t 

Co
un
cil 

79
 

31
5 

87
 

21
4 

19
7 

41
 

11
2 

12
3 

Ra
nk
ing
 w
ith
in 
clu
b 

6 
4 

5 
2 

6 
4 

7 
4 

Ra
nk
ing
 w
ith
in 
50
 

dis
tric
ts 

22
 

19
 

34
 

24
 

32
 

17
 

41
 

22
 

Ke
y t
o r
an
kin
g o
f 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 247



 
qu
art
ile
 

  
To
p 

qu
art
ile
 

  
3rd

 
qu
art
ile
 

  
 

 
 

  
  

2n
d 

qu
art
ile
 

  
Bo
tto
m 

qu
art
ile
 

  
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 10
.5 

Th
e p

roj
ec

t te
am

 ha
s r

ev
iew

ed
 th

e b
en

ch
ma

rki
ng

 da
ta 

an
d f

ee
l th

at 
it i
s a

 us
efu

l s
tar

tin
g p

oin
t, b

ut 
is 
mi

nd
ful

 of
 no

t d
raw

ing
 to

o m
an

y c
on

clu
sio

ns
 fro

m 
it, 

du
e t

o t
he

 di
ffe

ren
t w

ay
s i
n w

hic
h a

uth
ori

tie
s a

llo
ca

te 
co

sts
 an

d a
lso

 th
e d

ive
rse

 na
tur

e a
nd

 ch
ara

cte
r o

f th
e b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t in
 ea

ch
 lo

ca
lity

.   
Th

e c
ou

nc
il h

as
 re

ce
ntl

y c
om

ple
ted

 a 
fur

the
r b

en
ch

ma
rki

ng
 ex

erc
ise

 an
d w

e h
av

e j
us

t re
ce

ive
d t

he
 dr

aft
 re

su
lts
.  H

ow
ev

er 
the

y h
av

e b
ee

n c
om

pil
ed

 on
 a 

dif
fer

en
t b

as
is 
an

d t
his

 is
 m

ak
ing

 ea
rly

 co
mp

ari
so

ns
 di

ffic
ult

. T
he

 re
vie

w 
tea

m 
is 
mi

nd
ful

 of
 th

e n
ee

d f
or 

ba
lan

ce
 be

tw
ee

n c
os

t a
nd

 qu
ali
ty 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s 

an
d c

au
tio

ns
 ag

ain
st 

an
y s

ug
ge

sti
on

 th
at 

we
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 se

ek
ing

 to
 be

 lo
we

r q
ua

rtil
e f

or 
co

sts
, re

ga
rdl

es
s o

f th
e i

mp
ac

t o
n s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 

de
live

ry 
ag

ain
st 

tar
ge

t o
utc

om
es

, w
hic

h s
tak

eh
old

ers
 cl
ea

rly
 va

lue
. 

 10
.6 

Th
e b

en
ch

ma
rki

ng
 ex

erc
ise

 an
d f

urt
he

r a
na

lys
is 
ha

s h
ow

ev
er 

hig
hli
gh

ted
 so

me
 is
su

es
 re

lat
ing

 to
 su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
 re

ch
arg

es
 an

d t
he

 w
ay

 th
at 

the
y a

re 
all
oc

ate
d a

cro
ss
 th

e r
an

ge
 of

 bu
ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

 Th
e r

ev
iew

 ha
s g

ive
n f

urt
he

r c
on

sid
era

tio
n t

o t
his

, s
o t

ha
t th

ere
 is
 cl
ari

ty 
on

 al
loc

ati
on

s a
nd

 w
ha

t 
thi

s m
igh

t m
ea

n f
or 

dif
fer

en
t d

eli
ve

ry 
mo

de
ls,
 us

ing
 th

e e
xp

eri
en

ce
 fro

m 
the

 w
ork

 w
e a

re 
un

de
rta

kin
g o

n t
he

 lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
ty 

co
mp

an
y. 

  
 11
.  

Sy
ste

ms
 th

ink
ing

 
11

.1 
As

 pa
rt o

f th
e c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 
of 

the
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

the
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

req
ue

ste
d t

ha
t a

 sy
ste

ms
 th

ink
ing

 re
vie

w 
be

 un
de

rta
ke

n t
o a

ss
es

s 
ho

w 
eff

icie
nt 

cu
rre

nt 
pro

ce
ss
es

 ar
e. 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 te
am

 ha
s s

tar
ted

 by
 co

ns
ide

rin
g t

he
 pl

an
nin

g a
pp

lica
tio

n p
roc

es
s, 

lea
din

g t
o a

 re
de

sig
n o

f th
e w

ay
 in

 w
hic

h 
we

 pr
oc

es
s p

lan
nin

g a
pp

lica
tio

ns
.  T

he
 sy

ste
ms

 th
ink

ing
 ap

pro
ac

h w
as

 su
pp

ort
ed

 by
 th

e b
us

ine
ss
 tra

ns
for

ma
tio

n t
ea

m,
 an

d  
lea

d b
y 4

 of
fic
ers

 fro
m 

the
 

se
rvi

ce
. T

he
 re

vie
w 
gro

up
 w
as

 gr
ate

ful
 fo

r th
e w

ay
 in

 w
hic

h t
he

 of
fic
ers

 in
vo

lve
d w

ith
 sy

ste
ms

 th
ink

ing
 w
ork

 em
bra

ce
d t

he
 ap

pro
ac

h, 
an

d t
he

 en
thu

sia
sm

 
the

y s
ho

we
d t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

 ne
ed

s o
f th

e c
us

tom
er 

we
re 

pa
ram

ou
nt.

 
 11

.2 
Th

e s
ys
tem

 re
de

sig
n h

as
 al

rea
dy

 id
en

tifi
ed

 ef
fic
ien

cie
s (

su
ch

 as
 sa

vin
gs

 in
 co

sts
 of

 co
uri

er 
se

rvi
ce

s) 
bu

t m
ore

 im
po

rta
ntl

y, 
ha

s l
ed

 to
 a 

be
tte

r c
us

tom
er 

se
rvi

ce
, a

s o
nc

e t
he

 pl
an

nin
g o

ffic
ers

 ha
s r

ec
eiv

ed
 an

 ap
pli
ca

tio
n t

he
y n

ow
 co

nta
ct 

ap
pli
ca

nts
 di

rec
tly
 to

 in
tro

du
ce

 th
em

se
lve

s a
nd

 ex
pla

in 
ho

w 
the

 pr
oc

es
s 

wil
l w

ork
  . 

Th
is 
he

lps
 ov

erc
om

e s
om

e o
f th

e c
on

ce
rns

 ra
ise

d b
y m

em
be

rs 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 pe

op
le 

pe
rce

ive
 th

e p
lan

nin
g p

roc
es

s a
s a

 st
res

sfu
l e

xp
eri

en
ce

, a
nd

 
the

 fe
ed

ba
ck
 to

 da
te 

fro
m 

cu
sto

me
rs 

ha
s b

ee
n e

xtr
em

ely
 po

sit
ive

.  E
vid

en
ce

 w
ou

ld 
als

o s
ug

ge
st 

tha
t th

e r
ev

ise
d p

roc
es

s h
as

 st
art

ed
 to

 re
su

lt i
n a

 qu
ick

er 
tur

n a
rou

nd
 tim

e f
or 

pla
nn

ing
 de

cis
ion

s. 
Us

ing
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

va
ila
ble

 th
rou

gh
 th

e u
nif

orm
 sy

ste
m 

the
 ty

pic
al 

tur
n a

rou
nd

 tim
e f

rom
 re

ce
ipt

 of
 ap

pli
ca

tio
n t

o 
the

 is
su

ing
 of

 a 
de

cis
ion

 no
tic
e b

efo
re 

red
es

ign
 w
as

 47
 da

ys
, th

is 
ha

s n
ow

 be
en

 re
du

ce
d t

o 4
2 d

ay
s 

 11
.3 

Se
t o

ut 
be

low
 ar

e s
om

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 gr

ap
hs

 fo
r th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t c

on
tro

l a
rea

 of
 ac

tiv
ity
 w
hic

h d
em

on
str

ate
 th

at 
wo

rkl
oa

d h
as

 di
pp

ed
 si
nc

e t
he

 re
ce

ss
ion

 
bu

t a
lso

 de
mo

ns
tra

tes
 ho

w 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ha
s i
mp

rov
ed

 ov
er 

a s
im

ila
r p

eri
od

, a
nd

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 de
mo

ns
tra

tes
 th

e m
ark

ed
 im

pro
ve

me
nt 

in 
tim

es
ca

les
 fo

r 
de

ali
ng

 w
ith

 va
lid
ate

d a
pp

lica
tio

ns
. 

 

Page 248



 

No
. o

f A
pp

lic
ati

on
s D

ec
ide

d

0

50
0

10
00

15
00

20
00

25
00

20
04

-
05

20
05

-
06

20
06

-
07

20
08

-
09

20
09

-
10

20
10

-
11

20
11

-
12

Ye
ar

No. of applications decided

 
 

Ap
pli

ca
tio

n p
ro

ce
ssi

ng
 tim

e
Re

gis
tra

tio
n t

o D
ec

isi
on

02040608010
0

12
0

20
04

-
05

20
05

-
06

20
06

-
07

20
08

-
09

20
09

-
10

20
10

-
11

20
11

-
12

Ye
ar

Average time in days

 
 

Page 249



 

Ap
pli

ca
tio

n p
ro

ce
ss

ing
 tim

e
Va

lid
ati

on
 to

 D
ec

isi
on

30354045505560 20
04

-05
20

06
-07

20
08

-09
20

10
-11

Ye
ar

Average time in days

Av
era

ge
 tim

e i
n

da
ys

 
  11

.4 
Th

e n
ex

t a
rea

s f
or 

red
es

ign
 ar

e c
on

dit
ion

 co
mp

lia
nc

e, 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

an
d a

pp
ea

ls.
  T

he
 re

vie
w 
gro

up
 ar

e k
ee

n t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

thi
s a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 se
rvi

ce
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
is 
em

be
dd

ed
 w
ith

in 
the

 te
am

, to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

ere
 is
 co

nti
nu

ou
s i
mp

rov
em

en
t re

vie
w.
  T

ho
se

 in
vo

lve
d w

ith
 th

e c
urr

en
t e

xe
rci

se
 be

lie
ve

 th
at 

the
re 

are
 fu

rth
er 

eff
icie

nc
ies

 to
 be

 m
ad

e i
n a

dm
ini
str

ati
ve

 pr
oc

es
se

s, 
wh

ich
 ha

ve
 th

e p
ote

nti
al 

to 
rel

ea
se

 ca
pa

cit
y t

o s
up

po
rt o

the
r p

rio
rity

 ar
ea

s f
or 

the
 

de
live

ry 
of 

ou
tco

me
s. 

 11
.5 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 al
so

 hi
gh

lig
hte

d t
he

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o c

on
du

ct 
a s

ys
tem

s t
hin

kin
g r

ev
iew

 fo
r B

uil
din

g C
on

tro
l, w

hic
h t

he
 se

rvi
ce

 m
an

ag
er 

is 
ke

en
 to

 pa
rtic

ipa
te 

in.
  

Th
e C

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 di

vis
ion

 w
ill b

uil
d t

his
 in

to 
the

ir w
ork

 pl
an

 fo
r 2

01
2/1

3 a
nd

 th
e d

ivis
ion

 w
ill n

ee
d t

o e
xp

lor
e h

ow
 th

ey
 w
ill r

ele
as

e c
ap

ac
ity
 fro

m 
wit

hin
 th

e 
bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ol 
tea

m 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

e s
ys
tem

s t
hin

kin
g w

ork
.  

  12
. 

Co
sts

/sa
vin

gs
 an

d t
he
 M
TF
S 

12
.1 

Th
e c

os
ts 

as
so

cia
ted

 w
ith

 th
e s

erv
ice

s i
n s

co
pe

 ar
e s

et 
ou

t b
elo

w:
 

 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ab
le 

co
sts

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Co
ntr

ol 
an

d 
Ur

ba
n D

es
ign

 
He

rita
ge

 an
d 

Co
ns

erv
ati

on
 

Str
ate

gic
 

La
nd

 U
se

 
Bu

ild
ing

 
Co

ntr
ol 

To
tal

 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
11

3,4
00

 
0 

14
8,1

00
 

59
0,4

00
 

85
1,9

00
 

Inc
om

e a
nd

 re
ch

arg
e 

to 
ou

tsi
de

 bo
die

s 
(46

2,9
00

) 
0 

(26
,60

0) 
(65

9,1
00

) 
(1,

14
8,6

00
) 

Ne
t o

pe
rat

ion
al 

bu
dg

et 
(34

9,5
00
) 

0 
12

1,5
00
 

(68
,70

0) 
(29

6,7
00
) 

Page 250



 
Ov

erh
ea

ds
 - B

E 
64

2,5
00

 
78

,10
0 

19
,40

0 
23

,40
0 

76
3,4

00
 

Ov
erh

ea
ds

 – 
oth

er 
div

isio
na

l re
ch

arg
es

 
29

6,2
00

 
25

,90
0 

44
,50

0 
95

,20
0 

46
1,8

00
 

Re
ch

arg
es

 to
 ot

he
r 

CB
C 
se

rvi
ce

s 
 

 
(67

,90
0) 

 
(67

,90
0) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ne
t C

os
t o

f S
erv

ice
 

58
9,2

00
 

10
4,0

00
 

11
7,5

00
 

49
,90

0 
86

0,6
00
 

 
12

.2 
Th

e G
ov

ern
me

nt 
ha

s p
rop

os
ed

 th
at 

co
un

cils
 m

ay
 be

 ab
le 

to 
se

t th
eir

 ow
n p

lan
nin

g f
ee

s t
o m

ore
 cl
os

ely
 re

fle
ct 

the
 co

sts
 of

 ru
nn

ing
 th

e s
erv

ice
.  T

he
 

leg
isla

tio
n a

nd
 de

tai
l o

f h
ow

 th
is 
mi

gh
t w

ork
 is
 ye

t to
 be

 fin
ali
se

d, 
ma

kin
g i

t d
iffi
cu

lt f
or 

the
 re

vie
w 
gro

up
 to

 dr
aw

 cl
ea

r c
on

clu
sio

ns
 ab

ou
t h

ow
 th

is 
mi

gh
t 

wo
rk 

in 
pra

cti
ce

.  C
lea

rly
 it 

pre
se

nts
 a 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o r

ais
e m

ore
 re

ve
nu

e a
nd

 re
du

ce
 th

e f
un

din
g g

ap
 in

 th
e m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an

cia
l s
tra

teg
y. 

 
Cu

rre
nt 

es
tim

ate
s w

ou
ld 

su
gg

es
t th

at 
the

 ch
arg

ing
 re

gim
e e

nv
isa

ge
d b

y t
he

 G
ov

ern
me

nt 
co

uld
 ge

ne
rat

e a
n a

dd
itio

na
l £

20
0k

 in
co

me
.  H

ow
ev

er,
 if 

an
d 

wh
en

 th
e n

ew
 ch

arg
ing

 re
gim

e c
om

es
 in

, th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill h

av
e t

o s
trik

e a
 ba

lan
ce

 be
tw
ee

n i
ts 

wis
h t

o r
ais

e m
ore

 in
co

me
 an

d i
ts 

ne
ed

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t 

ap
pli
ca

nts
 ar

e n
ot 

ad
ve

rse
ly 
aff

ec
ted

 by
 th

e n
ew

 fe
e l

ev
els

.  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il h

as
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e o

f s
ett

ing
 bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ol 
fee

s w
hic

h r
efl

ec
t th

e c
os

t o
f d

eli
ve

rin
g 

the
 se

rvi
ce

 an
d t

his
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e s

ho
uld

 be
 dr

aw
n u

po
n w

he
n s

ett
ing

 pl
an

nin
g f

ee
s. 

 12
.3 

Th
e b

en
ch

ma
rki

ng
 da

ta 
wil

l a
ss
ist
 in

 th
e e

sti
ma

tio
n o

f a
pp

rop
ria

te 
fee

 le
ve

ls 
an

d t
he

 re
vie

w 
tea

m 
rec

om
me

nd
s t

ha
t th

e c
ab

ine
t s

ho
uld

 be
 m

ind
ful

 of
 th

e 
es

tim
ate

d a
mo

un
t w

he
n s

ett
ing

 th
e m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an

cia
l s
tra

teg
y b

ut 
rec

og
nis

ing
 th

at 
the

 ac
tua

l a
mo

un
ts 

are
 un

ce
rta

in 
un

til 
the

 le
gis

lat
ion

 an
d g

uid
an

ce
 

is 
fin

ali
se

d. 
 12

.4 
Se

t o
ut 

at 
ap

pe
nd

ix 
4 a

re 
the

 sa
vin

gs
 an

d a
dd

itio
na

l in
co

me
 th

at 
ha

ve
 al

rea
dy

 be
en

 de
live

red
 by

 th
e s

erv
ice

s i
n s

co
pe

.  I
t c

an
 be

 se
en

 th
at 

the
 

ac
cu

mu
lat

ed
 sa

vin
gs

 am
ou

nt 
to 

£4
34

,80
0, 

wit
h a

 re
du

ce
d s

taf
fin

g o
f 1

1.1
fte

.  T
his

 is
 im

pre
ss
ive

 gi
ve

n t
ha

t s
erv

ice
 im

pro
ve

me
nt 

ha
s i
mp

rov
ed

 ov
er 

the
 

sa
me

 pe
rio

d (
se

e g
rap

hs
 ab

ov
e).

  It
 ca

n b
e s

ee
n t

ha
t w

ith
in 

the
 sc

op
e o

f th
e o

ve
ral

l b
ud

ge
ts 

thi
s i
s a

 si
gn

ific
an

t a
mo

un
t a

nd
 th

e r
ev

iew
 te

am
 ar

e m
ind

ful
 of

 
ho

w 
mu

ch
 m

ore
 sa

vin
gs

 ca
n b

e d
eli
ve

red
 w
ith

ou
t im

pa
cti
ng

 up
on

 se
rvi

ce
 qu

ali
ty.

   
 12

.5 
Ho

we
ve

r th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou

p f
ee

l th
at 

the
re 

are
 so

me
 ad

dit
ion

al 
sa

vin
gs

 w
hic

h c
an

 ac
cru

e t
hro

ug
h s

ys
tem

s t
hin

kin
g, 

res
tru

ctu
rin

g t
he

 se
rvi

ce
 an

d t
hro

ug
h 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 of

 ad
dit

ion
al 

inc
om

e p
art

icu
lar

ly 
in 

are
as

 w
hic

h t
he

 co
un

cil 
do

es
 no

t c
urr

en
tly
 ch

arg
e f

or.
 

   13
. 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

cu
rre

nt 
se
rvi

ce
 pr

ov
isi
on
 ag

ain
st 
the

 ou
tco

me
s 

 13
.1 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou

p a
re 

of 
the

 op
ini
on

 th
at 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

se
rvi

ce
 ca

n d
eli
ve

r a
ga

ins
t th

e o
utc

om
es

 bu
t re

co
gn

ise
 th

at 
the

 w
ay

 in
 w
hic

h t
he

 se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
org

an
ise

d m
ay

 ne
ed

 to
 ch

an
ge

.  T
he

 D
ire

cto
r o

f B
uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t h
as

 al
rea

dy
 st

art
ed

 a 
rev

iew
 of

 hi
s d

ivis
ion

. 
 13

.2 
Th

e 2
01

1-1
2 b

ud
ge

t ro
un

d i
de

nti
fie

d a
 re

ve
nu

e s
av

ing
s t

arg
et 

of 
£3

0,0
00

 fro
m 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
ac

tiv
itie

s. 
 H
ow

ev
er,

 ou
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n i
n r

ela
tio

n t
o t

he
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 pr

oc
es

s h
as

 cl
ea

rly
 id

en
tifi
ed

 st
ron

g e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
as

 an
 es

se
nti

al 
co

mp
on

en
t o

f c
rea

tin
g a

 le
ve

l p
lay

ing
 fie

ld 
for

 de
ve

lop
ers

 an
d s

ec
uri

ng
 an

 
eff

ec
tiv
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 im
pro

vin
g t

he
 bu

ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt.

  T
he

ref
ore

 th
es

e s
av

ing
s h

av
e t

o b
e a

ch
iev

ed
 w
ith

ou
t re

du
cin

g t
he

 se
rvi

ce
 at

 th
e ‘

sh
arp

 en
d’.

 
 

Page 251



 
13

.3 
Th

e s
en

ior
 m

an
ag

em
en

t re
str

uc
tur

e h
as

 pr
ov

ide
d t

he
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t

o b
rin

g t
og

eth
er 

all
 as

pe
cts

 of
 bu

ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
un

de
r a

 si
ng

le 
tea

m,
 

en
co

mp
as

sin
g p

riv
ate

 se
cto

r h
ou

sin
g, 

he
rita

ge
 an

d p
lan

nin
g c

om
pli
an

ce
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

ac
tiv
itie

s. 
Wo

rk 
to 

pro
gre

ss
 th

e n
ew

 st
ruc

tur
e i

s c
urr

en
tly
 un

de
rw

ay
. 

 13
.4 

Th
e e

ss
en

tia
l fo

cu
s o

f th
e n

ew
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

tea
m 

is 
to:

- 
 
� 

pro
vid

e a
 co

-or
din

ate
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

res
po

ns
e t

o b
uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t is
su

es
; 

� 
un

de
rpi

n m
ini
mu

m 
ho

us
ing

 st
an

da
rds

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
in 

the
 pr

iva
te 

ren
ted

 se
cto

r; 
� 

en
su

re 
tha

t u
na

uth
ori

se
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t is
 pr

ev
en

ted
, le

git
im

ise
d o

r re
mo

ve
d; 

� 
se

cu
re 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 by

 ta
rge

tin
g e

ye
so

res
, s

tat
uto

ry 
nu

isa
nc

e, 
va

ca
nt 

bu
ild
ing

s a
nd

 in
ap

pro
pri

ate
 ch

an
ge

s t
o t

he
 he

rita
ge

 of
 th

e t
ow

n; 
� 

he
lp 

fac
ilita

te 
po

sit
ive

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d i
nv

es
tm

en
t th

rou
gh

 th
e t

arg
ete

d u
se

 of
 co

mp
uls

ory
 pu

rch
as

e o
rde

rs;
 

� 
pro

vid
e a

n i
nd

ep
en

de
nt 

int
ern

al 
rev

iew
 m

ec
ha

nis
m 

for
 in

ve
sti
ga

tin
g c

om
pla

int
s a

bo
ut 

bre
ac

he
s o

f th
e b

uil
din

g r
eg

ula
tio

ns
.  

 13
.5 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

fur
the

r in
ter

na
l re

str
uc

tur
ing

, th
ere

 is
 a 

cle
ar 

op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o b

rin
g t

og
eth

er 
oth

er 
are

as
 of

 en
for

ce
me

nt 
un

de
r a

 si
ng

le 
‘en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
en

for
ce

me
nt’

 um
bre

lla
. T

his
 w
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e a

 ra
ng

e o
f fu

nc
tio

ns
 cu

rre
ntl

y w
ith

in 
the

 pu
bli
c p

rot
ec

tio
n t

ea
m,

 su
ch

 as
 po

llu
tio

n, 
air

 qu
ali
ty 

an
d c

on
tam

ina
ted

 
lan

d. 
 13

.6 
Th

ere
 is
 al

rea
dy

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
de

gre
e o

f c
ros

s-d
ivis

ion
al 

wo
rki

ng
 be

tw
ee

n t
he

 st
rat

eg
ic 
lan

d u
se

 , d
ev

elo
pm

en
t m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 U
rba

n D
es

ign
 te

am
s; 

thi
s 

inc
lud

es
 re

gu
lar

 in
pu

t fr
om

 st
rat

eg
ic 
lan

d u
se

 to
 pr

e-a
pp

lica
tio

n d
isc

us
sio

ns
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 la
rge

r d
ev

elo
pm

en
t s

ite
s a

nd
 pr

oa
cti
ve

ly 
pre

pa
red

 de
sig

n c
on

ce
pt 

sta
tem

en
ts 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t b
rie

fs.
 

 13
.7 

Th
is 
co

-op
era

tio
n e

xte
nd

s t
o s

taf
f s

ha
rin

g f
or 

bo
th 

op
era

tio
na

l a
nd

 st
aff

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
rea

so
ns

. F
or 

ex
am

ple
, a

 m
em

be
r o

f th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t 

tea
m 

wa
s r

ec
en

tly
 se

co
nd

ed
 to

 st
rat

eg
ic 
lan

d u
se

 fo
r s

ix 
mo

nth
s t

o a
ss
ist
 w
ith

 pr
og

res
sin

g e
ss
en

tia
l w

ork
 on

 th
e j

oin
t c

ore
 st

rat
eg

y. 
 13

.8 
Th

ere
 is
 al

rea
dy

 a 
blu

rre
d l

ine
 be

tw
ee

n p
oli
cy
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d B

uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t, w
ith

 m
an

y o
f th

e l
oc

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

fra
me

wo
rk 

po
licy

 do
cu

me
nts

 be
ing

 
pre

pa
red

, c
on

su
lte

d u
po

n a
nd

 re
po

rte
d t

o m
em

be
rs 

via
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt,

 ra
the

r th
an

 st
rat

eg
ic 
lan

d u
se

. E
xa

mp
les

 in
clu

de
 th

e e
xte

ns
ive

 su
ite

 of
 

Co
ns

erv
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 C
ha

rac
ter

 Ap
pra

isa
ls,
 C
ivic

 Pr
ide

 ur
ba

n d
es

ign
 fra

me
wo

rk,
 ‘G

ard
en

 La
nd

 an
d I

nfi
ll D

ev
elo

pm
en

t’ a
nd

 ‘R
es

ide
nti

al 
Alt

era
tio

ns
 an

d 
Ex

ten
sio

ns
’ s
up

ple
me

nta
ry 

pla
nn

ing
 do

cu
me

nts
.  B

rin
gin

g t
he

 st
rat

eg
ic 
lan

d u
se

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t te

am
s t

og
eth

er 
un

de
r a

 si
ng

le 
se

rvi
ce

 
ma

na
ge

r, w
ou

ld 
he

lp 
to 

en
su

re 
an

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 ba
lan

ce
 of

 re
so

urc
ing

 is
 m

ain
tai

ne
d b

etw
ee

n p
oli
cy
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t a

cti
vit
ies

.  
 13

.9 
Th

e o
utc

om
es

 ar
e v

ery
 cl
ea

r a
bo

ut 
the

 ne
ed

 fo
r th

e B
uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t s
erv

ice
s t

o h
elp

 de
live

r a
 su

sta
ina

ble
 ec

on
om

ic 
ba

se
 ba

se
d o

n m
ax

im
isin

g t
he

 va
lue

 
of 

the
 to

wn
’s 
he

rita
ge

, w
hil
e a

t th
e s

am
e t

im
e d

eli
ve

rin
g a

 se
rvi

ce
 w
hic

h m
ee

ts 
the

 ne
ed

s o
f th

e c
om

mu
nit

ies
 it 

se
rve

s. 
 Th

e c
ha

lle
ng

e f
or 

the
 di

vis
ion

 w
ill 

be
 to

 en
su

re 
tha

t th
e r

es
ou

rce
s w

ith
in 

the
 te

am
 ar

e u
se

d t
o b

es
t e

ffe
ct 

an
d t

ha
t th

ere
 is
 m

ore
 ta

rge
ted

 re
so

urc
ing

. 
  14

. 
De

ve
lop

ing
 an

 ou
tco

me
 se

rvi
ce

 sp
ec

ific
ati

on
  

 14
.1 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 gr
ou

p h
as

 co
nc

lud
ed

 th
at 

at 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
tim

e t
he

 co
nti

nu
ati

on
 of

 th
e i

n h
ou

se
 an

d s
ha

red
 se

rvi
ce

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 ar

e t
he

 m
os

t a
pp

rop
ria

te 
op

tio
n. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 ag
ree

d t
ha

t fr
om

 Ap
ril 

20
12

, it
 w
ill b

e a
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 w
ill n

ee
d t

o d
ete

rm
ine

 ho
w 
su

ch
 in

 ho
us

e s
erv

ice
s a

re 
mo

nit
ore

d, 
so

 th
at 

the
re 

is 
sim

ila
r ri

go
ur 

an
d a

ss
ura

nc
e t

o t
ho

se
 se

rvi
ce

s w
hic

h a
re 

pro
vid

ed
 vi
a a

lte
rna

tiv
e d

eli
ve

ry 
me

tho
ds

. 

Page 252



 
 14

.2 
Cle

arl
y, 

the
 C
ou

nc
il d

oe
s n

ot 
wis

h t
o d

ev
elo

p a
 bu

rea
uc

rat
ic 
or 

tim
e c

on
su

mi
ng

 pr
oc

es
s, 

bu
t th

ere
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e a

 de
gre

e o
f c

om
pa

rab
ility

 to
 ot

he
r s

erv
ice

s 
pro

vid
ed

 vi
a a

 C
om

mi
ss
ion

er/
pro

vid
er 

sp
lit.
  T

he
 re

vie
w 
gro

up
 is
 su

gg
es

tin
g t

ha
t th

e C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 di

vis
ion

 w
ork

 w
ith

 th
e D

ire
cto

r o
f B

uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d h
is 
ma

na
ge

rs 
to 

de
ve

lop
 an

 ou
tco

me
 se

rvi
ce

 sp
ec

ific
ati

on
, o

r s
erv

ice
 pl

an
, w

hic
h w

ill p
rov

ide
 a 

ba
sis

 fo
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 en
ab

le 
me

mb
ers

 
to 

se
e t

ha
t th

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

rom
 th

e r
ev

iew
 ar

e p
rog

res
se

d a
nd

 de
live

red
, a

s w
ell
 as

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ag

ain
st 

the
 ad

op
ted

 ou
tco

me
s f

ram
ew

ork
. 

 14
.3 

It i
s p

rop
os

ed
 th

at 
thi

s w
ill b

e i
n p

lac
e f

rom
 1 

Ap
ril 

20
12

 fo
r a

 th
ree

 ye
ar 

pe
rio

d, 
wit

h a
nn

ua
l re

vie
ws

. 

Page 253



Page 254
This page is intentionally left blank



En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

ou
tco

me
s

So
cia

l o
utc

om
es

CB
C 

co
rp

or
ate

 ob
jec

tiv
es

 an
d o

utc
om

es
 

as
 se

t in
 20

10
-20

15
 co

rp
or

ate
 st

rat
eg

y

Po
sit

ive
, p

ro-
ac

tiv
e 

an
d a

pp
roa

ch
ab

le 
wit

h c
us

tom
ers

 
be

ing
 si

gn
-po

ste
d 

to 
oth

er 
so

urc
es

 of
 

ad
vic

e

Ea
sy

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 in
 

dif
fer

en
t w

ay
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 op

tio
ns

 
for

 fa
ce

-fa
ce

 ad
vic

e 

Us
e o

f th
e w

eb
sit

e 
to 

en
co

ura
ge

 se
lf-

se
rvi

ce

Un
de

r-p
inn

ing
 pr

inc
ipl

es

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s 

arc
hit

ec
tur

al 
an

d 
lan

ds
ca

pe
 

he
rita

ge
 is

 
co

ns
erv

ed
 an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
Ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

 
me

et 
hig

h d
es

ign
 

an
d s

us
tai

na
bil

ity
 

sta
nd

ard
s, 

res
pe

cti
ng

 an
d 

res
po

nd
ing

 to
 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s 

De
live

r s
erv

ice
 at

 be
st 

va
lue

 to
 th

e 
tax

-pa
ye

r th
rou

gh
 m

ax
im

isin
g 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r g
en

era
tin

g i
nc

om
e 

to 
co

ve
r c

os
ts,

 re
du

cin
g w

as
te 

an
d 

ine
ffic

ien
cy

 in
 pr

oc
es

se
s a

nd
 w

ork
ing

 
in 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 wi
th 

oth
ers

 to
 de

live
r 

ou
tco

me
s

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s h

eri
tag

e 
an

d s
en

se
 of

 lo
ca

l 
dis

tin
cti

ve
ne

ss
 m

ak
es

 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 a 

de
sir

ab
le 

loc
ati

on
 fo

r b
us

ine
ss

es
.

To
w

ar
ds

 a
n 

ou
tc

om
es

 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

v 
1.

4

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 an

 
im

pro
ve

d q
ua

lity
 of

 
life

 an
d w

ell
be

ing
 

thr
ou

gh
 be

ing
 ab

le 
to 

ac
ce

ss
 an

d e
njo

y 
for

ma
l a

nd
 in

for
ma

l 
rec

rea
tio

n a
nd

 gr
ee

n 
sp

ac
es

.

Ec
on

om
ic 

ou
tco

me
s

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 an

 
im

pro
ve

d q
ua

lity
 of

 
life

 an
d w

ell
be

ing
 by

 
en

ha
nc

ing
 an

d 
su

sta
ini

ng
 a 

se
ns

e o
f 

loc
al 

dis
tin

cti
ve

ne
ss

 
an

d g
oo

d d
es

ign
 of

 
ne

w 
bu

ild
ing

s 

Str
en

gth
en

ing
 

ou
r e

co
no

my
W

e a
ttra

ct 
mo

re 
vis

ito
rs 

an
d 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
rec

ov
ers

 qu
ick

ly 
fro

m 
the

 
rec

es
sio

n

En
ha

nc
ing

 an
d 

pro
tec

tin
g o

ur 
en

vir
on

me
nt

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
ha

s 
a c

lea
n a

nd
 w

ell
 

ma
int

ain
ed

 
en

vir
on

me
nt

Na
tur

al 
an

d b
uil

t 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

is 
en

ha
nc

ed
 an

d 
pro

tec
ted

CO
2 e

mi
ss

ion
s 

are
 re

du
ce

d &
 

we
 ad

ap
t to

 
im

pa
cts

 of
 

clim
ate

 ch
an

ge
 

En
ha

nc
ing

 th
e 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 ar
ts 

an
d c

ult
ure

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s h

eri
tag

e 
an

d s
en

se
 of

 lo
ca

l 
dis

tin
cti

ve
ne

ss
 cr

ea
tes

 
an

 at
tra

cti
ve

 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

wh
ere

 
pe

op
le 

ch
oo

se
 to

 
rel

oc
ate

 in
 se

arc
h o

f 
em

plo
ym

en
t

Pr
om

ote
, e

nh
an

ce
 an

d 
bu

ild
 a 

be
tte

r a
nd

 
su

sta
ina

ble
 en

vir
on

me
nt 

for
 C

he
lte

nh
am

.
Pr

im
ary

 ou
tco

me

Tra
ns

pa
ren

t a
nd

 
fai

r p
roc

es
se

s w
ith

 
cu

sto
me

rs 
kn

ow
ing

 
tha

t th
eir

 vi
ew

s 
ha

ve
 be

en
 lis

ten
ed

 
to Eff

ec
tiv

e 
en

ga
ge

me
nt,

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 an
d 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n 
pro

ce
ss

es

Cu
sto

me
rs 

ha
ve

 a 
rig

ht 
to 

re-
dre

ss
 

wh
en

 th
ing

s g
o 

wr
on

g

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s 

sp
ec

ial
 he

rita
ge

 
ide

nti
ty

En
su

rin
g t

ha
t th

e 
ec

on
om

y d
ev

elo
ps

 in
 a 

su
sta

ina
ble

 wa
y w

hic
h 

ref
lec

ts 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
lim

its
 an

d t
he

 ne
ed

 to
 

red
uc

e c
arb

on
 

em
iss

ion
s. 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 va
lue

 
for

 m
on

ey
 

se
rvi

ce
s

Pr
oc

es
se

s t
ha

t ta
ke

 
int

o a
cc

ou
nt 

the
 

em
oti

on
al 

as
pe

ct?
?o

f th
e 

se
rvi

ce

Se
rvi

ce
 ha

s a
 C

BC
 

ide
nti

ty 
an

d 
co

mp
lie

s w
ith

 C
BC

 
po

lici
es

 an
d 

pro
ce

du
res

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 an

 
im

pro
ve

d q
ua

lity
 of

 
life

 an
d w

ell
be

ing
 by

 
ma

int
ain

ing
 a 

hig
h 

qu
ali

ty 
bu

ilt 
an

d 
na

tur
al 

en
vir

on
me

nt

Pe
op

le 
live

 in
 sa

fe,
 

wa
rm

 & 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

me
s t

ha
t m

ee
t th

eir
 

pe
rso

na
l n

ee
ds

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 

inf
lue

nc
e o

ve
r a

nd
 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

ir 
loc

al 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

ne
w 

bu
ild

ing
s 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s 

arc
hit

ec
tur

al 
an

d 
lan

ds
ca

pe
 

he
rita

ge
 is

 w
ell

 
ma

int
ain

ed
 an

d 
the

ir l
on

g-t
erm

 
fut

ure
 is

 se
cu

red
 

vis
ito

rs 
an

d 
inv

es
tor

s t
o 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m

Str
en

gth
en

ing
 

ou
r c

om
mu

nit
ies

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 de
ce

nt 
an

d a
ffo

rda
ble

 
ho

us
ing

Co
mm

un
itie

s f
ee

l 
sa

fe 
an

d a
re 

sa
fe

Pe
op

le 
are

 ab
le 

to 
lea

d h
ea

lth
y 

life
sty

les

Re
sid

en
ts 

en
joy

 
a s

tro
ng

 se
ns

e 
of 

co
mm

un
ity

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss

 
to 

a w
ide

 ra
ng

e o
f 

so
cia

l a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity

 
fac

iliti
es

Pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 an

 
im

pro
ve

d 
un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s c

ult
ura

l 
he

rita
ge

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s h

eri
tag

e 
an

d s
en

se
 of

 lo
ca

l 
dis

tin
cti

ve
ne

ss
 cr

ea
tes

 
an

 at
tra

cti
ve

 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

wh
ich

 
att

rac
ts 

vis
ito

rs
Ch

elt
en

ha
m’

s 
bu

sin
es

se
s a

re 
ab

le 
to 

gro
w 

an
d i

nv
es

t in
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

 th
rou

gh
 

en
co

ura
gin

g g
oo

d 
qu

ali
ty 

ne
w 

arc
hit

ec
tur

e d
es

ign
ed

 
for

 th
e f

utu
re 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g h

ist
ori

c 
bu

ild
ing

s a
re 

fle
xib

le 
to 

bu
sin

es
s n

ee
ds

 wh
ilst

 
sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 th
eir

 
sp

ec
ial

 qu
ali

tie
s

Ex
ist

ing
 

bu
ild

ing
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 he

rita
ge

 
as

se
ts,

 co
nti

nu
e 

to 
be

 fit
-fo

r-
pu

rpo
se

 as
 th

e 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge

s

Bio
div

ers
ity

 is
 

pro
tec

ted
 an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
 an

d 
the

 na
tur

al 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

is 
ab

le 
to 

ad
ap

t to
 

clim
ate

 ch
an

ge

Page 255



Page 256
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Bu
ilt 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 R
ev
iew

: B
tG
 Sa

vin
gs

 fo
r 'i

n s
co

pe
' s
erv

ice
s

20
09

/10
20

10
/11

20
11

/12
20

12
/13

FT
E 

TO
TA

L
DI
VIS

IO
NA

L S
AV

IN
GS

 / A
DD

ITI
ON

AL
 IN

CO
ME

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
/ C

on
tro

l
Pla
nn
ing
 Pr
e-A

pp
lica

tio
n F
ee
s -
 ad
dit
ion
al 
inc
om
e

£3
0,0
00

Pla
nn
ing
 po
st 
(ap

pe
als
)

£4
1,9
00

1.0
De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Co
ntr
ol:
 Pr
e-A

pp
lica

tio
n I
nte
rve
nti
on
 - r
ed
uc
tio
n i
n a
dm
in 
tea
m

£2
5,0
00

1.0
Re
du
ce
 le
ga
l b
ud
ge
t fo
r p
lan
nin
g a
pp
ea
ls

£4
0,0
00

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Co
ntr
ol:
 R
ed
uc
e a
dm
ins
tra
tio
n s
up
po
rt

£2
0,0
00

1.0
£7

1,9
00

£6
5,0

00
£2

0,0
00

£0
3.0

£1
56

,90
0

Bu
ild

ing
 C
on

tro
l

Bu
ild
ing
 C
on
tro
l p
os
t

£3
8,2
00

1.0
Sh
are

d B
uil
din
g C

on
tro
l w
ith
 Te
wk
es
bu
ry 
Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou
nc
il 

£1
9,0
00

0.5
Bu
ild
ing
 C
on
tro
l: t
erm

ina
te 
co
ntr
ac
ts 
of 
2 P

T B
uil
din
g I
ns
pe
cto
rs 
(sh
are

d w
ith
 TB

C)
£1
9,9
00

1.0
Bu
ild
ing
 C
on
tro
l: r
ed
uc
tio
n i
n a
dm
ini
str
ati
on
 su
pp
ort
 (s
ha
red

 w
ith
 TB

C)
 

£1
1,6
00

0.5
£3

8,2
00

£1
9,0

00
£3

1,5
00

£0
3.0

£8
8,7

00

Pla
nn

ing
 &
 H
ou

sin
g E

nfo
rce

me
nt

Ho
us
ing
 En

ab
lin
g -
 re
du
ce
d b
ud
ge
t fo
r e
xte
rna

l a
dv
ice

£9
,80
0

Co
mm

un
ity 
De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Re
org

an
isa
tio
n w

ith
 H
ou
sin
g O

pti
on
s T
ea
m

£1
4,6
00

Me
rge

 Pr
iva
te 
Se
cto
r H
ou
sin
g a
nd
 Pl
an
nin
g E

nfo
rce
me
nt 
Te
am
s

£3
0,0
00

1.0
On
e o
ff f
un
din
g o
f h
om
ele
ss
ne
ss
 po
st 
pri
or 
to 
co
ns
ide
rat
ion
 of
 th
e t
ran

sfe
r o
f H
ou
sin
g 

Op
tio
ns
 to
 C
BH

£3
0,0
00

1.0
£9

,80
0

£0
£7

4,6
00

£0
2.0

£8
4,4

00

Ur
ba

n D
es

ign
 Te

am
De
let
ion
 of
 U
rba

n D
es
ign
 Pr
oje
cts
 O
ffic
er 
po
st

£2
0,0
00

0.6
£0

£0
£2

0,0
00

£0
0.6

£2
0,0

00

St
rat

eg
ic 
La

nd
 U
se

 Te
am

Sh
are

d S
tra
teg
ic 
La
nd
 U
se

£2
4,1
00

0.5
En
d o
f F
ixe
d T
erm

 co
ntr
ac
t fo
r S
tra
teg
ic 
La
nd
 U
se
 te
ch
nic
al 
su
pp
ort

£2
0,8
00

1.0
Me
rge

r o
f S
tra
teg
ic 
La
nd
 U
se
 an
d H

ou
sin
g E

na
bli
ng
 fu
nc
tio
ns

£1
5,5
00

£1
4,5
00

1.0
£0

£0
£6

0,4
00

£1
4,5

00
2.5

£7
4,9

00

TO
TA

LS
£1

19
,90

0
£8

4,0
00

£2
06

,50
0

£1
4,5

00
11

.1
£4

24
,90

0

Page 257



AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

20
09

/10
20

10
/11

20
11

/12
20

12
/13

FT
E 

TO
TA

L

CO
RP

OR
AT

E C
RO

SS
-C
UT

TIN
G 
SA

VIN
GS

Ca
r a

llo
wa

nc
es

Bu
ild
ing
 C
on
tro
l 

£1
,10
0

Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 
Div
isio

n
£1
,50
0

£0
£0

£2
,60

0
£0

0.0
£2

,60
0

Mo
ve
 to

 H
MR

C 
Ca

r M
ile
ag

e R
eim

bu
rse

me
nt 

rat
es

Bu
ild
ing
 C
on
tro
l 

£4
,80
0

Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 
Div
isio

n
£1
00

£0
£0

£4
,90

0
£0

0.0
£4

,90
0

Cu
t to

 Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
Tr
ain

ing
 B
ud

ge
ts

Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 
Div
isio

n
£1
,50
0

£0
£0

£1
,50

0
£0

0.0
£1

,50
0

Re
mo

va
l o

f E
ve
nin

g a
llo

wa
nc

es
Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 
Div
isio

n
£2
00

£0
£0

£2
00

£0
0.0

£2
00

Re
mo

ve
 fir

st 
aid

 al
low

an
ce

s
Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me
nt 
Div
isio

n
£2
00

£0
£0

£2
00

£0
0.0

£2
00

PR
OC

UR
EM

EN
T S

AV
IN
GS

Sta
tio
ne
ry

£5
00

£5
00

£0
£0

£0
0.0

£5
00

TO
TA

LS
£5

00
£0

£9
,40

0
£0

0.0
£9

,90
0

TO
TA

L A
CR

OS
S '

IN
 SC

OP
E' 

SE
RV

IC
ES

£4
34

,80
0

Page 258



Agenda Item 20
Page 259By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 266
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 267By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 270
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 271By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 274
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 275By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 278
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 279By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 282
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 283By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 284
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 285By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 288
This page is intentionally left blank



Page 289By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 290
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Imperial and Montpellier Gardens Strategy
	2011_10_18_CAB_Imperial_Montpellier_Gardens_AppA
	2011_10_18_CAB_Imperial_Montpellier_Gdns_AppB
	2011_10_18_CAB_Imperial_Montpellier_Gardens_AppC
	2011_10_18_CAB_Imperial_Montpellier_Gardens_AppD

	6 North Place and Portland Street development
	2011_10_18_CAB_North_Place_Portland_Street_Task_Force_Rec_App2
	2011_10_18_CAB_North_PLace_Portland_Appendix 3_Exempt_ Financial implications
	2011_10_18_CAB_North_Place_Portland_Street_appendix_4.1_public_mins
	2011_10_18_CAB_North_Place_Portland_Street_appendix_4.2_exempt_mins

	7 Housing Review
	2011_10_18_CAB_Housing_review_working_group_Appendix_2_Recommendations
	2011_10_18_CAB_Housing_review_working_group_Appendix_3_Issues_Paper
	2011_10_18_CAB_Housing_review_working_group_Appendix_4
	2011_10_18_CAB_Housing_review_working_group_Appendix_5_Strategy_content

	8 Draft HRA Business Plan
	2011_10_18_CAB_HRA_business_plan_Appendix

	9 Advice and Inclusion Contract
	2011_10_18_CAB_Advice_Inclusion_Contract_App_2
	2011_10_18_CAB_Advice_Inclusion_Contract_App_3
	2011_10_18_CAB_Advice_Inclusion_Contract_App_4

	10 Quarterly budget monitoring report
	2011_10_18_CAB_Budget_Monitoring_Appendix 2-CTAX  NNDR Monitoring
	2011_10_18_CAB_Budget_Monitoring_Appendix 3_sundry_debt

	11 Budget Strategy and Process
	2011_10_18_CAB_Budget_Strategy_Appendix_2_Budget_timetable_ 2012.13
	2011_10_18_CAB_Budget_Strategy_Appendix_3_MTFS

	12 Promoting Cheltenham Fund
	2011_10_18_CAB_Promoting cheltenham fund report_App2

	13 Environmental Improvements Fund
	2011_10_18_CAB_Promoting cheltenham fund_App_3doc

	14 Cheltenham partnership structures and arrangements
	2011_10_18_CAB_Partnership_Structures_Report_App2
	2011_10_18_CAB_Partnership_Structures_Report_App3

	15 Air Quality Management
	2011_10_18_CAB_CBC_Air_Quality_Management_Area_Appendix.doc

	16 Review of the Constitution-Executive Functions
	17 Commissioning Framework for Built Environment-update report
	2011_10_18_CAB_Built_environment_Commissioning_Appendix_2
	Appendix_3_outcomes framework
	Appendix_ 4_BtG savings - BE Commissioning

	20 A Financial Matter
	2011_10_18_CAB_Appendix 2i
	2011_10_18_CAB_Appendix 2ii
	2011_10_18_CAB_ Appendix 2iii
	2011_10_18_CAB_Appendix 3
	2011_10_18_CAB_Appendix 1
	2011_10_18_CAB_Appendix  5
	2011_10_18_CAB_Appendix 6


